VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
AGENDA
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors
Monday, November 17, 2025 — 2:00 P.M.

The VCMWD Board of Directors welcomes the public to attend its meetings both in-person
at its Board Room and virtually via livestream. Please note that in the event of technical
issues that disrupt the meeting livestream or receipt of public comments by phone or
email, the meeting will continue, unless otherwise required by law, such as when a
Director is attending the meeting virtually pursuant to certain provisions of the Brown Act.

Instructions for members of the public who wish to address the Board of Directors:

Members of the public can address the Board of Directors during “Public Comments” or on specific
agenda items, may do so as instructed below. All comments will be subject to a limit of three (3) minutes.

¢ Making Public Comment for In-Person Attendance: Members of the public who wish to observe or to
address the Board may join the Board Members at the noticed, physical location. A Request to Speak
slip must be submitted to the Board Secretary prior to start of the meeting (if possible).

¢ Phone Comments During the Meeting: Before the meeting, or before public comment period for
the item closes during the meeting, submit a telephone number by email to the Board Secretary
at publiccomments@vcmwd.org, together with the agenda item number, and the Board Secretary
will call when the board is ready to hear public comments; or

¢ Emailed Comments: Before the meeting, or before public comment period for that item closes at
the meeting, email your comments to the Board Secretary at publiccomments@vcmwd.org and
they will be read aloud during the public comment period; or

o Written Comments: Written comments can be also be physically dropped off or mailed in advance
of the meeting at the District's Administrative located at 29300 Valley Center Rd., Valley Center,
CA 92082, for receipt no later than 1:00 pm on meeting day.

These public comment procedures supersede any District public comment policies and procedures
to the contrary. If modifications or accommodations from individuals with disabilities are required,
such persons should provide a request at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting by email to the
Board Secretary at boardsecretary@vcmwd.org.

Meeting Broadcast: Members of the public may watch the meeting electronically by visiting the
District’s website at vemwd.org/Board/Board-Documents and then clicking the
link listed below “live stream” on the page.

Meeting Documents: Board Meeting Packets (except for closed session materials) will be made
available to the public once distributed to the Board. Please visit the District’s
website at vemwd.org/Board/Board-Documents for Agenda and related Board
Meeting Documents.

ROLL CALL

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

At its option, the Board may approve the agenda, delete an item, reorder items and add an item to the
agenda (Government Code Section 54954.2).

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Comments and inquiries from the audience will be received on any matter not on the agenda, but
within the jurisdiction of the Board. Comments and inquiries pertaining to an item on the agenda will
be received during the deliberation of the agenda item (Government Code Section 54954.3).



mailto:publiccomments@vcmwd.org
mailto:publiccomments@vcmwd.org
mailto:boardsecretary@vcmwd.org
http://vcmwd.org/Board/Board-Documents
http://vcmwd.org/Board/Board-Documents

Valley Center Municipal Water District
Board of Directors’ Meeting Agenda

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS

Consent calendar items will be voted on together by a single motion unless separate action is
requested by a Board member, staff or member of the audience.

1. Minutes of the Reqular Board Meeting Held Monday, October 20, 2025;

2. Audit Demands and Wire Disbursements;

3. Treasurer’s Report for Month Ending September 30, 2025; and

4. Financial Statements for the Quarter Ended September 30, 2025.

PRESENTATION

5. Informational Presentation by San Diego County Water Authority on the San Dieqgo

Aqueduct Bifurcation Project:

An informational presentation from the San Diego County Water Authority (SDCWA) on the San
Diego Aqueduct Bifurcation Project will be provided.

Report by Valerie Airey, SDCWA Principal Construction Manager
Discussion

Audience comments/questions

Informational presentation only

aooow

ACTION ITEM(S)

6. Ratify Execution of Recycled Water Use Agreement with San Pasqual Economic

Development Council (SPEDC) dba Native Oaks Golf Club, adopt Resolution No. 2025-
30, and Authorize Filing the Agreement with the County:

The updated Recycled Water Use Agreement with Native Oaks Golf Club has been executed to
reflect current parties and operational needs. Staff requests the Board of Directors adopt
Resolution No. 2025-30 ratifying the former General Manager's action and authorizing the
Agreement to be recorded with the County.

a. Report by Gary Arant
b. Discussion

c. Audience comments/questions

d. If desired, motion to approve or deny Resolution No. 2025-30

Request Approval of Woods Valley Ranch (WVR) Capacity Transfer Installment
Purchase Agreement:

The Board will consider the approval of Resolution No. 2025-26 approving the Installment
Purchase Agreement for funding the multi-year transfer of Woods Valley Ranch WRF capacity
from the North Village Area for use by Community Facilities District No. 2020-1 in accordance with
the Capacity Reservation Transfer Policy (Administrative Code Section 171.11).

a. Report by District Engineer
b. Discussion
2 November 17, 2025



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Board of Directors’ Meeting Agenda

c. Audience comments/questions
d. If desired, motion to approve or deny Resolution No. 2025-26

8. Old Castle Pipeline Replacement—DWSRF Good Faith Estimate Approval and Loan
Document Authorization:

Request the Board of Directors adopt Resolution No. 2025-29 approving the form of agreement
and authorizing staff to enter into the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) Loan for the
Old Castle Pipeline Replacement Project.

Report by District Engineer

Discussion

Audience comments/questions

If desired, motion to approve or deny Resolution No. 2025-29

oo oo

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS

9. Legislative and Reqgulatory Report:

An update to the Board on current and developing legislative and regulatory matters that may
impact District operations.

Report by Special Projects and Regulatory Compliance Manager
Discussion

Audience comments/questions

Information item only, no action required

oo oo

10. San Dieqgo County Water Authority (SDCWA) Board Meeting Summary:

A report on the SDCWA'’s Board of Directors’ Meeting October 23, 2025 will be provided.

Report by Gary Arant

Discussion

Audience comments/questions
Information item only, no action required

aooow

11. General Information:

General Information items will be reviewed.

a. Report by General Manager

b. Discussion

c. Audience comments/questions

d. Information item only, no action required

DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL’S REPORT

3 November 17, 2025



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Board of Directors’ Meeting Agenda

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ AGENDA AND AB1234 REPORTING*

* Directors must provide brief reports on meetings/events attended in the performance of their official duties for
which compensation or reimbursement is provided. Authority: Government Code Section 53232.3.

CLOSED SESSION ITEM

At any time during the regular session, the Board may adjourn to closed session to consider
litigation, personnel matters, or to discuss with legal counsel matters within the attorney-client
privilege. Discussion of litigation is within the attorney-client privilege and may be held in closed
session (per Government Code § 54956.9).

12. A Closed Session will be held pursuant to the following item:

¢ Government Code §54956.9 (d)(1) — Conference with Legal Counsel — Existing Litigation:
HOLLOWAY V. SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY et al.,
Case No. 37-2023-00053167-CU-OR-NC.

ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC

This agenda was posted at least 72 hours before the meeting in a location freely accessible to the
public. No action may be taken on any item not appearing on the posted agenda, except as provided
by Government Code Section 54954.2. Any written materials provided to a majority of the Board of
Directors within 72 hours prior to the meeting regarding any item on this agenda will be available for
public inspection on the District’'s website. The agenda is available for public review on the District’s
website, http://www.vcmwd.org.

For questions or request for information related to this agenda contact Coral Williams, Board
Secretary, at (760) 735-4517 or publiccomments@vcmwd.org. Upon request, this agenda will be
made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by Section
202 of the American with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any person with a disability who requires a
modification or accommodation in order to participate in a meeting should direct such request to the
Board Secretary at least 48 hours before the meeting, if possible.

— End of Agenda —

4 November 17, 2025


http://www.vcmwd.org/
mailto:publiccomments@vcmwd.org

VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
MINUTES
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors
Monday, October 20, 2025 — 2:00 P.M.

The Valley Center Municipal Water District Board of Directors’ meeting was called to order
by President Ferro at 2:00 PM. In the Board Room at 29300 Valley Center Rd.; Valley Center,
CA 92082, and livestreamed on the District’'s website at www.vcmwd.org.

ROLL CALL

Board Members Present: Directors Ferro, Holtz, Baker, Ness (arrived at 2:02 p.m.), and Stehly.
Board Members Absent: None.

Staff Members Present: General Manager Arant, District Engineer Grabbe, Director of Finance and
Administration Pugh, Director of Operations and Facilities Lovelady, Manager of Accounting/Deputy
Director of Finance & Administration Velasquez; Director of IT Pilve, Administrative
Assistant/Assistant Board Secretary Williams, Special Projects and Regulatory Compliance
Manager Nichols, General Counsel Paula de Sousa, and HR Analyst Lackerdas present in-person.

PUBLIC COMMENT(S)

President Ferro established for the record the process by which public comments are received by
the Board; this process was also described in the Agenda for the meeting.

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS

Consent calendar items will be voted on together by a single motion unless separate action is
requested by a Board member, staff or member of the audience.

1. Minutes of the Reqular Board Meeting Held Monday, September 15, 2025;

Audit Demands and Wire Disbursements;

3. OQuarterly Expense Reimbursement Disclosures (July 1 — September 30, 2025) per
Government Code Section 53065;

4. Treasurer’s Report for Month Ending September 31, 2025;

Request Approval of Purchase Order No. 118973 for the Purchase of Four (4) New
Vehicles; and

6. Resolution No. 2025-28 to Approve of Task Order No. 16 to TSAC Engineering for the
North Broadway Pipeline Replacement Project.

Action: Upon motion by Holtz, seconded by Stehly; and carried with 5 affirmative votes, the
previously listed consent calendar items were approved.


http://www.vcmwd.org/

Valley Center Municipal Water District
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes

INFORMATION ITEM / POSSIBLE ACTION ITEM(S)

1. Consideration of Adopting Ordinance 2025-09, Updating Administrative Code Article
1 “Insurance” for Policy Clarification:

Ordinance No. 2025-09, amending Administrative Code Article 1, “Insurance,” to formally establish
a policy allowing future retired District staff (hired on or after July 1, 2008), current District Board
Members, and former District Board Members who have served at least one full term, to continue
participation in the District’s Medical, Dental, and Vision program on a self-pay basis, was presented
for Board consideration.

Action: Upon motion by Stehly, seconded by Ness; motion to approve the following Ordinance
passed with five (5) affirmative votes:

ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
AMENDING ADMINISTRATIVE CODE ARTICLE 1 TO FORMALLY ESTABLISH A POLICY
ALLOWING FUTURE RETIRED STAFF MEMBERS WHO ARE NOT ELIGIBLE FOR THE
DISTRICT’S “RETIREES’ HEALTH BENEFITS PLAN” AND DISTRICT BOARD MEMBERS,
PAST AND PRESENT, TO PARTICIPATE IN THE DISTRICT’S MEDICAL, DENTAL AND
VISION PROGRAM, AT NO COST TO THE DISTRICT

Was adopted by the following vote, to wit:

AYES: Directors Ferro, Holtz, Baker, Ness, and Stehly
NOES: None
ABSENT: None

8. Consideration of Adopting Ordinance 2025-10, Amending Article 40, “Organization of
Staff,” Section 40.1.“General Manager,” Regarding the Time for Annual Performance
and Compensation Evaluation:

Ordinance No. 2025-10, amending the Administrative Code, Article 40, “Organization of Staff,”
Section 40.1, “General Manager.” The amendment aligns the timing of the General Manager’s annual
Performance and Compensation Evaluation with the terms of the current Employment Agreement.
Under the Employment Agreement with General Manager Lindsay Leahy, the Performance and
Compensation Review is scheduled for July each year, beginning in July 2026. The Administrative
Code currently specifies that the evaluation is to occur in January. To maintain consistency between
governing documents, Ordinance No. 2025-10 proposes establishing July as the officially designated
evaluation period, beginning in 2026.

Action: Upon motion by Ness, seconded by Stehly; motion to approve the following Ordinance
passed with five (5) affirmative votes:

ORDINANCE NO. 2025-10
ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT AMENDING ARTICLE 40,
“ORGANIZATION OF STAFF,” SECTION 40.1,“GENERAL MANAGER,”
REGARDING THE TIME FOR ANNUAL
PERFORMANCE AND COMPENSATION EVALUATION.

2 October 20, 2025



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes

Was adopted by the following vote, to wit:

AYES: Directors Ferro, Holtz, Baker, Ness, and Stehly
NOES: None
ABSENT: None

0. Review of Notice of Public Hearing for Proposed Changes to Water and Wastewater
Rates Effective January 1, 2026, and Consideration of Setting a Public Hearing:

The Director of Finance presented the proposed 2026 water and wastewater rates, reflecting
pass-through increases from the San Diego County Water Authority (SDCWA) and Metropolitan
Water District (MWD), as well as adjustments to local commodity, monthly service, pumping, fire
protection, and wastewater charges. These rates are aligned with the Fiscal Year 2025-2026
Budget assumptions and are necessary to offset wholesale cost increases, operational inflation,
and to support planned capital improvements.

Water Rates: In January 2026, aggregate wholesale costs from SDCWA and MWD will increase
$130.85 per acre foot (4.7%) for domestic water purchases and $189.09 per acre foot (9.9%) for
Permanent Special Agricultural Water Rate (PSAWR) purchases. The District’s local cost
component of the water rate is proposed to be $321.17 per acre foot. This represents an increase
of 9.8% over the current rate of $292.51. Total revenue increases, including the District’s
component, are 5.1% for domestic and 9.9% for PSAWR customers.

Included in water charges the District is required to pay CWA in 2026 are fixed charges for
Customer Service, Storage, Supply Reliability, and Transportation. The District calculates the
per-acre-foot equivalent of these charges by dividing the total charges by projected water sales,
less a 10% reserve for sales levels under budgeted amounts. For the fiscal year ending 2026
budgeted sales are 12,500 acre feet and the fixed charges totaling $5,468,160 are allocated over
11,250 acre feet.

Beginning in Calendar Year 2026, the SDCWA Board approved a refined methodology for
calculating the Storage Charge. Prior to January 2026 PSAWR customers were exempt from
paying the full Storage Charge. The Storage Charge will now be segregated into two parts: 1)
the Operating component, which all users including agricultural customers benefit from, and; 2)
the component for the Emergency Storage Program (ESP) and Carryover (CO) Storage
Program. PSAWR customers will be subject to the Operating component and will remain exempt
from the ESP & CSP component. This refined methodology ensures that PSAWR customers pay
proportionately for the operational storage benefits they receive, while maintaining their
exemption from emergency and carryover storage costs.

Current and Proposed Water Wholesale/Commodity Charge Rates ($/HCF)

Proposed Effective
Customer Class Costs Current Change Jan. 1, 2026
MWD/SDCWA
Domestic/Commercial Wholesale $6.4496 $0.3004 $6.7500
VCMWD Commodity 0.6715 0.0658 0.7373
Total $7.1211 $0.3662 $7.4873
MWD/SDCWA
PSAWR: Wholesale $4.3634 $0.4341 $4.7975
VCMWD Commodity 0.6715 0.0658 0.7373
Total $5.0349 $0.4999 $5.5348

3 October 20, 2025



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes

Water Meter Service Charges: Staff proposed increasing the monthly meter service charge to
offset local inflation of its operating costs by a range of 9.8% to 11.3%. This would increase the
charge for a %-inch meter from $51.28 to $57.06 and a 1-inch meter from $69.30 to $76.09 per
month. The charge is based on the 1-inch equivalent meter size. The increase for the %-inch is
slightly higher to bring it in line with the 1-inch equivalent.

Staff proposes increasing the monthly fire service charge to offset local inflation of its operating
costs by a range of 9.8% to 13.7%. This would increase the charge for a %-inch fire service from
$10.61 to $12.06 per month and a 1-inch service from $14.86 to $16.31 per month. The charge
is based on the 1-inch equivalent meter size serving the parcel. The increase for the %-inch is
slightly higher to bring it in line with the 1-inch equivalent.

Pumping Rates: Staff proposes a 17.3% increase to the pumping rates. This is required to
offset the costs passed through from San Diego Gas & Electric as well as the costs for the
maintenance of pumps and motors. In Fiscal Year 2023-24 the Board approved a 5-year plan to
close the gap between Pumping Charge Revenues and Total Pumping Costs. The ultimate goal
is that the Pumping Charge Revenues be sufficient to cover the Total Pumping Costs.

Current and Proposed Pumping Zone Rates

Current Proposed Effective

Zone $/Unit Change Jan. 1, 2026
1 $0.16612 $0.02873 $0.19485
2 $0.33215 $0.05746 $0.38961
3 $0.36849 $0.06374 $0.43223
4 $0.55030 $0.09520 $0.64550
5 $0.80714 $0.13963 $0.94677
6 $0.90035 $0.15576 $1.05611
7 $0.95481 $0.16518 $1.11999
8 $1.08217 $0.18721 $1.26938
9 $1.12087 $0.19391 $1.31478
10 $1.48459 $0.25683 $1.74142

SDCWA Infrastructure Access Charge (IAC): Annually the SDCWA assesses the District a
fixed charge based on the number and size of the active meters within the District. The annual
charge to the District is divided into monthly charges passed through and collected each month
from active customers. No change is proposed to the current rates at this time.

MWD Fixed Charge: The Metropolitan Water District (MWD) has two fixed charges, the
Capacity Reservation and Readiness-to-Serve charge that are passed directly through to the
District from the SDCWA totaling $1,009,240. The VCMWD Board approved the MWD Fixed
Charge that went into effect in January 2025. The MWD Fixed Charge is based on the meter size
serving the parcel. The current charge is $7.50 for a 3/4-inch meter and $10.00 for a 1- inch
meter. Larger meter charges are based on the 1-inch meter charge. No change is proposed to
the current rates at this time.

Proposed SDCWA Fixed Transportation Charge: The San Diego County Water Authority
(SDCWA) has several fixed charges that are passed directly through to the District. One of these
fixed charges, the Transportation Charge which totals $2,016,265 for calendar 2026, has
tentatively been approved by the VCMWD Board to be covered with a new fixed charge, the

4 October 20, 2025



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes

SDCWA Fixed Transportation Charge. The VCMWD Board is proposing this new fixed charge to
be phased in over a three-year period that will ultimately cover the full cost of the Fixed
Transportation Charge from SDCWA. It will be proposed to be added to the monthly customer
water bills beginning February 2026 for service starting January 1, 2026. The new fixed charge
will be billed based on the customers active meter size serving the parcel and is proposed at
$4.75 for a %-inch meter and $6.34 for a 1-inch meter. Larger meter charges are based on the
1-inch meter charge. The balance will continue to be included in the variable wholesale rate until
years 2 and 3 when ultimately the Total Transportation Charge will be collected with the monthly
Fixed Transportation Charge Passthrough on the customer water bills.

Proposed SDCWA
Fixed Transportation Charge

($/Meter Size)
Effective

Meter Size Jan. 1, 2026
3/4 inch $4.75
1 inch $6.34
1-1/2 inch $9.51
2 inch $12.68
3inch $19.02
4 inch $25.36
6 inch $38.04
8 inch $50.72

Proposed Water Capital Improvement Charge: The Water 2020 Master Plan Update
encompasses a 20-year capital improvement planning horizon. A proposed $91.1M, five to ten-
year, multi-phased capital improvement program was recommended that included replacement
projects needed to extend the service life of the existing facilities, provide greater operational
redundancy, and enhance reliability and operation efficiencies. Given the reduction in water sales
over the past several years, funding that was normally available for capital improvements has
been diverted to operational expenses. This has occurred to such an extent that there is not
sufficient funding to carry out the capital improvement program that was laid out in the Water
2020 Master Plan Update at the rate needed to keep up with the District's aging infrastructure.
Funding for these projects would be from capital replacement reserves and short and long term
low interest rate loans with repayment from a combination of the current net revenues and a
proposed Water Capital Improvement Charge intended to be added to the monthly bill. The new
Water Capital Improvement Charge of $15.00 will be implemented over a five year period and is
based on the customers active meter size serving the parcel and is proposed at $5.00 for a %-
inch meter and $6.67 for a 1-inch meter. Larger meter charges are based on the 1-inch meter
charge. This charge would go into effect starting on January 1, 2026.

5 October 20, 2025



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes

Proposed Water Capital Improvement Charge ($/Meter Size)

Effective Effective Effective
Meter Size Jan. 1,2026 Jan. 1, 2028 Jan. 1, 2030

3/4 inch $5.00 $10.00 $15.00
1inch $6.67 $13.33 $20.00
1-1/2 inch $10.00 $20.00 $30.00
2 inch $13.34 $26.66 $40.00
3inch $20.00 $39.99 $60.00

4 inch $26.67 $53.32 $80.00

6 inch $40.00 $79.98 $120.00

8 inch $53.35 $106.64 $160.00

Wastewater Monthly Service Charges:

- Lower Moosa Canyon Service Area (Moosa):

The Moosa Reclamation Facility monthly service fee be increased by $3.24, or 5.0%, per
equivalent dwelling unit (EDU), from $64.86 to $68.10 to offset inflationary impacts. The low-
pressure wastewater collection system maintenance fee is recommended to increase 10%. The
fee is currently $53.52 and is proposed to increase $5.35 for a new rate of $58.87 per EDU per
month to offset inflation impacts.

Certain property owners in the Lower Moosa Canyon service area have paid for and reserved
wastewater capacity but have not connected to the District’s system. These customers have an
agreement with the District and pay a monthly Wastewater Capacity Reservation Fee. The
Wastewater Capacity Reservation Fee is half of the monthly service charge

Moosa Capital Improvement Charge: The Lower Moosa Canyon Water Reclamation Facility
2023 Master Plan Update encompasses a 20-year capital improvement planning horizon. A
$10.7M, five to ten-year, multi-phased capital improvement program was adopted that included
replacement projects needed to extend the service life of the existing facilities, provide greater
operational redundancy, and enhance reliability and operation efficiencies to accommodate
changes in the waste stream characteristics and flow. Funding for these projects comes from
capital replacement reserves and short and long term low interest rate loans with repayment from
a combination of the current net wastewater revenues and the Moosa Capital Improvement
Charge which went into effect on January 3, 2024. The current Moosa Capital Improvement
Charge is $12 per month per EDU and is billed on the monthly wastewater bill. An EDU is the
flow equivalent of a single-family residential unit. Commercial properties are assigned multiple
EDUs depending on the size and type of business. No change is proposed to the current rate at
this time.

- Woods Valley Ranch Service Area (WVR):

Sewer Service Charges and Sewer Standby Fees for properties not yet connected to the sewer
system are collected as a fixed charge on the property tax roll. Changes proposed for effective
date of July 1, 2026, are $113.85 per month, or $1,366.20 per year compared to the current fee
of $103.50, or $1,242.00 per year. The Standby Fee is $45.86 per month, or $550.32 per year.

Grinder Pump Maintenance Charge is normally collected as a fixed charge on the property tax
roll. However, mid-year connections may occur which will result in the collection of the charge on

6 October 20, 2025




Valley Center Municipal Water District
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes

10.

1.

the monthly water bill until the end of the fiscal year. Changes proposed for effective date of July
1, 2026, are $58.87 per month, or $706.44 per year compared to the current fee of $53.52 per
month, or $642.24 per year.

Excess Use Charge is dependent on the amount of excess wastewater discharged, based on
5,250 gallons per month per EDU. Any wastewater discharged greater than 7.0 HCF times the
number of EDUs allocated to the property would be charged the Wastewater Excess Usage
Charge. No change was proposed to the current rates at this time.

Proposition 218: Mr. Pugh concluded his presentation with an overview of the Proposition 218
process, reminding the Board that the Notice includes language that outlines the District’s rate
structure and customer classes, explains what the rates are comprised of, reasons for proposed
rate increases, and the proposed increases for the coming year. The Notice will be mailed to
approximately 26,000 property owners of record or any tenant directly responsible for the
payment of water/wastewater service fees.

Staff recommended approving the Notice of Public Hearing/Proposition 218 Notice and to direct
staff to mail out the notice to all property owners and tenants directly responsible for paying
water/wastewater charges within the District, and to set the public hearing for December 15,
2025, at 2:00 p.m. (or a date selected by staff that is at least 45 days after mailing the Proposition
218 notice).

Action: Upon motion by Ness seconded by Holtz, and carried with 5 affirmative votes the Board
approved setting a public hearing date of December 15, 2025, or different date
selected by staff that is at least 45 days after mailing the Proposition 218 notice.

Request Approval of Woods Valley Ranch (WVR) Capacity Transfer Installment
Purchase Agreement:

As previously reported, staff recommended that this item be deferred to the November 17th, 2025
Regular Board Meeting.

Action: Informational item only, no action required.

Request Approval of Professional Services Agreement with Hoch Consulting for
Preparation of the 2025 Urban Water Management Plan:

Special Projects and Regulatory Compliance Manager Nichols presented the request to award a
professional services agreement to Hoch Consulting for preparation of the District’s 2025 Urban
Water Management Plan (UWMP). Water suppliers serving more than 3,000 customers or over
3,000 acre-feet annually are required to prepare an UWMP assessing water supply reliability
over a 20-year planning horizon. The 2025 update will identify and address items of significance
that have occurred since the submittal of the 2020 UWMP, including the incorporation of state
Water Use Efficiency and Water Loss Performance standards and climate change considerations
into future water supply planning. Both the UWMP and the District’'s Water Shortage Contingency
Plan must be updated on a five-year cycle. A compliant UWMP is necessary to maintain eligibility
for state grants and funding. Staff recommended adoption of Resolution No. 2025-27 awarding
the contract to Hoch Consulting in the amount of $60,614.

7 October 20, 2025



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes

12

13.

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-27

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
AUTHORIZING STAFF TO ENTER INTO A PROFESSIONAL
SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR THE PREPARATION OF THE
2025 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN
[ACCOUNT NO. 01-06-78-51610]

Action: Upon motion by Stehly, seconded by Ness; motion to approve the following Ordinance
passed with five (5) affirmative votes:

Was adopted by the following vote, to wit:

AYES: Directors Ferro, Holtz, Ness, Stehly and Baker.
NOES: None
ABSENT: None

Approval of LAFCO Special Districts Advisory Committee Nomination:

General Manager Arant presented the nomination of Lindsay Leahy for the Local Agency
Formation Commission (LAFCO) Special District's Advisory Committee for the 2026-2029.

Action: Upon motion by Holtz seconded by Stehly, and carried with 5 affirmative votes the
board approved the nomination of Lindsay Leahy for the Local Agency Formation
Commission (LAFCO) Special District’'s Advisory Committee for 2026-2029.

Lake Turner Solar Array Expansion:

The General Manager provided a report to advise the Board of an opportunity to expand the solar
generating capacity at the Lake Turner Solar Array and to discuss authorization for the General
Manager to extend a preliminary indication of intent to enter into a future Power Purchase
Agreement (PPA) with White Pines Renewables (WPR) for additional solar energy generation.

The General Manager reviewed the history of the Lake Turner Solar Array, including its initial
installation under a PPA in 2008, subsequent operational issues following fire-related damage,
and successful restoration of the array to service in December 2024. He noted that advances in
solar technology have created unused support system capacity, enabling the potential
development of up to an additional 1.2 MW of solar energy without expanding the footprint of the
facility.

Staff reported that WPR has submitted a proposal for the expansion, with renewable power to be
distributed to various District facilities under the SDG&E Renewable Energy Self-Generation Bill
Credit Transfer (RES-BCT) Program. Preliminary review indicates the proposal is competitive
with other recent PPAs and could generate significant operational savings over the 30-year
contract term. Staff also intends to pursue the same Renewable Energy Credit ownership
structure as existing District agreements.

8 October 20, 2025



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes

The timing of the proposed expansion is driven by federal tax credit provisions scheduled for
phase-down in mid-2026, requiring early action to preserve eligibility and allow adequate time for
interconnection and procurement activities.

Action: Upon motion by Ness seconded by Baker, and carried with 5 affirmative votes the
Board authorized the General Manager to provide a non-binding preliminary indication
of the District’s intent to enter into a future Power Purchase Agreement with White
Pines Renewables for the development of additional solar generating capacity at the
Lake Turner facility, subject to final negotiations and subsequent Board approval.

INFORMATION ITEM / POSSIBLE ACTION ITEM(S)

14. San Diego County Water Authority (SDCWA) Board Meeting Summary:

A report on the SDCWA'’s Board of Directors’ Meeting of September 25, 2025 was provided.

Action: Informational item only; no Board action required

15. General Information:

An overview of the District Status report for the month of August was provided.

Action: Informational item only, no action required.

DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL'’S ITEM(S)
None.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ AB1234 REPORTS ON MEETINGS ATTENDED
None.

CLOSED SESSION ITEM(S)

At any time during the regular session, the Board may adjourn to closed session to consider litigation,
personnel matters, or to discuss with legal counsel matters within the attorney-client privilege.
Discussion of litigation is within the attorney-client privilege and may be held in closed session (per
Government Code 8§ 54956.9).

16. A Closed Session was called by President Ferro at 3:18 PM pursuant to the following
item:

e Government Code 854957 - Public Employee Performance Evaluation:
Unrepresented Employee: General Manager

9 October 20, 2025



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes

RECONVENE

Action: The Board came out of closed session at 3:25 PM with no reportable action.

ADJOURNMENT

The adjournment was in honor and remembrance of Oliver J. Smith, for his service as Division
Director 3.

Action: Upon motion by Ness seconded by Stehly; motion passed with 5 affirmative votes, the
regular meeting of the Board of Directors was adjourned at 3:25 PM.

ATTEST: ATTEST:

Coral L. Williams, Acting Board Secretary Enrico P. Ferro, President

10 October 20, 2025



VALLEY CENTER M.W.D.
DISBURSEMENTS
FOR PERIOD OCTOBER 11, 2025 THROUGH OCTOBER 17, 2025

OCTOBER
CHECK # PAYEE DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
ACH ACWA/JPIA Blue Cross Medical Premiums - November 2025 87,407.56
ACH Alpha Analytical Laboratories, Inc. Testing 1,342.50
ACH AlterTech Solutions, LLC Services - Cityworks Configuraion 1,328.00
ACH  Continental Pump Co., Inc Materials - Field 4,691.26
ACH Escondido Metal Supply Materials - Field 113.95
ACH Koppel & Gruber Public Finance Services 5,789.25
ACH Dave Mancino Medicare Part B Reimbursement - 3rd Qtr 2025 534.00
ACH  Orion Construction Corporation North County Emergency Storage Project 424,040.55
ACH  Partners In Control Inc. SCADA/HMI Services 31,455.00
ACH  Prudential Overall Supply Uniform Rentals - September 2025 3,700.96
ACH Betty Randolph Medicare Part B Reimbursement - 3rd Qtr 2025 444.00
ACH Franchot Randolph Medicare Part B Reimbursement - 3rd Qtr 2025 444.00
ACH Rockwell Construction Services, LLC North County Emergency Storage Project and Wa 5,950.00
ACH  Self Insured Services Company LLC Reimbursement Request For Dental Funding Date 1,338.90
172413  A-1 Irrigation, Inc Materials - Field 3,621.83
172414  Accredited Certification Associates LL Annual Certification 500.00
172415 Bekker's, Inc. Deposit For Holiday Luncheon 2,159.64
172416 California Environmental Consulting L Materials - Field 1,845.81
172417 CalMat Co Materials - Field 570.11
172418 Corodata Media Storage, Inc. Record Storage - September 2025 254.19
172419  County of San Diego Permits - Record Number DEH2004-HUPFP-2038 2,346.00
172420 Delta Pest Management Inc Pest Control 1,300.00
172421  Fallbrook Printing Corp Printing Services 208.92
172422 Erik Gonzalez Educational Reimbursement - WECA Get Wired! : 339.00
172423 Hach Company Materials - Field 699.51
172424 iDrains LLC Services 1,775.00
172425 Interstate Battery of San Diego, Inc. Batteries 169.99
172426 Ramon Lastra Carpet Cleaning 1,105.84
172427 Martin Marietta Materials, Inc Materials - Field 1,719.66
172428 William Morris Reimbursement For COSS Recertification 149.00
172429 Nakamichi Consulting Services, Inc.  Services 1,690.00
172430 Pacific Pipeline Supply Materials - Field 3,514.75
172431 Palomar Broadband Inc. Services 69.95
172432 Petty Cash Petty Cash 581.41
172433 Powerland Equipment Inc. Services - Sharpen Hand Hedger 66.58
172434  Quality Chevrolet Vehicle Maintenance 144.35
172435 San Diego County Assessor/Recorder October 2025 MPR - Number of Records 40,074 125.00
172436 San Diego County Water Authority =~ Capacity & Water Treatment Fees - 1st Qtr FY 2( 31,402.00
172437  Self Insured Services Company Medical & Dental Insurance Premiums - October 2 672.40
172438 Southern Counties Lubricants LLC ~ Gasoline and Qil 13,971.68
172439  Sulzer Electro-Mechanical Services (L Materials - Field 105.57
172440 SWRCB Renewal For Distribution Grade 3 - Jeson Nikrasc! 120.00
172441 Walter's Wholesale Electric Co Materials - Field 900.74
172442 Westcoast Rotor, Inc. Materials - Field 173.86



VALLEY CENTER M.W.D.
DISBURSEMENTS
FOR PERIOD OCTOBER 11, 2025 THROUGH OCTOBER 17, 2025

OCTOBER
CHECK # PAYEE DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
172443  Yardley Orgill Co. Inc. Materials - Field _____4,503.52
TOTAL 645,286.24

Approved By;

General Manager

AV LA

Difector of Finafde & Administration




VALLEY CENTER M.W.D.

DISBURSEMENTS

FOR PERIOD OCTOBER 18, 2025 THROUGH OCTOBER 24, 2025

OCTOBER
CHECK # PAYEE DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
ACH ACWA-JPIA Auto and General Liability Program 10/01/25-10/0  329,402.34
ACH ACWA-JPIA Worker's Comp Premium 1st Qtr 2025-2026 (07/(  28,474.19
ACH Alpha Analytical Laboratories, Inc. Testing 785.00
ACH  Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Materials - Field and Materials - IT 11,036.48
ACH Best Best & Krieger LLP Legal Services - September 2025 21,461.30
ACH  Grainger, Inc Materials - Field 1,926.79
ACH Hasa, Inc. Chemicals 1,017.60
ACH  HD Supply Facilities Maintenance Ltd. Materials - Field. Customer# 19969 4,262.14
ACH International City Mgmt Association Re¢ Plan# 801966. MissionSquare Remittance 10/03/2 3,989.42
ACH Thad Klimas Medicare Part B Reimbursement - 3rd Qtr 2025 555.00
ACH Monument Row Gordon Hill Upper - Water Line Easement Project 1,522.50
ACH Self Insured Services Company LLC Reimbursement Request For Dental Funding Date 852.25
ACH Francesca Shough Medicare Part B Reimbursement - 3rd Qtr 2025 1,110.00
ACH Siemens Industry, Inc Materials - Field 2,102.20
ACH State Water Resources Control Board 2020 Pipelines - Contract# D2102015, Project# 37 317,640.12
ACH  United Parcel Service, Inc. Shipping 13.28
ACH Valley Center Municipal Water District Employee Contributions 10/03/25-10/17/25 - Barg 563.75
ACH VCMWD Employees Association Employee Contributions 10/03/25-10/17/25 - Soci 540.00
ACH Westflex, Inc. Materials Field 224.38
172444  Aaron Mehandroo LLC Vehicle Maintenance 389.04
172445 Babcock Laboratories, Inc Testing 650.34
172446 Bavco Materials - Field 2,608.13
172447 CalMat Co Materials - Field 474.00
172448 Complete Office of California, Inc Office Supplies 7,328.50
172449 Brandon Dendy Safety Boot Reimbursement 206.57
172450 Diamond Environmental Services, LP Services 71.34
172451 DIRECTV Moosa Dish Service 10/11/25-11/10/25 60.49
172452 EDCO Waste & Recycling Service  Trash Services - September 2025 2,651.50
172453 Ferguson Waterworks #1083 Materials - Field 2,382.35
172454  HealthEquity Inc. Employee Contributions 10/03/25-10/17/25 277.00
172455 iDrains LLC Services 1,880.00
172456 Esther T. May Medicare Part B Reimbursement - 3rd Qtr 2025 555.00
172457 Occupational Health Centers of Califo Medical Services 363.00
172458  Pacific Pipeline Supply Materials - Field 4,065.94
172459 PDQ Equipment LLC Materials - Field 103.86
172460 Polydyne Inc. Chemicals 1,907.01
172461 Prographics Screenprinting Inc Hats 1,176.13
172462 Quality Chevrolet Vehicle Maintenance 193.95
172463 Moses Shubin Reimbursement For ABPA Backflow Prevention E 215.00
172464 Southern Counties Lubricants LLC ~ Gasoline and Oil 11,811.58
172465 Transamerican Direct, Inc. Postage For 218 Notice 7,438.83
172466 United Way of San Diego County Employee Contributions 10/03/25-10/17/25 20.00



VALLEY CENTER M.W.D.
DISBURSEMENTS
FOR PERIOD OCTOBER 18, 2025 THROUGH OCTOBER 24, 2025

OCTOBER
CHECK # PAYEE DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
172467 Walter's Wholesale Electric Co Materials - Field . 333.60
TOTAL 774,641.90

Approved By:
- General Manager

Av L

Dikettor of Fifance & Administration




VALLEY CENTER M.W.D.

DISBURSEMENTS

FOR PERIOD OCTOBER 25, 2025 THROUGH OCTOBER 31, 2025

OCTOBER
CHECK # PAYEE DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
ACH Alpha Analytical Laboratories, Inc. Testing 1,677.50
ACH Clearway Energy LLC Solar Power Lake Turner - September 2025 21,261.05
ACH Grainger, Inc Materials - Field 978.40
ACH HD Supply Facilities Maintenance Ltd. Materials - Field. Customer# 19969 469.60
ACH ISC Sales, Inc Materials - Field 253.68
ACH  Konica Minolta Premier Finance Copier Rental 10/15/25-11/14/25 2,319.39
ACH Stephanie Lackerdas CalPers Educational Forum 10/13/25-10/15/25 195.33
ACH Parkhouse Tire, Inc. Vehicle Maintenance 2,514.88
ACH Paymentus Corporation Transaction Fees - September 2025 18,139.91
ACH Quartic Solutions LLC GIS Support 1,900.00
ACH  Self Insured Services Company LLC Reimbursement Request For Dental Funding Date 4,548.36
ACH  Service Lighting & Electrical Supplies Materials - Field 400.30
ACH Waterline Technologies Inc Materials - Field 825.47
ACH Larry Watson Medicare Part B Reimbursement - 3rd Qtr 2025 549.00
172468 ACC CAlnc. Materials - Field 423.16
172469 ACWA 2026 Annual Agency Dues 28,285.00
172470  Ardurra Group, Inc. TO#2 Old Castle Waterline Replacement Phase 2 9,767.11
172471  Asbury Environmental Services Hazardous Waste Removal 385.00
172472 AT&T Services 730.41
172473  AT&T Mobility Services - Account No. 287290784385 3,883.03
172474 Babcock Laboratories, Inc Testing 565.51
172475 Carl Bayney Refund Check 020978-000, 1416609 FH@Tall O 2,194.97
172476 California Bank & Trust Credit Cards - Meals, Travel, Meetings 3,090.43
172477 California Bank & Trust Credit Cards - Meals, Travel, Meetings 4,505.34
172478 California Bank & Trust Credit Cards - Meals, Travel, Meetings 2,931.36
172479 California Bank & Trust Credit Cards - Meals, Travel, Meetings 439.40
172480 California Bank & Trust Credit Cards - Meals, Travel, Meetings 1,564.52
172481 California Surveying & Drafting Supply Materials - Engineering 737.55
172482 City of Escondido Escondido Woods Sewer Charges - October 202 1,776.19
172483 Complete Office of California, Inc Office Supplies 120.59
172484 Computer & Peripherals Group, Inc. Materials - Engineering 607.71
172485 Core & Main LP Materials - Field 3,079.15
172486 Lorena Espinoza Janitorial Service - October 2025 1,875.00
172487 Fallbrook Printing Corp Printing Services 648.86
172488 Fallbrook Public Utility District Services 7,500.00
172489 Ferguson Waterworks #1083 Materials - Field 24,410.27
172490 Infosend A/R Processing, Mail & Postage 11,085.86
172491 Infrastructure Engineering Corporatior Cole Grade Road Pipleine Replacement 2,125.00
172492 Richard Mingeram Refund Check 020991-000, 23933102 FH@33.2( 1,237.37
172493 Occupational Health Centers of Califo Medical Services 318.00
172494  Pacific Pipeline Supply Materials - Field 915.88
172495 Powerland Equipment Inc. Materials - Field 197.81
172496 Republic Services Inc. Hazardous Waste Removal 1,921.18
172497 San Diego Gas & Electric Electric Services - Acct 0007242272582 99,946.54



VALLEY CENTER M.W.D.
DISBURSEMENTS
FOR PERIOD OCTOBER 25, 2025 THROUGH OCTOBER 31, 2025

OCTOBER

CHECK # PAYEE DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
172498 San Diego Gas & Electric Electric Services - Acct 0010212819358 53,383.32
172499 San Diego Tax Collector Property Taxes VC4 & VC7 85.34
172500 San Diego Tax Collector Property Taxes VC4 & VC7 232.68
172501 Brennan Scott Safety Boot Reimbursement 288.17
172502 Moses Shubin Reimbursement For AWWA Backflow Prevention 340.00
172503 Uline Materials - Field 745.07
172504 Valley Center Fire Protection District CPR Training 264.00
172505 Walter's Wholesale Electric Co Materials - Field 285.80
172506 Waxie Sanitary Supply Janitorial Supplies 1,451.94
172507 Western Heavy Equip Rental Refund Check 014640-012, 190473204 FH@33.: ___ 1,958.33

TOTAL 332,335.72

Approved By:

eneral Manager

Nooasts Nl o) S 3. ugn wl2las
Director of Finance &(Ajﬁinistrwn .




VALLEY CENTER M.W.D.
DISBURSEMENTS
FOR PERIOD NOVEMBER 01, 2025 THROUGH NOVEMBER 07, 2025

NOVEMBER
CHECK # PAYEE DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
ACH Alpha Analytical Laboratories, Inc. Testing 450.00
ACH BluePath Finance Solar Il LLC Lower Moosa Canyon Solar - October 2025 5,263.16
ACH BluePath Finance Solar V LLC VCMWD Corporate Center - October 2025 2,513.00
ACH BlueTriton Brands Inc Deliveries - October 2025 79.95
ACH Grainger, Inc Materials - Field 1,571.69
ACH  HD Supply Facilities Maintenance Ltd. Materials - Field. Customer# 19969 2,528.45
ACH International City Mgmt Association Re¢Plan# 801966. MissionSquare Remittance 10/17/z 4,023.48
ACH Pinpoint Pest Control Co Inc Bee/Wasp Hive Removal 350.00
ACH  Priority Door Systems Replacement Of Engineering Office Door 3,121.66
ACH Self Insured Services Company LLC Reimbursement Request For Dental Funding Date 639.60
ACH Underground Service Alert/SC Services - October 2025 337.24
ACH Valley Center Municipal Water District Employee Contributions 10/17/25-10/31/25 - Barg 563.75
ACH VCMWD Employees Association Employee Contributions 10/17/25-10/31/25 - Soci: 540.00
172508 -172512 Payroll Payroll 10/17/25-10/31/25 LSB 21,111.85
172513 APCD - County of San Diego Permits 753.00
172514  Aqua-Metric Sales Company Materials - Field 16,480.78
172515 AWWA Membership Dues 01/01/26-12/31/26 5,233.00
172516 Babcock Laboratories, Inc Testing 160.00
172517 Bavco Materials - Field 4,677.14
172518 Core & Main LP Materials - Field 924.33
172519 Diamond Environmental Services, LP Services 71.34
172520 DIRECTV Dish Service 10/24/25-11/23/25 86.58
172521 EDCO Waste & Recycling Service Trash Services - October 2025 1,005.75
172522 Farmer Brothers Co. Breakroom Supplies 298.10
172523 Ferguson Waterworks #1083 Materials - Field 4,180.70
172524  Fidelity Security Life Insurance Compz Vision Plan Premium - November 2025. Group 1D 206.55
172525 Fidelity Security Life Insurance Comps Vision Plan Premium - November 2025. Group ID 950.50
172526 Fleetpride Vehicle Maintenance 51.72
172527 GFT Infrastructure, Inc. North County Emergency Storage Project 44,676.29
172528 HealthEquity Inc. Employee Contributions 10/17/25-10/31/25 277.00
172529 HealthEquity Inc. Employee Contributions 10/17/25-10/31/25 LSB 7,045.31
172530 Interstate Battery of San Diego, Inc. Batteries 173.22
172531 Kaiser Foundation Health Plan Inc Medical Premiums/Purchaser ID 104350 - Novem|  72,474.60
172532 Matheson Tri-Gas Inc Materials - Field 777.22
172533 Mutual of Omaha Life Insurance - November 2025 2,833.92
172534 National Safety Compliance, Inc DQF Online Monthly Fee - October 2025 65.70
172535 North County Lawnmower, Inc. Materials - Field 591.59
172536  Occupational Health Centers of Califo Medical Services 118.00
172537 O'Reilly Automotive, Inc. Vehicle Maintenance 1,691.08
172538 Pamer & Pamer LLC Services - Pump Load From Teatment Plant 1,580.00
172539 R.D. Offutt Company Materials - Field 247.12
172540 Rancho California Water District CropSwap 15% Cost Share - Q3 2025 12,000.00
172541 Reliance Standard Life Insurance Life Insurance Premiums - November 2025 9,410.12
172542 Roadrunner Publications, Inc 2 Year Subscription Renewal 55.00



VALLEY CENTER M.W.D.
DISBURSEMENTS
FOR PERIOD NOVEMBER 01, 2025 THROUGH NOVEMBER 07, 2025

NOVEMBER

CHECK # PAYEE DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
172543 Payton Rutherford Safety Boot Reimbursement 265.00
172544  San Diego Gas & Electric Gas Services - October 2025 19,061.73
172545 Southwest Answering Service, Inc  Answering Service 10/02/25-10/29/25 480.30
172546 SWRCB Application For D3 Exam - Payton Rutherford Ope 100.00
172547 The Box Office Shipping Service 72.68
172548  Tri County Pump Company Services 550.00
172549 United Way of San Diego County Employee Contributions 10/17/25-10/31/25 20.00
172550 Vista Paint Corporation Materials - Field 240.21
172551 Westcoast Rotor, Inc. Materials - Field 70.38

TOTAL "253,049.79

Approved By: ﬂ(x \ ﬂ{,«, |
Gt |

ﬁtor of Fin%e & Administration



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
ELECTRONIC DISBURSEMENTS
FOR PERIOD OCTOBER 1, 2025 THROUGH OCTOBER 31, 2025

SEQ. # DATE  PAYEE DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
BANK TRANSFERS:
ACH:
10/01/25 SDGE Project# 300000801172 NB 10030 W LILAC RD QUTAGE 0S 1,276.00
10/09/25 CALPERS ANNUAL UNFUNDED ACCRUED LIABILITY - OCTOBER 242,403.67
607 10/09/25 Direct Deposit DIRECT DEP PAYROLL 09/19/25-10/03/25 219,391.65
10/10/25 IRS P/R TAX 09/19/25-10/03/25 46,249.44
10/10/25 EDD P/R TAX 09/19/25-10/03/25 14,430.61
10/10/25 PEBSCO/NATIONWIDE DEFERRED COMPENSATION 09/19/25-10/03/25 17,257.84
10/10/25 EXPERTPAY GARNISHMENT 09/19/25-10/03/25 780.00
10/10/25 CALPERS CALPERS CONTRIBUTIONS 09/19/25-10/03/25 66,860.86
608 10/23/25 Direct Deposit DIRECT DEP PAYROLL 10/03/25-10/17/25 217,405.70
10/24/25 IRS P/R TAX 10/03/25-10/17/25 45,824.79
10/24/25 EDD P/R TAX 10/03/25-10/17/25 14,217.14
10/24/25 PEBSCO/NATIONWIDE DEFERRED COMPENSATION 10/03/25-10/17/25 17,258.41
10/24/25 EXPERTPAY GARNISHMENT 10/03/25-10/17/25 780.00
10/24/25 CALPERS CALPERS CONTRIBUTIONS 10/03/25-10/17/25 66,511.74
10/24/25 EDD 3rd QTR 2025 UI & ETT 67.71
ONE TIME WIRES:
RECURRING WIRES:
647 10/09/25 SDCWA WATER DELIVERY - AUGUST 2025 3,663,695.00
648 10/31/25 CAMP TEMPORARY INVESTMENT 1,500,000.00
TOTAL 6,134,410.56

APPROVED BY:

»
DIREZTOR OF FINAMCE

F:\Finance\_Accounting\Banking\CB&T LAIF Wire-Out Ledgers.xlsx WIRE OCTOBER 2025



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
TREASURER'S REPORT - SUMMARY

September 30, 2025
ACTIVE DEPOSITS Cost Basis
Checldng Accounts $379,422.49
Deposits with Fiscal Agents
TOTAL ACTIVE DEPOSITS 79.422.49
INVESTMENTS Market Average
Yalue Xield Percent
Money Market Funds $20,812,200.55 4.23% 51.426% $20,782,199.64
CAMP Term $5,286,832.04 3.96% 12.841% $5,189,430.00
U.S. Treasury Notes 200,000.06 4.27% 0.493% 199,066.73
Federal Agencies Securities 12,528,627.95 4.32% 30.937% 12,502,393.45
Certificates of Deposit, insured 1,776,569.59 4.65% 4.303% 1.738.945.39
TOTAL INVESTMENTS £40.604,230.19 4.24% 100.000% $40.412.035.21
TOTAL ALL FUNDS $40,791,457.70
TOTAL ALL FUNDS (PRIOR MONTH - AUGUST 2025) $40,625,537.69
Maturity Analysis of Investments
Percent Cost Basis
Money Market Funds 51.426% $20,782,199.64
Maturity within one year 18.196% 7,353,464.71
Maturity later than one year 30.378% 12,276,370.86
Total Investments 100.000% $40.412.035.21
Weighted Average Days to Maturity 422
Maximum permitted single investment maturity is 5 years.
Yield Comparatives
Security Term Yield Security Term Yield
LAIF 1 day 4.212% 12 mo. rolling T Bond 1 year 4.075%
T Bills 3 months  4.070% T Bonds 1 year 3.660%
T Bills 6 months  3.840% T Bonds 2 years 3.570%

Sufficient funds are available to meet the next six month's expenditure requirements. All investments are in compliance with the
District's adopled statement of investment policy. Market values for the Governmental / Federal Securities
and Certificates of Deposit were provided by Zions Capital Advisors.

,.a_ V B,Q 11/07/25

‘Plsitwed by James . Pugh, Treasurer

11/07/25
Received by Gary T. Arant, General Manager Date

Page 1



ACTIVE DEPOSITS
Checking Accounts:
California Bank & Trust
California Bank & Trust
California Bank & Trust
Petty Cash
Zions

INVESTMENTS

Money Market Funds:
Local Agency Investment Fund
County of San Diego Investment Fund
Zions Institutional Liquidity Management
CAMP

CAMP Term:
CAMP Term

U.S. Treasury Notes:
U S Treasury Notes 4.250%

VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

TREASURER'S REPORT - DETAIL

Federal Agencies Securities - CB&T, a subsidiary of Zion Bank

Federal Home Ln Bnk 5.250%
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp 4.0850%
Federal Home Ioan Banks 0.80%
Federal Home Loan Banks 1.00%
Federal Farm Credit Bks 4.500%
Federal Farm Credit Bks Bds 4.480%
Federal Home Loan Banks 1.05%
Federal Home Ln Bk Bds 4.500%
Federal Home Loan Banks 3.000%
Federal Home Loan Banks 4.400%
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp 4.280%
Federal Natl Mtg Assn 4.500%
Federal Home Loan Banks 4.375%
Federal Home Loan Banks 4.620%
Federal Farm Credit Bank 4.970%
Federal Home Loan Banks 5.00%
Federal Home Loan Banks 4.700%
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp 4.125%
Federal Farm Cr Bks 4.930%
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp 4.500%
Federal Farm Cr Bks 4.660%
Federal Home Loan Banks 4.040%
Federal Farm Cr Bks 4.270%
Federal Natl Mtg Assn 4.000%

Certificates of Deposit - CB&T, a subsidiary of Zion Bank

Eastern Svgs Bk Fsb Hunt Vy 5.250%
Federal Svgs Bk Chicago II 4.700%
First Fndtn Bk Irvine Ca 4.600%
Toyota Finl Svgs Bk Hend Nv 4.600%
Customers Bk Phoenixville Pa 4.700%
Sallie Mae Bk Murray Utah 4.500%
Western Alliance Bank 4.150%

TOTAL INVESTMENTS

TOTAL ALL FUNDS

September 30, 2025
Face Value Purchase  Maturity
or Rating Date Date

5,000,000 4/11/2025  3/31/2026
200,000 10/19/2023 10/15/2025
1,000,000 4/12/2024  4/10/2029
530,000 9/29/2025  9/18/2030
350,000 3/16/2021  3/16/2026
125,000 6/30/2021  6/30/2026
600,000 8/26/2024  8/26/2026

400,000  9/3/2024 9/3/2026
250,000 10/15/2021 10/15/2026
300,000 11/13/2024 11/13/2026
250,000 4/4/2024  2/25/2027

600,000  3/5/2025 3/5/2027
310,000 3/25/2025  3/25/2027
550,000 2/3/2025  1/28/2028
700,000 2/28/2025  2/25/2028
500,000 12/26/2024 12/26/2028
500,000 4/12/2024  3/27/2029

1,000,000  7/9/2024 7/9/2029
1,000,000 7/30/2024  7/30/2029
1,000,000 8/13/2024  8/13/2029
500,000 2/25/2025  2/25/2030
263,000 7/15/2025  5/23/2030
254,000 7/22/2025  7/8/2030
320,000 8/20/2025  8/20/2030
419,000 8/27/2025  8/20/2030
800,000 9/10/2025  9/10/2030
245,000 10/18/2023 10/20/2025
250,000 6/26/2024  6/26/2028
250,000 5/10/2024  5/10/2029
250,000 5/14/2024  5/14/2029
250,000 6/11/2024  6/11/2029
250,000 7/17/2024  7/17/2029
245,000 3/28/2025  3/27/2026

Page 2

Cost Basis

$365,759.62
$3,500.00
$8,762.87
$1,400.00
$379.422.49

Market Current

Value Yield

$7,519,392.65 421% $7,519,392.65
$2,751,261.88 3.76% 2,749,570.99
$29,109.89 4.03% 29,109.89
$10,512,436.13 4.36% 10,484,126.11
$20.812.200.55 4.23% $20.782,199.64
5,286,832.04 3.96% 5,189,430.00
$5.286.832.04 3.96% $5.189.430.00
200,000.06 4.27% 199,066.73
$200.000.06 4.27% $199.066.73
1,006,322.32 5.25% $1,000,000.00
529,479.70 4.09% 529,214.78
345,059.64 0.80% 350,000.00
122,588.12 1.00% 125,000.00
600,461.06 4.50% 600,000.00
400,150.55 4.48% 400,000.00
243,295.10 1.05% 250,000.00
299,615.66 4.50% 300,000.00
248,032.32 3.09% 242.349.57
599,756.07 4.40% 600,000.00
310,396.77 4.28% 310,000.00
549,919.02 4.50% 549,767.35
700,298.89 4.38% 700,000.00
499,799.10 4.62% 500,000.00
502,570.62 4.99% 498,250.00
1,008,857.92 5.00% 1,000,000.00
1,004,962.43 4.70% 1,000,000.00
998,493.73 4.16% 991,831.74
501,640.30 4.93% 500,000.00
264,623.09 4.50% 262,980.01
254,367.89 4.66% 254,000.00
320,114.71 4.04% 320,000.00
419,208.16 427% 419,000.00
798,614.78 4.00% 800,000.00
$12.528 627,95 4.32% $12.502,393.45
245,151.75 5.25% 244,967.98
256,860.08 4.70% 250,000.00
257.314.23 4.60% 250,000.00
257,325.70 4.60% 250,000.00
258,286.50 4.71% 249,488.35
256,631.33 4.51% 249,489.06
245,000.00 4.15% 245,000.00
$1.776,569.59 4.65% $1,738.945.39

Average
$40,604.230.19 4.239% $40,412.035.21
$40,791,457,70



€ 93eg

0L$
cLs$
1453
918
8l$
0Zs
ces
¥Z$
9zs
8Z$
0e$
(4%
res
9es
8es
ov$
s
1443
or$
8v$

gzoz des

§coc feN

tzoz des

¥coc e

gzoc deg

- €202 1B
_zzozxdes
2202 Jeln
- 120z 1deg
1.20T Jen
020z 1deg
0202 Jen
6102 ¥dog
6102 Jen
810z ¥des
810T Je|n

Suoliy u!
O1]0JH0d JUaW)saAu| [ejo]

210z 1dag

Zl0g felN

9102 1des

9l0c ‘el

Gl0z 1des

0i$
4%

- PL$

ol$
8i$

- 02$

44
ves
ozs
8Z$
0€s

A%
- ves
- 9e$
- 8¢%

ovs$

A
44

o9r$

- 8vs

$70T ‘0€ 1dquandag
SHAVYED - LIOdT SHTIANSVAAL
LOTALSIA HALVA TVAIDINAN ALNID ATTIVA




+ 93ed

wis] dAVOE

- GZog des

- 620T Jel

20z dog

dNvO #

yc0c ‘e

€70z deg

$9UNI9S "pad/no0 0

€coc e

Zeoe deg

- ¢c0C BN

RATALES

Lcoc el

sdom

020z 1deg

0coc ‘BN

19)ie Asuo E

610z 1deg

610¢ e\

810z Jdeg

Jainseal] ‘00 'g's@

8loc ‘el

210z ides

Z10C BN

- 910¢ ydos

[T
<
-
o

910¢ e

GLoz ideg

%08

Wttt

uopisodwo) 0}|0j110d JUBW)SAAU|

mmmmﬁaamam_EMEBM TR

%0

- %0¢

%0t

%09

ST07 ‘0¢ Hoquidydag
SHAVYD - LIOdTd S dRINSVIIL
LOTHLSIA ¥ALVAM TVAIDINOW JHLNTD ATTIVA




VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

TREASURER'S REPORT - GRAPHS

September 30, 2025

Weighted Average Days to Maturity

- 450

- 400

350

- 300

- 250

200

150

100

50

o

Gzoz des

- G20Z 1eN

- 20z des

202 Je
€coz dos
£202 Jel
Zeog ides
zzoz fel
1202 Jdss
1202 Jely

020z 1des

- 020 tel
610z 1408
6102 1N

910z 1des

8lL0c ey

L10zZ ydes

Z10¢ fen

- 910¢ ydog

- 9102 Jely

G102 ¥des

Page 5



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

TREASURER'S REPORT - GRAPHS

September 30, 2025

6.0

- 5.0

40

- 3.0
- 2.0

1.0

0.0

Ggzoz deg

Yield Comparisons
in Percentages

Ll

Gcoc 1B

o

y2oz deos

AL

I T A O T T
T ET T

+ ¢zoz deg

- €202 Je

LLbp

- 220z des

¢coc feN

T T OO IO O

" 120z 1des

T 1202 fen

+ 020z 1des

020c ‘e

i [N
L L L

+610C ydeg

T 6102 eI

TN

" 810z 1d98

- 8102t

LN T

- /107 1deS
T 7102 e

- 910z 1deg

Lipday

- 910Z ‘el

TN R |

- 610z 1des

6.0

50 +

<Q
o

12-mo. rolling T-Bond

LAIF Int.

VCMWD

Page 6



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

TREASURER'S REPORT - TRANSACTIONS
JULY 1, 2025 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2026

INVESTMENTS PURCHASED
Purchase
Date Security

CAMP. CB&T., a subsidiary of Zion Bank

07/15/25 Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp 4.500%
07/22/25 Federal Farm Cr Bks 4.660%
08/12/25 U S Treasury Bills

08/20/25 Federal Home Loans Banks 4.040%
08/27/25 Federal Farm Cr Bks 4.270%
09/10/25 Federal Natl Mtg Assn 4.000%
09/29/25 Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp 4.0850%
09/30/25 Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp 4.0850%

INVESTMENTS MATURED
Purchase
Date Security
CAMP, CB&T. a subsidiary of Zion Bank

01/14/25 Federal Home Loan Banks 4.40%
07/21/21 Federal Home Loan Banks 0.80%
04/28/25 Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp 5.000%
08/12/25 U 8 Treasury Bills

08/30/24 Federal Home Loan Banks 4.430%
05/15/25 U S Treasury Bills

10/06/23 USAA Federal Savings Bank 5.300%
09/29/23 Citibank NA 5.300%

Maturity
Date

05/23/30
07/08/30
08/19/25
08/20/30
08/20/30
09/10/30
09/18/30
09/18/30

Maturity
Date

07/14/25
07/21/25
08/11/25
08/19/25
08/26/25
09/09/25
09/26/25
09/29/25

Page 7

Cost

263,000.00
254,000.00
320,000.00
320,000.00
419,000.00
800,000.00
260,000.00
270,000.00

Cost

200,000.00
250,000.00
285,000.00
320,000.00
350,000.00
785,000.00
250,000.00
250,000.00

Face
Value

262,980.01
254,000.00
319,737.52
320,000.00
419,000.00
800,000.00
259,594.40
269,620.38

Face
Value

200,000.00
250,000.00
285,000.00
319,737.52
350,000.00
774,129.12
250,000.00
250,000.00

Expected
Yield

4.500%
4.660%
0.000%
4.040%
4.270%
4.000%
4.085%
4.085%

Yield to
Maturity

4.400%
0.800%
5.000%
0.000%
4.430%
4.210%
5.300%
5.300%



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
Quarterly Financial Report as of September 30, 2025
25% of Budget Year

Total Revenues for the quarter ending September 30, 2025 total $16,640,915, which is 27.5%
of budget. Details of revenues are as follows:

Water Sales and Pumping Revenue of $12,594,262 is currently 34.2% of budget. Water sales
for the first quarter of 4,665 acre-feet, are 36.5% of budget. Water revenue historically runs
between 60-65% of total in the first six months of the fiscal year.

Meter Services Charges of $2,465,461 are slightly less than budget at 23.5%.

New Connection Sales of $101,787 are running at 29.5% of budget. This increase is due to
higher than anticipated backflow device sales at this point in the fiscal year.

Other Revenue of $366,913, is 32.3% of budget. This is slightly higher than budget due to
higher delinquency charges.

Investment Income of $342,686 is currently right on budget at 24.8%.

Capacity Charges are $26,624 and is 13.4% of budget. The decrease from budget is a result of
lower than anticipated new meter sales at this point of the fiscal year.

Property Taxes and Water Availability Charges are received in December and April when
taxes are generally paid.

Moosa Wastewater revenues are slightly below budget at $589,056, or 23.6% of budget.

The combined Woods Valley Wastewater revenues are down as they are collected on the
property tax roll and are generally received in December and April.

Total Expenditures of $15,995,962 are 27.6% of budget at the end of the first quarter. More
details of the expenditures foliow:

Source of Supply is the single greatest Water Operating Expense. It includes the cost of water
sold, electricity, and natural gas the sum of which accounts for 66.2% of the total budgeted
water operating expenditures in Fiscal Year 2025-26. Source of Supply of $10,533,622 is 32.0%
of budget at the end of the first quarter due to increased water deliveries.

General Administration costs are 21.4% of budget, at $229,611. The reduction is a result of
lower outside professional services, travel expenses, special department expenses, public
information and notices, unclassified — contingency fund expenses, and water conservation
expenses.

Information Technology expenses of $263,888 are below budget at 21.9%. This is a result of
lower labor and benefits, outside professional services, and telecommunications expenses.



Finance expenses, excluding debt service, are running below budget at $634,395, or 20.5% of
the 2025-26 fiscal budget. Lower professional outside services, postage, transportation and
meals, and the write-off of uncollectible accounts (not realized until the end of the fiscal year)
are the reasons for the reduction.

Engineering expenses are below budget, running at 17.9%, or $442,707. This is a result of
lower labor and benefits, training, outside professional services, legal fees and special
department expenses.

Operations and Facilities expenses are $1,923,515, or 21.4% of budget. This is down slightly
as a result of a decrease in training, outside professional services, maintenance expense,
regulatory permits and fees, chemical costs, and special department expenses.

Moosa operating expenses are 20.9% of budget, or $385,787. The reduction is due to lower
outside professional services, regulatory permits and fees, maintenance expenses, utility costs,
and insurance expense that is allocated at the end of the year.

Woods Valley Ranch combined operating expenses, excluding debt service-interest expense,
are 16.9% of the combined operating budget numbers. Lower labor and benefits, outside
professional services, utilities, maintenance expenses, regulatory permits and fees, and
chemical costs are the reason for the decrease from budget.

Capital Project Appropriations in the General Fund for the fiscal year 2025-26 were not
budgeted. The $329,953 in appropriations represent expenditures for continuing projects
appropriated in the prior fiscal year.

At Lower Moosa, there were no capital projects budgeted. The $17,543 in appropriations
represent expenditures for continuing projects appropriated in the prior fiscal year.

At Woods Valley the Chlorine Room Modifications of $240,000 and the Human-Machine
Interface (HMI) Upgrade totaling $415,000 have yet to start.



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE-PERIOD-ENDED-SEPTEMBER 30,2025

25% OF BUDGET YEAR

REVENUES:
Water Sales
General Fund:
Operating Revenues:
Water Sales (including pumping}
Meter Service Charges
New Connection Sales
Other Revenue
Investment Income
Total Operating Revenue
Debt Service Revenues - Water Availability Charges
Capital Project Revenues:
Capacity Charges
Property Taxes
Water Availability Charges
Total Capital Project Revenue
Total General Fund Revenues

Moosa Wastewater Revenues
Woods Valley Ranch Wastewater Revenues
Woods Valley Ranch Expansion

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
General Fund:
Operating Expenses:
General Administration
Information Technology
Finance
Engineering
Operations & Facilities
Source of Supply
Total Operating Expenses
Debt Service - Interest Expense
Depreciation Expense
Capital Projects Appropriations
Total General Fund Expenditures

Moosa Wastewater:
Operating Expenses
Capital Project Appropriations
Total Moosa Expenditures

Woods Valley Ranch Wastewater:
Operating Expenses
Capital Project Appropriations
Total Woods Valley Ranch Expenditures

Woods Valley Ranch Expansion:
Operating Expenses
Debt Service - Interest Expense
Capital Project Appropriations
Total Woods Valley Ranch Expenditures

Total Expenditures
NET REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

2025-2026

Actual
for the period

Adopted Budget | ended 9/30/2025 | Percent of Budget
12,500 AF. 4,565 AF. 36.5%
36,845,000 12,594,262 34.2%
10,502,000 2,465,461 23.5%

345,200 101,787 29.5%
1,137,477 366,913 32.3%
1,380,000 342,686 24.8%

50,209,677 15.871.107 31.6%

106,696 0 0.0%

199,000 26,624 13.4%
3,710,000 93,821 2.5%

457,304 0 0.0%
4,.366.304 120,445 2.8%

54,682,677 15,991,552 29.2%
2,500,680 589,056 23.6%
1,886,900 40,428 2.1%
1,518,377 19,879 1.3%
60,588,634 16,640,915 27.5%
1,075,322 229,611 21.4%
1,205,786 263,888 21.9%
3,093,222 634,395 20.5%
2,475,909 442,707 17.9%
8,971,340 1,923,515 21.4%
32,906,113 10,533.622 32.0%
49,727,692 14,027,738 28.2%

106,696 0 0.0%

3,806,900 951,725 25.0%
0 329.953 100.0%
53.641,288 15,309.416 28.5%
1,847,101 385,787 20.9%
0 17,543 100.0%
1,847,101 403,330 21.8%
1,446,284 252,890 17.5%

655,000 352 0.1%

2,101,284 253,242 12.1%
80,000 4,469 5.6%
354,401 25,506 7.2%

0 0 100.0%

434,401 29,974 6.9%
58,024,074 15,995,962 27.6%
2,564,560 644,953 25.1%




5. Informational Presentation by San Diego County Water Authority on the
San Dieqo Agueduct Bifurcation Project




November 17, 2025

TO: Honorable President & Board of Directors
FROM: Lindsay Leahy, General Manager

SUBJECT: RECYCLED WATER USE AGREEMENT WITH THE SAN PASQUAL
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL, DBA NATIVE OAKS GOLF CLUB,
INC. - RATIFY GENERAL MANAGER’S ACTION TO EXECUTE AGREEMENT,
ADOPT RESOLUTION 2025-30, AND AUTHORIZE FILING THE AGREEMENT
WITH THE SAN DIEGO COUNTY RECORDER’S OFFICE.

PURPOSE:

To seek Board ratification of the former General Manager's execution of the updated Recycled
Water Use Agreement between the District and the San Pasqual Economic Development
Council (SPEDC), DBA Native Oaks Golf Club, Inc. (NOGC), formerly Woods Valley Country
Club, Limited Partnership and to direct that the executed agreement be filed with the San Diego
County Recorder’s Office.

SUMMARY:

As the Board is aware, staff has been engaged in discussions and negotiations with the San
Pasqual Economic Development Council (SPEDC) to update the Recycled Water Use
Agreement, reflect the change in parties of interest, and allow for expanded delivery of recycled
water to the Native Oaks Golf Club (NOGC), up to the permitted treatment capacity of the
Woods Valley Ranch Water Reclamation Facility (WVRWRF).

At the September 2, 2025 Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors (staff memo attached),
staff presented the two primary issues that required resolution in the revised agreement. These
matters have now been fully incorporated into the final agreement:

Water Quality — Nitrates and Total Dissolved Solids (Section 3)

o Issue: Greater delivery volumes increase the need for soil and turf amendments,
resulting in higher operational costs for the golf course.

+ Current Rate Structure: The District charges 50% of the imported water rate (projected
at $3,261/AF effective 1/1/2026) for the first 40,000 gpd (=44.8 AF/yr.), and 15% above
that threshold. This rate structure currently generates approximately $105,000 annually
in revenue.

o Proposed Adjustment: Maintain the 50% rate for the first 40,000 gpd, but waive
charges for deliveries above that threshold. This would generate approximately $73,000
annually (=$32,000 less), while still covering power and O&M costs associated with
delivery.



Timing of Deliveries / Playability Concerns (Section 11)

« Issue: Over-saturation of turf during peak play hours can impact course playability and
turf health.

+ Resolution: Deliveries will be coordinated more strategically using both the on-course
storage and the District's seasonal reservoirs to balance timing and application.

This section also acknowledges the potential for future expansion of on-course storage to
improve operational flexibility and provide additional emergency storage capacity for the District.
Any such improvements would be considered in conjunction with a potential future Phase 3
expansion of the WVRWRF and would be completed at the sole expense of the expansion
proponents, including costs related to design, construction, and any demonstrated lost revenue
to NOGC during construction of the storage improvements.

Other than technical revisions to update and correctly identify the parties to the Agreement—
specifically replacing Woods Valley Ranch, Limited Partnership with the San Pasqual Economic
Development Council, DBA Native Oaks Golf Club—no additional substantive operational
changes were made compared to the original 2013 agreement.

The final agreement was executed by the former General Manager on October 20, 2025, and by
the San Pasqual Economic Development Council on October 21, 2025. Adoption of Resolution
2025-30 will memorialize the Board’s approval of the former General Manager’s execution of the
Agreement on the District’s behalf and authorize the formal filing of the Agreement with the San
Diego County Recorder’s Office.

RECOMMENDATION

After review and discussion, if desired, ratify the former General Manager’s execution of the
above-referenced Agreement and direct that the executed Agreement be formally filed with the
San Diego County Recorder’s Office.

SUBMITTED B¥: REVIEWED BY:
Gary Arant Lindsay Ledhy
Former General Manager General Manager ’
Attachments:

o “Native Oaks Golf Course Recycled Water Use Agreement Delivery Expansion,”
September 2, 2025

o Recycled Water Use Agreement, VCMWD and SPEDC DBA NOGC

e Resolution No. 2025-30


Cwilliams
Snapshot


September 2, 2025

TO: Honorable President & Board of Directors
FROM: Gary T. Arant, General Manager

SUBJECT: NATIVE OAKS GOLF COURSE RECYCLED WATER USE AGREEMENT
DELIVERY EXPANSION

PURPOSE:

To provide the Board a review of recent staff activities related to amending the existing Recycled
Water Use Agreement with the Native Oaks Golf Club (formerly Woods Valley Ranch Golf Course)
and to seek direction on potential expansion of recycled water deliveries from the Woods Valley
Ranch Water Reclamation Facility (WVRWREF).

SUMMARY:

Background - As the Board is aware, Valley Center Municipal Water District (District) owns and
operates the WVRWRF, which serves the wastewater treatment and disposal needs of the North
and South Village Areas. In operation since 2005, the facility currently produces approximately
130,000 gallons per day (gpd) of advanced-treated recycled water. All of this water is delivered
to the adjacent Native Oaks Golf Club, owned and operated by the San Pasqual Band of Mission
Indians and the San Pasqual Economic Development Council (SPEDC).

Current Agreement - The current agreement allows delivery of up to 225,000 gpd. Depending
on seasonal demands, treated water is applied directly to the golf course for irrigation, routed to
on-course storage ponds, or diverted to the District’'s Charlan Road Seasonal Storage Reservoir
for later use. This capacity is sufficient to meet anticipated wastewater commitments for the 1,527
Phase 1 and 2 service connections. However, the agreement does not provide for future disposal
needs associated with a potential Phase 3 expansion.

Discussions with San Pasqual - Over the past several months, District staff has met with
SPEDC and golf course representatives to explore expansion of the delivery agreement to the full
future permitted treatment capacity of the plant, anticipated to be between 450,000 and 475,000
gpd. The parties have reached a general understanding of key principles and recognize the
economic and operational benefits of expanded deliveries.

Two main issues were raised by the golf course operators:
1. Timing of Deliveries / Playability Concerns

o Over-saturation of turf during peak play times can affect course quality.

o Proposed Response: Coordinate deliveries more strategically using both on-
course storage and District seasonal reservoirs to balance timing and application.



2. Water Quality (Nitrates and Total Dissolved Solids)

o Higher deliveries increase the need for soil and turf amendments, raising costs for
the course.

o Proposed Response: Adjust the rate structure to help offset costs. Currently, the
District charges 50% of the imported water rate (projected at $3,261/AF effective
1/1/2026) for the first 40,000 gpd (=44.8 AF/yr.), and 15% above that threshold.
This currently generates about $105,000 annually in revenue.

o Proposed adjustment: Continue charging 50% for the first 40,000 gpd but waive
charges above that threshold. This would yield ~$73,000 (=$32,000 less) but still
cover power and O&M costs for delivery.

While this approach reduces short-term revenue, it would secure additional disposal capacity of
up to 250,000 gpd, which should be sufficient for what is currently anticipated at full build-out of
the North and South Village Areas (almost 1,475 new wastewater connections). Long-term
revenues from expanded water and wastewater service would outweigh the near-term revenue
reduction.

Additional Considerations:

« All wastewater water from WVRWRF must be advanced-treated to meet SWRCB
discharge standards, regardless of disposal method. Delivery to the golf course does
not increase treatment costs; revenues from the sale of recycled water are therefore
supplemental.

« The District currently has no alternative disposal method (e.g., ocean outfall).
« The agreement will preserve the District’s right to redirect water to other disposal sites
in the future, should more favorable opportunities arise.
RECOMMENDATION

If so desired, provide staff with direction to continue negotiations with SPEDC on amending the
Native Oaks Golf Club Recycled Water Use Agreement in line with the principles outlined above,
with the goal of presenting a revised agreement for Board adoption at a future meeting.

SUBMITTED B

Gary T. Arant
General Manager



| WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO
| AND MAIL TAX STATEMENTS TO

Valley Center Municipal Water District
Post Office Box 67

Valley Center, CA 92082
(760)749-1600

APN Nos. 189-331 03 1 89-332- 01 189-332-02 (Space above this line for County Recorder’s use only)

RECYCLED WATER USE AGREEMENT BETWEEN
VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
AND SAN PASQUAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COKEPORATION,
DBA NATIVE OAKS GOLF CLUB fI}r A
/ 7/4)
THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of ___ f /é/g (’:/625 by and
between VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DIS b Rig/ I, a monicipal Water district of
the State of California (hereinafter referred to as the” DISTRICT), and the San Pasqual
Economic Development Corporation, dba Native Oaks Golf Club, Inc, , (hereinafter referred
to as the, owners of the Native Oaks Golf Club (hereinafter referred to as “NOGC”).

A. The DISTRICT is empowered to own and operate wastewater reclamation facilities and
to provide recycled water to individuals or entities within the boundaries of the
DISTRICT.

B. The DISTRICT owns and operates the Woods Valley Ranch Water Reclamation Facility
(WVRWRF) in accordance with the Master Recycling Permit issued by California
Regional Water Quality Control Board, Order No. R9-2015-0104 (“Master Reclamation
Permit”), which provides wastewater capacity for the Woods Valley Ranch Subdivision,
NOGC, and Valley Center Village Parcels, that participated in the South Village
Wastewater Expansion Project. The Master Reclamation Permit allows for the use of the
recycled water produced at the WVRWRF to be used on the NOGC Golf Course.

C. NOGC currently receives recycled water from the WVRWRF in accordance with the
Reclaimed Water Use Agreement dated May 3, 2013 between the DISTRICT and Woods
Valley Country Club, LP. This agreement provided for the use of up to 225,000 gpd of
recycled water on the Woods Valley Ranch Golf Course (“WVGC”), and described the
rights and obligations of the partics with respect to the sale, ownership and use of the
recycled water conveyed to the then WVGC by DISTRICT.

D. The San Pasqual Economic Devclopment Corporation, dba Native Oaks Golf Club, Inc.
acquired the Woods Valley Ranch Golf Course from Woods Valley Country Club, LP in

October of 2013.



The DISTRICT and NOGC desire to replace the existing agreement to allow for recycled
water deliveries up to the limits of the Master Reclamation Permit, which are amended
from time to time with expansion projects to serve new development within the service
area. The DISTRICT and NOGC also desire to clarify the operation and maintenance
responsibilities of seasonal storage facilities proposed with the expansion phases of the
reclamation facility.

This Agreement provides for the use of recycled water on the area designated in the
Waste Discharge Permit for the Woods Valley Ranch Water Reclamation Facility, and
modifications thereto, adopted by the Regional Water Quality Control Board (said permit
is included herein by reference) for the application of recycled water within the Woods
Valley Ranch Golf Course, hereinafter referred to as the “Irrigation Area”. The Irrigation
Area is shown on Exhibit A attached hereto, and by this reference incorporated herein.

NOW THEREFORE, it is agreed as follows:

L.

Pursuant to this Agreement DISTRICT shall have the right, but not the obligation, to
deliver and NOGC shall accept recycled water generated by the Woods Valley Ranch
Water Reclamation Facility in accordance with the DISTRICT’s Reclaimed Water
Service Rules and Regulations, Article 175 of the DISTRICT’s Administrative Code.

POINTS OF DELIVERY. DISTRICT currently delivers recycled water at one of three
points of delivery located at either a) Lake 3, b) the NOGC recycled waterline
connecting Lake 8 to Lake 3 and ¢) Lake 10, as generally shown on Exhibit B attached
hereto. Recycled water billing will be based on the monthly readings of meter M-1
located at the southerm boundary of the Woods Valley Ranch Water Reclamation
Facility, also shown on Exhibit B, attached hereto.

CHARGES. Effective with this agreement, NOGC agrees to receive up to 40,000
gallons per day of recycled water (1,660 Hundred Cubic Feet (HCF) on a monthly
billing cycle) and pay for it at a rate equal to fifty percent (50%) of the DISTRICT’s
then current rate for domestic water. In addition, NOGC agrees to accept all recycled
water in excess of 40,000 gpd (>1,660 HCF on a monthly billing cycle), at no cost to
NOGC.

WATER QUALITY. Recycled Water delivered by the DISTRICT to the Points of
Delivery shall be of a quality permitted by applicable law, including the requirements
of the Waste Discharge Requirements. The Waste Discharge Requirements shall mean
those certain waste discharge requirements set forth by the Regional Water Quality
Control Board, San Diego Region, including, without limitation, the Masier
Reclamation Permit, and any amended combined discharge or reclamation permits that
may be approved in the future for the Facilities.

WATER QUANTITY. For a period of 10 years from the date of this agreement, the
DISTRICT shall deliver, and NOGC shall accept, all recycled water generated by the
Woods Valley Ranch Water Reclamation Facility up to the established discharge limits

of the aforementioned Waste Discharge Permit, or any amendments thereto. After 10



10.

years from the date of this agreement, the DISTRICT shall have the right, but not the
obligation, to deliver, and NOGC shall accept the aforementioned quantity of recycled
water. DISTRICT shall provide NOGC a minimum of 30 days’ notice should the
District intend to substantially reduce established recycled water delivery quantities to
NOGC.

RECYCLED WATER USE. NOGC shall use the Recycled Water in accordance with
all laws, rules and regulations including, but not limited to DISTRICT’ s Administrative
Code Article 175 as well as any operation provisions set forth in the Waste Discharge
Requirements.

TERM OF USE. This agreement shall be in full force and effect in perpetuity or until
terminated by mutual agreement of the DISTRICT and NOGC. District shall have the
right, but not the obligation, to enter upon NOGC property to operate the Irrigation
Facilities and apply recycled water to the Irrigation Area in the event NOGC fails to
take the recycled water delivered by the DISTRICT. NOGC may not change the use
of the Irrigation Area without the expressed written consent of the DISTRICT.

IRRIGATION FACILITIES. The irrigation facilities consist of all sprinklers,
irrigation system piping, pumping, recycled water distribution, seasonal storage, and
control facilities, after the points of delivery, required for the use of recycled water
within the Irrigation Area. The irrigation facilities are privately owned by NOGC. The
facilities, or any modifications to the facilities, shall be constructed in accordance with
all applicable local, state, and federal laws and regulations. NOGC shall provide the
District with copies of record drawings showing the location of all Irrigation Facilities
and shall update the record drawings when modifications are made.

MAINTENANCE OF IRRIGATION FACILITIES. The NOGC shall operate the
Irrigation Facilities and maintain the Irrigation Facilities in good repair and working
order, all in accordance with recognized sound engineering and management practices
and in accordance with this Agreement and all applicable laws, ordinances, rules, and
regulations.

DISTRICT’S RIGHT TO INSPECT AND REPAIR. The DISTRICT shall have the
right to enter upon NOGC property to inspect the Irrigation Facilities and the operation
and maintenance activities of NOGC relating to the Irrigation Facilities to verify all
recycled water regulations are being followed per Section 6 above. The DISTRICT
shall notify NOGC twenty-four hours before such inspections. If a repair or operational
change is required for compliance with the recycled water regulations, NOGC shall be
notified of such repair or operational change. In the event NOGC fails to repair the
Irrigation Facilities or modify its operations following receipt of notice of such request
from the DISTRICT within a reasonable period, the DISTRICT shall have the right to
enter the Irrigation Area and repair the Irrigation Facilities. Any repair of the Irrigation
Facilities by the DISTRICT shall be performed at the cost of the NOGC. The
DISTRICT shall invoice the NOGC for such costs.




11

12,

13.

14.

SEASONAL STORAGE FACILITIES AND DELIVERY OF RECYCLED WATER.
Lakes 10, 8, and 3 are operated by the NOGC to provide a total of 6.8 mg of seasonal
storage. The District and NOGC will cooperate in potential future development of
additional seasonal storage on the golf course, at no cost to NOGC, through
modification of operation levels and construction of additional storage and recycled
water mains at Lakes 5 and 17. Any project to increase storage on the golf course will
be designed and built to meet NOGC operational, aesthetic, and safety requirements.
As part of the storage expansion project, the NOGC will be reimbursed for a

demonstrated reduction in revenue over the course of the project.

To the extent possible, the DISTRICT shall coordinate the delivery of the recycled
water to meet the trrigation and operational needs of the NOGC, while meeting the
water quality, operational parameters, and seasonal storage needs in compliance with
the Master Reclamation Permit.

RECYCLED WATER TRANSMISSION FACILITIES. NOGC dedicated to the
DISTRICT, and the DISTRICT accepted, for ownership, operation, and maintenance
the following described portion of the existing Recycled Water Transmission facilities

and necessary easements:

Approximately 2,030 linear feet of 6-inch PVC Recycled Water main from the
treatment plant site, Station 46+20, to the proposed connection to the Charlan Road
Seasonal Storage Pond at approximate Station 66+50 as depicted on the Plans for
Construction of the 6-inch Recycled Water Force Main prepared by Water 3
Engineering, Inc. (said Plans included herein by reference) as generally shown in
Exhibit B attached hereto.

RESALE OF RECYCLED WATER. NOGC may not sell the Recycled Water to
adjacent property owners without the written consent of the DISTRICT. Resale of
recycled water shall be made pursuant to an agreement between the NOGC and the
purchaser of the recycled water, which agreement shall be approved by the DISTRICT
and shall contain terms and conditions which assure that the delivery and use of the
recycled water will be in full compliance with any discharge permit issued to the
DISTRICT by the San Diego Regional Water Quality Control Board.

INDEMNITY OF THE DISTRICT. NOGC shall indemnify and assume the defense
of, and hold free and harmless, the DISTRICT, its officers, directors, agents, employees
and any engineer, architect or other consultant utilized by the DISTRICT during
construction or operation of the Irrigation Facilities, from any and all obligations,
liabilities, liens, claims, demands, losses, damages and expenses, of whatever type or
nature, including, but not limited to reasonable attorney’s fees and litigation costs
arising out of NOGC'’s design or construction of the Irrigation Facilities or any other
ncgligent act or omission to act by NOGC, its agents, servants, employees, invitees, or
independent contractors which are required by this Agrecment.




15.

16.

17

18.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, NOGC shall have no duty to indemnify the DISTRICT,
its officers, directors, agents, employees or independent contractors against any
liability arising from the negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT, its
officers, directors, agents, employees or independent contractors with respect to any
responsibilities the DISTRICT has pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.
Furthermore, the DISTRICT shall indemnify and assume the defense of, and hold free
and harmless, NOGC, its agents and employees from any and all obligations, liabilities,
liens, claims, demands, losses, damages, and expenses of whatever type or nature,
including but not limited to reasonable attorney’s fees and litigation costs arising out
of the DISTRICT s responsibilities pursuant to this Agreement.

ARBITRATION OF DISPUTES. Any controversy or claim between the parties to this
Agreement, including but not limited to claims, disputes, demands, differences,
controversies, or misunderstandings arising under, out of, or in relation to this
Agreement, its creation, enforcement, interpretation or performances, shall be
submitted to and determined by arbitration before Altematives to Litigation, a
California non-profit corporation or, if said entity is unable or unwilling to serve, then
in accordance with the California Arbitration provisions contained in Code of Civil
Procedure Sections 1280 et seq., as amended.

The arbitrator or arbitrators shall determine the rights of the parties in accordance with
the law and the award shall be subject to review as to the arbitrator’s application of the
law by any court having jurisdiction of the matter, whether or not any mistake of the
law shall appear upon the face of the award. As to all questions of fact, however, the
determination of the arbitrator or arbitrators shall be binding upon all parties and shall
be deemed final and conclusive. Each party shall be entitled to written findings of fact
and conclusions of law as to all issues determined by the award. The arbitrator or
arbitrators shall not be empowered to award punitive damages. Subject to the above
limitations, the award granted by the arbitrator shall be binding upon all parties to the
arbitration and judgment upon the award rendered by the arbitrator or arbitrators may
be entered in any court having jurisdiction over the matter.

ASSIGNMENT. Both the District and NOGC may assign all or a portion of their
rights, obligations, or interests in this Agreement, as long as each so notifies the other
in writing 30 days prior to the assignment, and as long as the assignee agrees to be
bound by the terms of this Agreement and executes all documents necessary to bind
said assignee, and so long as any such assignment shall not frustrate the purposes of
this Agreement. As long as each party notifies the other of the Assignment, then the
Assignor-transferor shall be relieved of liability.

VENUE. In the event a legal or equitable proceeding is brought in connection with
this Agreement, the parties agree that venue shall lie only in the federal or state courts
in the County of San Diego, State of California.

MODIFICATION. This Agreement may not be altered in whole or in part except by
modification in writing, executed by both parties to this Agreement.



19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

ATTORNEYS’ FEES. In the event any arbitration proceeding, administrative
proceeding or litigation in law or in equity, including any action for declaratory relief,
is brought to enforce or interpret the provisions of this Agreement, the prevailing party
or parties shall be entitled to an award of reasonable attorey’s fees and an award of all
costs and expenses associated with the proceedings as determined by the court, the
presiding officer, or the arbitrator authorized to make a determination of the issues, in
addition to any other relief to which the prevailing party or parties may be entitled.

If a party to this Agreement (“first party”) becomes a party to litigation an
administrative proceeding or arbitration concerning the creation, enforcement,
interpretation or performance of this Agreement solely by reason of any act of omission
of the other party hereto, its agents, employees, officers, directors, or any other
representative of such other party (“responsible party™), then if such first party shall
prevail it shall be entitled to reasonable attorney’s fees and all costs and expense of
such proceedings from the responsible party.

PARTIAL INVALIDITY. If any term, covenant, condition or provision of this
Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction or by an arbitration proceeding
as provided herein to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions
hereof shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired or
invalidated thereby, unless the determination of invalidity materially affects the
obligations of the parties hereto.

SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST. Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, the
terms, covenants, and conditions contained herein shall apply to, inure to the benefit
of, and bind the heirs, successors, executors, administrators and assigns of the parties
hereto.

MUTUAL COOPERATION. DISTRICT and NOGC mutually agree to cooperate and
support any approvals required by any governmental agencies or public bodies having
jurisdiction, for the use of Recycled Water within the Native Oaks Golf Course.

NOTICES REQUIRED UNDER AGREEMENT. The parties shall give notice when
required by this Agreement. All notices must be in writing and either served personally
or mailed by certified mail. The notices shall be sent to the officer listed for each party
at the address listed for each party below. If a party wishes to change the officer and/or
address at which notices are given, the party shall notify the other party in accordance
with this Section. All notices shall be sent as follows:

Valley Center Municipal Water District Native Oaks Golf Club, Inc.

Attn: Gary Arant, General Manager Attn: Eric J Julian, General Manager
Post Office Box 67 14616 Woods Valley Road

Valley Center, CA 92082 Valley Center, CA 92082



25.

26.

Agreement.

COOPERATION: FURTHER ACTS. The parties shall fully cooperate with one
another, and shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as may be
necessary, appropriate, or convenient to attain the purposes of this agreement.

CONSTRUCTION: REFERENCES: AND CAPTIONS. Since the parties or their
agents have participated fully in the preparation of this Agreement, the language of this
Agreement shall be construed simply, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for
or against any party. Any term referencing time, days or period for performance shall
be deemed calendar days and not work days. All references to NOGC include all
personnel, employees, and agents of NOGC, except as otherwise specified in this
Agreement. All references to the DISTRICT include its elected officials, officers,
employees, and agents, except as otherwise specified in this Agreement. The captions
of the various articles and paragraphs are for convenience and ease of reference only,
and do not define, limit, angment, or describe the scope, content, or intent of this
Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Recycled Water Use
Agreement between Valley Center Municipal Water District and San Pasqual Economic
Development Corporation, dba Native Oaks Golf Club, Inc. as of the day and year first above
written.

VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL
WATER DISTRICT

By: __

~~"Gary Arant
General Manager

SAN PASQUAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION,
dba NATIVE OAK GOLF CLUB, INC.

By:

_ Tl Y ,r._.‘l.l,‘.f f...,’
Micha¢) ¢ ‘m‘s.'rrlé-'ras

I,

Presicdént



ealy uofeBLu} anid HoD $HeO AN uisig Jerep jediounpy £
V LIGIHX3 ey Aerrepn VB

eaay uonediu| @4

|

[=]
z
g

o ur . X * LY |
. >K.\42.r.\,, ,rffw...w, \»‘ - f&tht} W m_
LRVlon 2 e SSYUOMYS T _
§ iezegeRy  wod S |
)
.mvnv _
B v 0 80302
%5
EN
.
’d

A1IvA 3G
dEN

YIINID AINTPA
YvIg
wwvig

HONVY 33094 1007

Ajoeg uogewe sy AVANNS
Jajepn Youey Asjje spoo

3342
wSQOW

“100Z-61-60 uo Auna) oSalq ues jo 1apioday Ajuna) ay3 Jo 80
3y W pajy B9SEQS-Z00Z "o 3|4 OStbT "ON Joasays depy o3 Buipionde elioyien jo ajes
‘o8a1g ues Jo Auno) auy Ul T-HOGS "ON 1081 0981 ues Jo AJune) §o € § T SI0]
NOLLdIYIS3A TrD31 vIUV TYLLNIQISTH-NON




SOULI9)EAA POIIADAY pue AlaA||aQ JO Siulod
g 11g9IHX3

pusig eep edioin v & R

AB|(BA '.,q

RA

aod A/ %
f/ o d
NYOT 4] @

1
N @) W
NS A /O
gSva9 D.w“v it y. % mm.u

RIVIERA

RS NI,

v QQOD.T

b\o\ N&WS\ ’

ey

39e.0]5 [EUOSEIS PY UEEYD |
seosoN [ ] |

PRy _

AUIPAIEM PIPAIIY 9 ~ = = _

aaneay Jajemaesun --€- ||

AuysEp, PORAIDY AUARIE) el |

qngd 3100 syeQ aneN |

SIUIIIEM PIIFAIRY 9

anen o4 4

PR e pahosy WL |

PisIq iaem [edipunpy Jaua) SEA

HAIN-3 ATT VA

D
v

ITIVA
3Q ¥vHIn

HV3Iq MOV 19
aAaTiv
H3-
30VL A3

AYONNS




ACKNOWLEDGMENT

A notary public or other officer completing this
certificate verifies only the identity of the individual
who signed the document to which this certificate is
attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or
validity of that document.

State of California San Di
County of ah BIcno )

on October 20, 2025 before me, -oral Lea Williams, Notary Public
(insert name and title of the officer)

personally appeared _ Gary T. Arant ,
who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose namey(s] is/are”
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in
his/herftheir authorized capacity(ies), and that by histher/their signature(s} on the instrument the
person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person¢s) acted, executed the instrument.

| certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing
paragraph is true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Py, CORAL LEA WILLIAMS
: & Notary Public - Caltfornta
=S San Diego County
Commissian ¥ 2405336
GIE 4wy Comm. Expires May 24, 2026 F

Signature L /) . (seal o

NN )




ACKNOWLEDGMENT

A notary public or other officer completing this
certificate verifies only the identity of the individual
who signed the document to which this certificate is
attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or

| validity of that document.

State of California

County of In Dicab )

o

On \01 3\] 7035 before me, “\mﬂjﬂ Curvlina Banakel, Pubh ¢ Nl)rlhf

(insert name and title of the officer)

personally appeared _ i Chole] (wileras

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(sj whose name(s) |slare’
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/shefthéy executed the same in
his/hetrftheir authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the
person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person{s) acted, executed the instrument.

| certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing
paragraph is true and correct.

oI, MARIAH CAROLINA 3ANARES )
M Navary Public - California
9% San Diego Caunty 3

WY/ Commission # 23185250 i
My Carr. Exgires Dec 3, 2025 i

WITNESS my hand and official seal. g

Signature\hm*;"'v B(LML‘WJ (Seal)

10




RESOLUTION NO. 2025-30

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL
WATER DISTRICT RATIFYING THE FORMER GENERAL MANAGER’S EXECUTION OF THE
RECYCLED WATER USE AGREEMENT WITH THE SAN PASQUAL ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL, DBA NATIVE OAKS GOLF CLUB, INC., AND DIRECTING THAT
THE AGREEMENT BE FILED WITH THE SAN DIEGO COUNTY RECORDER’S OFFICE

WHEREAS, the District and the San Pasqual Economic Development Council, DBA
Native Oaks Golf Club, Inc. (“NOGC”"), have negotiated and finalized an updated Recycled Water
Use Agreement to reflect current parties and operational conditions related to delivery of
recycled water from the Woods Valley Ranch Water Reclamation Facility; and

WHEREAS, the updated Agreement includes technical revisions to correctly identify
NOGC as the responsible party, provides for expanded recycled water delivery up to the
permitted treatment capacity of the WVRWRF, and incorporates operational amendments
relating to water quality and delivery coordination; and

WHEREAS, the former General Manager executed the updated Recycled Water Use
Agreement on October 20, 2025, consistent with prior Board guidance and direction; and

WHEREAS, staff recommends that the Board ratify the former General Manager's
execution of the Agreement and authorize that the fully executed Agreement be formally filed
with the San Diego County Recorder’s Office.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED AND ORDERED by the Board of
Directors of the Valley Center Municipal Water District, as follows:

1. The Board of Directors hereby ratifies the former General Manager’s execution of the
Recycled Water Use Agreement between the Valley Center Municipal Water District
and the San Pasqual Economic Development Council, DBA Native Oaks Golf Club,

Inc.; and

2. The General Manager, or designee, is hereby authorized and directed to take all
necessary actions to formally record said Agreement with the San Diego County
Recorder’s Office.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the Valley Center
Municipal Water District held on the 17" day of November 2025, by the following vote, to wit:

ATTEST: Enrico Ferro, President

Coral Williams, Acting Board Secretary



November 17, 2025

TO: Honorable President and Board of Directors
FROM: Lindsay Leahy, General Manager

SUBJECT: WOODS VALLEY RANCH WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY -
PROPOSED INSTALLMENT PURCHASE AGREEMENT FOR
CAPACITY TRANSFER

PURPOSE:

Request Board of Directors adopt Resolution No. 2025-26 approving the Installment
Purchase Agreement providing for the multi-year transfer of Woods Valley Ranch WRF
capacity from the Indian Creek Associates, LLC property in the North Village Area to
Valley Center Municipal Water District (VCMWD) for utilization and funding by Community
Facilities District No 2020-1, (Park Circle East\West), of the Valley Center Municipal
Water District (the “CFD”). in lieu of the CFD’s Phase 3 Facility requirements.

SUMMARY:

The process for transferring Woods Valley Ranch Water Reclamation Facility
(“WVRWRF”) capacity was established in October 2018, through approval of the Capacity
Reservation Transfer Policy (Administrative Code Section 171.11) and the adoption of
Resolution No. 2018-23. The transfer policy describes a process that provides for
determining and reimbursing the fair value of the capacity being transferred. Indian Creek
Associates, LLC, ("ICA”) owners of multiple parcels in the North Village Area has a total
wastewater capacity allocation of 224 EDUs and desires to transfer/sell 218.5 EDUs of
that capacity to VCMWD for reallocation to parcels within the CFD. The transfer of this
capacity reduces ICA’s net annual expenditures for its capacity ailocation and will
eliminate the CFD’s responsibility to fund construction of the WVRWRF Phase 3
Expansion project.

Additional background information on the Woods Valley Ranch Wastewater Expansion
Project is included as an attachment to this report, along with capacity transfer
considerations specific to this proposal and details on the District's Capacity Transfer
Policy developed for the WVR Wastewater Expansion Project. The following section
provides specific information on the main agreement points included in the Installment
Sales Agreement

Instaliment Purchase A reement Hi hli hts

e The Parties to the Agreement:
o VCMWD,
o CFD (VCMWD signs on behalf of the CFD), and

Page 1 of 3



o Indian Creek Associates, LLC, ICA's properties are shown in Exhibit A.
ICA desires to relinquish 218.5 EDUS of WVRWRF capacity to VCMWD.

ICA currently owns property in the North Village area with a total of 200 EDUs and
is in escrow on three other parcels that have additional capacity allocations.
Closings on these parcels are scheduled for November 2025 and January 2026.
The agreement would not be executed until ICA owns additional parcels with a
total allocation of at least 218.5 EDUs.

District desires to finance the purchase of the Relinquished Capacity from ICA and
provide such Relinquished Capacity to the CFD through installment payments
secured by the Special Taxes.

Capacity is transferred annually to VCMWD as set forth in Exhibit B.

The purchase of capacity over time by VCMWD does not remove the AD 2012-1
Assessment Lien from ICA’s property. While ICA will be required to continue
paying their annual assessments in full, the District will reimburse ICA, from the
CFD Special Tax Revenues, the CFD's share of the annual assessments for the
transferred/purchased capacity. This arrangement maintains the original financial
security established for the SRF loans and provides ICA with a source of funds for
paying the annual assessments.

Payment Schedule to ICA is set forth in Exhibit C:

o Standb Fee Reimbursement is paid from WVR Replacement Reserve and
is based on the Standby Fees assessed on the tax roll and by the title
company at property closings.

o Equity Principal due ICA includes the reimbursement for the capacity ICA
transfers each year pursuant to the Capacity Transfer Policy requirements.

o Assessment Princi al is the reimbursement for the portion of the annual
assessments for the wastewater treatment and seasonal storage SRF debt
service paid each year by ICA for the transferred capacity. This
reimbursement will track with the land. If parcels are sold in the future, the
assessment reimbursement would go to the property own paying the
assessments.

o Installment a ments are the proposed series of principal and interest
payments to paydown the Equity and Assessment Principal due ICA over a
fifteen-year period utilizing the available CFD Special Tax Revenue.

o Interest is added each year at 2.2% (the common interest rate of the SRF
Loans) of the outstanding equity balance.

The agreement and exhibits were prepared by Best Best and Krieger and VCMWD and
reviewed by Fieldman, Rolapp & Associates and Koppel & Gruber Public Finance. ICA
has reviewed the agreement and provided comments which have been discussed and
incorporated into the agreement. A minor adjustment to Standby Fee reimbursement
amount is anticipated based on the actual date of the property closing.

Page 2 of 3



RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the Board of Directors adopt Resolution No. 2025-26 authorizing
the General Manager to enter into the Installment Purchase Agreement between
VCMWD, CFD and Indian Creek Associates, LLC subject to final review by the
participants and no substantive changes being recommended by the finance team or
requested by Indian Creek Associates, LLC.

PREPARED BY: SUBMITTED BY:
Wally Grawbe, ~E " dsa Le
District En ineer enera Ma er
Attachments —

WVR Expansion Project Background Information
Installment Purchase Agreement
Resolution No. 2025-26

Page 3 of 3



Woods Valley Ranch Wastewater Expansion Project
Background Information related to the Capacity Transfer Request

Assessment District 2012-1 (“AD 2012-1") was originally established in 2012 and modified
in 2015 to fund the Woods Valley Ranch Wastewater Expansion Project (the “Expansion
Project”) to provide wastewater service to the South and North Village Areas. The
expansion project consisted of the construction of a wastewater collection system,
seasonal storage and the Phase 2 expansion of the WVRWREF. Participation in the
assessment district was on a voluntary basis and VCMWD ultimately secured three State
Revolving Fund (“SRF”) loans and two bonds to fund the various construction projects.
Participants are assessed annually based on the benefit received and the amount of
wastewater capacity originally requested.

The CFD was formed in 2020 to fund the additional capacity needed for the Park Circle
East/West development and reapportion the development’'s share of the Expansion
Project pursuant to the recommendations of the CFD’s Rate and Method of
Apportionment. The Park Circle development required 644 EDUs of capacity and only
had an allocation of 425.5 EDUs in AD 2012-1. The CFD needed to construct additional
facilities to provide wastewater service for the remaining 218.5 EDUs that were remaining.
A Phase 3 Expansion of the WVRWRF, including additional seasonal storage and a
recycled water transmission main, would ultimately be needed to allow all the participants
in the Expansion Project and CFD to connect. Minimum sizing requirements of the Phase
3 Expansion project required the developer to post additional securities, which are still on
deposit at VCMWD and available to fund the capacity in excess of that needed by the
CFD, if construction is required before other property owners commit to funding the
excess Phase 3 capacity.

Thus, the proposed capacity transfer from ICA in the North Village Area 1) provides a
temporary financial relief for ICA until such time as ICA needs additional capacity and 2)
eliminates the CFD’s requirement for future construction of the Phase 3 improvements.

Capacity Transfer Considerations

While the capacity of the wastewater treatment plant and seasonal storage facilities can
be physically reassigned from property in the North Village area to property in the Park
Circle development, the collection capacity cannot. The collection facilities in the North
Village area do not benefit the Park Circle Development and the CFD has already funded
all the collection facilities needed by the Park Circle Development. A further consideration
that makes this capacity transfer different and challenging is due to the requirements of
the SRF Loans with respect to the CFD and the current value of the capacity being
transferred. Terms and conditions of the SRF Loans will not allow the assessment liens
associated with the North Village capacity to be released and replaced with the CFD’s
special tax lien. In addition, neither the CFD nor VCMWD have sufficient funds to fully
reimburse ICA the entire value of the capacity at the time of the transfer. The solution
was to develop an Instalilment Purchase Agreement that provides for the transfer and

Page 1 of 2



reimbursement of only the treatment and seasonal storage capacity over a multi-year
period that does not remove the assessment lien or the requirement of the property owner
to make assessment payments. Capacity is proposed to be transferred incrementally
each year to VCMWD, the capacity then reallocated to properties within the CFD and
annual installments reimbursed to ICA by VCMWD from excess special tax revenues.
The reimbursements will be funded on a subordinate basis to any outstanding CFD
bonds.

Ca acit Transfer Polic Summa

The District Capacity Transfer Policy establishes the reimbursement that is due to the
property owner relinquishing the capacity. This reimbursement is an estimate of the fair
value of the capacity at the time of transfer and consists of the following six
components:

a) Contributed Funds (Expansion Project Participation Deposit),
b) WVRWRF System Development Charge,
c) Additional Collection System Costs if any (none for this transfer),

d) FY 2016-17 Annual Assessment applied to the Debt Service Reserve (the full
amount less the administrative expenses),

e) Principal portion annual assessments since FY 2016-17, excluding the current
year of the transfer, and

f) Full assessment (including the Standby Fees) for the year concurrent with the
transfer.

For this unique transfer, the standby fee reimbursement would be funded for the amount
assessed ICA since the effective date of the transfer, October 2024 This would include
200 EDUs in FYE 2025 and 218.5 EDUs in FYE 2026.

Page 2 of 2



Recording requested by
and return to:

Mrunal M. Shah

Best Best & Krieger LLP

3390 University Avenue, 5th Floor
Riverside, CA 92501

THIS DOCUMENT IS EXEMPT FROM RECORDING FEES PURSUANT TO SECTION 27383 OF THE
CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE.

WASTEWATER CAPACITY INSTALLMENT PURCHASE AGREEMENT

Dated as of 2025

by and between

INDIAN CREEK ASSOCIATES, LLC,

VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

and

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2020-1 (PARK CIRCLE EAST/WEST) OF
THE VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Page 1 of 22
60033.00406\44380895.1



WASTEWATER CAPACITY INSTALLMENT PURCHASE AGREEMENT

THIS WASTEWATER CAPACITY INSTALLMENT PURCHASE AGREEMENT
(“Installment Purchase Agreement”) is entered into as of , 2025, between
Indian Creek Associates, LLC, a California limited liability company (‘“Participant”), the Valley
Center Municipal Water District, a municipal water district organized pursuant to California Water
Code sections 71000 et seq. (“District”) and Community Facilities District No. 2020-1 (Park Circle
East/West) of the Valley Center Municipal Water District (“CFD” collectively with the Participant
and the District referred to as “Parties”).

ARTICLE 1

RECITALS

A. The District is authorized to provide wastewater collection and treatment services
to properties located within the jurisdictional boundaries of the District, and provides such service
in part through the Woods Valley Ranch Water Reclamation Facility (the “Phase 11 Expansion
Project”).

B. In order to finance the Phase Il Expansion Project, the District entered into three
(3) Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loans (“SRF Loans™) and issued a Limited Obligation
Improvement Bond (“Bond”) pursuant to the Improvement Bond Act of 1915, and secured
payments for the SRF Loans and Bond through the collection of assessments levied against
properties within Assessment District No. 2012-1 (the “Assessment District™).

C. The District provided owners of property within those areas to be serviced by the
Phase II Expansion Project the opportunity to participate in the Phase II Expansion Project by
reserving capacity in the Phase II Expansion Project through entering into a wastewater service
agreement, thereby including such property in the Assessment District.

D. Additionally, property included in the Phase 11 Expansion Project are subject to
wastewater standby (“Standby Fee”) as duly established and authorized by the District. Such
charges are collected on the annual tax roll.

E. The Participant is one of the property owners participating in the Phase II
Expansion Project that has requested their capacity reservation be relinquished to the District as
identified in Exhibit C attached hereto (the "Relinquished Capacity") and the applicable portion of
the assessment(s) levied against their property be reduced making excess capacity available for
transfer to other parcels within the designated service area of the Woods Valley Ranch Water
Reclamation Facility.

F. The District is in need of additional capacity to allow for the provision for
wastewater service for properties located within the District’s service area which can be served by
the Woods Valley Ranch Water Reclamation Facility and as such the District desires to purchase
the Relinquished Capacity.

Page 2 of 24
60033.00406\44380895.1



G. On May 18, 2020, the Board of Directors of the District established the CFD which
authorized the levy of special taxes within the CFD (the “Special Taxes”) to finance numerous
improvements, including improvements to increase capacity for wastewater collection and
treatment services and payment of debt service on the SRF Loans.

H. Properties located within the CFD are in need of additional capacity.

L The District desires to finance the purchase of the Relinquished Capacity from the
Participant and provide such Relinquished Capacity to the properties within the CFD through
installment payments secured by the Special Taxes.

J. Participant is the owner of the parcel(s) described in Exhibit A attached hereto and
incorporated herein by this reference (the “Participant’s Parcel(s)”), and desires to transfer the
Relinquished Capacity available in the Phase II Expansion Project to the District pursuant to the
terms and conditions set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, the District and the Participant agree as follows:
SECTION 1.1. Recitals. The foregoing Recitals are true and correct.

ARTICLE 2

DEFINITIONS AND EXHIBITS

SECTION 2.1. Definitions. All capitalized terms used in this Section 1.1 shall for
all purposes of this Installment Purchase Agreement have the meanings herein specified or as
hereinafter defined.

“Acquisition Amount” means $[5,752,983], which shall consist of the Installment
Payments and Standby Fee Reimbursement Payment Amount.

“Act” means the “Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, being
Chapter 2.5, Part 1, Division 2, Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of California.

“Administrative Expenses” means the expenses directly related to the administration of the
CFD, including, but not limited to, the following: the costs of computing the Special Taxes and
preparing the annual Special Tax collection schedules (whether by the CFD or a designee thereof
or both); the costs of collecting the Special Taxes (whether by the County, the CFD or otherwise);
the costs of remitting the Special Taxes to the fiscal agent; the costs of a fiscal agent (including its
legal counsel) in the discharge of the duties of such fiscal agent required under any Contracts; the
costs of the CFD or any designee thereof of complying with the arbitrage rebate requirements or
incurred in participating in and responding to an audit by the Internal Revenue Service; the costs
of the CFD or any designee thereof of complying with CFD disclosure requirements associated
with applicable federal or state securities laws and of the Act or otherwise agreed to by the CFD
or property owners developing property within the CFD; the costs associated with preparing
Special Tax disclosure statements and responding to public inquiries regarding the Special Taxes;
the costs of the CFD or any designee thereof related to an appeal of the Special Tax; and the costs

Page 3 of 24
60033.00406\44380895.1



of any credit enhancement obtained by the CFD. Administrative Expenses shall also include any
expenses required in connection with the collection of delinquencies.

“Administrative Expense Fund” means the fund by that name established and held by the
District to pay Administrative Expenses.

“Administrative Expense Requirement” means an annual amount equal to $
commencing with Fiscal Year 2025-26 with 2% escalation each year thereafter, or such lesser
amount as determined by an Authorized Representative, to be allocated as the first priority of
Special Taxes received each Fiscal Year for the payment of Administrative Expenses.

“Annual Debt Service” means, for any Fiscal Year, the sum of (1) the interest accruing on
any Obligations, assuming that all principal payments required to be made hereunder and under
such other Obligations are made as scheduled, plus (2) the principal component of the Installment
Payments and principal amount due under any other Obligations in such Fiscal Year, including
from mandatory sinking fund payments.

“Assessment” means an Assessment levied by the District on behalf of the Assessment
District.

“Assessment Lien” means the lien imposed on the Participants Parcels in connection with
the formation of the Assessment District as evidenced by

“Assessment District” means the Valley Center Municipal Water District Assessment
District No. 2012-1, County of San Diego, State of California.

“Assessment Fund” means the fund of the District in which Assessments are deposited.

“Assessment Indebtedness” means ISA 110, ISA 120 and ISA 130 which are payable from
Net Special Taxes up to the CFD Portion, Assessments and certain other funds of the District.

“Assessment Reimbursement Component” means the component of the Principal
Component of the Installment Payments which is identified in a column by such name on Exhibit
C hereto.

“Authorized Purposes” means the purposes authorized to be financed pursuant to
Resolution No. 2020-14 of the Board of Directors of the District, adopted on May 18, 2020,
forming the CFD.

“Authorized Representative” means the General Manager, the District Engineer/Deputy
General Manager or the Director of Finance and Administration of the District, acting on behalf
of the District, or any other person designated in writing by the General Manager, District
Engineer/Deputy General Manager or the Director of Finance and Administration and authorized
to act on behalf of the District under or with respect to this Agreement and all other agreements
related hereto.

“Bond Counsel” means an attorney or firm of attorneys, selected by the District, of
nationally recognized standing in matters pertaining to the tax treatment of interest on bonds issued

Page 4 of 24
60033.00406\44380895.1



by states and their political subdivisions, duly admitted to the practice of law before the highest
court of the State.

“Business Day” means any day other than (i) a Saturday or Sunday or (ii) a day on which
the New York Stock Exchange is closed and the Federal Reserve is closed.

“CFD” means Community Facilities District No. 2020-1 (Park Circle East/West) of the
Valley Center Municipal Water District.

“CFD Bonds” means $5,355,000 Community Facilities District No. 2020-1 (Park Circle
East/West) of the Valley Center Municipal Water District, Series 2024 Special Tax Bonds.

“CFD Financing Agreement” means that certain CFD Financing Agreement made and
entered into May 4, 2021, by and between the District, acting for itself and on behalf of the District,
and VTL Valley Center Ranch, LLC and VTC Orchard Run, LLC, as such agreement may be
amended from time to time.

“CFD Portion of Assessment Indebtedness” means the District’s share of the Assessment
Indebtedness which is equal to $269,253.00 for ISA 110, $4,232,657.72 for ISA 120 and
$1,200,324.22 ISA 130.

“Closing Date” means , 2025.
“Contract(s)” means any instrument pursuant to which a Parity Obligation is issued.

“Contract Payment Date” means any date on which Contract Payments are scheduled to be
paid by the District under and pursuant to the Obligations.

“Contract Payments” means the payments scheduled to be paid by the CFD under and
pursuant to the Obligations, which payments are secured by a pledge of Net Special Tax Revenues.

“Costs of Issuance” means all items of expense directly or indirectly payable by or
reimbursable to the CFD and related to the authorization, execution, sale and delivery of this
Installment Purchase Agreement and any Obligations, including but not limited to any costs, fees
and charges for preparation and execution of this Installment Purchase Agreement or any
Obligations and any other cost, charge or fee incurred in connection with the delivery of this
Installment Purchase Agreement or such Obligations.

“Delinquency Proceeds” means the amounts collected from the redemption of delinquent
Special Taxes including the penalties and interest thereon and from the sale of property sold as a
result of the foreclosure of the lien of the Special Tax resulting from the delinquency in the
payment of Special Taxes due and payable on such property.

“District” means Valley Center Municipal Water District, a water district duly organized
and existing under the laws of the State of California.

“Equity Reimbursement Component” means the component of the Principal Component
of the Installment Payments which is identified in a column by such name on Exhibit C hereto.

Page 5 of 24
60033.00406\44380895.1



“Event of Default” means any of the events of default as defined in Section 5.1.

“Fiscal Year” means each twelve-month period during the Term of this Installment
Purchase Agreement commencing, on September 1 in any calendar year and ending on August 31
in the next succeeding calendar year, or any other twelve-month period selected by the District as
its fiscal year period.

“Independent Accountant” means any certified public accountant or firm of such certified
public accountants appointed and paid by the CFD, and who, or each of whom -

1. is in fact independent and not under domination of the CFD or the District;

2. does not have any substantial interest, direct or indirect, in the CFD or the District;
and

3. is not an officer or employee of the CFD or the District, but who may be regularly

retained to make annual or other audits of the books of or prepare reports for the CFD or the
District.

“Installment Payment Date” means the September 1 of each year commencing
September 1, 2026; provided however the first Installment Payment shall be paid upon the Closing
Date.

“Installment Payments” means, the Principal Component of the Installment Payments and
the Interest Component of the Installment Payments, each as identified in Exhibit C attached
hereto, and all other payments required to be paid by the District and CFD on any date under this
Installment Purchase Agreement.

“Installment Purchase Agreement” means this Installment Purchase Agreement, dated as
of , 2025, between the Participant, the CFD and the District.

“Interest Component of the Installment Payments™ means the interest payments identified
on Exhibit C attached hereto under the column with the same name.

“ISA 110” means that certain Installment Sale Agreement, dated May 23, 2013, by and
between the District and California State Water Resource Control Board (“CSWRCB”) for State
Revolving Fund Project No. C-06-7454-110, as amended by (i) that certain Amendment No. I to
Installment Sale Agreement, dated as of March 4, 2016, and (ii) that certain Amendment No. 2 to
Installment Sale Agreement, dated October 29, 2024, each by and between the District and
CSWRCB, and any additional amendments thereto.

“ISA 120” means that certain Installment Sale Agreement, dated as of November 18, 2015,
by and between the District and CSWRCB for State Revolving Fund Project No. C-06-7454-120,
as amended by (i) that certain Amendment No. 1 to Installment Sale Agreement, dated as of
January 19, 2016, and (ii) that certain Amendment No. 2 to Installment Sale Agreement, dated as
of October 29, 2024, each by and between the District and CSWRCB, and any additional
amendments thereto.

Page 6 of 24
60033.00406\44380895.1



“ISA 130” means that certain Installment Sale Agreement, dated as of May 23, 2013, by
and between the District and CSWRCB for State Revolving Fund Project No. C-06-7454-130, as
amended by (1) that certain Amendment No. 1 to Installment Sale Agreement, dated as of February
23, 2016, and (ii) that certain Amendment No. 2 to Installment Sale Agreement, dated as of
October 29, 2024, each by and between the District and CSWRCB, and any additional amendments
thereto.

“Maximum Annual Debt Service” means, as of any date of calculation, the largest Annual
Debt Service during the period from the date of such calculation through the final Contract
Payment Date of this Installment Purchase Agreement and all Senior Obligations.

“Net Special Tax Revenues” means the Special Tax Revenues minus amounts applied
annually to fund the Administrative Expense Requirement.

“Obligations” means Parity Obligations and Senior Obligations.
“Outstanding” means as to any Obligations outstanding, all of the Obligations, except:
1. Obligations theretofore canceled or surrendered for cancellation;

2. Obligations for the transfer or exchange of or in lieu of or in substitution for which
other Bonds shall have been authenticated and delivered by the fiscal agent pursuant to the terms
hereof; and

Obligations for the payment or redemption of which monies shall have been theretofore
deposited in trust (whether upon or prior to the maturity or the redemption date of such
Obligations).

“Parity Obligations” means the Installment Payments, all other bonds, notes, loans,
installment sale agreements, leases, or other obligations of the CFD payable from and secured by
a pledge of and lien upon any of the Net Special Tax Revenues incurred on a parity basis to the
Installment Payments but which are subordinate to the Senior Obligations, issued in accordance
with Section 3.1(j) hereof.

“Participant Assessment Payments” means the Assessment payments required to be paid
by the Participant pursuant to the Assessment District.

“Phase Il Expansion Project” means the wastewater collection and treatment services
provided through Woods Valley Ranch Water Reclamation Facility.

“Principal Component of the Installment Payments” means the principal payments
identified on Exhibit C, which are comprised of the Assessment Reimbursement Component and
Equity Reimbursement Component, attached hereto under the column with the same name.

“Project” means the acquisition of capacity in the Phase Il Expansion Project more
particularly described on Exhibit A attached hereto.

Page 7 of 24
60033.00406\44380895.1



“Relinquished Capacity” means the amount of capacity in the Project to be acquired by the
District as identified on Exhibit C hereto in the column entitled “Capacity Transfer.”

“Senior Obligations” means CFD Bonds, CFD Portion of Assessment Indebtedness, all
other bonds, notes, loans, installment sale agreements, leases, or other obligations of the District
payable from and secured by a pledge of and lien upon any of the Net Special Tax Revenues
incurred on a senior basis to the Installment Payments, issued in accordance with Section 3.1(j)
hereof.

“Senior Obligations Payments™ means any Contract Payments required in connection with
Senior Obligations.

“Special Tax” means the Special Tax authorized to be levied in the CFD pursuant to the
Act and the Special Tax RMA.

“Special Tax Consultant” means any person or firm possessing demonstrated experience
and expertise in the preparation of special tax formulas and/or the administration of special taxes
levied for community facilities districts. Any such person or firm shall be appointed and paid by
the District and who, or each of whom —

1. is in fact independent and not under domination of the CFD or the District;

2. does not have any substantial interest, direct or indirect, in the CFD or the District;
and

3. is not an officer or employee of the CFD or the District, but who may be regularly

retained by the District or other community facilities districts formed by the District to administer
the levy of special taxes within such community facilities districts.

“Special Tax Fund” means the fund by that name held by the CFD.

“Special Tax Proportion” means the proportion of the debt service due in a fiscal year for
the Outstanding Obligations over the total amount of debt service of all Outstanding Obligations
due in such fiscal year.

“Special Tax Revenues” means (a) the proceeds of the Special Tax levied by the CFD
pursuant to the Special Tax RMA and received by the CFD, and (b) the Delinquency Proceeds.

“Special Tax RMA” means the rate and method of apportionment of the Special Tax
originally authorized to be levied on property within the CFD as approved at the special election
held within the CFD on May 18, 2020, and as it may be modified from time to time in accordance
with the Act.

“Standby Fee Reimbursement Payments” means the payments required to be paid by the
District to the Participant identified in a column with the same name in Exhibit C hereto.

“Standby Fee Reimbursement Payments Amount” means the total of all Standby Fee
Reimbursement Payments as identified in Exhibit C hereto.

Page 8 of 24
60033.00406\44380895.1



“Subordinate Obligations” means all obligations of the CFD that are subordinate in priority
and payment to the Senior Obligations.

“Term of this Installment Purchase Agreement” or “Term” means the time during which
this Installment Purchase Agreement is in effect, as provided in Section 4.3.

SECTION 2.2. Liability of District Limited to Net Special Tax Revenues.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Installment Purchase Agreement, the
District shall not be required to advance any money derived from any source of income other than
the Net Special Tax Revenues, for the payment of the Installment Payments or for the performance
of any covenants herein contained. The District may, however, advance funds for any such
purpose so long as such funds are derived from a source legally available for such purpose without
incurring any indebtedness. The Installment Payments shall be payable exclusively from the Net
Special Tax Revenues as provided in this Installment Purchase Agreement except as otherwise
provided in this Installment Purchase Agreement. The credit of the District is not otherwise
pledged for the payment of the Installment Payments or interest thereon. The principal of and
interest on the Installment Payments and any prepayment premiums upon the prepayment thereof
shall not be payable from or secured by a legal or equitable pledge of, or charge, lien or
encumbrance upon, any of the property of the District or any of its income, receipts, or revenues,
except the Net Special Tax Revenues pledged to the payment thereof as provided in this
Installment Purchase Agreement.

SECTION 2.3. Benefits of Installment Purchase Agreement Limited to Parties.
Nothing contained herein, expressed or implied, is intended to give to any person other than the
District and the Participant any right, remedy or claim under or pursuant hereto. Any agreement
or covenant required herein to be performed by or on behalf of the District shall be for the sole and
exclusive benefit of the Participant.

SECTION 24. District Successor Is Deemed Included in all References to
Predecessor. Whenever the District is named or referred to herein, such reference shall be deemed
to include the successor to the powers, duties and functions that are presently vested in the District,
and all agreements and covenants required hereby to be performed by or on behalf of the District
shall be assumed fully by and will bind and inure to the benefit of the successors thereof whether
so expressed or not.

SECTION 2.5. Participant Successor Is Deemed Included in all References to
Predecessor. Whenever the Participant is named or referred to herein, such reference shall be
deemed to include the successor to the powers, duties and functions that are presently vested in
the Participant, and all agreements and covenants required hereby to be performed by or on behalf
of the Participant shall be assumed fully by and will bind and inure to the benefit of the successors
thereof whether so expressed or not; provided however, the Participant shall notify the District not
less than sixty (60) days prior to the estimated date of the close of escrow related to the transfer of
any Participant’s Parcel.

SECTION 2.6. Waiver of Personal Liability. No member of the District Board of
Directors and no officer, agent, or employee of the District, or of any department or agency thereof,
shall be individually or personally liable for the payment of the principal of or interest on this

Page 9 of 24
60033.00406\44380895.1



Installment Purchase Agreement, but nothing contained herein shall relieve any such member,
officer, agent or employee from the performance of any official duty provided by law or hereby.

SECTION 2.7. Article and Section Headings, Gender and References. The
headings or titles of the several articles and sections hereof and the table of contents appended
hereto shall be solely for convenience of reference and shall not affect the meaning, construction
or effect hereof. Words of any gender shall be deemed and construed to include all genders. All
references herein to “articles,” “sections” and other subdivisions or clauses are to the
corresponding articles, sections, subdivisions or clauses hereof; and the words “hereby,” “herein,”
“hereof,” “hereto,” “herewith” and other words of similar import refer to this Installment Purchase
Agreement as a whole and not to any particular article, section, subdivision or clause hereof.

SECTION 2.8. Partial Invalidity. If any one or more of the agreements or
covenants or portions thereof required hereby to be performed by or on the part of the District shall
be contrary to law, then such agreement or agreements, such covenant or covenants or such
portions thereof shall be null and void and shall be deemed separable from the remaining
agreements and covenants or portions thereof and shall in no way affect the validity hereof; but
the Participant shall retain all the rights and benefits accorded to it under any applicable provisions
of law.

SECTION 2.9. Exhibits. The following Exhibits are attached to, and by reference
made a part of this Instaliment Purchase Agreement:

Exhibit A: Description of the Participating Parcels;
Exhibit B: Capacity Reservation Transfer Allocation Chart; and
Exhibit C: Schedule of Installment Payments and Participant Assessment Payment.

ARTICLE 3

REPRESENTATIONS, COVENANTS AND WARRANTIES

SECTION 3.1. Representations, Covenants and Warranties of the District. The
District represents, covenants and warrants to the Participant as follows:

(a) Installment Purchase A eement. Each representation and warranty and all
information set forth in this Instaliment Purchase Agreement and/or any other document submitted
in connection with, or to induce the Participant to enter into this Installment Purchase Agreement
is correct in all material respects as of the Closing Date.

(b) Due Or anization and Existence. The District is a water district and political
subdivision of the State of California, duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of
California, with full power and authority to enter into this Installment Purchase Agreement and
conduct its business.

(c) Authorization. The laws of the State of California authorize the District to enter
into this Installment Purchase Agreement and to enter into the transactions contemplated hereby,

Page 10 of 24
60033.00406\44380895.1



and to carry out its obligations under this Installment Purchase Agreement and the Board of
Directors of the District has duly authorized the execution and delivery of this Installment Purchase
Agreement.

(d) Conflictin A eements. Neither the execution and delivery of this Installment
Purchase Agreement nor the fulfillment of or compliance with the terms and conditions hereof,
nor the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, conflicts with or results in a breach
of the terms, conditions or provisions of any restrietion or any agreement or instrument to which
the District is now a party or by which the District is bound, or constitutes a default under any of
the foregoing, or results in the creation or imposition of any lien, charge or encumbrances
whatsoever upon any of the property or assets of the District, other than as set forth herein.

(e) Consents and A rovals. All consents, approvals, authorizations, orders, licenses
or permits of any governmental authority, legislative body, board, agency or commission having
jurisdiction of the matter, that are required for the due authorization by, or that would constitute a
condition precedent to or the absence of which would materially adversely affect the making or
accepting of this Installment Purchase Agreement and the execution, delivery of and performance
thereof by the District have been duly obtained.

4y} Lit1 ation. There is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation at law or
in equity before or by any court, government agency, public board or body, is pending and served
or, to the District’s actual current knowledge, threatened against the CFD : (i) in any way affecting
the existence of the CFD or in any way challenging the respective powers of the several offices or
the titles of the officials of the CFD to such offices; (ii) affecting or seeking to prohibit, restrain or
enjoin the making, execution or delivery of this Installment Purchase Agreement or the application
of the proceeds of this Installment Purchase Agreement; (iii) in any way contesting or affecting,
as to the CFD , the validity or enforceability of this Installment Purchase Agreement; (iv) in any
way contesting the powers of the District or its authority with respect to the adoption of Resolution
No. 2025-28 of the District, or the execution and delivery of this Installment Purchase Agreement;
or (v) in any way contesting or challenging the consummation of the transactions contemplated
hereby or thereby or that might materially adversely affect the ability of the District to perform
and satisfy its obligations under this Installment Purchase Agreement; nor to the best of the
District’s knowledge is there any basis for any such action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or
investigation, wherein an unfavorable decision, ruling or finding would materially adversely affect
the proceedings authorizing this Installment Purchase Agreement or the performance by the CFD
of its obligations thereunder, or the authorization, execution, delivery or performance by the
District of this Installment Purchase Agreement.

(g) Valid and Bindin Obli ation. This Installment Purchase Agreement is a valid and
binding obligation of the District enforceable in accordance with its terms.

(h) Pled e and Other Liens. The pledge in this Installment Purchase Agreement to
repay the Installment Payments constitutes a lien on and a pledge of all Net Special Tax Revenues
and there are no other liens on the Net Special Tax Revenues as of the Closing Date.

(1) Due Execution. The District, on behalf of itself and the CFD, has duly authorized
and executed this Installment Purchase Agreement in accordance with the laws of the State.

Page 11 of 24
60033.00406\44380895.1



) Additional Indebtedness. The CFD may not issue additional debt which is senior
in lien to the Installment Payments.

(1) Subordinate Obligations. The CFD may issue additional debt at any time which
is subordinate to the lien of the Installment Payments.

(2) Parity Obligations. Subject to the satisfaction of the specific conditions set
forth herein, the CFD may at any time after the issuance and delivery of the Installment Purchase
Agreement issue Parity Obligations payable from Net Special Tax Revenues and other amounts
deposited in the funds and accounts created under a Contract and secured by a lien and charge upon
such amounts equal to the lien and charge securing the Outstanding Parity Obligations theretofore
issued under this Installment Purchase Agreement or under any Contracts.

The issuance of any series of Parity Obligations shall be subject to the following additional
specific conditions, which are conditions precedent to the issuance of such Parity Obligations:

A. The aggregate principal amount of the Obligations, excluding the
CFD Portion of the Assessment Indebtedness, issued may not exceed $20,000,000;
provided, however, that, notwithstanding the foregoing Parity Obligations may be
issued at any time to refund Outstanding Parity Obligations where the issuance of
such Parity Obligations results in a reduction of Annual Debt Service on all
Outstanding Parity Obligations.

B. The CFD shall be in compliance with all covenants set forth in this
Installment Purchase Agreement and any Contracts then in effect and a certificate
of the CFD to that effect shall have been filed with the fiscal agent; provided,
however, that Parity Obligations may be issued notwithstanding that the CFD is not
in compliance with all such covenants so long as immediately following the issuance
of such Parity Obligations the CFD will be in compliance with all such covenants.

C. The issuance of such Parity Obligations shall have been duly
authorized pursuant to the Act and all applicable laws, and the issuance of such
Parity Obligations shall have been provided for by Contracts duly adopted by the
CFD.

3) Refunding of Existing Senior Obligations. The CFD may at any time refund
its existing Senior Obligations on a senior basis to the Installment Payments.

&) Punctual Pavment. The CFD will duly and punctually pay or cause to be paid the
Installment Payments on the date, at the place and in the manner provided herein, but only out of
Net Special Tax Revenues and such other funds as may be herein provided.

I Collection of S ecial Taxes. The CFD shall comply with all requirements of the
Act so as to assure the timely collection of the Special Taxes in an amount sufficient to pay the
Annual Debt Service on the Obligations when due, Administrative Expenses when due and
amounts, if any, to replenish the reserve fund to the reserve requirement for any Obligations. Prior
to July 1 of each year, the CFD shall ascertain the parcels on which the Special Taxes are to be

Page 12 of 24
60033.00406\44380895.1



levied in the following Fiscal Year, taking into account any subdivisions of parcels during the
current Fiscal Year. The CFD shall effect the levy of the Special Tax in accordance with the Special
Tax RMA and the Act each Fiscal Year so that the computation of such levy is complete and
transmitted to the Auditor of the County of San Diego before the final date on which the Auditor
of the County of San Diego will accept the transmission of the Special Tax for the parcels within
the CFD for inclusion on the next real property tax roll. Upon completion of the computation of
the amount of the Special Tax levy, the District shall prepare or cause to be prepared, and shall
transmit or cause to be transmitted to the Auditor of the County of San Diego, such data as such
Auditor requires to include the levy of the Special Tax on the next real property tax roll.

(m)  Reduction of S ecial Taxes. The CFD finds and determines that, historically,
delinquencies in the payment of special taxes authorized pursuant to the Act in community
facilities districts in Southern California have from time to time been at levels requiring the levy
of special taxes at the maximum authorized rates in order to make timely payment of principal of
and interest on the outstanding indebtedness of such community facilities districts. For this reason,
the CFD has determined that, absent the certification described below, a reduction in the Maximum
Special Tax (as such term is defined in the Special Tax RMA) authorized to be levied below the
levels provided would interfere with the timely retirement of the Obligations. The CFD has
determined it to be necessary in order to preserve the security for the Obligations to covenant, and,
to the maximum extent that the law permits it to do so, the CFD does covenant, that it shall not
initiate proceedings to reduce the Maximum Special Tax rates (as set forth in the Special Tax
RMA), unless, in connection therewith, (i) the CFD receives a certificate from one or more Special
Tax Consultants which, when taken together, certify that, on the basis of the parcels of land and
improvements existing in the CFD as of the July | preceding the reduction, the Maximum Special
Tax which may be levied on all Assessor’s Parcels (as such term is defined in the Special Tax
RMA) of taxable property on which a completed structure is located in each Fiscal Year will equal
at least 110% of the largest sum of the Annual Debt Service on the Obligations to remain
Outstanding and any refunding bonds or refunding obligations outstanding (“Maximum Debt
Service”) after the reduction is approved and will not reduce the Maximum Special Tax payable
from parcels on which a completed structure is located or to be located at buildout of the CFD as
proposed to less than 110% of the Maximum Debt Service, and (ii) the legislative body of the CFD
finds pursuant to this Installment Purchase Agreement that any reduction made under such
conditions will not adversely affect the interests of the owners of the Parity Obligations. Any
reduction in the Maximum Special Tax approved pursuant to the preceding sentence may be
approved without the consent of the owners of the Obligations or the Participants.

(n) Initiatives. The CFD covenants that, in the event that any initiative is adopted by
the qualified electors which purports to reduce the Maximum Special Tax below the levels
authorized pursuant to the Special Tax RMA or to limit the power or authority of the CFD to levy
Special Taxes pursuant to the Special Tax RMA, the CFD shall, from funds in the Administrative
Expense Fund or otherwise available hereunder, commence and pursue legal action in order to
preserve the authority and power of the CFD to levy Special Taxes pursuant to the Special Tax
RMA.

(o) Records. The District will at all times keep, or cause to be kept, proper and current

books and accounts (separate from all other records and accounts) in which complete and accurate

Page 13 of 24
60033.00406\44380895.1



entries shall be made of all transactions relating to the Special Tax Revenues and other funds herein
provided for.

SECTION 3.2. Representations, Covenants and Warranties of the Participant.
The Participant represents, covenants and warrants to the District as follows:

(a) Authorization. The Participant is authorized to enter into this Installment Purchase
Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby, and the Participant has duly authorized the
execution and delivery of this Installment Purchase Agreement.

(b) Partici ant Assessment Pa  ent Amount and Assessment Lien. The Participant
acknowledges and agrees that the Participating Parcels will continue to be (a) subject to the
Assessment Lien and (b) levied an Assessment in the amount of the Participant Assessment
Payments. The Participant agree that it shall pay the Participant Assessment Payments in full when
due.

(c) No Violations. Neither the execution and delivery of this Installment Purchase
Agreement nor the fulfillment of or compliance with the terms and conditions hereof, nor the
consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, conflicts with or results in a breach of the
terms, conditions or provisions of any restriction or any agreement or instrument to which the
Participant is now a party or by which the Participant is bound, or constitutes a default under any
of the foregoing, or results in the creation or imposition of any lien, charge or encumbrance
whatsoever upon any of the property or assets of the Participant.

(d) Liti ation. To the best knowledge of the Participant, there is no pending or
threatened action or proceeding before any court or administrative agency which will materially
adversely affect the ability of the Participant to perform its obligations under this Installment
Purchase Agreement.

(e) Payment of Taxes. The Participant hereby represents that it is current on the
payment of all property taxes and assessments for each Participant Parcel.

ARTICLE 4

TERMS OF AGREEMENT

SECTION 4.1. Purchase of Project and District. The Participant agrees to
transfer to the District the Relinquished Capacity to the District pursuant to the schedule set forth
in Exhibit C hereto. The Relinquished Capacity shall come from the Participant’s Parcels as set
forth on Exhibit B. Title to the Project, and each and every portion thereof shall vest in the District
upon the acquisition thereof; provided, however, the District shall be subject to the payment of
Installment Payments as described under this Installment Purchase Agreement and any other
amounts due hereunder, to the remedies of the Participant in the Event of Default as provided in
Article S hereof.

SECTION 4.2. Repayment of the Project by the District. The District hereby

agrees to purchase from the Participant the Project at an amount equal to the Acquisition Amount,

Page 14 of 24
60033.00406\44380895.1



payable on each Installment Payment Date as set forth in Exhibit C. The Equity Reimbursement
Component shall be paid to the Participant and the Assessment Reimbursement Component shall
be paid to each record owner of each Participating Parcel as of July 1 of each year and each
Participating Parcel’s share of the Assessment Reimbursement Component shall be calculated
annually based upon the number of units of capacity by each such Participating Parcel as identified
in Exhibit B hereto. The Installment Payments shall be paid solely through Net Special Tax
Revenues as described herein on a subordinate basis to the Senior Obligations, as Subordinate
Obligations of the CFD and are payable after payments required for Senior Obligations as set forth
in Section 4.9 below. Additionally, the Participant shall be entitled to receive the Standby Fee
Reimbursement Payments as set forth in Exhibit C. The Standby Fee Reimbursement Payments
shall be paid through legally available funds of the District. The Standby Fee Reimbursement
Payments are not obligations of the CFD and are not payable through Special Taxes.
Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the transfer of the Relinquished Capacity does
not impair or otherwise affect Participant’s right, title and interest in the remaining capacity in the
Project as set forth on Exhibit B.

SECTION 4.3. Term. The Term of this Installment Purchase Agreement shall
commence on the Closing Date, and shall end on September 2, 2041.. To the extent that Special
Taxes are insufficient to make the Installment Payments when due and payable, the obligation to
make such payments shall remain outstanding.

SECTION 4.4. Payments Generally. The District shall make payments to the
Participant pursuant to written instructions provided by the Participant to the District in the
amounts set forth in Exhibit C attached hereto and incorporated herein.

SECTION 4.5. Prepayment. The District shall have the right to prepay any of the
Installment Payments, in full or in part, without premium on any date.

SECTION 4.6. Effect of Prepayment. In the event that the District prepays the
Installment Payments in full and all other sums due to the Participant hereunder, the District’s
obligations under this Installment Purchase Agreement shall thereupon cease and terminate (except
those obligations which expressly survive the termination of this Installment Purchase
Agreement), including but not limited to the District’s obligation to pay Installment Payments
under this Installment Purchase Agreement.

SECTION 4.7. Taxes and Obligations. Any payment by the District to the
Participant will be made net of any taxes and other amounts or obligations due and payable to the
District (other than income and similar taxes imposed on or measured by the Participant’s overall
net income). The Participant shall be responsible for the payment of all such taxes and amounts.

SECTION 4.8. Nature of District’s Obligations.

(a) S ecial Obli ation. The District’s obligation to pay the Installment Payments is a
special obligation of the District limited solely to the Net Special Tax Revenues. Under no
circumstances is the District required to advance moneys derived from any source of income other
than the Net Special Tax Revenues and other sources specifically identified herein for the payment

Page 15 of 24
60033.00406\44380895.1



of the Installment Payments, and no other funds or property of the District are liable for the
payment of the Installment Payments.

(b) Obli ations Absolute. The obligations of the District and CFD to pay the
Installment Payments from the Net Special Tax Revenues and to perform and observe the other
agreements contained herein are absolute and unconditional and are not subject to any defense or
any right of setoff, counterclaim or recoupment arising out of any breach of the District or the
Participant of any obligation to the District, whether hereunder or otherwise, or out of indebtedness
or liability at any time owing to the District by the Participant. Until such time as all of the
Installment Payments have been fully paid or prepaid, the District:

(1) will not suspend or discontinue payment of any Installment Payments; and

(1)  will perform and observe all other agreements contained in this Installment
Purchase Agreement.

(©) Protection of Ri ts. If the Participant fails to perform any such agreements on its
part, the District may institute such action against the Participant as the District deems necessary
to compel performance so long as such action does not abrogate the obligations of the District
contained in the preceding subsection (b).

The District may, however, at the District’s own cost and expense and in the District’s own
name or in the name of the Participant prosecute or defend any action or proceeding or take any
other action involving third persons which the District deems reasonably necessary in order to
secure or protect the District’s rights hereunder, and in such event the Participant will (upon
reasonable notice, and at the sole expense of the District) cooperate fully with the District to the
extent reasonably necessary and take such action reasonably necessary to effect the substitution of
the District for the Participant in such action or proceeding if the District shall so request.

SECTION 4.9. Special Tax Fund.

S ecial Tax Fund. After the CFD has received Special Tax Revenues in an amount equal
to the Administrative Expense Requirement and deposited such Special Tax Revenues in the
Administrative Expense Fund, the CFD shall, no later than the tenth (10th) Business Day after
which Special Tax Revenues have been received by the CFD, and in any event not later than
February 15th and August 15th of each year, set aside Net Special Tax Revenues for payment of
Outstanding Senior Obligations payable in such fiscal year, except as set forth in the below, as
follows:

(1)  Transfer to the interest account of each debt service fund established for
such Senior Obligations pursuant to the Contracts an amount required to cause the aggregate
amount on deposit in the interest account to equal the amount of interest due or becoming due
and payable on such interest payment date on all Outstanding Senior Obligations or to be paid on
the Senior Obligations being redeemed on such date.

2) Transfer to the principal account of each debt service fund established for
such Senior Obligations pursuant to the Contracts, on each September 1, an amount required to

Page 16 of 24
60033.00406\44380895.1



cause the aggregate amount on deposit in the principal account to equal the principal amount of,
and premium (if any) on the Senior Obligations coming due and payable on such September 1,
whether at maturity or by mandatory sinking fund payments on the Outstanding Senior
Obligations.

3) On or after September 2 of each year after making the deposits and
transfers required under (1) through (2) above, the CFD shall cause to be transferred the amount,
if any, necessary to replenish the amount then on deposit in the reserve fund to an amount equal
to the reserve requirement as established pursuant to the Contracts.

“ On or after September 2 of each year after making the deposits and
transfers required under (1) through (3) above, upon receipt of written instructions from a CFD
representative, the CFD shall transfer or cause a fiscal agent to transfer from the Special Tax
Fund to the rebate fund established pursuant to the Contracts the amount specified in such
request.

&) On or after September 2 of each year after making the deposits and
transfers required under (1) through (4) above, the District shall or cause a fiscal agent to transfer
from the Special Tax Fund to the CFD for deposit in the Administrative Expense Fund the
amounts specified in such request to pay those Administrative Expenses which the CFD
reasonably expects will become due and payable during such Fiscal Year or the cost of which
Administrative Expenses have previously been incurred and paid by the CFD from funds other
than the Administrative Expense Fund in excess of the Administrative Expense Requirement for
such Fiscal Year.

(6) If, on or after September 2 of each year, after making the deposits and
transfers required under (1) through (5) above, monies remain in the Special Tax Fund, such
monies shall be transferred to the CFD to be utilized to finance the Authorized Purposes in
accordance with the priorities set forth in the CFD Financing Agreement, including the payment
of the Installment Payments.

Should Net Special Tax Revenues be insufficient to fund the payment of debt service
payable in such fiscal year on all Outstanding Obligations, the CFD shall allocate Net Special Tax
Revenues on the dates listed above first to each Outstanding Senior Obligations in an amount equal
to the Special Tax Proportion and then, if any Net Special Tax Revenues remain after payment of
all Annual Debt Service due in such fiscal year on the Senior Obligations to each Outstanding
Parity Obligation in an amount equal to the Special Tax Proportion .

Net Special Tax Revenues representing Prepayments shall be deposited in the amounts
representing the Special Tax Proportion of each of the Outstanding Senior Obligations as follows:
(A) for the CFD Bonds to the applicable fiscal agent for deposit into the Redemption Fund as set
forth in written instructions from an Authorized Representative, (B) for the Assessment Debt the
CFD Portion of the Assessment Indebtedness and the District Assessment Payments shall be
transferred to the Assessment Fund, (C) for any additional Senior Obligations to the applicable
fund or account as established in the Obligation Contract and (D) for any Parity Obligations to the
applicable fund or account as established in the Obligation Contract.

Page 17 of 24
60033.00406\44380895.1



ARTICLE S

EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES
SECTION 5.1. Events of Default and Acceleration of Installment Payments.

(a) Events of Default. The following events shall be Events of Default under this
Installment Purchase Agreement.

(1) Default in the due and punctual payment of the Installment Payments and/or
the Standby Fee Reimbursement Payment when and as the same shall become due and payable, if
the same is not paid within 10 days of the date it becomes due.

(i)  Default by the District in the observance of any of the other material
covenants, agreements or conditions on its part in this Installment Purchase Agreement, if such
default shall have continued for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice thereof, specifying
such default and requiring the same to be remedied, shall have been given to the District by the
Participant. Provided that such default shall not constitute an Event of Default under this
Installment Purchase Agreement if the District shall commence to cure such default within said
thirty (30) day period and thereafter diligently and in good faith shall cure such default within a
reasonable period of time; or

(iii)  The filing by the District or CFD of a petition or answer seeking
reorganization or arrangement under the federal bankruptcy laws or any other applicable law of
the United States of America, or if a court of competent jurisdiction shall approve a petition, filed
with or without the consent of the District, seeking reorganization under the federal bankruptcy
laws or any other applicable law of the United States of America, or if, under the provisions of any
other law for the relief or aid of debtors, any court of competent jurisdiction shall assume custody
or control of the District or of the whole or any substantial part of its property.

(bf Remedies. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default listed above in (a), all
unpaid Installment Payments shall become immediately due and payable on a subordinate basis to
the Senior Obligations as provided in Section 5.2.

Participant shall have all other remedies available to it at law or in equity.

SECTION 5.2. Application of Revenues and Other Funds after Default. If a
default in the payment of the Installment Payments shall occur and be continuing, all Special Tax
Revenues and any other funds then held or thereafter received under any of the provisions of this
Installment Purchase Agreement shall be applied as follows and in the following order:

(a) To the payment of any expenses necessary in the opinion of the District to protect
the interest of the owners of the Senior Obligations, the owners of Senior Obligations, if any, and
payment of reasonable charges and expenses of a fiscal agent (including reasonable fees and
disbursements of its counsel) incurred in and about the performance of its powers and duties under
any Senior Obligations Contracts;

Page 18 of 24
60033.00406\44380895.1



(b) To the payment of the principal of and interest then due with respect to the Senior
Obligations, if any, as follows:

First: To the payment to the persons entitled thereto of all installments of interest
then due on Senior Obligations in the order of the maturity of such installments, and, if the
amount available shall not be sufficient to pay in full any installment or installments
maturing on the same date, then to the payment thereof ratably, according to the amounts
due thereon, to the persons entitled thereto, without any discrimination or preference; and

Second: To the payment to the persons entitled thereto of the unpaid principal of
any Senior Obligation which shall have become due, whether at maturity or by call for
redemption, with interest on the overdue principal at the rate borne by the respective Senior
Obligations on the date of maturity of redemption, and if the amount available shall not be
sufficient to pay in full all the Senior Obligations, together with such interest, then to the
payment thereof ratably, according to the amounts of principal due on such date to the
persons entitled thereto, without discrimination or preference.

(c) To the payment of the principal of and interest then due with respect to the Parity
Obligations, if any, as follows:

First: To the payment to the persons entitled thereto of all installments of interest
then due on Parity Obligations in the order of the maturity of such installments, and, if the
amount available shall not be sufficient to pay in full any installment or installments
maturing on the same date, then to the payment thereof ratably, according to the amounts
due thereon, to the persons entitled thereto, without any discrimination or preference: and

Second: To the payment to the persons entitled thereto of the unpaid principal of
any Parity Obligation which shall have become due, whether at maturity or by call for
redemption, with interest on the overdue principal at the rate borne by the respective Parity
Obligations on the date of maturity of redemption, and if the amount available shall not be
sufficient to pay in full all the Parity Obligations, together with such interest, then to the
payment thereof ratably, according to the amounts of principal due on such date to the
persons entitled thereto, without discrimination or preference.

SECTION 5.3. No Remedy Exclusive. No remedy herein conferred upon or
reserved to the Participant is intended to be exclusive and every such remedy shall be cumulative
and shall be in addition to every other remedy given under this Installment Purchase Agreement
or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity. No delay or omission to exercise any right or
power accruing upon any default shall impair any such right or power or shall be construed to be
a waiver thereof, but any such right and power may be exercised from time to time and as often as
may be deemed expedient. In order to entitle the Participant to exercise any remedy reserved to it
in this Article 5 it shall not be necessary to give any notice, other than such notice as may be
required, in this Article 5 or by law.

SECTION 54. Agreement to Pay Attorneys’ Fees and Expenses. In the event
either party to this Installment Purchase Agreement should default under any of the provisions
hereof and the non-defaulting party should employ attorneys (including in-house counsel) or incur

Page 19 of 24
60033.00406\44380895.1



other expenses for the collection of moneys or the enforcement of performance or observance of
any obligation or agreement on the part of the defaulting party herein contained, the defaulting
party agrees that it will on demand therefor pay to the non-defaulting party the reasonable fees of
such attorneys (including the allocable cost of in-house counsel) and such other expenses so
incurred by the non-defaulting party.

SECTION 5.5. No Additional Waiver Implied by One Waiver. In the event any
agreement contained in this Installment Purchase Agreement should be breached by either party
and thereafter waived by the other party, such waiver shall be limited to the particular breach so
waived and shall not be deemed to waive any other breach hereunder.

A waiver of any default or breach of duty or contract by the Participant shall not affect any
subsequent default or breach of duty or contract or impair any rights or remedies on any such
subsequent default or breach of duty or contract. No delay or omission by the Participant to
exercise any right or remedy accruing upon any default or breach of duty or contract shall impair
any such right or remedy or shall be construed to be a waiver of any such default or breach of duty
or contract or an acquiescence therein, and every right or remedy conferred upon the Participant
by law or by this article may be enforced and exercised from time to time and as often as shall be
deemed expedient by the Participant. If any action, proceeding or suit to enforce any right or
exercise any remedy is abandoned or determined adversely to the Participant, the District and the
Participant shall be restored to their former positions, rights and remedies as if such action,
proceeding or suit had not been brought or taken.

ARTICLE 6

MISCELLANEOUS
SECTION 6.1. Miscellaneous Provisions.

(a) Avonlicable Law. This Installment Purchase Agreement and any disputes relating
to this Installment Purchase Agreement shall be construed under the laws of the State of California.

(b)  Venue. Inthe event of any legal or equitable proceeding to enforce or interpret the
terms or conditions of this Installment Purchase Agreement, the parties agree that venue shall lie
only in the federal or state courts in or nearest to the Central Judicial District, County of San Diego,
and State of California.

(©) Modification. This Installment Purchase Agreement may not be altered in whole
or in part except by a modification, in writing, signed by the District and Participant.

(d) Entire A eement. This Installment Purchase Agreement, together with all the
exhibits attached hereto, contains all the representations and the entire understanding between the
parties. The parties mutually declare that there have not been any oral promises or agreements not
contained in this Installment Purchase Agreement. Participant further expressly agrees that
Participant has not relied upon any oral promises or oral agreements of anyone connected with the
District in executing this Installment Purchase Agreement.

Page 20 of 24
60033.00406\44380895.1



(e) Bindin Effect. This Installment Purchase Agreement shall inure to the benefit of
and be binding upon the parties and their respective purchasers, successors, heirs, and assigns.

® Unenforceable Provisions. The terms, conditions, and covenants of this Installment
Purchase Agreement shall be construed whenever possible as consistent with all applicable laws
and regulations. To the extent that any provision of this Installment Purchase Agreement, as so
interpreted, is held to violate any applicable law or regulation, the remaining provisions shall
nevertheless be carried into full force and effect and remain enforceable.

(2) Re resentation of Ca acit to Contract. If this Installment Purchase Agreement is
signed on behalf of the Participant, the party signing this Installment Purchase Agreement on
behalf of Participant hereby expressly warrants and represents that he/she has the authority to
execute this Installment Purchase Agreement on behalf of the Participant.

(h) O ortunit to be Re resented b Inde endent Counsel. Participant warrants and
represents that he/she has been advised to consult independent legal counsel of Participant’s own
choosing and has had a reasonable opportunity to do so prior to executing this Installment Purchase
Agreement. Participant further warrants and represents that he/she has carefully read all of this
Installment Purchase Agreement and has executed this Installment Purchase Agreement
voluntarily and with full understanding of all terms and conditions herein.

1) Notices. All letters, statements, or notices required pursuant to this Installment
Purchase Agreement shall be deemed effective upon receipt when personally served or sent
certified mail, return receipt requested, to the following addresses:

To Participant:

[NAME:
ADDRESS:
EMAIL]

To District;

Wally Grabbe, District Engineer
Valley Center Municipal Water District
29300 Valley Center Road

Valley Center, CA 92082

Email: WGrabbe@vemwd.org

Q) Assi ment of A eement Sale or Transfer of Partici ant’s Parcels. This
Agreement pertains solely to the Participant’s Parcels and is not transferable to any other property
without express written permission from the Board of Directors of the District. Consent to any
purported transfer, sale, or assignment of this Installment Purchase Agreement without the prior
written consent of the District renders this Installment Purchase Agreement null and void.
Notwithstanding the foregoing or anything herein to the contrary, the Participant’s right to
payment hereunder for the Standby Fee Reimbursement Payment and Equity Reimbursement
Component are rights held by Participant (or any assignee thereof) irrespective of whether

Page 21 of 24
60033.00406\44380895.1



Participant retains fee title interest to the Participant’s Parcels. The rights to payment hereunder
of the Assessment Reimbursement Component shall run with the land and are rights of the current
and any future owner of the Participant’s Parcels.

(k) Sale of Partici ant’s Parcels. Participant shall be required to notify the District in
writing of any sale, transfer or other conveyance of all or any portion of Participant’s Parcels within
thirty (30) days of the date of any such sale, transfer or conveyance.

)] Attorne ’s Fees. In the event any action or proceeding is filed by anyone to
challenge, invalidate, interpret or enforce this Installment Purchase Agreement, the prevailing
party between the District and the Participant shall be entitled to recover all attorney’s fees and
litigation expenses in addition to all other relief afforded by applicable law.

(m) Recordation. Upon execution of this Installment Purchase Agreement by the
parties hereto, District shall cause this Installment Purchase Agreement to be recorded in the office
of the County Recorder of the County of San Diego.

(Signature page follows)

Page 22 of 24
60033.00406\44380895.1



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Installment Purchase Agreement
to be executed as of the date first written above.

60033.00406'44380895.1

INDIAN CREEK ASSOCIATES, LLC, a California limited
liability company

By:
Dana Haynes, Manager

VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, on
behalf of itself and Community Facilities District No. 2020-1
(Park Circle East/West)

By:
Lindsay Leahy, General Manager



A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who
signed the document, to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity
of that document.

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
)
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO )

On , before me,

, Notary Public, personally appeared

, who proved to me on the basis of
satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within
instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their
authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s) or
the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.

| certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the
foregoing paragraph is true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Signature: (SEAL)

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who
signed the document, to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity
of that document.

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO )

On , before me,

, Notary Public, personally appeared

, who proved to me on the basis of
satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within
instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their
authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s) or
the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.

| certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing
paragraph is true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Signature: (SEAL)

60033.00406\44380895.1



- EXHIBIT “A”

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PARTICIPATING PARCELS

NORTH RANCH ESTATES . L l .
Assessor's Parcel | P S ' _
Numbers ' e~ H [ SN
188-230-06-00 ! ,
188-230-46-00 {
188-230-48-00 ;
188-231-04-00 |
[ 188-231-10-00
188-231-41-00
{7 188-231-42-00
188-231-43-00 :
188-231-44-00
188-231-45-00 -
188-231-46-00

188-230

-

" 188-231°

PR

Z
o = %—;\"" oo w2 0 s
. G
/ 2N
188-231 i,
|
i
5
.5
|
; [N \"\\ !
' >y N . .
A-1

60033.00406\44380895.1



Allocated
Capacity
by Owner
Owner Group (EDUs)
Indian Creek
Associates (VCVP 24
LP)
Indian Creek
Associates (Bob’s 85
LLC)
Indian Creek 115
Associates
EDUs Transferred 224

Cumulative EDUs Transferred

Total Remaining EDUs

60033.0040644380895.1

Allocated
Capacity
by Parcel
(EDUs)

23

1
17

224

APN
188-231-04

188-231-10
188-231-41
188-231-42
188-231-43
188-231-44
188-231-45
188-231-46
188-230-06
188-230-46
188-230-48

Exhibit “B”

Capacity Reservation Transfer Allocation Chart
(as of June 30 each year)

2025

55
55
55
169

2026 2027 2028 2029 2030

9
3 5 18 15 6
2
5 5 18 15 15
60 65 83 98 113

164 159 141 126 111

B-1

(]
3
[~

15
128
96

™

15
143
81

2033

158
66

203

15
173
51

Total
2035 2036 2037 Transferred
3 15.5 18.5
17
11
17
15 12 30
1
9
11
47
57
15 15 15.5 218.5
188 203 218.5 218.5
36 21 5.5

Remaining
Capacity
(EDUs)

4.5

1

5.5

5.5



EXHIBIT “C”

SCHEDULE OF INSTALLMENT PAYMENTS AND PARTICIPANT ASSESSED PAYMENT

Installment Payments

Capacity
Payment Transfer Standby Fee Equity Assessment Total
Due (EDUs per  Reimbursement Reimbursement Reimbursement Total Principal Interest Installment
Se tember 1 Fiscal Year Pa ments Com onent Com onent Com onent Com onent Pa ‘ments

2025° 60 $224,280° $ 32,834 $ 58,828 $ 91.662 $13,338 $105.000
2026 5 41.907 64,176 106,083 13.917 120,000
2027 18 51.089 69.524 120,613 14,387 135,000
2028 15 42,620 88,777 131.396 18,604 150.000
2029 15 42.780 104.821 147,601 22,399 170.000
2030 15 42,655 120,865 163,520 26,480 190,000
2031 15 42232 136.909 179.141 30.859 210,000
2032 15 41.498 152.953 194,451 35.549 230,000
2033 15 40,440 168.997 209.437 40,563 250,000
2034 15 44,043 185,041 229,084 45916 275,000
2035 15 42,404 201,085 243,489 51.511 295.000
2036 15.5 45,400 217,129 262,528 57.472 320.000
2037 0 606.056 - 606.056 63,944 670,000
2038 0 634,389 - ’ 634389 50.611 685.000
2039 0 713,346 - 713.346 36.654 750,000
2040 0 952,742 - 052.742 20,960 973,703
2041 0 - - - - -

Total 218.5 $224.280 $3.416.437 $1.569,102 $4.985.539 $543,164 $5.528.703

Payment to occur on the Closing Date.
C-1

60033.00406:44380895.1



RESOLUTION NO. 2025-26

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE VALLEY
CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT APPROVING AN
INSTALLMENT PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH RESPECT TO
FINANCING THE PURCHASE OF WASTEWATER CAPACITY IN AN
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $5,470,000 THROUGH SPECIAL TAXES
LEVIED WITHIN COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2020-1 (PARK
CIRCLE EAST/WEST) OF THE VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER
DISTRICT AND OTHER MATTERS PERTAINING THERETO

WHEREAS, the Valley Center Municipal Water District (the “District’) is
authorized by the laws of the State of California to acquire additional wastewater
treatment and storage capacity to allow for the provision for wastewater service for
properties located within the District’'s service area; and

WHEREAS, certain property owners (the “Property Owner”) within the
District’s jurisdiction have excess capacity in the Woods Valley Ranch Water Reclamation
Facility (the “Facility”) and the District desires to purchase such capacity (the “Project”);
and

WHEREAS, the District is in need of additional capacity to serve a portion
of its jurisdiction and such properties can be served through the excess capacity in the
Facility; and

WHEREAS, such properties are located within the boundaries of
Communitv Facilities District No. 2020-1 (Park Circle East/West) of the Vallev Center
Municipal Water District (the “CFD”) and special taxes have been levied which are
authorized, amongst other things, to finance additional wastewater treatment and storage
capacity; and

WHEREAS, the District and CFD have determined that it would be in their
best interests to finance the Project by entering into that certain Instaliment Purchase
Agreement, by and between the Property Owner, the District and CFD (the “Agreement”)
which shall be secured by special taxes levied within the CFD on a subordinate basis to
the CFD’s outstanding debt; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with California Government Code Section
5852.1, the Board has obtained good faith estimates from Fieldman, Rolapp &
Associates, Inc., the District's municipal advisor (the “Municipal Advisor’), and such
estimates are disclosed in Exhibit A attached hereto; and

WHEREAS, all acts, conditions and things required by law to exist, to have
happened and to have been performed precedent to and in connection with the execution
and delivery of the Agreement, do exist, have happened and have been performed in
regular and due time, form and manner as required by law, and the District and CFD are
now duly authorized to execute, enter into and perform the Agreement.

60033.0040644380201.1



NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF VALLEY

CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, ACTING IN ITS OWN CAPACITY AND AS
GOVERNING BOARD OF THE CFD, RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1.

SECTION 2.

SECTION 5.

A roval of Installment Purchase A reement. The Agreement, which
provides generally for the purchase by the District of the Project, and the
payment by the District to the Property Owner of installment payments
secured by CFD special taxes in amounts which will be sufficient to pay the
principal of and interest owing to the Property Owner, is hereby approved
and the General Manager or any designee thereof (the “Authorized Officer”)
is hereby authorized to execute, acknowledge and deliver said Agreement
on behalf of the District and the CFD in substantially the form hereby
approved with any such changes therein as the officer executing the same
may approve, such approval to be conclusively evidenced by the execution
and delivery thereof. The principal amount of the Agreement shall not
exceed $5,470,000 and an interest rate which does not exceed 2.2%.

Other Acts. The Authorized Officer is hereby authorized and directed to do
any and all things and to execute and deliver any and all documents which
in consultation with the staff and the District’'s legal counsel they may deem
necessary or advisable in order to consummate the financing, or otherwise
to effectuate the purposes of this Resolution, and any such actions
previously taken by such officers are hereby ratified and confirmed.

Effective Date. This Resolution shall become effective on the date on which
it is adopted.



ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Valley Center Municipal Water District,
at a Regular Meeting thereof held this 17" day of November, 2025, by the following roll
call vote to wit:

AYES:
NOES:

ABSENT:
APPROVED

ATTEST

60033.00406\44380201.1



EXHIBIT A
GOOD FAITH ESTIMATES

The good faith estimates set forth herein are provided with respect to the
Agreement (the “ISA”) authorized by this Resolution. Such good faith estimates have
been calculated by the District, based on negotiations with Indian Creek Associates, LLC
(“ICA”), at the time of preparation of the Estimated Principal Amount.

Estimated Princi al Amount. The Municipal Advisor has informed the District that,
based on the District's strategies and financing plan, (which includes and assumes,
among other things, the availability and timing of certain special tax revenues and timing
to make payments to ICA) and certain calculations of available wastewater capacity, the
good faith estimate of the aggregate principal amount of the ISA is $4,985,539 (the
“Estimated Principal Amount”).

True Interest Cost. Based upon forecasts and calculations provided by the District of
interest accruing at 2.20%, against future balances of Capacity Transfer Equity and the
CFD share of Capacity Transfer, per Schedule | attached hereto, the Municipal Advisor
has informed the District that the good faith estimate of the true interest cost of the ISA,
which means the rate necessary to discount the amounts payable on the respective
principal and interest payment dates to the purchase price received for the ISA, is
approximately 0.91%.

Finance Char e. The Municipal Advisor has informed the District that the good faith
estimate of the finance charge for the ISA, which means the sum of all fees and charges
paid to third parties for costs in connection with the execution and delivery of the ISA (the
“Finance Charge”), is $30,000.

Amount of Proceeds to be Received. The Municipal Advisor has informed the District
that the good faith estimate of the amount of proceeds of the ISA expected to be received
by the District, less the Finance Charge, and any reserves or capitalized interest paid or
funded with proceeds of the ISA, is $0.

Total Pa ment Amount. The Municipal Advisor has informed the District that the good
faith estimate of the total payment amount, which means the sum total of all principal and
interest payments made for the ISA, plus the Finance Charge, not paid with proceeds of
the financing, calculated to the final maturity of the ISA, is $5,558,703

The foregoing estimates constitute good faith estimates only. The estimates above may
differ from the actual amounts due to (a) the actual dated date of the ISA being different
from the date assumed for purposes of such estimates, (b) the actual aggregate principal
amount of the ISA being different from the Estimated Principal Amount, (c) the actual
payments of Equity Components and Assessments Components of the payments due on
the ISA being different from the payments assumed for purposes of such estimates, (d)
or alterations in the District’s financing plan, or a combination of such factors. The actual
dated date of the ISA and the actual aggregate principal amount of the ISA will be
determined by the District based on negotiations with ICA and other factors.



1'10208€¥1\90100°€ €009

3
81k Suisop ayl uo JN3DQ 03 JuswAed 1S4 ,
€0L825°S PIT'EVS , 6€5'SB6'Y , 201'695°t LEV'ITY'E 6£5'586'Y 01'695'T LEY'ITV'E L0L'EET 9bE886'T 129122 LET'I8Y ST9'T6Y §'812 jejoy
—— [ i
Po _ 0 m | 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ot
€0L'ELE i 09607 wL'Ts6 _I WLTS6 1] 1] 0 0 0 0 1] 112074
[
LTS6 000°05¢ ' ys9'9s SYE'ETL _ ) 9PE'ETL 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6€0C
8809997 000589 11908 _ 68EVE9 T 68EYES ] 0 1] 0 0 0 0 8£0T
8LV°00€'T 000049 yP6'€9 _ 950909 1 950909 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 L£0T
$€5906°C 000'02¢ . UYLS 875°79¢ ©OBTTLIT i 00¥'SY 80L°95S 62T°LTT 645'6E€ 64597 €LTBET TeL'st TET'VE SL8'vE S'St 9€0¢
P i
GSETI9T 000'567 | OTISTS w (34374 , §80T0C Loy wy'vis S80107 LEEEIE 09T 667'STT $Iz'sT 0€0'€E 0SL'EE ST S€0C
U T DU —
TWTVET 000'SLT 9T6'SH _ 8062 ; THO'S8T LOEN0'vy 6TV'E8Y 'S8T 6L£86T 09T OvE‘002 TSt 0£0°€E 0SL'e€ ST 0T
980°£80C 00005 €950t LEY'60T | 166'89T ovb'oy 6ELTSY £66'89T (7K %14 09T $0L'S8T $IT'ST 0£0°€E 0SL€€ ST £€0T
S8L'€V8T 000°0€2 6v5°SE TSYv6T €56°7ST 86Y'TY €LETTLY £56'7ST T7¥'697 09T 28ETLT vIz'sT 0€0'cE 0SL€€E ST €07
798'ST9'T 000°0TZ 658°0€ TWI'6LT 606'9€T boretty 9TET6E 606°9ET LOV'SST 09T 69€'LST yI7'sT 0€0°€E 0SL€E ST T€07
PR, T R
£89°T0V'T 000°06T 081’97 075°€91 | 5980t ! es9'zy 195°279¢ 598°02T 969'THT 09T 8S9'EYT $IZ'sT 0€0°€€ 0SL'€€ ST 0£07
9¥9°€0C'T 0000LT 66€°7T T09'LYE [ 44314 08LTy [o] :3:13 12801 082'87 ¥h0'91 TYT0ET ¥1TsT 0€0€e 0SL'EE ST 6207
LYT8T0'T 0000ST $09'8T 96£'TET . L0188 0797 676'€0E LLL'88 [41 5754 091 YITLTY yIT'ST 0£0°€E 05L€€ ST 870¢
it ——— I..I.T'.
ST9'SY8 000'SET L8EYT £19°021 ¥25°69 ¢ 6801 w6TTIE ¥25'69 89L'T¥e £57°6T €TT'STT LST'8T 9€9'6€ 00507 8T 24202
9E6'€59 000021 boaeer £80°90T HTAS <) L06'TY LT 919 9T'e9 8vE‘S £95°0€ TL0's 0t0'TT 0SZ'TT S 9707
965°7€9 000°50T 8EE'ET 9916 : 878'8S i\ pEBTE 852VvIL 878'85 0€¥599 9/TY9 LLTELT £58'09 0TI'ZET 000°SET 09 §207
wsuodwo) (3uauodwo) (3uauodwo) JusIsSasSY SpuawssassY
|ezoL 15423u} [ediulsd JuRISSISSY) Aunb3) Vol ang Aunby JUDWSSISSY (Lr/ot0z Ad)  9Biey) «T 1dag)
ang sysuel) HA J0ld - puz usodoq paasdysuesl
1elo1 fediduyd fedpusid Ajnb3 Jysuel) 4 judwissassy  Juswdojpasg ajeq
ajuejeg Apede) 40 Junowy uoneddizied sna3
Ayoede) Aypede)  aeap quauin) JBIA ISAl4 wosAs JuawAed
jo aseys ad ajdpung
saxeg |e1pads wold syudwhed Juauijjelsu ssa
W-1+d s + O %2 0=N+W N 3] A+l A r 202'7$ 0sz'es

I 2Mpayds§



DATE: November 17, 2025
TO: Honorable President and Members of the Board of Directors
FROM: Lindsay Leahy, General Manager

SUBJECT: REQUEST AUTHORIZATION TO EXECUTE DRINKING WATER STATE
REVOLVING FUND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE DOCUMENTS FOR THE
OLD CASTLE PIPELINE REPLACEMENT PROJECT

PURPOSE:

Request the Board of Directors adopt Resolution No. 2025-29 approving the form of the
Installment Sale Agreement with the State Water Resources Control Board (“SWRCB”)
and authorizing staff to enter into the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (“SRF”) Loan
(attached) for the Old Castle Pipeline Replacement Project.

SUMMARY:

The SWRCB has approved staff's application for an SRF Loan for the Old Castle Pipeline
Replacement Project. Total cost of the project is estimated at $9,300,000 with $5,525,000
being funded from the SRF Loan and $3,775,000 being funded from an EPA Community
Grant. Final approval of the grant is pending completion of EPA’s internal review. The
attached exhibit shows the limits of the project.

In accordance with California Government Code Section 5852.1, prior to authorizing the
issuance of debt obligation the board shall obtain and disclose certain specific information
regarding the cost of the debt obligation. Board has obtained good faith estimates from
Fieldman, Rolapp & Associates, Inc., the District’'s municipal advisor (the “Municipal
Advisor”), meeting the requirements of the statute and such estimates are disclosed in
the attached resolution for Board approval. The proposed agreement and Good Faith
Estimate are included as attachments to the resolution for approval.

The terms of the SRF Loan are as follows:

Principal Amount - $5,525,000

Term — 30 Years

Interest Rate — 1.9%

Total Interest - $1,968,452

Total Payments - $7,493,452

Finance Charge (Third party costs) - $11,000

Once final approval of the grant is received, staff will request Board approval of an interim
bridge loan and Budget Amendment to complete the funding and cash flow requirements
for the project. Bidding is anticipated to start after the New Year with contract award in
April 2026 and completion in April 2028.



RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends the Board of Directors adopt Resolution No. 2025-29 approving the
form of the Installment Sale Agreement with the State Water Resources Control Board
and authorizing staff to enter into the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Loan for the
Old Castle Pipeline Replacement Project.

PREPARED BY: SUBMITTED BY:
Wally Gra be PE i dsa)}

District Engmeer neral M ager
Attachments:

Project Exhibit

Resolution No. 2025-29
Instaliment Sale Agreement (SRF Loan Document)
Good Faith Estimate



QMDA DYONYS 'SIHUES 8aunog
ide 7 o8By JeRsROPIOINIIBI0I] IPHINSYIPIOSIZI0IISIOVA = w mm: m

o Juawasejday aulliazepm apsed plo

Aemsald §T-1 ==

SUIUEA PIWIRIIDY  wewmem

BUI3BM BUISIXT e

47 008°07 - Juswadejday sulaidld 2T 11 35eUd mmmm
47 006'T - 6107 P9IR[dWOD ] SeYd e

YoM JO eauy

GMINOA O} BleQ Winjay

paonposday ag o1 10N

VL 0 Ao esn sjuadioay Jod
vy .wcx i & B 10105101 faiepp [wchowni sopieg Aoyien Bt
..@Mﬁ% . 1o Apadoid 1

LS S R TVIM I LVIN HALLISNAS |




RESOLUTION NO. 2025-29

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE VALLEY CENTER
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND
DELIVERY OF AND APPROVING A FINANCING AGREEMENT WITH THE
CALIFORNIA STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD AND
AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OTHER ACTIONS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Valley Center Municipal Water
District (the “District™), a public agency duly organized and existing under and pursuant to the
Constitution and laws of the State of California, is authorized under provisions of the Constitution
and laws of the State of California, and in accordance therewith, to incur indebtedness;

WHEREAS, the District owns and operates a water system (the “System”);

WHEREAS, the Board has determined that it is in the best interests of its constituents to
undertake work required for the pipeline replacement project, Project No. 3710026-004C (the
“Project™) for the System;

WHEREAS, the District has applied for and obtained a loan from the California State
Water Resources Control Board (the “State Water Board”) under the Drinking Water State
Revolving Fund Program (the “SRF Loan”) to provide the funds needed to pay for the Project;

WHEREAS, in connection with the SRF Loan, the District must enter into a Construction
Installment Sale Agreement, listed as Agreement No. D2502004, attached hereto as Exhibit A,
with the State Water Board (the “Financing Agreement”);

WHEREAS, the Financing Agreement provides that the SRF Loan is secured by a pledge
of Net Revenues, the District’s Enterprise Fund, and any reserve fund for parity obligations. The
District’s Net Revenues are defined in the Financing Agreement generally as the District’s all gross
income and revenue received or receivable by the District from the ownership or operation of the
District’s water system, less operating and maintenance expenses. The District’s Enterprise Fund
is the fund into which the District deposits its revenues from operation of the water system, all as
more specifically described and defined in the Financing Agreement;

WHEREAS, the Financing Agreement is necessary to accomplish the completion and
funding of the SRF Loan and eventual distribution of loan proceeds to the District to fund the
Project;

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 5852.1 of the Government Code of the State of California
the District has obtained from Fieldman Rolapp & Associates, Inc., its Municipal Advisor, good
faith estimates of (a) the true interest cost of the SRF Loan, (b) the finance charge of the SRF Loan,
meaning the sum of all fees and charges paid to third parties, (¢) the amount of proceeds of the
SRF Loan expected to be received less the finance charge described above and any reserves or
capitalized interest paid or funded with proceeds of the SRF Loan, and (d) the sum total of all debt
service payments on the SRF Loan calculated to the final maturity of the SRF Loan plus the finance
charge described above not paid with the proceeds of the SRF Loan, and such estimates are

Resolution No. 2025-29 1



disclosed and set forth in Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated herein; and

WHEREAS, all acts, conditions and things required by the Constitution and laws of the
State of California to exist, to have happened and to have been performed precedent to and in
connection with the entering into of the documents described above.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, DETERMINED, AND ORDERED
by the Board of Directors of Valley Center Municipal Water District as follows:

Section 1. The District hereby specifically finds and declares that the statements,
findings and determinations of the District set forth in the preambles of the documents approved
herein are true and correct.

Section 2. The Financing Agreement is hereby approved and each of the President, the
General Manager, and their written designees (each an “Authorized Officer” and together, the
“Authorized Officers”), acting alone, is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the
Financing Agreement in the name of and on behalf of the District, in substantially the form now
before this meeting, but with such changes, modifications, additions and deletions therein as shall
be deemed necessary, desirable or appropriate by the Authorized Officer or Authorized Officers.
Approval of any such changes, modifications, additions and deletions shall be conclusively
evidenced by the execution and delivery of the Financing Agreement by one or more Authorized
Officers.

Section 3. The incurrence of the SRF Loan in the principal amount not to exceed
$5,525,000, at an interest rate not to exceed 1.9%, to finance all or a portion of the cost of the
Project is hereby approved. The incurrence of the SRF Loan is determined to be consistent with
the District’s debt policy and to the extent the incurrence of the SRF Loan is not in compliance
with the District’s debt policy, such noncompliance is waived.

Section 4. Each Authorized Officer is hereby appointed as an authorized officer of the
District for all purposes required by the Financing Agreement, and such Authorized Officers are
hereby authorized, empowered, and directed to do all such acts and things and to execute all such
documents as may be necessary to carry out and comply with the foregoing actions.

Section 5. The Authorized Officers are hereby authorized and directed, jointly and
severally, to do any and all things and to execute and deliver any and all documents which they
may deem necessary or advisable in order to carry out, give effect to and comply with the terms
and intent of this Resolution and to effectuate the SRF Loan and the Financing Agreement. Such
actions heretofore taken by an Authorized Officer are hereby ratified, confirmed and approved.

Section 6. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage.

Resolution No. 2025-29 2



ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Valley Center Municipal Water District, at a
Regular Meeting thereof held this 17" day of November, 2025, by the following roll call vote to
wit:

APPROVED

Enrico P. Ferro, President

ATTEST

Coral L. Williams, Assistant Board Secretary

Resolution No. 2025-29 3



EXHIBIT A

FINANCING AGREEMENT

Resolution No. 2025-29 A-1



DRINKING WATER

VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
AND

CALIFORNIA STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD

CALIFORANIA

Water Boards

CONSTRUCTION
INSTALLMENT SALE AGREEMENT
2023 WATER FACILITIES REPLACEMENT PROJECT
PROJECT NO. 3710026-004C
AGREEMENT NO. D2502004

PROJECT FUNDING AMOUNT: $5,525,000
ESTIMATED REASONABLE PROJECT COST: $9,300,000

ELIGIBLE WORK START DATE: JUNE 3, 2024
ELIGIBLE CONSTRUCTION START DATE: DECEMBER 30, 2025
COMPLETION OF CONSTRUCTION DATE: JULY 1, 2028
FINAL REIMBURSEMENT REQUEST DATE: JANUARY 1, 2029
FINAL PAYMENT DATE: JULY 1, 2058
RECORDS RETENTION END DATE: JULY 1, 2064

Adobe Acrobat Sign Transaction Number: CBJCHBCAABAARIDrg95IMIGbMROII13fheWPiitm&ol0



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page i of 51

TABLE OF CONTENTS

AGREEMENT ...ttt ettt sttt st s et e st e s e s shesse s besae s sase sre s s be e s st e seesre e s s mese e sae e e saneaee s st anannan 1
1. AUTHORITY ettt rerr s trce s st r s s s s s s s s sres e sste st e e e s s essaseanseasnanseanssesatansesesnnensenn 1
2. INTENTION. L.ttt ettt e s e e s e b e e e a e e b e e bensaeeaesaressraranes 1
3. AGREEMENT, TERM, DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE..........c.ccccevnvierrimnnnee, 1
4. PARTY CONTACTS ..ttt ettt et s e s s e e s st e b e e e et e e et e ae s e e e re e s aee e saaensreeeareeeesensssnenens 3
5. DEFINITIONS. ...ttt et ss e ss s s ens e se et s aasse e sbn s s s e sesense s es s s s e nsensenanenseensnenansantasnnnsensennns 3
EXHIBIT A — SCOPE OF WORK ...ttt sttt see s e s s e smne e s be st s st e ebe s sseeeamaesannnanssanans 10
A1, PROJECT DESCRIPTION, USEFUL LIFE, AND SCOPE OF WORK.......c.cccermerrrimrerrnacneanne 10
A.2. STANDARD PROJECT REQUIREMENTS.......cceiiirrerrenrcerrreeicr s e s e e e sanans 10
A2l ACKNOWIBAZEIMENTS. .....eitivrirviieeeceeteinreiriresesrees oo sestssnssesssstssesestossassassssrestessoseerentanseseesessessnnsansensannn 10
A2 2 REPOTES .ottt s e e er e nc s r s e st en e ne e e ben e s et R ae e et h e s s e nnneraeben 10
A221 Progress REPOITS. .....oovviiiiiiiii it s s e st e 10
A222 Project Completion REPOTL. ...co.ccuiiiiieiere ettt cne et s et areab s em s aas e enane 11
A223 As Needed REPOTLS. ..ottt st s e nn e 11
A224 DBE Good Faith Efforts and Reports for SRF Projects........cccevevivvrinnvniiinniionieeeennins 11
A2Z3  SIENAEE. ettt et e b e sk £t £ e e s en et et e e ee 11
A24  Commencement Of OPEratiOns. .......cococciirirrererernireirereeeciererestsrsee e s eeeeseesneeessssessessessesessescrassansesnasis 12
A.3  DATES & DELIVERABLES. ...ttt en s cne s se e s e e sme e sen e ras s 12
Ad SCHEDULE. ...ttt ettt s e e e e s e s st e et e e e s e e s neeaeamee s sarerevranteas 12
EXHIBIT B — FUNDING TERMS ...t secrer et sessnesresrescanssenesies s s nmnessesseessanesssesnessansnsesassnnsnns 14
B.1. FUNDING AMOUNTS AND REIMBURSEMENTS .......ooniiiriieeineer e e see s e sanene 14
B.1.1 Funding Contingency and Other SOUICES. ........coceiiiininiiiiinenieiiens ettt v asann s 14
B.1.2 Estimated Reasonable COSt. .....oc.ooioicieerieecerieeesieeae e etrreasese s et anes s ae s assssessesseseesassessessesssesrassansnasan 14
B.1.3 Project FUNding AMOUNT..........cocooiieieeeeccrirr e sse s creeeser e areraesees e ereseeseestarerearnanssasese s 14
B.14 [RESEIVEA. ]uvvtrierreriirerieriesiesiicinieiitesteissten s saestssasasses enees e bsssntaasesbe e e b sseestensaaentenessasansansensasensnsanntansenans 14
B. 1.5 BuAEEt COSS. ..ottt ettt sttt e e ae e e e m et e a e e st sar ket e et s e e st ent e st re e et e aessetetas 14
B.1.6 Contingent DISDUISEINENT. .....ecveviceeeeiriereiririniinerereeresrrensereeere o tessasssssnessirersesesserserseseesessessesssenssssnesen 15
B.1.7 Reimbursement PrOCEAUIE. ........c.ociiiii et et ee et e e e e re et e s anssessemresessasesenteseane 15
B.1.8 Withholding of DishUISEMENTS. . ..ocevvriiriiiiiiercre e et e se e et sse et abeba e eneaneas 16
B.1.9 Fraud and Misuse of Public Funds; ENfOTCEMENT. ...ttt sts st eeeseevessnens 17
B.2 RECIPIENT'S PAYMENT OBLIGATION, PLEDGE, AND RESERVE........ccccovivviiniicrieerniierinnns 18
B.2.1 PrOJECE COSLS. ueveerercriniscrerntvrere s isiretsereassissensnsssiostostssesssetasassstostostonnessossensessaseaserssressessessssanssssensesenns 18
B.2.2  Estimated Principal PAyment DUE. ......o..ocoviiciiiiicinnecciciet et e sttt es s 18
B.2.3 Interest Rate and In-Lieu of Interest Charges. ..........ocecvcerenierernincennecreinnrenescnseseese e ssenssssssnse s ons 18
B.2.4 [RESEIVEM. .. eriiriiieiiesiicti sttt et sr et s e ae e ssabesaesbeseb et es e b e e antsa ot ase e banbassentesbessaesaestesanseserravesnen 18
B.2.5 Obligation ADSOIILE. .....cccotiiieiirtee ettt ettt ekttt se b et ent et as s 18
B.2.6 PAYMENt TIMINE...cccoirrieeirinrie e ceteriesierie e e e eree e er e e e s e ssen s ntsasesessansenbarnossaressesensasasasasesunsan 18
i

Adobe Acrobat Sign Transaction Number: CBJCHBCAABAARSDrg951MIGbMROII13fhcWPiitméol0



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page ii of 51

B.2.7 Pledged REVENMUES. ......ccoiiieieireeciicte ettt en bbb e ss bbb et ssb et st s eee e eeeneeneeeeaesesssnrean 19
B.2.7.1 Establishment of Enterprise Fund and Reserve FUnd. .......cc...coooouevmrvorecricmeecemcreeeeees s 19
B.2.7.2 Pledge of Net Revenues, Enterprise Fund, and Reserve FUnd.........ccocoveveeeeiieseeeeceeseeeneereeneessenesonns 19
B.2.7.3 Application and Purpose of the Enterprise FUnd. ........coveveviieieiicncececcccceceeecce s 20
B.2.8 INO PIEPAYINIENE. .....cviiiiiieiiesie ettt ettt tea bbbttt ee s et s et e e s sae s ontose shobanestsnesesse e emeens 20
B2.9 RESEIVE FUNA. ...ttt bbb et st s et et an s ens st ems e enateeomeonsnntans 20
B.3 RATES, FEES AND CHARGES. .......cciiiicrrrinin et stetemsas e sses st sttt eeeeeee s mereena e e eeane 20
B.4  ADDITIONAL DEBT. ...occrciertieeecei et trismsierae s e e v b et es s s sseenesbe s et s st s bs b st s b smssesesesasemsnesennnnen 21
B8 NO LIENS ...ttt et s be s st e b et be e s e s sae st sse st e se e st e e e nenesamsetsesseerenannassnnens 21
EXHIBIT C — GENERAL & PROGRAMMATIC TERMS & CONDITIONS .....coveveiinreseeeeeeeeee e eeeee e eesees 22
C.1 REPRESENTATIONS & WARRANTIES. ......ciciiiriiinceciricirin ettt st st en e eneeees 22
C1l.1 Application and General Recipient COMMItMENES. .......c.ocvuevererreeeirereiieesiereeseseeceesssesteesese et esnenenes 22
C.1.2 Authorization and VAIAItY. ......c.occerirrieineie et e es e se et et st 22
C.13 NO VIOIAHIONS. ..ottt ettt ittt et st s s st et na bbb se s s s s enss bt enes e eesee e 22
Cilid NO LIZAOM. ettt s s sr et essbss st bt e sttt encasnsee s et s esssessesseesmstontssaserseses 22
C.1.5  Property Rights and Water RIZHES. .......cccoivvimirimnnuiriiiieieereeeteectceee et saesseaeees e 22
C.1.6 Solvency and INSUTANICE. .......ourueiiiieite ettt st ea b sttt eeree e een 23
C.1.7 Legal Status and EHZIDilit.........cccovmiininiieiisee et es ettt se s enanevann 23
C.1.8 Financial Statements and Continuing DiSCIOSUTE. .........c..ccococeevrevereenecienee e ressesser e seseses e saee s en s 23
C19 SYSLEM OBLIGALIONS ......covecrerreririeietire vt ie e er s sessaebessss et et b et ssstsseessesanscassstssessssmseseseseeeseassaneans 23
C.1.10 No Other Material OBHZALIONS. ......cccccererriersirerineiereiersiieiesesstes et eeees et o ss s ssssetetessnsss s tas et eenesns 23
C.1.11  Compliance with State Water Board Funding AGreements. ............co.ovueuerivororerenieesieneereineeseeeeseeesrensenas 23
c.2 DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES .........o ot ee s et eteee s eae e e et s erenennsanans 23
Cc21 Return of Funds; Acceleration; and Additional PAymENLS. ............c..eeeeuveeeeeieevineseireceeseeesesseseesseseeereens 24
C22 [RESEIVE™. L.ttt et nr st e s et a bttt ee s s s et esatsese s saet e e seeeeeneeaeseanaes 24
C.23 AdMinisStrative TEMEIES. ....c.cveivrrrirrrerrirriaeriestesesass s eete e st tee et e ssssee s esssessssasbas s sbssassaseessoneseenssasane 24
C.2.4 Judicial TEMEAIES. \.vviiererieiee et e bbb bbb e e et 24
C.2.5 TEIMUNALON. ....eciiiireecre et b e et et s bt f e et se s s et eas s ss s ese e eanrersoenesoeenessesnsnns 25
C2.6  Damages for Breach of Tax-EXEMPt StATUS........cooorrirorrririceieceee ettt ee e 25
C2.7  Damages for Breach of Federal COnditions. ..........oeeruirerimiesnuetimiecesciessiesssesssese st s ssesesenn 25
C28 Remedies and LIMIAIONS. ....cievererrreeiieniriiieiiseiees et es s seae e reesss e sesseseresrosensesassssserossaessnesssnses 25
C.2.9  INON-WAIVEL Liriiieireeeriene ettt ettt ettt et et n s b e ss s st s e e sh st st s em e e e e s et senaens 25
C.2.10  SHAIUS QUO.....emiiriiitetere ettt re e e e s b e sa s shs s be bt s s enea b e e s e e e s et ene et e e saeseesearaseeeaeseseasenes 25
C.3 STANDARD CONDITIONS ...t triretsiertesieieseeesaecsasasamssse e tesessteeseseeeee e sesessasessentesesssssessasensens 26
C.3.1 Access, Inspection, and Public RECOTAS. .......cocveiiiiriieiniinicnineie ettt en ettt ee s e 26
C3.2  Accounting and Auditing Standards; Financial Management Systems; Records Retention. ................... 26
C33 AMENAIMENIL. Lottt ettt et et et srs e st e sr s s sb st st s e s eeem s se e s re e et eneeeeans 27
C.3:4  ASSIZNADINLY. oottt e et ras 27
C35 AUGIE. ..ot ettt e b et eae e e s e s en ettt es s eenee s e 27
C3.6 BONGINEG. oot et sttt ettt ettt en et et eeeree e e nenn 27
C3.7 ComPetitive BIAAINE. ......evureereeri ittt ettt ettt mae e ee e s s s besa s s b s e easans st seesee e ee 28
C3.8 Compliance with Applicable Laws, Rules, and ReqUirements. ...........cooovreiieieeiieiconcccririceseeeseeeres s 28
C3.9 COmPULET SORWATE. ...t e s st e s be s e ses e sea e b b eneneene 28
C.3.10  ConfHCt OF TIEIEST. ....ocueveirre ettt ettt ettt e esae e e erer s et et sresaberestase e sia e seasse st eneneneen 28
C.3.11  Continuous Use of Project; No Lease, Sale, Transfer of Ownership, or Disposal of Project. ................. 28
C.3.12  Data MaNAZEINENL. .....cccvverireiruireeeseseieeesirsitesiaesssesssesssstesasesessessesssnsssssseseesessesesssenensessasacssasessesscamasnssen 28
C.3.13  DIHSPULES. ...eeruieereererecrincrteise it sbesesereasesetesescasens s se e ssasasssssseseasassestetssosssesenssenaessnnasntsassesseseseseaseesesssseres 28
G314 [RESEIVEWL L.ttt e bbb bbbt ettt n s er st s emeneesseneneeerenen s see oo 29
[l

Adobe Acrobat Sign Transaction Number: CBJCHBCAABAARIDrg95IMIGbMROIH 3fhcWPiitm6oi0



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004
Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page iii of 51

C.3.15  Environmental CIEATANCE. .....cveiviierieieiirririrtisieeiesiesie e e seeseseesssssetessesestesesbessessssasbessasasssessssassssesnsensessonss 29
C3.16  GOVEIMINEG LAW. ..ottt e e s s et bbb 29
C3.17  INCOME RESIIICHONS. ...ooucueriineeieeitrieiiiirsveeiiss e e et e ssesesre e arsasesssaasassesestessessesnstensessassnsessassesssessetrns 29
C.3.18  Indemnification and State REVIEWS. ....ccc.coveiiiriireiiiesee ettt res vt e et ea b et ebe sttt enbens 29
C.3.19  INdependent ACIOT. ......cocooimieiuiiieceeeier et ee et e bt bbb e bt n e es e e ek e s e s et nteses et e saser bt aas 30
C.3.20 INEEEIALION. .....ioveeerrcrieractrrisirresterietestesteseseessetesesteesasesensansesessasansseseasibesessese ssessetentasta st essetessatsesnenresrennans 30
C.3.21  Leveraging COVEIMANTS. ........cociiieieiieiei et e ettt e e sa bbb e ettt e bt et ans 30
C.3.22  INO DISCIIIMINGALION. w..erveuiierireresrernienreecrreirisasierssestesssseressessesessassssssssessrsesansassassasesesssesassassessesessessasssenenns 31
C.3.23  No Third Party RIGRIS. ..ottt e et ene e e ssnene e ernseraersabons 32
C.3.24  No Obligation 0f the State. ......cccooiiiiiirire s srr e s e sase s aebesr e e sressaesesaebesbesessassrenbans 32
£.3.25  NOUICE e sveueeeeierererieereiestetesee e ssastsssesestestearasansensassase seessessaseasessaanatassesbasebesbeseeemaseneseebesssesestesnasensmaneteneons 32
C.3.26  Operation and Maintenance; INSUTATICE. ............cccivrreinirreice et be e et sr e st be v sens 34
C.3.27  Permits, Subcontracting, and RemMedies.........ccuviiieiieieiinrinieiienies e ss e e sa e ses e sassae s s n s ens et eene 35
C.3.28  ProfesSiOnals. ....cc.iiiieiie ettt et b et et e r et e an s e et shear e e tenrersesasareas e 35
C.3.29  Prevaililg WaZES. ...coue et e tre et et e s bt ss st et e b b e stk sa et s4s e s e e nt b ea et e s et een e erenees 35
C.3.30  Public FUNAING.c.ccuiiiiiieiieti ettt st ettt ettt st s e e s e snasa e s e e et senren 35
C.3.31 Recipient’s Responsibility for WOrK. ...ttt 35
C.3.32  Related LItIZAtION. ...eoicveiriericie e rrnie s s sesiestnsesesesaesesteeasssssesssassassassassstastassesessastassasessesseseesesnsesess 36
C.3.33  Rights i Data. ..ottt et et e st ettt 36
C.3.34  State Water Board Action; Costs and AOINeY Fees. ......cummirvriiiininienienioninminnensinenireisesennesns 36
C.3.35  THMELMESS. ceiveiiieiiti ettt ettt e et e b e et ea b e st she b bt st st sa s et as s re et emneaesabase s s srmtree 36
C.3.36  Unenforceable PIOVISION..........cccoviiriiciieiieeie ittt eseeeseee e esaesesaes e bessebassenssseerssbesneseebeenesresenes 36
C.3.37  VRINUEC. oottt ettt e e e s et e s b s s bbb ke e e s e b b sa b es e e ha Rt et e et st eRa et et e st et arebaasateabensensersenens 36
C.3.33  Waiver and Rights of the State Water Board. ..........c.c.cocverriieienininnseercemee e nnsseres s 36
C.4 MISCELLANEOUS STATE AND FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS.......cccovevimiersercerre s rectecres e s e 37
C4.1 [RESEIVEA. ..o ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt s et et a s se b as b eae e sesaeses st ss s et ebataataseabetess st ebeseseatsntseas 37
C4.2 StAte CroSS=CULETS. ..ccieirerieeieieiriceicere e e e et seeaes e ste s e sssrresasaesseses e ntesrssnssansesesssesesbensesessssessans 37
C43 Federal Requirements and Cross-Cutters for SRF Funding..........cccoooevevvieciniceees e, 37
EXHIBIT D — SPECIAL CONDITIONS ...ttt ettt te e e stee s sne s mseesesn s sesnssessessnressressnee 43
EXHIBIT E — PAYMENT SCHEDULE........coooii ittt sre et reses st s s sessasssaeses s s e ssse s s esmeamssessnon 45
EXHIBIT F — TAX CERTIFICATE ...t cceeee et eree e e e s ee e e s sna s s s ae s e st asebeesseseesanenesssnsarenss 46
Ful  PUIPOSE. vt ictiiiiiicic e re s ereeee e et e e ee e e seneeesess se s see s ensaraessanseere e as s e sas s s see e s ssaee st nnstasenstnnesssnnsersnans 46
F.2  Tax COVENANE. ...ttt st e e s e e s e e e s s e as s n s e n s e e ansenr e e s ee s e sanranean 46
F.3  Governmental Unt. .....c..ooiorer e cteiteeer et v s ee e e s e s st ss e s s e s sae e s e ansre e senrnsseennans 46
F.4  Financing of a Capital Project. ...ttt es e et ssse e 46
F.5  Ownership and Operation of ProjECL. ........covcericeiiiir et r e recre e e e e snes e s e e s aba s e 46
F.6  Temporary PeriOl. ....c.ccccciiiriicririniineieeceisteesscessesteeresantesssnseesesessnsaessssnsssesessnsassassassaseasansessansessane 46
S A o Ty ([ Te [ O3 11 - | OO OSSN 47
F.8  EXPENiture Of PrOCEEMUS. ....oooiii ettt re e srere e s esetr e s s s v ar e e sasbsas e snssnbaessnnbennsnesoan 47
F.9 Private Use and Private Payments. .........ccccoeeiiiinienieeiiecnesienesiesses e ssesesvessmee e s sas e s nesasssnesnas 47
F.10 No Sale, Lease or Private Operation of the Project. .........cccccvvcivcriiiinvcnnicie et 47

Adobe Acrobat Sign Transaction Number: CBJCHBCAABAARSDrg95IMIGbMROil13fhcwPiitm6ol0



F.11

F.12

F.13

F.14

F.15

F.16

F.17

F.18

F.19

F.20

F.21

F.22

F.23

F.24

F.25

F.26

Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.; 3710026-004C

Page iv of 51

No Disproportionate or Unrelated USE. .......ccccvvciiirimrcnnienieeceiisec et es et ee et e e sreaes 48
Management and Service COoNracts. .......ccccciviiieerieicieceeceee e s st ra e eaen 48
No Disposition of Financed PrOperty. .........ccoicvceveerereeceierecists s e e e e smsevessms e eerns 48
UsefUl Life OF PrOJECL.... ..ottt sttt e e e et s st e s e e e e s 48
PaYIMIBNLS. 1ottt e e e e e ar e b e e R b e e bb e st s e e eaeeren 48
No Other Replacement ProCeeds...........coeevereiieeicceeiceecee ettt e s e e eeeeaes 49
No Sinking or Pledged FUNG......ccco..cccieviiiiiiiirirnereesns st seesarssaesnesaee e st e b e s eseeve e e e sesaen 49
RESEIVE AMOUNL. ...ttt s ee s st e st e st e st sae e e s bestesastastaebenseerecaentasseeeas 49
Reimbursement ReSOJUtION. ..o e 49
Reimbursement EXPENAIfUIES. ........ccoo vttt s ieesme e s ae s e e sbs s rae e e s s e 49
Change in Use 0f the Project............o et sern e reeenaerae s sbe st s s e 50
ReDbate ODlIGatioNS. .......cceccieieeiecieiec ettt et e eaeeaeeese et e ses s ssmeeenee s enneesenaaas 50
NO Federal GUaraNTEe. ..ot smre e e et be e b b e e ne s eeas 50
AMENAMENES. ...ttt s e et bt smta et e st e e e s b e et e n et s esseeseeseeeseensnsamnans 50
Reasonable EXPECIatioNS. .......cviceiiecciieiece e ettt 50
ASSIGNMENL. ..ot ree e et b e et e b st e e abbeab e nen e e tesnenaene 50

Adobe Acrobat Sign Transaction Number: CBJCHBCAABAARIDIg95IMIGbMROI13fhcWPiitmGol0 v



(a)

(b)

(a)

(b)

3.

Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 1 of 51

AGREEMENT
AUTHORITY.

The State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board) is authorized, and implements its
authority, to provide financial assistance under this Agreement pursuant to Section 116760 et
seq. of the Health and Safety Code, and Resolution Nos. 2019-0065 and 2024-0029.

The Recipient is authorized to enter into this Installment Sale Agreement (Agreement) pursuant to
Resolution No. 2024-34,

INTENTION.

The Recipient desires to receive financial assistance for and undertake work required for the
drinking water construction Project according to the terms and conditions set forth in this
Agreement.

The State Water Board proposes to assist in providing financial assistance for eligible costs of the
Project in the amount set forth in Exhibit B, according to the terms and conditions set forth in this
Agreement, with the expectation that the Recipient shall repay all portion of the financial
assistance to the State Water Board.

The Recipient intends to evidence its obligation to submit Payments to the State Water Board and
secure its obligation with Net Revenues of its water enterprise, as set forth in Exhibit B, according
to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.

The Recipient intends to certify and evidence its compliance with the Tax Covenants set forth in
Exhibit F.

AGREEMENT, TERM, DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE.

In consideration of the mutual representations, covenants and agreements herein set forth, the State
Water Board and the Recipient, each binding itself, its successors and assigns, do mutually promise,
covenant, and agree to the terms, provisions, and conditions of this Agreement.

(a)

(b)

The Recipient hereby sells to the State Water Board and the State Water Board hereby
purchases from the Recipient the Project. Simultaneously therewith, the Recipient hereby
purchases from the State Water Board, and the State Water Board hereby sells to the Recipient,
the Project in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. All right, title, and interest in the
Project shall immediately vest in the Recipient on the date of execution and delivery of this
Agreement by both parties without further action on the part of the Recipient or the State Water
Board.

Subject to the satisfaction of all conditions precedent to this Agreement, this Agreement shall
become effective upon the signature of both the Recipient and the State Water Board.
Conditions precedent are not limited to the following:

i. The Recipient must deliver to the Division a resolution authorizing this Agreement.

i.  The Recipient must deliver an opinion of bond counsel and general counsel satisfactory
to the State Water Board's counsel dated on or after the date that the Recipient signs
this Agreement.

Upon execution, the term of the Agreement shall begin on the Eligible Work Start Date and
extend through the Final Payment Date.



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004
Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 2 of 51
(d) This Agreement includes the following exhibits and attachments thereto:
i. EXHIBIT A-SCOPE OF WORK

ii. EXHIBIT B—-FUNDING TERMS

ii. EXHIBIT C -~ GENERAL & PROGRAMMATIC TERMS & CONDITIONS

iv. EXHIBIT D — SPECIAL CONDITIONS

v. EXHIBIT E - PAYMENT SCHEDULE

vi. EXHIBIT F — TAX CERTIFICATE
(e) This Agreement includes the following documents incorporated by reference, as well as any

documents incorporated by reference in Exhibit D:

ii.
iii.
iv.
V.

the Final Plans & Specifications, which are the basis for the construction contract to be
awarded by the Recipient;

the Drinking Water System Permit No. 05-14-03P-006, and any amendments thereto;
the Recipient's Reimbursement Resolution No, 2024-35 dated November 4, 2024;

the Recipient's Tax Questionnaire dated December 20, 2024.

the federal Davis-Bacon requirements. By accepting this Agreement, the Recipient
acknowledges and agrees to the terms and conditions provided in the DBRA
Requirements for EPA Subrecipients | US EPA (htips://www.epa.qov/grants/dbra-
requirements-epa-subrecipients), The Recipient shall ensure that the following language
is included in all contracts and subcontracts funded under this Agreement:

By accepting this contract, the contractor acknowledges and agrees to the terms
and conditions provided in the Contract Provisions for Davis-Bacon and Related
Acts | US EPA (hitps://iwww.epa.gov/grants/contract-provisions-davis-bacon-and-

related-acts).

(For reference, see also
https://www.waterboards.ca.qov/water issues/programs/grants loans/srf/davisbacon.ht
ml.)

(f) This Agreement, and any amendments hereto, may be executed and delivered in any number of
counterparts, each of which when delivered shall be deemed to be an original, but such
counterparts shall together constitute one document. The parties may sign this Agreement, and any
amendments hereto, either by an electronic signature using a method approved by the State Water
Board or by a physical, handwritten signature. The parties mutually agree that an electronic
signature using a method approved by the State Water Board is the same as a physical,
handwritten signature for the purposes of validity, enforceability, and admissibility.



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004
Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 3 of 51
4. PARTY CONTACTS
State Water Board Valley Center Municipal Water District
Section: | Division of Financial Assistance
Name: John Paul Blanco, Project Manager Name: Wally Grabbe, Project
Director
Address: 1001 | Street, 16th Floor Address: i P.O Box 67
City, State, Sacramento, CA 95814 City, State, Valley Center, CA 92082
Zip: Zip:
Phone; (916) 445-2495 Phone: (760) 735-4558
Email; johnpaul.blanco@waterboards.ca.gov Email: wgrabbe@vcmwd.org
DrinkingWaterSRF @waterboards.ca.gov

The Recipient may change its contact upon written notice to the Division, which notice shall be
accompanied by authorization from the Recipient’s Authorized Representative. The State Water Board
will notify the Recipient of any changes to its contact.

While the foregoing are contacts for day-to-day communications regarding Project work, the Recipient
shall provide official communications and events of Notice as set forth in Exhibit C to the Division's
Deputy Director.

5. DEFINITIONS.
Unless otherwise specified, each capitalized term used in this Agreement has the following meaning:

“Additional Payments” means the reasonable extraordinary fees and expenses of the State Water Board,
and of any assignee of the State Water Board's right, title, and interest in and to this Agreement, in
connection with this Agreement, including all expenses and fees of accountants, trustees, staff,
contractors, consultants, costs, insurance premiums and all other extraordinary costs reasonably incurred
by the State Water Board or assignee of the State Water Board.

"Allowance" means an amount based on a percentage of the accepted bid for an eligible project to help
defray the planning, design, and construction engineering and administration costs of the Project.

“Agreement” means this agreement, including all exhibits and attachments hereto.

"Authorized Representative" means the duly appointed representative of the Recipient as set forth in the
certified original of the Recipient's authorizing resolution that designates the authorized representative by
title.

"Bank" means the California Infrastructure and Economic Development Bank.

“Bond Funded Portion of the Project Funds”™ means any portion of the Project Funds which was or will be
funded with Bond Proceeds.

“Bond Proceeds” means original proceeds, investment proceeds, and replacement proceeds of Bonds.

"Bonds" means any series of bonds issued by the Bank, the interest on which is excluded from gross
income for federal tax purposes, all or a portion of the proceeds of which have been, are, or will be
applied by the State Water Board to fund all or any portion of the Project Costs or that are secured in
whole or in part by Payments paid hereunder.



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 4 of 51

“Charge In Lieu of Interest” means any fee or charge in lieu of some or all of, but not to exceed, the
interest that would otherwise be owed under this Agreement, as set forth in Exhibit E.

"Code" as used in Exhibit F of this Agreement means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended,
and any successor provisions and the regulations of the U.S. Department of the Treasury promulgated
thereunder.

“Completion of Construction” means the date, as determined by the Division after consultation with the
Recipient, that the work of building and erection of the Project is substantially complete, and is identified
in Exhibit A of this Agreement.

“Cover Page” means the front page of this Agreement.
“Days” means calendar days unless otherwise expressly indicated.

“Debt Service" means, as of any date, with respect to outstanding System Obligations and, in the case of
the additional debt tests in Exhibit B of this Agreement, any System Obligations that are proposed to be
outstanding, the aggregate amount of principal and interest scheduled to become due (either at maturity
or by mandatory redemption), together with any Charge In Lieu of Interest on this Obligation or other
System Obligations to the State Water Board, calculated with the following assumptions:

a. Principal payments (unless a different subdivision of this definition applies for purposes of
determining principal maturities or amortization) are made in accordance with any amortization
schedule published for such principal, including any minimum sinking fund payments;

b. Interest on a variable rate System Obligation that is not subject to a swap agreement and that is
issued or will be issued as a tax-exempt obligation under federal law, is the average of the SIFMA
Municipal Swap Index, or its successor index, during the 24 months preceding the date of such
calculation;

C. Interest on a variable rate System Obligation that is not subject to a swap agreement and that is
issued or will be issued as a taxable obligation under federal law, is the average of SOFR, or its
successor index, during the 24 months preceding the date of such calculation;

d. Interest on a variable rate System Obligation that is subject to a swap agreement is the fixed
swap rate or cap strike rate, as appropriate, if the variable rate has been swapped to a fixed rate
or capped pursuant to an interest rate cap agreement or similar agreement;

e. Interest on a fixed rate System Obligation that is subject to a swap agreement such that all or a
portion of the interest has been swapped to a variable rate shall be treated as variable rate debt
under subdivisions (b} or (c) of this definition of Debt Service;

f. Payments of principal and interest on a System Obligation are excluded from the calculation of
Debt Service to the extent such payments are to be paid from amounts then currently on deposit
with a trustee or other fiduciary and restricted for the defeasance of such System Obligations;

g. If 25% or more of the principal of a System Obligation is not due until its final stated maturity, then
principal and interest on that System Obligation may be projected to amortize over the lesser of
30 years or the Useful Life of the financed asset, and interest may be calculated according to
subdivisions (b)-(e) of this definition of Debt Service, as appropriate.

“Deputy Director” means the Deputy Director of the Division.



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 5 of 51

“District Office” means District Office of the Division of Drinking Water of the State Water Board.

"Division" means the Division of Financial Assistance of the State Water Board or any other segment of
the State Water Board authorized to administer this Agreement.

“Division of Drinking Water” means the Division of Drinking Water of the State Water Board,

“Eligible Construction Start Date” means the date set forth on the Cover Page of this Agreement,
establishing the date on or after which construction costs may be incurred and eligible for reimbursement
hereunder.

“Eligible Work Start Date” means the date set forth on the Cover Page of this Agreement, establishing the
date on or after which any non-construction costs may be incurred and eligible for reimbursement
hereunder.

“Enterprise Fund” means the enterprise fund of the Recipient in which Revenues are deposited.

“Event of Default” means the occurrence of any of the following events:

a) Failure by the Recipient to make any payment required to be paid pursuant to this Agreement,
including Payments;
b) A representation or warranty made by or on behalf of the Recipient in this Agreement or in any

document furnished by or on behalf of the Recipient to the State Water Board pursuant to this
Agreement shall prove to have been inaccurate, misleading or incomplete in any material respect;

c) A material adverse change in the condition of the Recipient, the Revenues, or the System, which
the Division reasonably determines would materially impair the Recipient’s ability to satisfy its
obligations under this Agreement.

d) Failure by the Recipient to comply with the additional debt test or reserve fund requirement, if
any, in Exhibit B or Exhibit D of this Agreement;

e) Failure to operate the System or the Project without the Division’s approval;

f) Failure by the Recipient to observe and perform any covenant, condition, or provision in this
Agreement, which failure shall continue for a period of time, to be determined by the Division;

9) The occurrence of a material breach or event of default under any System Obligation or Material

Obligation that results in the acceleration of principal or interest or otherwise requires immediate
prepayment, repurchase or redemption;

h) Initiation of proceedings seeking arrangement, reorganization, or any other relief under any
applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, or other similar law; the appointment of or taking possession of
the Recipient’s property by a receiver, liquidator, assignee, trustee, custodian, conservator, or
similar official; the Recipient’s entering into a general assignment for the benefit of creditors; the
initiation of resolutions or proceedings to terminate the Recipient’s existence, or any action in
furtherance of any of the foregoing;

i) A determination pursuant to Gov. Code section 11137 that the Recipient has violated any
provision in Article 9.5 of Chapter 1 of Part 1 of Division 3 of Title 2 of the Government Code; or
) Loss of the Recipient’s rights, licenses, permits, or privileges necessary for the operation of the

System or the Project, or the occurrence of any material restraint on the Recipient’s enterprise by
a government agency or court order.

“Final Payment Date” is the date by which all principal and accrued interest due under this Agreement is
to be paid in full to the State Water Board and is specified on the Cover Page of this Agreement.

“Final Reimbursement Request Date” means the date set forth as such on the Cover Page of this
Agreement, after which date, no further Project Funds disbursements may be requested.



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 6 of 51

"Fiscal Year" means the period of twelve (12) months terminating on June 30 of any year, or any other
annual period selected and designated by the Recipient as its Fiscal Year in accordance with applicable
law.

"Force Account” means the use of the Recipient's own employees, equipment, or resources for the
Project.

“GAAP” means generally accepted accounting principles, the uniform accounting and reporting
procedures set forth in publications of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants or its
successor, or by any other generally accepted authority on such procedures, and includes, as applicable,
the standards set forth by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board or its successor, or the Uniform
System of Accounts, as adopted by the California Public Utilities Commission for water utilities.

“Initiation of Construction" means the date that notice to proceed with work is issued for the Project, or, if
notice to proceed is not required, the date of commencement of building and erection of the Project.

“Listed Event” means, so long as the Recipient has outstanding any System Obligation subject to Rule
15¢c2-12, any of the events required to be reported with respect to such System Obligation pursuant to
Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5).

“Material Obligation” means an obligation of the Recipient that is material to this transaction, including
System Obligations.

“Maximum Annual Debt Service” means the maximum amount of Debt Service due on System
Obligations in a Fiscal Year during the period commencing with the Fiscal Year for which such calculation
is made and within the next five years in which Debt Service for any System Obligations will become due.

“Net Revenues™ means, for any Fiscal Year, all Revenues received by the Recipient less the Operations
and Maintenance Costs for such Fiscal Year.

"Obligation” means the obligation of the Recipient to make Payments (including Additional Payments) as
provided herein, as evidenced by the execution of this Agreement, proceeds of such obligations being
used to fund the Project as specified in the Project Description in Exhibit A and Exhibit B and in the
documents thereby incorporated by reference.

"Operations and Maintenance Costs" means the reasonable and necessary costs paid or incurred by the
Recipient for maintaining and operating the System, determined in accordance with GAAP, including all
reasonable expenses of management and repair and all other expenses necessary to maintain and
preserve the System in good repair and working order, and including all reasonable and necessary
administrative costs of the Recipient that are charged directly or apportioned to the operation of the
System, such as salaries and wages of employees, overhead, taxes (if any), the cost of permits, licenses,
and charges to operate the System and insurance premiumns; but excluding, in all cases depreciation,
replacement, and obsolescence charges or reserves therefor and amortization of intangibles.

“Parity Obligation” means a debt obligation of the Recipient on parity with this Obligation. The Recipient's
Parity Obligations are the following:

e DWSREF Loan for 2020 Pipeline Replacement Project No. 3710026-003C, Agreement No.
D2102015.

» DWSRF Loan for Cool Valley Reservoir Cover/Liner Replacement Project No. 3710026-001C,
Agreement No. D160216.



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 7 of 51

¢ CWSRF Loan for Woods Valley Ranch Wastewater Expansion Project No. C-06-7454-110,
Agreement No. 12-824-550. Only the Recipient’s water revenues securing this loan are a Parity
Obligation.

e CWSRF Loan for Woods Valley Ranch Wastewater Expansion Project No. C-06-7454-120,
Agreement No. 12-825-550. Only the Recipient's water revenues securing this loan are a Parity
Obligation.

o CWSRF Loan for Woods Valley Ranch Wastewater Expansion Project No. C-06-7454-130,
Agreement No. 12-826-550. Only the Recipient’s water revenues securing this loan are a Parity
Obligation.

“Payment” means any payment due to the State Water Board from the Recipient pursuant to this
Agreement.

"Policy" means the State Water Board's “Policy for Implementing the Drinking Water State Revolving
Fund,” as amended from time to time, including the Intended Use Plan in effect as of the execution date
of this Agreement.

“Project” means the Project financed by this Agreement as described in Exhibits A and B and in the
documents incorporated by reference herein.

"Project Completion” means the date, as determined by the Division after consultation with the Recipient,
that operation of the Project is initiated or is capable of being initiated, whichever comes first.

"Project Costs" means the incurred costs of the Recipient which are eligible for financial assistance under
this Agreement, which are allowable costs as defined under the Policy, and which are reasonable,
necessary and allocable by the Recipient to the Project under GAAP, and may include capitalized
interest.

“Project Funds” means all moneys disbursed to the Recipient by the State Water Board for eligible Project
Costs pursuant to this Agreement.

“Recipient” means Valley Center Municipal Water District.

“Records Retention End Date” means the last date that the Recipient is obligated to maintain records and
is set forth on the Cover Page of this Agreement.

“Regional Water Quality Control Board” or “Regional Water Board” means the appropriate Regional Water
Quality Control Board.

“‘Reimbursement Resolution” means the Recipient’s reimbursement resolution identified and incorporated
by reference in this Agreement.

“Reserve Fund” means the reserve fund required pursuant to Exhibit B of this Agreement.

"Revenues" means, for each Fiscal Year, all gross income and revenue received or receivable by the
Recipient from the ownership or operation of the System, determined in accordance with GAAP, including

(i) all rates, fees, and charges (including connection fees and charges) as received by the
Recipient for the services of the System, and



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 8 of 51

(ii) all other income and revenue howsoever derived by the Recipient from the ownership or
operation of the System or arising from the System, including all income from

a. the deposit or investment of any money in the Enterprise Fund or any rate stabilization
fund of the Recipient or held on the Recipient’s behalf,

b. any refundable deposits made to establish credit, and
¢. advances or contributions in aid of construction.

For the avoidance of doubt, refundable deposits and advances or contributions are not included
in the definition of Revenues.

“Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5)" means Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5) promulgated by the Securities and Exchange
Commiission pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

“Senior Obligation” means a debt obligation of the Recipient that is senior to this Obligation. There are no
Senior Obligations.

“SRF” means the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund.
“State” means State of California.
“State Water Board” means the State Water Resources Control Board.

“Subordinate Obligation” means a debt obligation of the Recipient that is subordinate to this Obligation,
There are no Subordinate Obligations.

“System” means all drinking water collection, pumping, transport, treatment, storage, and delivery
facilities, including land and easements thereof, owned by the Recipient, including the Project, and all
other properties, structures, or works hereafter acquired and constructed by the Recipient and determined
to be a part of the System, together with all additions, betterments, extensions, or improvements to such
facilities, properties, structures, or works, or any part thereof hereafter acquired and constructed.

“System Obligation” means any obligation of the Recipient payable from the Revenues, including but not
limited to this Obligation, any Parity Obligation, any Subordinate Obligation, and such additional
obligations as may hereafter be issued in accordance with the provisions of such obligations and this
Agreement.

“Useful Life” means the economically useful life of the Project beginning at Completion of Construction
and is set forth in Exhibit A.

“Year” means calendar year unless otherwise expressly indicated.



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 9 of 51

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto.

VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT:

By:
Name: Wally Grabe
Title:  Deputy General Manager

Date:

STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD:

By:
Name: Joe Karkoski
Title:  Deputy Director

Division of Financial Assistance

Date:

Adobe Acrobat Sign Transaction Number: CBJCHBCAABAARSDrg95IMIGbMROII13fhcWPiitmEolD



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004
Project No.: 3710026-004C
Page 10 of 51
EXHIBIT A—-SCOPE OF WORK
A.1. PROJECT DESCRIPTION, USEFUL LIFE, AND SCOPE OF WORK,
(a) The Project is the project set forth on the Cover Page of this Agreement.
(b) The Useful Life of this Project is at least 30 years.
(c) Scope of Work.

The Recipient agrees to abandon and replace approximately ten thousand nine hundred (10,900) linear
feet of existing 12-inch (twelve-inch) tar wrapped steel pipeline with Polyvinyl Chloride pipeline.

A2, STANDARD PROJECT REQUIREMENTS.
A.2.1 Acknowledgements.

The Recipient shall include the following acknowledgement in any document, written report, or brochure
prepared in whole or in part pursuant to this Agreement:

“Funding for this project has been provided in full or in part through an agreement with the State Water
Resources Control Board. California’s Drinking Water State Revolving Fund is capitalized through a
variety of funding sources, including grants from the United States Environmental Protection Agency and
state bond proceeds. The contents of this document do not necessarily reflect the views and policies of
the foregoing, nor does mention of trade names or commercial products constitute endorsement or
recommendation for use.”

A.2.2 Reports

A.2.2.1 Progress Reports.

(a) The Recipient must provide a progress report to the Division each quarter, beginning no later than 90
days after execution of this Agreement.

(b) The Recipient must provide a progress report with each reimbursement request. Failure to provide a
complete and accurate progress report may result in the withholding of Project Funds, as set forth in
Exhibit B.

(c) A progress report must contain the following information:

i.  Asummary of progress to date including a description of progress since the last report, percent
construction complete, percent contractor invoiced, and percent schedule elapsed;

i. A description of compliance with environmental requirements;

ii.  Alisting of change orders including amount, description of work, and change in contract amount
and schedule; and

iv.  Any problems encountered, proposed resolution, schedule for resolution, and status of previous
problem resolutions,

Exhibit A



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 11 of 51

A.2.2.2 Project Completion Report.

(a) The Recipient must submit a Project Completion Report to the Division with a copy to the appropriate
District Office on or before the due date established by the Division and the Recipient at the time of
final project inspection. The Project Completion Report must include the following:

i. Description of the Project,
ii. Description of the water quality problem the Project sought to address,

iii. Discussion of the Project’s likelihood of successfully addressing that water quality problem in the
future, and

iv. Summary of compliance with applicable environmental conditions,

(b) if the Recipient fails to submit a timely Project Completion Report, the State Water Board may stop
processing pending or future applications for new financial assistance, withhold disbursements under
this Agreement or other agreements, and begin administrative proceedings.

A.2.2.3 As Needed Reports,

The Recipient must provide expeditiously, during the term of this Agreement, any reports, data, and
information reasonably required by the Division, including but not limited to material necessary or
appropriate for evaluation of the funding program or to fulfill any reporting requirements of the state or
federal government.

A.2.2.4 DBE Good Faith Efforts and Reports for SRF Projects.

The Recipient shall comply with the applicable Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) requirements
in 40 CFR part 33 for the Project and require its contractors and subcontractors on the Project to
comply. 40 CFR § 33.301 requires the use of good faith efforts to utilize DBE's whenever procuring
construction, equipment, services, and supplies. If required by the Division, the Recipient must report
DBE utilization to the Division on the DBE Utilization Report, State Water Board Form DBE UR334 and
must submit such reports to the Division annually within ten (10) calendar days following October 1 until
such time as the “Notice of Completion” is issued.

A.2.3 Signage.

The Recipient shall place a sign at least four feet tall by eight feet wide made of % inch thick exterior
grade plywood or other approved material in a prominent location on the Project site and shall maintain
the sign in good condition for the duration of the construction period. The sign must include the following
disclosure statement and color logos (available from the Division):

Water Boards ""’"’"—?"‘f«' Prstsctzn

1y

b. “Funding for this 2023 Water Facilities Replacement Project has been provided in full or in part by
the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund through an agreement with the State Water Resources
Control Board. California’s Drinking Water State Revolving Fund is capitalized through a variety
of funding sources, including grants from the United States Environmental Protection Agency and
state bond proceeds.”

Exhibit A



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 12 of 51

c. The Project sign may include another agency's required promotional information so long as the
above logos and disclosure statement are equally prominent on the sign. The sign shall be
prepared in a professional manner.

A.24 Commencement of Operations.

Upon Completion of Construction of the Project, the Recipient must expeditiously initiate Project
operations.

A3 DATES & DELIVERABLES.

(a) Time is of the essence.

(b) The Recipient must expeditiously proceed with and complete construction of the Project.
(c) The following dates are established as on the Cover Page of this Agreement:

i.  Eligible Work Start Date
ii. Eligible Construction Start Date
ii. Completion of Construction Date
iv. Final Reimbursement Request Date
V. Records Retention End Date
vi.  Final Payment Date

(d) The Recipient must award the prime construction contract timely.
(e) The Recipient agrees to start construction no later than December 30, 2025.

(f) The Recipient must deliver any request for extension of the Completion of Construction date no less
than 90 days prior to the Completion of Construction date.

(9) The undisbursed balance of this Agreement will be deobligated if the Recipient does not provide its
final reimbursement request to the Division on or before the Final Reimbursement Request Date.

A4 SCHEDULE.

Failure to provide items by the due dates indicated in the table below may constitute a material violation
of this Agreement. The Project Manager may adjust the dates in the “Estimated Due Date” column of this
table, but Critical Due Date adjustments will require an amendment to this Agreement. The Recipient
must complete and submit all work in time to be approved by the Division prior to Project Completion. As
applicable for specific submittals, the Recipient must plan adequate time to solicit, receive, and address
comments prior to submitting the final submittal. The Recipient must submit the final reimbursement
request prior to the Final Reimbursement Request Date set forth on the Cover Page.

ITEM DESCRIPTION OF SUBMITTAL CRITICAL DUE ESTIMATED DUE
DATE DATE

EXHIBIT A~ SCOPE OF WORK
A. ADDITIONAL SUBMITTAL(S) TO DIVISION

1. Final Budget Approval Package N/A 12/30/2025
2, Construction Completion Date 07/01/2028 N/A

Exhibit A



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 13 of 51

ITEM DESCRIPTION OF SUBMITTAL CRITICAL DUE ESTIMATED DUE
DATE DATE
EXHIBIT A—- SCOPE OF WORK

B. REPORTS

1. Progress Reports N/A Quarterly

2. Final Inspection and Certification N/A 07/01/2028

3. Project Completion Report N/A 01/01/2029

4, As Needed Reports N/A As Needed
EXHIBIT B — REIMBURSEMENTS, BUDGET DETAIL, AND REPORTING PROVISIONS

A. REIMBURSEMENTS

1. Reimbursement Requests N/A Quarterly

2. Final Reimbursement Request 01/01/2029 N/A

Exhibit A




Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 14 of 51

EXHIBIT B — FUNDING TERMS

B.1. FUNDING AMOUNTS AND REIMBURSEMENTS

B.1.1  Funding Contingency and Other Sources.

(a) If this Agreement’s funding for any fiscal year expires due to reversion or is reduced, substantially
delayed, or deleted by the Budget Act, by Executive Order, or by order or action of the Department of
Finance, the State Water Board has the option to either cancel this Agreement with no liability
accruing to the State Water Board, or offer an amendment to the Recipient to reflect the reduced
amount.

(b) If funding for Project Costs is made available to the Recipient from sources other than this Agreement,
the Recipient must notify the Division. The Recipient may retain such funding up to an amount which
equals the Recipient's share of Project Costs. To the extent allowed by requirements of other funding
sources, excess funding must be remitted to the State Water Board to be applied to Payments due
hereunder, if any.

B.1.2 Estimated Reasonable Cost.

The estimated reasonable cost of the total Project, including associated planning and design costs is nine
million three hundred thousand and no cents ($9,300,000.00).

B.1.3 Project Funding Amount.

Subject to the terms of this Agreement, the State Water Board agrees to provide Project Funds not to
exceed the amount of the Project Funding Amount set forth on the Cover Page of this Agreement.

B.1.4 [Reserved.]
B. 1.5 Budget Costs.

(a) Estimated budget costs are contained in the Summary Project Cost Table below:

ITEM | DESCRIPTION TOTAL ESTIMATED | PROJECT FUNDING
COST AMOUNT

A | Construction $6,650,000 $2,875,000

B Pre-Purchase Material / Equipment $0 $0

C | Real Property/Easement Acquisition $0 $0

D Change Order Contingency $1,065,000 | $1,065,000

E Force Account $0 $0

| F Allowances $1,585,000 $1.585.000
| TOTAL $9,300,000 | $5,525,000

Note: 1. Portion of the construction cost is funded by EPA community grant ($3,775,000).

The Division’s Final Budget Approval and related Form 259 and Form 260 will document a more detailed
budget of eligible Project Costs and Project funding amounts. Construction of the Project may be
completed in phases with written approval of the Division. If construction proceeds under separate
phases, the Recipient must submit a Final Budget Approval package and receive Final Budget Approval
from the Division for each phase.

Exhibit B8



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 15 of 51

Upon written request by the Recipient, the Division may adjust the line items of the budget at the time of
Division’s Final Budget Approval(s). Upon written request by the Recipient, the Division may also adjust
the line items of the budget at the time of Recipient’s submittal of its final claim. Any line item adjustments
to the budget that are due to a change in scope of work will require an Agreement amendment. The sum
of adjusted line items in the budget approved through the Final Budget Approval process must not exceed
the Project Funding Amount. The Division may also propose budget adjustments.

(b) Under no circumstances may the sum of line items in the budget approved through the Final Budget

Approval process exceed the Project Funding Amount. Any increase in the Project Funding Amount
will require an Agreement amendment,

B.1.6 Contingent Disbursement.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)
(e)

(9)

(h)

The State Water Board's disbursement of funds hereunder is contingent on the Recipient's
compliance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

The State Water Board's obligation to disburse Project Funds is contingent upon the availability of
sufficient funds to permit the disbursements provided for herein. If sufficient funds are not
available for any reason, including but not limited to failure of the federal or State government to
appropriate funds necessary for disbursement of Project Funds, the State Water Board shall not
be obligated to make any disbursements to the Recipient under this Agreement. This provision
shall be construed as a condition precedent to the abligation of the State Water Board to make
any disbursements under this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to
provide the Recipient with a right of priority for disbursement over any other entity. If any
disbursements due the Recipient under this Agreement are deferred because sufficient funds are
unavailable, it is the intention of the State Water Board that such disbursement will be made to
the Recipient when sufficient funds do become available, but this intention is not binding.

Construction costs and disbursements are not available until after the Division has approved the
final budget form submitted by the Recipient for the corresponding costs.

No costs incurred prior to the Eligible Work Start Date are eligible for reimbursement.

Construction costs incurred prior to the Eligible Construction Start Date are not eligible for
reimbursement.

Failure to proceed according to the timelines set forth in this Agreement may require the
Recipient to repay to the State Water Board all disbursed Project Funds.

The Recipient agrees to ensure that its final reimbursement request is received by the Division no
later than the Final Reimbursement Request Date. If the final reimbursement request is not
received timely, the undisbursed balance of this Agreement will be deobligated.

The Recipient is not entitled to interest earned on undisbursed funds.

B.1.7 Reimbursement Procedure.

Except as may be otherwise provided in this Agreement, disbursement of Project Funds will be made as

follows:

(a) Upon execution and delivery of this Agreement by both parties, the Recipient may request

immediate reimbursement of any eligible incurred planning and design allowance costs through
submission to the State Water Board of the Reimbursement Request Form 260 and Form 261, or
any amendment thereto, duly completed and executed. To be eligible for reimbursement, Project

Exhibit B



(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

®

(9)

(h)

(i)

B.1.8

Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 16 of 51

Costs, including any planning and design allowance costs, must have been incurred in
compliance with all applicable requirements, including the state and federal cross-cutting
requirements listed in Exhibit C.

The Recipient must submit a reimbursement request for costs incurred prior to the date this
Agreement is executed by the State Water Board no later than ninety (90) days after this
Agreement is executed by the State Water Board. Late reimbursement requests may not be
honored.

The Recipient may request reimbursement of eligible construction and equipment costs
consistent with budget amounts approved by the Division in the Final Budget Approval.

Additional Project Funds will be promptly disbursed to the Recipient upon receipt of
reimbursement request Form 260 and Form 261, or any amendment thereto, duly completed and
executed by the Recipient for incurred costs consistent with this Agreement, along with receipt of
progress reports due under Exhibit A.

The Recipient must not request reimbursement for any Project Cost until such cost has been
incurred and is currently due and payable by the Recipient, although the actual payment of such
cost by the Recipient is not required as a condition of reimbursement request. Supporting
documentation (e.g., receipts) must be submitted with each reimbursement request. The amount
requested for administration costs must include a calculation formula (i.e., hours or days worked
times the hourly or daily rate = total amount claimed). Disbursement of Project Funds will be
made only after receipt of a complete, adequately supported, properly documented, and
accurately addressed reimbursement request. Upon request by the Division, supporting
documents for professional and administrative services must include the employees’ names,
classifications, labor rates, hours worked, and descriptions of the tasks performed.
Reimbursement requests submitted without supporting documents may be wholly or partially
withheld at the discretion of the Division.

The Recipient must spend Project Funds within 30 days of receipt. If the Recipient earns interest
earned on Project Funds, it must report that interest immediately to the State Water Board. The
State Water Board may deduct earned interest from future disbursements,

The Recipient shall not request a reimbursement unless that Project Cost is allowable,
reasonable, and allocable.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, no disbursement shall be required at any
time or in any manner which is in violation of or in conflict with federal or state laws, policies, or
regulations.

No work or travel outside the State of California is permitted under this Agreement unless the
Division provides prior written authorization. Failure to comply with this restriction may result in
termination this Agreement, pursuant to Exhibit C. Any reimbursement for necessary travel and
per diem shall be at rates not to exceed those set by the California Department of Human
Resources at http://www.calhr.ca.gov/employees/Pages/travel-reimbursements.aspx as of the
date costs are incurred by the Recipient.

Withholding of Disbursements.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the State Water Board may withhold all or any
portion of the Project Funds upon the occurrence of any of the following events:

Exhibit B



Valiey Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 17 of 51

(a) The Recipient's failure to maintain reasonable progress on the Project as determined by the
Division;

(b) Placement on the ballot or passage of an initiative or referendum to repeal or reduce the
Recipient’s taxes, assessments, fees, or charges levied for operation of the System or
payment of debt service on System Obligations;

(c) Commencement of litigation or a judicial or administrative proceeding related to the Project,
System, or Revenues that the State Water Board determines may impair the timely
satisfaction of Recipient’s abligations under this Agreement;

(d) Any investigation by the State Water Board, District Attorney, California State Auditor, Bureau
of State Audits, the USEPA Office of Inspector General, the Internal Revenue Service,
Securities and Exchange Commission, a grand jury, or any other state or federal agency,
relating to the Recipient’s financial management, accounting procedures, or internal fiscal
controls;

(e) A material adverse change in the condition of the Recipient, the Revenues, or the System,
that the Division reasonably determines would materially impair the Recipient's ability to
satisfy its obligations under this Agreement, or any other event that the Division reasonably
determines would materially impair the Recipient’s ability to satisfy its obligations under this
Agreement;

(f) The Recipient’s material violation of, or threat to materially violate, any term of this
Agreement;

(g9) Suspicion of fraud, forgery, embezzlement, theft, or any other misuse of public funds by the
Recipient or its employees, or by its contractors or agents regarding the Project or the
System;

(h) An event requiring Notice as set forth in Exhibit C;

(i) An Event of Default or an event that the Division determines may become an Event of
Default.

B.1.9 Fraud and Misuse of Public Funds; Enforcement.

All requests for reimbursement submitted must be accurate and signed by the Recipient's Authorized
Representative under penalty of perjury. All costs submitted pursuant to this Agreement must only be for
the work or tasks set forth in this Agreement. The Recipient must not submit any invoice containing costs
that are ineligible or have been reimbursed from other funding sources unless required and specifically
noted as such (i.e., match costs). Any eligible costs for which the Recipient is seeking reimbursement
shall not be reimbursed from any other source. Double or multiple billing for time, services, or any other
eligible cost is improper and will not be compensated. Any suspected occurrences of fraud, forgery,
embezzlement, theft, or any other misuse of public funds may result in suspension of disbursements and,
notwithstanding any other section in this Agreement, the termination of this Agreement requiring the
repayment of all Project Funds disbursed hereunder. Additionally, the Deputy Director of the Division may
request an audit; refer the matter for appropriate administrative action, including but not limited to the
recovery of financial assistance provided and the imposition of civil penalties; and/or refer the matter to
the Attorney General's Office or the appropriate district attorney’s office for criminal prosecution or the
imposition of civil liability. A person who knowingly makes or causes to be made any false statement,
material misrepresentation, or false certification in any submittal may be subject to a civil penalty, criminal
fine, or imprisonment. (Wat. Code, § 13490 et seq.)

Exhibit B



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 18 of 51

B.2 RECIPIENT'S PAYMENT OBLIGATION, PLEDGE, AND RESERVE

B.2.1 Project Costs.

The Recipient must pay any and all costs connected with the Project including, without limitation, any and
all Project Costs and Additional Payments. If the Project Funds are not sufficient to pay the Project Costs
in full, the Recipient must nonetheless complete the Project and pay that portion of the Project Costs in
excess of available Project Funds, and shall not be entitled to any reimbursement therefor from the State
Water Board.

B.2.2 Estimated Principal Payment Due.

The estimated amount of principal that will be due to the State Water Board from the Recipient under this
Agreement is five million five hundred twenty-five thousand dollars and no cents ($5,525,000).

B.2.3 Interest Rate and In-Lieu of Interest Charges.

(a) The Recipient agrees to make all Payments according to the schedule in Exhibit E, and as otherwise
set forth herein, at an interest rate of one and nine tenth percent (1.90%) per annum.

(b) Interest will accrue beginning with each disbursement.

(c) Inlieu of, and not to exceed, interest otherwise due under this Agreement, the Recipient agrees to pay
the following charge(s), as further set forth in Exhibit E:

e an Administrative Service Charge
e a Drinking Water Small Community Emergency Grant Fund Charge

B.2.4 [Reserved.]
B.2.5 Obligation Absolute.

The obligation of the Recipient to make the Payments and other payments required to be made by it
under this Agreement, from the Net Revenues and/or other amounts legally available to the Recipient
therefor, is absolute and unconditional, and until such time as the Payments and Additional Payments
have been paid in full, the Recipient must not discontinue or suspend any Payments or other payments
required to be made by it hereunder when due, whether or not the Project, or any related part thereof is
operating or operable or has been completed, or its use is suspended, interfered with, reduced or
curtailed or terminated in whole or in part, and such Payments and other payments shall not be subject to
reduction whether by offset or otherwise and shall not be conditional upon the performance or
nonperformance by any party of any agreement for any cause whatsoever.

B.2.6 Payment Timing.

(a) The Recipient must pay interest annually, by July 1 of each year, until one year after Completion of
Construction. Beginning no later than one year after Completion of Construction, the Recipient must
make annual Payment of the principal of the Project Funds, together with all interest accruing thereon
by July 1. The Recipient must make Payments fully amortizing the total principal of the Project by the
Final Payment Date. Payments are based on a standard fully amortized assistance amount with
equal annual payments.

(b) The remaining balance is the previous balance, plus the disbursements, plus the accrued interest on
both, plus any Charge In Lieu of Interest, less the Payment. Payment calculations will be made

Exhibit B



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 19 of 51

beginning one (1) year after Completion of Construction. Exhibit E is a payment schedule based on
the provisions of this Exhibit and an estimated disbursement schedule. Actual payments will be based
on actual disbursements,

(c) Upon Completion of Construction and submission of necessary reports by the Recipient, the Division
will prepare an appropriate payment schedule and supply the same to the Recipient. The Division
may amend this schedule as necessary to accurately reflect amounts due under this Agreement. The
Division will prepare any necessary amendments to the payment schedule and send them to the
Recipient. The Recipient must make each Payment on or before the due date therefor. A ten (10) day
grace period will be allowed, after which time a penalty in the amount of costs incurred by the State
Water Board will be assessed for late payment. These costs may include, but are not limited to, lost
interest earnings, staff time, bond debt service default penalties, if any, and other related costs. For
purposes of penalty assessment, payment will be deemed to have been made if payment is
deposited in the U.S. Mail within the grace period with postage prepaid and properly addressed. Any
penalties assessed will not be added to the assistance amount balance, but will be treated as a
separate account and obligation of the Recipient. The interest penalty will be assessed from the
payment due date.

(d) The Recipient is obligated to make all payments required by this Agreement to the State Water Board,
notwithstanding any individual default by its constituents or others in the payment to the Recipient of
fees, charges, taxes, assessments, tolls or other charges ("Charges") levied or imposed by the
Recipient. The Recipient must provide for the punctual payment to the State Water Board of all
amounts which become due under this Agreement and which are received from constituents or others
in the payment to the Recipient. In the event of failure, neglect or refusal of any officer of the
Recipient to levy or cause to be levied any Charge to provide payment by the Recipient under this
Agreement, to enforce or to collect such Charge, or to pay over to the State Water Board any money
collected on account of such Charge necessary to satisfy any amount due under this Agreement, the
State Water Board may take such action in a court of competent jurisdiction as it deems necessary to
compel the performance of all duties relating to the imposition or levying and collection of any of such
Charges and the payment of the money collected therefrom to the State Water Board. Action taken
pursuant hereto shall not deprive the State Water Board of, or limit the application of, any other
remedy provided by law or by this Agreement.

(e) Each Payment must be paid in lawful money of the United States of America by check or other
acceptable form of payment set forth at www.waterboards.ca.qov/make a payment.
The Recipient must pay Payments and Additional Payments from Net Revenues and/or other amounts
legally available to the Recipient therefor.

B.2.7 Pledged Revenues.
B.2.7.1 Establishment of Enterprise Fund and Reserve Fund.

In order to carry out its System Obligations, the Recipient covenants that it shall establish and maintain or
shall have established and maintained the Enterprise Fund. All Revenues received shall be deposited
when and as received in trust in the Enterprise Fund. As required in this Exhibit, the Recipient must
establish and maintain a Reserve Fund.

B.2.7.2 Pledge of Net Revenues, Enterprise Fund, and Reserve Fund.

The Obligation hereunder shall be secured by a lien on and pledge of the Enterprise Fund, Net
Revenues, and any Reserve Fund on parity with the Parity Obligations. The Recipient hereby pledges
and grants such lien on and pledge of the Enterprise Fund, Net Revenues, and any Reserve Fund to
secure the Obligation, including payment of Payments and Additional Payments hereunder. The
Enterprise Fund, Net Revenues in the Enterprise Fund, and any Reserve Fund shall be subject to the lien

Exhibit B



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 20 of 51

of such pledge without any physical delivery thereof or further act, and the lien of such pledge shall be
valid and binding as against all parties having claims of any kind in tort, contract, or otherwise against the
Recipient.

B.2.7.3 Application and Purpose of the Enterprise Fund.

Subject to the provisions of any outstanding System Obligation, money on deposit in the Enterprise Fund
shall be applied and used first, to pay Operations and Maintenance Costs, and thereafter, all amounts
due and payable with respect to the System Obligations in order of priority. After making all payments
hereinabove required to be made in each Fiscal Year, the Recipient may expend in such Fiscal Year any
remaining money in the Enterprise Fund for any lawful purpose of the Recipient.

B.2.8 No Prepayment.

Pursuant to State Water Board’'s Debt Management Policy, adopted on October 3, 2017, the Recipient
may not prepay any portion of the principal and interest due under this Agreement without the written
consent of the Deputy Director of the Division.

B.2.9 Reserve Fund.

Prior to Completion of Construction, the Recipient must establish a restricted Reserve Fund, held in its
Enterprise Fund, equal to one year’'s Debt Service on this Obligation. The Recipient must maintain the
Reserve Fund throughout the term of this Agreement. The Reserve Fund is subject to lien and pledged as
security for this Obligation, and its use is restricted to payment of this Obligation during the term of this
Agreement.

B.3 RATES, FEES AND CHARGES.

(a) The Recipient must, to the extent permitted by law, fix, prescribe and collect rates, fees and charges
for the System during each Fiscal Year which are reasonable, fair, and nondiscriminatory and which
will be sufficient to generate Revenues in the amounts necessary to cover Operations and
Maintenance Costs, and must ensure that Net Revenues are equal to the sum of (i) at least 120% of
the Maximum Annual Debt Service with respect to all outstanding System Obligations senior to and
on parity with the Obligation and (i) at least 100% of the Maximum Annual Debt Service with respect
to all outstanding System Obligations subordinate to the Obligation, so long as System Obligations
other than this Obligation are outstanding. Upon defeasance of all System Obligations other than this
Obligation, this ratio must be at least 120%, except where System Obligations are defeased pursuant
to refunding obligations.

(b) The Recipient may make adjustments from time to time in such fees and charges and may make such
classification thereof as it deems necessary, but shall not reduce the rates, fees and charges then in
effect unless the Net Revenues from such reduced rates, fees, and charges will at all times be
sufficient to meet the requirements of this section,

(c) Upon consideration of a voter initiative to reduce Revenues, the Recipient must make a finding
regarding the effect of such a reduction on the Recipient's ability to satisfy the rate covenant set forth
in this Section. The Recipient must make its findings available to the public. The Recipient's
Authorized Representative must request, if necessary, the authorization of the Recipient’s decision-
maker or decision-making body to file litigation to challenge any such initiative that it finds will render
it unable to satisfy the rate covenant set forth in this Agreement and its obligation to operate and
maintain the Project for its Useful Life. The Recipient must diligently pursue and bear any and all
costs related to such challenge. The Recipient must notify and regularly update the State Water
Board regarding the status of any such challenge.

Exhibit B



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 21 of 51

B.4 ADDITIONAL DEBT.

(a) The Recipient’s future debt that is secured by Revenues pledged herein may not be senior to this
Obligation.

(b) The Recipient may issue additional parity or subordinate debt only if all of the following conditions are
met:

i.  No Event of Default (or no event with respect to which notice has been given and which,
once all notice of grace periods have passed, would constitute an Event of Default) has

occurred and is continuing;

ii. Net Revenues in the most recent Fiscal Year, excluding transfers from a rate stabilization
fund, if any, meet the ratio for rate covenants set forth in this Exhibit with respect to any
outstanding and proposed additional obligations;

ii.  The Recipient is in compliance with any reserve fund requirement of this Obligation.
B.5 NO LIENS.

The Recipient must not make any pledge of or place any lien on the Project, System, or Revenues except
as otherwise provided or permitted by this Agreement.

Exhibit B



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 22 of 51

EXHIBIT C — GENERAL & PROGRAMMATIC TERMS & CONDITIONS

C.1 REPRESENTATIONS & WARRANTIES.

The Recipient represents, warrants, and commits to the following as of the Eligible Work Start Date and
continuing thereafter for the term of this Agreement.

C.1.1  Application and General Recipient Commitments.

The Recipient has not made any untrue statement of a material fact in its application for this financial
assistance, or omitted to state in its application a material fact that makes the statements in its application
not misleading.

The Recipient agrees to comply with all terms, provisions, conditions, and commitments of this
Agreement, including all incorporated documents,

The Recipient agrees to fulfill all assurances, declarations, representations, and commitments in its
application, accompanying documents, and communications filed in support of its request for funding
under this Agreement.

C.1.2 Authorization and Validity.

The execution and delivery of this Agreement, including all incorporated documents, has been duly
authorized by the Recipient. Upon execution by both parties, this Agreement constitutes a valid and
binding obligation of the Recipient, enforceable in accordance with its terms, except as such enforcement
may be limited by law.

C.1.3 No Violations.

The execution, delivery, and performance by Recipient of this Agreement, including all incorporated
documents, do not violate any provision of any law or regulation in effect as of the date of execution of this
Agreement by the Recipient, or result in any breach or default under any contract, obligation, indenture, or
other instrument to which Recipient is a party or by which Recipient is bound as of the date of execution of
this Agreement by the Recipient.

C.1.4 No Litigation.

There are, as of the date of execution of this Agreement by the Recipient, no pending or, to Recipient’s
knowledge, threatened actions, claims, investigations, suits, or proceedings before any governmental
authority, court, or administrative agency which materially affect, or, if resolved unfavorably to the
Recipient, would materially affect, the financial condition or operations of the Recipient, the System, the
Revenues, and/or the Project.

There are no proceedings, actions, or offers by a public entity to acquire by purchase or the power of
eminent domain the System or any of the real or personal property related to or necessary for the Project.

C.1.5 Property Rights and Water Rights.
The Recipient owns or has sufficient property rights in the Project property for the longer of the

Useful Life or the term of this Agreement, either in fee simple or for a term of years that is not
subject to third-party revocation during the Useful Life of the Project.

Exhibit C



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 23 of 51

The Recipient possesses all water rights necessary for this Project.
C.1.6 Solvency and Insurance.

None of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement will be or have been made with an actual intent
to hinder, delay, or defraud any present or future creditors of Recipient. The Recipient is solvent and will
not be rendered insolvent by the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. The Recipient is able to
pay its debts as they become due. The Recipient maintains sufficient insurance coverage considering the
scope of this Agreement, including, for example but not necessarily limited to, general liability, automabile
liability, workers compensation and employer liability, professional liability.

C.1.7 Legal Status and Eligibility.

The Recipient is duly organized and existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of
California. Recipient must at all times maintain its current legal existence and preserve and keep in full
force and effect its legal rights and authority. The Recipient acknowledges that changes to its legal or
financial status may affect its eligibility for funding under this Agreement and commits to maintaining its
eligibility. Within the preceding ten years, the Recipient has not failed to demonstrate compliance with
state or federal audit disallowances.

C.1.8 Financial Statements and Continuing Disclosure.

The financial statements of Recipient previously delivered to the State Water Board as of the date(s) set
forth in such financial statements; (a) are materially complete and correct; (b) present fairly the financial
condition of the Recipient; and (c) have been prepared in accordance with GAAP. Since the date(s) of
such financial statements, there has been no material adverse change in the financial condition of the
Recipient, nor have any assets or properties reflected on such financial statements been sold,
transferred, assigned, mortgaged, pledged or encumbered, except as previously disclosed in writing by
Recipient and approved in writing by the State Water Board.

The Recipient is current in its continuing disclosure obligations associated with its material debt, if any.
C.1.9 System Obligations

The Recipient has no System Obligations other than those defined in this Agreement.

C.1.10 No Other Material Obligations.

The Recipient has no Material Obligations other than System Obligations, except as set forth in this
paragraph:

San Diego Gas and Electric Loan for Cool Valley Pump Station, Agreement No. 5043-12.
+ San Diego Gas and Electric Loan for West Pump Station, Agreement No. 4763-11.
Limited Obligation Improvement Bond, Assessment District No. 2012-1 (July 2018).
C.1.11 Compliance with State Water Board Funding Agreements.

The Recipient represents that it is in compliance with all State Water Board funding agreements to which
it is a party.

C2 DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES
In addition to any other remedy set forth in this Agreement, the following remedies are available under

this Agreement.

Exhibit C



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 24 of 51

C.2.1 Return of Funds; Acceleration; and Additional Payments.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, if the Division determines that an Event of Default
has occurred, the Recipient may be required, upon demand, immediately to do each of the following:

i, return to the State Water Board any grant or principal forgiveness amounts received pursuant
to this Agreement;
ii.  accelerate the payment of any principal owed under this Agreement, all of which shall be
immediately due and payable;
iii. pay interest at the highest legal rate on all of the foregoing; and
iv.  pay any Additional Payments.

C.2.2 [Reserved.]
C.2.3 Administrative remedies.

Whenever the State Water Board determines that the Recipient, the Recipient’s contractor, consultant,
employee, agent, assignee, or grantee has violated any requirement or term of the Agreement, the State
Water Board may impose civil penalties in accordance with Water Code, section 13497. The State Water
Board may impose civil liability administratively against the Recipient or the Recipient’s consultant or
contractor or other agent furnishing any information related to funds disbursed or costs claimed for
reimbursement if the Recipient or the Recipient's consultant or contractor or other agent fails to
personally attest that the information is true, accurate, and complete the best of one’s knowledge. (Wat.
Code, § 13498.) The State Water Board may impose civil liability administratively against any person who
makes a misrepresentation in any submittal to the State Water Board, including, but not limited to, an
application, report, certification, record, invoice, form, or other document that is submitted to the State
Water Board relating to a financial assistance agreement. (Wat. Code, § 13499.)

C.2.4 Judicial remedies.

Whenever the State Water Board determines that an Event of Default shall have occurred, the State
Water Board may enforce its rights under this Agreement by any judicial proceeding, whether at law or in
equity. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the State Water Board may:

i. by suit in equity, require the Recipient to account for amounts relating to this Agreement as if
the Recipient were the trustee of an express trust;

i. by mandamus or other proceeding, compel the performance by the Recipient and any of its
officers, agents, and employees of any duty under the law or of any obligation or covenant
under this Agreement, including but not limited to the imposition and collection of rates for the
services of the System sufficient to meet all requirements of this Agreement; and

iii. take whatever action at law or in equity as may appear necessary or desirable to the State
Water Board to collect the Payments then due or thereafter to become due, or to enforce
performance of any obligation or covenant of the Recipient under this Agreement.

Upon the filing of a suit or other commencement of judicial proceedings to enforce the rights of the State
Water Board under this Agreement, the State Water Board may make application for the appointment of a
receiver or custodian of the Revenues, pending such proceeding, with such power as the court making
such appointment may confer.

Exhibit C



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 25 of 51

C.2,5 Termination.

Upon an Event of Default, the State Water Board may terminate this Agreement. Interest shail accrue on
all amounts due at the highest legal rate of interest from the date that the State Water Board delivers
notice of termination to the Recipient.

C.2.6 Damages for Breach of Tax-Exempt Status.

In the event that any breach of any of the provisions of this Agreement by the Recipient results in the loss
of tax-exempt status for any bonds of the State or any subdivision or agency thereof, or if such breach
results in an obligation on the part of the State or any subdivision or agency thereof to reimburse the
federal government by reason of any arbitrage profits, the Recipient must immediately reimburse the
State or any subdivision or agency thereof in an amount equal to any damages paid by or loss incurred
by the State or any subdivision or agency thereof due to such breach.

C.2.7 Damages for Breach of Federal Conditions.

In the event that any breach of any of the provisions of this Agreement by the Recipient results in the
failure of Project Funds to be used pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement, or if such breach results
in an obligation on the part of the State or any subdivision or agency thereof to reimburse the federal
government, the Recipient must immediately reimburse the State or any subdivision or agency thereof in
an amount equal to any damages paid by or loss incurred by the State or any subdivision or agency
thereof due to such breach.

C.2.8 Remedies and Limitations.

None of the remedies available to the State Water Board shall be exclusive of any other remedy, and
each such remedy shall be cumulative and in addition to every other remedy given hereunder or now or
hereafter existing at law or in equity. The State Water Board may exercise any remedy, now or hereafter
existing, without exhausting and without regard to any other remedy.

Any claim of the Recipient is limited to the rights and remedies provided to the Recipient under this
Agreement and is subject to the claims procedures provided to the Recipient under this Agreement,

C.2.9 Non-Waiver.

Nothing in this Agreement shall affect or impair the Recipient’s Obligation to pay Payments as provided
herein or shall affect or impair the right of the State Water Board to bring suit to enforce such payment.
No delay or omission of the State Water Board in the exercise of any right arising upon an Event of
Default shall impair any such right or be construed to be a waiver of any such Event of Default. The State
Water Board may exercise from time to time and as often as shall be deemed expedient by the State
Water Board, any remedy or right provided by law or pursuant to this Agreement.

C.2.10 Status Quo.
If any action to enforce any right or exercise any remedy shall be brought and either discontinued or

determined adversely to the State Water Board, then the State Water Board shall be restored to its former
position, rights and remedies as if no such action had been brought.

Exhibit C



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 26 of 51

C.3 STANDARD CONDITIONS
C.3.1 Access, Inspection, and Public Records.

The Recipient must ensure that the State Water Board, the Governor of the State, the USEPA, the
USEPA’s Office of Inspector General, any member of Congress, or any authorized representative of the
foregoing, will have safe and suitable access to the Project site at all reasonable times during Project
construction and thereafter for the term of the Agreement. The Recipient acknowledges that, except for a
subset of information regarding archaeological records, the Project records and locations are public
records, including but not limited to all of the submissions accompanying the application, all of the
documents incorporated into this Agreement by reference, and all reports, reimbursement requests, and
supporting documentation submitted hereunder.

C.3.2 Accounting and Auditing Standards; Financial Management Systems; Records Retention.

(a) The Recipient must maintain project accounts according to GAAP as issued by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) or its successor. The Recipient must maintain GAAP-compliant
project accounts, including GAAP requirements relating to the reporting of infrastructure assets.

(b) The Recipient must comply with federal standards for financial management systems. The Recipient
agrees that, at a minimum, its fiscal control and accounting procedures will be sufficient to permit
preparation of reports required by the federal government and tracking of Project funds to a level of
expenditure adequate to establish that such funds have not been used in violation of federal or state
law or the terms of this Agreement. To the extent applicable, the Recipient must comply with the
provisions and requirements of the federal Single Audit Act (SAA) of 1984, 2 CFR part 200, subpart F,
and 2 CFR section 200.302, and updates or revisions thereto, including but not limited to:

» Maintain an annual (Fiscal Year) accounting system and identify all expenditures of federal
financial assistance;

e« Conduct a SAA audit using an independent auditor in those Fiscal Years when expenditures of
total federal financial assistance equal or exceed the applicable threshold in 2 CFR section
200.501, and submit the SAA audit to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse within the earlier of thirty
(30) calendar days after receipt of the auditor’s report(s) or nine (9) months of the end of the audit

period,;

» Notify the Division when a SAA audit has been conducted and submitted to the Federal Audit
Clearinghouse;

¢ Notify and provide the Division with a copy of the SAA audit within thirty (30) days of completion
of the audit;

» Inform the Division of findings and recommendations pertaining to federal financial assistance
provided through the State Water Board contained in SAA audits conducted by the Recipient;

» Initiate corrective actions for audit reports with findings and recommendations that impact federal
financial assistance provided through the State Water Board and notify the Division when
corrective actions are complete.

(c) Without limitation of the requirement to maintain Project accounts in accordance with GAAP, the
Recipient must:

i. Establish an official file for the Project which adequately documents all significant actions relative
to the Project;

ii. Establish separate accounts which will adequately and accurately depict all amounts received
and expended on the Project, including all assistance funds received under this Agreement;

Exhibit C



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 27 of 51

iii. Establish separate accounts which will adequately depict all income received which is attributable
to the Project, specifically including any income attributable to assistance funds disbursed under
this Agreement;

iv. Establish an accounting system which will accurately depict final total costs of the Project,
including both direct and Indirect Costs;

V. Establish such accounts and maintain such records as may be necessary for the State to fulfill
federal reporting requirements, including any and all reporting requirements under federal tax
statutes or regulations; and

Vi. If Force Account is used by the Recipient for any phase of the Project, other than for planning,
design, and construction engineering and administration provided for by allowance, accounts will
be established which reasonably document all employee hours charged to the Project and the
associated tasks performed by each employee.

(d) The Recipient must maintain separate books, records and other material relative to the Project.
The Recipient must also retain such books, records, and other material for itself and for each
contractor or subcontractor who performed or performs work on this project for a minimum of
thirty-six (36) years after Completion of Construction. The Recipient must require that such books,
records, and other material are subject at all reasonable times (at a minimum during normal
business hours) to inspection, copying, and audit by the State Water Board, the California State
Auditor, the Bureau of State Audits, the USEPA, the USEPA’s Office of Inspector General, the
Internal Revenue Service, the Governor, or any authorized representatives of the aforementioned.
The Recipient must allow and must require its contractors to allow interviews during normal
business hours of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records.
The Recipient agrees to include a similar duty regarding audit, interviews, and records retention in
any contract or subcontract related to the performance of this Agreement. The provisions of this
section survive the term of this Agreement.

C.3.3 Amendment.

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and
signed by both the Recipient and the Deputy Director or designee.

Requests for amendments must be in writing and directed to the contact listed in Section 4 and to the
Division’s Chief of Loans and Grants Administration Section.

C.3.4 Assignability.

This Agreement is not assignable by the Recipient, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the
State Water Board in the form of a formal written amendment to this Agreement.

C.3.5 Audit.

(a) The Division may call for an audit of financial information relative to the Project if the Division
determines that an audit is desirable to assure program integrity or if an audit becomes necessary
because of state or federal requirements. If an audit is called for, the audit must be performed by
a certified public accountant independent of the Recipient and at the cost of the Recipient. The
audit must be in the form required by the Division.

(b) Audit disallowances must be returned to the State Water Board.

C.3.6 Bonding.

Where contractors are used, the Recipient must not authorize construction to begin until each contractor
has furnished a performance bond in favor of the Recipient in the following amounts: faithful performance

Exhibit C



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 28 of 51

(100%) of contract value; labor and materials (100%) of contract value. This requirement shall not apply
to any contract for less than $25,000.00.

C.3.7 Competitive Bidding

Recipient must adhere to any applicable state law or local ordinance for competitive bidding and
applicable labor laws,

C.3.8 Compliance with Applicable Laws, Rules, and Requirements.

The Recipient must, at all times, comply with and require its contractors and subcontractors to comply
with all applicable federal and state laws, rules, guidelines, regulations, and requirements. Without
limitation of the foregoing, to the extent applicable, the Recipient must:

(a) Comply with the provisions of the adopted environmental mitigation plan, if any, for the term of
this Agreement;

(b) Comply with the Policy; and

(c) Comply with and require compliance with the state and federal requirements set forth elsewhere
in this Agreement.

C.3.9 Computer Software.

The Recipient certifies that it has appropriate systems and controls in place to ensure that state funds will
not be used in the performance of this Agreement for the acquisition, operation or maintenance of
computer software in violation of copyright laws.

C.3.10 Conflict of Interest.

The Recipient certifies that its owners, officers, directors, agents, representatives, and employees are in
compliance with applicable state and federal conflict of interest laws.

C.3.11 Continuous Use of Project; No Lease, Sale, Transfer of Ownership, or Disposal of Project.

The Recipient agrees that, except as provided in this Agreement, it will not abandon, substantially
discontinue use of, lease, sell, transfer ownership of, or dispose of all or a significant part or portion of the
Project during the Useful Life of the Project without prior written approval of the Division. Such approval
may be conditioned as determined to be appropriate by the Division, including a condition requiring
repayment of all disbursed Project Funds or all or any portion of all remaining funds covered by this
Agreement together with accrued interest and any penalty assessments that may be due.

C.3.12 Data Management.

The Recipient will undertake appropriate data management activities so that Project data can be
incorporated into statewide data systems.

C.3.13 Disputes.

(a) The Recipient may appeal a staff decision within 30 days to the Deputy Director of the Division or
designee, for a final Division decision. The Recipient may appeal a final Division decision to the
State Water Board within 30 days. The Office of the Chief Counse! of the State Water Board will
prepare a summary of the dispute and make recommendations relative to its final resolution,
which will be provided to the State Water Board's Executive Director and each State Water Board

Exhibit C



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 29 of 51

Member. Upon the motion of any State Water Board Member, the State Water Board will review
and resolve the dispute in the manner determined by the State Water Board. Should the State
Water Board determine not to review the final Division decision, this decision will represent a final
agency action on the dispute.

(b) This clause does not preclude consideration of legal questions, provided that nothing herein shall
be construed to make final the decision of the State Water Board, or any official or representative
thereof, on any question of law.

(c) Recipient must continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute.

(d) This section relating to disputes does not establish an exclusive procedure for resolving claims
within the meaning of Government Code sections 930 and 930.4.

C.3.14 [Reserved.]
C.3.15 Environmental Clearance.

(a) No work that is subject to CEQA or NEPA may proceed under this Agreement unless the State
Water Board has provided environmental clearance. The State Water Board may require changes
in the scope of work or additional mitigation as a condition to providing construction or
implementation funding under this Agreement. Recipient shall not perform any work subject to
CEQA and/or NEPA before the State Water Board completes its environmental review and
specifies any changes in scope or additional mitigation that may be required. Proceeding with
work subject to CEQA and/or NEPA without approval by the State Water Board shall constitute a
breach of a material provision of this Agreement.

(b) If this Project includes modification of a river or stream channel, the Recipient must fully mitigate
environmental impacts resulting from the modification. The Recipient must provide documentation
that the environmental impacts resulting from such modification will be fully mitigated considering
all of the impacts of the modification and any mitigation, environmental enhancement, and
environmental benefit resulting from the Project, and whether, on balance, any environmental
enhancement or benefit equals or exceeds any negative environmental impacts of the Project.

C.3.16 Governing Law.

This Agreement is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of
California.

C.3.17 Income Restrictions.

The Recipient agrees that any refunds, rebates, credits, or other amounts (including any interest thereon)
accruing to or received by the Recipient under this Agreement must be paid by the Recipient to the State
Water Board, to the extent that they are properly allocable to costs for which the Recipient has been
reimbursed by the State Water Board under this Agreement.

C.3.18 Indemnification and State Reviews.

The parties agree that review or approval of Project plans and specifications by the State Water Board is
for administrative purposes only, including conformity with application and eligibility criteria, and expressly
not for the purposes of design defect review or construction feasibility, and does not relieve the Recipient
of its responsibility to properly plan, design, construct, operate, and maintain the Project. To the extent
permitted by law, the Recipient agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the State Water Board,
the Bank, and any trustee, and their officers, employees, and agents for the Bonds, if any (collectively,

Exhibit C



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 30 of 51

"Indemnified Persons"), against any loss or liability arising out of any claim or action brought against any
Indemnified Persons from and against any and all losses, claims, damages, liabilities, or expenses, of
every conceivable kind, character, and nature whatsoever arising out of, resulting from, or in any way
connected with (1) the System or the Project or the conditions, occupancy, use, possession, conduct, or
management of, work done in or about, or the planning, design, acquisition, installation, or construction,
of the System or the Project or any part thereof; (2) the carrying out of any of the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement or any related document; (3) any violation of any applicable law, rule or
regulation, any environmental law (including, without limitation, the Federal Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act,
the California Hazardous Substance Account Act, the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, the Clean Air
Act, the Toxic Substances Control Act, the Occupational Safety and Health Act, the Safe Drinking Water
Act, the California Hazardous Waste Control Law, and California Water Code Section 13304, and any
successors to said laws), rule or regulation or the release of any toxic substance on or near the System or
the Project; or (4) any untrue statement or alleged untrue statement of any material fact or omission or
alleged omission to state a material fact necessary to make the statements required to be stated therein,
in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading with respect to any information
provided by the Recipient for use in any disclosure document utilized in connection with any of the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement, except those arising from the gross negligence or willful
misconduct of the Indemnified Persons. The Recipient must also provide for the defense and
indemnification of the Indemnified Persons in any contractual provision extending indemnity to the
Recipient in any contract let for the performance of any work under this Agreement, and must cause the
Indemnified Persons to be included within the scope of any provision for the indemnification and defense
of the Recipient in any contract or subcontract. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Recipient
agrees to pay and discharge any judgment or award entered or made against Indemnified Persons with
respect to any such claim or action, and any settlement, compromise or other voluntary resolution. The
provisions of this section survive the term of this Agreement.

C.3.19 Independent Actor.

The Recipient, and its agents and employees, if any, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an
independent capacity and not as officers, employees, or agents of the State Water Board.

C.3.20 Integration.

This Agreement constitutes the complete and final agreement between the parties. No oral or written
understanding or agreement not incorporated in this Agreement shall be binding on either party.

C.3.21 Leveraging Covenants.

(a) Notwithstanding any other provision hereof, the Recipient covenants and agrees that it will
comply with the Tax Covenants set forth in Exhibit F of this Agreement.

(a) The Recipient covenants to furnish such financial, operating and other data pertaining to the
Recipient as may be requested by the State Water Board to: (i) enable the State Water Board to
cause the issuance of Bonds and provide for security therefor; or (ii) enable any underwriter of
Bonds issued for the benefit of the State Water Board to comply with Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5).

(b} The Recipient further covenants to provide the State Water Board with copies of all continuing
disclosure documents or reports that are disclosed pursuant to (i) the Recipient’s continuing
disclosure undertaking or undertakings made in connection with any outstanding System
Obligation, (i) the terms of any outstanding System Obligation, or (iii) a voluntary disclosure of
information related to an outstanding System Obligation. The Recipient must disclose such
documents or reports to the State Water Board at the same time such documents or reports are
submitted to any dissemination agent, trustee, nationally recognized municipal securities

Exhibit C



C.3.22

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)
(e)

(®

(@)

(h)

(i)

Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 31 of 51

information repository, the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board’s Electronic Municipal Market
Access (EMMA) website or other person or entity.

No Discrimination.

The Recipient must comply with Government Code section 11135 and the implementing
regulations (Cal. Code Regs, tit. 2, § 14000 et seq.), including, but not limited to, ensuring that no
person is unlawfully denied full and equal access to the benefits of, or unlawfully subjected to
discrimination in the operation of, the Project or System on the basis of sex, race, color, religion,
ancestry, national origin, ethnic group identification, age, mental disability, physical disability,
medical condition, genetic information, marital status, or sexual orientation as such terms are
defined under California law, for as long as the Recipient retains ownership or possession of the
Project.

If Project Funds are used to acquire or improve real property, the Recipient must include a
covenant of nondiscrimination running with the land in the instrument effecting or recording the
transfer of such real property.

The Recipient must comply with the federal American with Disabilities Act of 1990 and
implementing regulations as required by Government Code section 11135(b).

The Recipient’s obligations under this section shall survive the term of this Agreement.

During the performance of this Agreement, Recipient and its contractors and subcontractors must
not unlawfully discriminate, harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for
employment because of sex, race, color, ancestry, religious creed, national origin, sexual
orientation, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition
(cancer), age (over 40), marital status, denial of family care leave, or genetic information, gender,
gender identity, gender expression, or military and veteran status.

The Recipient, its contractors, and subcontractors must ensure that the evaluation and treatment
of their employees and applicants for employment are free from such discrimination and
harassment.

The Recipient, its contractors, and subcontractors must comply with the provisions of the Fair
Employment and Housing Act and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder. (Gov.
Code, §12990, subds. (a)-(f) et seq.; Cal. Code Regs., tit. 2, § 7285 et seq.) Such regulations are
incorporated into this Agreement by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full,

The Recipient, its contractors, and subcontractors must comply with all applicable federal civil
rights regulations, including statutory and national policy requirements. (2 CFR § 200.300). This
includes, to the greatest extent practicable and to the extent permitted by law, the requirement to
respect and protect the freedom of persons and organizations to engage in political and religious
speech. (Executive Order 13798).

The Recipient, its contractors, and subcontractors must give written notice of their obligations
under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other
agreement.

The Recipient must include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all
subcontracts to perform work under this Agreement.

Exhibit C



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 32 of 51

C.3.23 No Third Party Rights.

The parties to this Agreement do not create rights in, or grant remedies to, any third party as a beneficiary
of this Agreement, or of any duty, covenant, obligation, or undertaking established herein,

C.3.24 No Obligation of the State.

Any obligation of the State Water Board herein contained shall not be an obligation, debt, or liability of the
State and any such obligation shall be payable solely out of the moneys encumbered pursuant to this
Agreement.

C.3.25 Notice,
Upon the occurrence of any of the following events, the Recipient must provide notice as set forth below.
(a) Within 24 hours of the following, the Recipient must notify the Division by phone at (916)

327-9978 and by email to johnpaul.blanco@waterboards.ca.qov and
lisa.hong@waterboards.ca.gov and DrinkingWaterSRF @waterboards.ca.qgov of:

i. The seizure of, or levy on, any Revenues securing this Agreement;

ii. Any discovery of any potential tribal cultural resource, archaeological or historical
resource, or human remains in the Project area (also notify the Division’s Senior
Cultural Resources Officer, (CulturalResources@waterboards.ca.gov) or (916)
323-0626). Should a potential tribal cultural resource or archaeological or
historical resource be discovered during construction or Project implementation,
the Recipient must ensure that all work in the area of the find will cease until a
qualified archaeologist has evaluated the situation and made recommendations
regarding preservation of the resource, and the Division has determined what
actions should be taken to protect and preserve the resource. The Recipient
must implement appropriate actions as directed by the Division. If there are any
applicable provisions of a mitigation, monitoring and reporting program adopted
for the Project, the Recipient shall comply with such provisions. In the event of
the discovery of human remains during construction of the Project, the Recipient
shall cease construction and take other action required by any applicable laws,
which may include but are not limited to Health and Safety Code, section 7050.5
and Public Resources Code, section 5097.98.

(b) Within five (5) business days, the Recipient must notify the Division by phone at (916)
327-9978; by email to Lance.Reese@waterboards.ca.qov,
iohnpaul.blanco@waterboards.ca.gov and lisa.hong@waterboards.ca.gov and
DrinkingWaterSRF@waterboards.ca.qov; and by mail to the contact address set forth in
Section 4 of this Agreement of the occurrence of any of the following events:

i. Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the Recipient, or actions
taken in anticipation of any of the foregoing;
ii. Change of ownership of the Project or the System or change of management or
service contracts, if any, for operation of the System;
iii. Loss, theft, damage, or impairment to Project, the Revenues or the System;
iv. Failure to meet any debt service coverage test in Exhibit B of this Agreement;
v. Draws on the Reserve Fund;
vi. Listed Events and Events of Default, except as otherwise set forth in this section;
vii. Failure to observe or perform any covenant or comply with any condition in this
Agreement;

Exhibit C



viii.

Xi.

Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 33 of 51

An offer from a public entity to purchase the Project or the System or any portion
thereof, or any of the real or personal property related to or necessary for the
Project;

A proceeding or action by a public entity to acquire the Project or the System by
power of eminent domain;

Incurrence of a System Obligation or other Material Obligation by the Recipient;
or

A default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other
similar event under the terms of a System Obligation or other Material Obligation
of the Recipient, any of which reflect financial difficulties.

(c) Within ten (10) business days, the Recipient must notify the Division by phone at (916)
327-9978, by email to johnpaul.blanco@waterboards.ca.gov and
lisa.hong@waterboards.ca.gov and DrinkingWaterSRF @waterboards.ca.gov, and by

mail to the contact address set forth in Section 4 of this Agreement of the following

events:

iii.
iv.

vi.

vi.

viii.

Material defaults on Material Obligations, other than this Obligation;
Unscheduled draws on material debt service reserves or credit enhancements,
reflecting financial difficulties;

Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, if any or their failure to perform;

Any litigation pending or threatened with respect to the Project or the Recipient's
technical, managerial or financial capacity to operate the System or the
Recipient’s continued existence, or any judgment or court order relating to such
litigation that has a significant effect on the Project or the System;

Circulation of a petition to repeal, reduce, or otherwise challenge the Recipient's
rates for services of the System;

Consideration of dissolution, or disincorporation, or any other event that could
materially impair the Revenues;

Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service or proposed
or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-
TEB) or other material notices of determinations with reéspect to the tax status of
any tax-exempt bonds;

Rating changes on outstanding System Obligations, if any;

Enforcement actions by or brought on behalf of the State Water Board or
Regional Water Board; or

Any investigation by the District Attorney, California State Auditor, Bureau of
State Audits, USEPA's Office of Inspector General, the Internal Revenue
Service, Securities and Exchange Commission, a grand jury, or any other state
or federal agency, relating to the Recipient's financial management, accounting
procedures, or internal fiscal controls;

(d) The Recipient must notify the Division promptly by phone at (916) 327-9978, by email to
jochnpaul.blanco@waterboards.ca.qov and lisa.hona@waterboards.ca.gov and

DrinkingWaterSRF @waterboards.ca.gov, and by mail to the contact address set forth in

Section 4 of this Agreement of any of the following events:

The discovery of a false statement of fact or representation made in this
Agreement or in the application to the Division for this financial assistance, or in
any certification, report, or request for reimbursement made pursuant to this
Agreement, by the Recipient, its employees, agents, or contractors;

Any substantial change in scope of the Project. The Recipient must undertake no
substantial change in the scope of the Project until prompt written notice of the

Exhibit C



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 34 of 51

proposed change has been provided to the Division and the Division has given
written approval for the change;

iii. Cessation of all major construction work on the Project where such cessation of
work is expected to or does extend for a period of thirty (30) days or more;

iv. Any circumstance, combination of circumstances, or condition, which is expected
to or does delay Completion of Construction for a period of ninety (90) days or
more;

v. Discovery of any unexpected endangered or threatened species, as defined in
the federal Endangered Species Act. Should a federally protected species be
unexpectedly encountered during construction of the Project, the Recipient
agrees to promptly notify the Division. This notification is in addition to the
Recipient’s obligations under the federal Endangered Species Act;

vi. Any Project monitoring, demonstration, or other implementation activities
required in Exhibit A or Exhibit D of this Agreement, if any;

vii. Any public or media event publicizing the accomplishments and/or results of this
Agreement and provide the opportunity for attendance and participation by state
and federal representatives with at least ten (10) working days’ notice to the
Division;

viii. Any allegation of research misconduct involving research activities that are
supported in whole or in part with USEPA funds under this Project, as required
by Exhibit C.4.3(xxvii);

ix. Any events requiring notice to the Division pursuant to the provisions of this
Agreement;

x. Completion of Construction of the Project, and actual Project Completion;

xi. The award of the prime construction contract for the Project;

xii. Initiation of construction of the Project.

C.3.26 Operation and Maintenance; Insurance.

The Recipient agrees to sufficiently and properly staff, operate and maintain all portions of the System
during the Useful Life of the Project in accordance with all applicable state and federal laws, rules, and
regulations.

The Recipient will procure and maintain or cause to be maintained insurance on the System with
responsible insurers, or as part of a reasonable system of self-insurance, in such amounts and against
such risks (including damage to or destruction of the System) as are usually covered in connection with
systems similar to the System. Such insurance may be maintained by a self-insurance plan so long as
such plan provides for (i) the establishment by the Recipient of a separate segregated self-insurance fund
in an amount determined (initially and on at least an annual basis) by an independent insurance
consultant experienced in the field of risk management employing accepted actuarial techniques and

(ii) the establishment and maintenance of a claims processing and risk management program.

In the event of any damage to or destruction of the System caused by the perils covered by such
insurance, the net proceeds thereof shall be applied to the reconstruction, repair or replacement of the
damaged or destroyed portion of the System. The Recipient must begin such reconstruction, repair or
replacement as expeditiously as possible, and must pay out of such net proceeds all costs and expenses
in connection with such reconstruction, repair or replacement so that the same must be completed and
the System must be free and clear of all claims and liens. If such net proceeds are insufficient to
reconstruct, repair, or restore the System to the extent necessary to enable the Recipient to pay all
remaining unpaid principal portions of the Payments, if any, in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement, the Recipient must provide additional funds to restore or replace the damaged portions of the
System.

Exhibit C



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 35 of 51

Recipient agrees that for any policy of insurance concerning or covering the construction of the Project, it
will cause, and will require its contractors and subcontractors to cause, a certificate of insurance to be
issued showing the State Water Board, its officers, agents, employees, and servants as additional
insured; and must provide the Division with a copy of all such certificates prior to the commencement of
construction of the Project.

C.3.27 Permits, Subcontracting, and Remedies.

Recipient must procure all permits, licenses and other authorizations necessary to accomplish the work
contemplated in this Agreement, pay all charges and fees, and give all notices necessary and incidental
to the due and lawful prosecution of the work. Signed copies of any such permits or licenses must be
submitted to the Division before any construction begins.

The Recipient must not contract or allow subcontracting with excluded parties. The Recipient must not
contract with any party who is debarred or suspended or otherwise excluded from or ineligible for
participation in any work overseen, directed, funded, or administered by the State Water Board program
for which this funding is authorized. For any work related to this Agreement, the Recipient must not
contract with any individual or organization on the State Water Board's List of Disqualified Businesses
and Persons that is identified as debarred or suspended or otherwise excluded from or ineligible for
participation in any work overseen, directed, funded, or administered by the State Water Board program
for which funding under this Agreement is authorized. The State Water Board's List of Disqualified
Businesses and Persons is located at

http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water issues/programs/enforcement/fwa/dbp.shtml.

C.3.28 Professionals.

The Recipient agrees that only licensed professionals will be used to perform services under this
Agreement where such services are called for. All technical reports required pursuant to this Agreement
that involve planning, investigation, evaluation, design, or other work requiring interpretation and proper
application of engineering, architectural, or geologic sciences, shall be prepared by or under the direction
of persons registered to practice in California pursuant to Business and Professions Code, sections
5536.1, 6735, 7835, and 7835.1. To demonstrate compliance with California Code of Regulations, title 16,
sections 415 and 3065, all technical reports must contain a statement of the qualifications of the
responsible registered professional(s). As required by these laws, completed technical reports must bear
the signature(s) and seal(s) of the registered professional(s) in a manner such that all work can be clearly
attributed to the professional responsible for the work.

C.3.29 Prevailing Wages.

The Recipient agrees to be bound by all applicable provisions of State Labor Code regarding prevailing
wages. The Recipient must monitor all agreements subject to reimbursement from this Agreement to
ensure that the prevailing wage provisions of the State Labor Code are being met.

In addition, the Recipient agrees to comply with the Davis-Bacon provisions incorporated by reference in
Section 3 of this Agreement.

C.3.30 Public Funding.

This Project is publicly funded. Any service provider or contractor with which the Recipient contracts must
not have any role or relationship with the Recipient, that, in effect, substantially limits the Recipient's
ability to exercise its rights, including cancellation rights, under the contract, based on all the facts and
circumstances.

C.3.31 Recipient’'s Responsibility for Work.

Exhibit C



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 36 of 51

The Recipient shall be responsible for all work and for persons or entities engaged in work performed
pursuant to this Agreement, including, but not limited to, contractors, subcontractors, suppliers, and
providers of services. The Recipient shall be responsible for responding to any and all disputes arising
out of its contracts for work on the Project. The State Water Board will not mediate disputes between the
Recipient and any other entity concerning responsibility for performance of work.

C.3.32 Related Litigation.

Under no circumstances may the Recipient use funds from any reimbursement under this Agreement to
pay costs associated with any litigation the Recipient pursues against the State Water Board or any
Regional Water Quality Control Board. Regardless of the outcome of any such litigation, and
notwithstanding any conflicting language in this Agreement, the Recipient agrees to repay all of the
disbursed funds plus interest in the event that Recipient does not complete the project.

C.3.33 Rights in Data.

The Recipient agrees that all data, plans, drawings, specifications, reports, computer programs, operating
manuals, notes, and other written or graphic work produced in the performance of this Agreement are
subject to the rights of the State as set forth in this section. The State shall have the right to reproduce,
publish, and use all such work, or any part thereof, in any manner and for any purposes whatsoever and
to authorize others to do so. If any such work is copyrightable, the Recipient may copyright the same,
except that, as to any work which is copyrighted by the Recipient, the State reserves a royalty-free,
nonexclusive, and irrevocable license to reproduce, publish, and use such work, or any part thereof, and
to authorize others to do so, and to receive electronic copies from the Recipient upon request.

C.3.34 State Water Board Action; Costs and Attorney Fees.

Any remedy provided in this Agreement is in addition to and not in derogation of any other legal or
equitable remedy available to the State Water Board as a result of breach of this Agreement by the
Recipient, whether such breach occurs before or after completion of the Project, and exercise of any
remedy provided by this Agreement by the State Water Board shall not preclude the State Water Board
from pursuing any legal remedy or right which would otherwise be available. In the event of litigation
between the parties hereto arising from this Agreement, it is agreed that each party shall bear its own
costs and attorney fees.

C.3.35 Timeliness.

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.

C.3.36 Unenforceable Provision.

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the
parties agree that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected
thereby.

C.3.37 Venue,

Any action arising out of this Agreement shall be filed and maintained in the Superior Court in and for the
County of Sacramento, California.

C.3.38 Waiver and Rights of the State Water Board.

Any waiver of rights by the State Water Board with respect to a default or other matter arising under this
Agreement at any time shall not be considered a waiver of rights with respect to any other default or

Exhibit C



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 37 of 51

matter. Any rights and remedies of the State Water Board provided for in this Agreement are in addition to
any other rights and remedies provided by law.

C.4 MISCELLANEOUS STATE AND FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS
C.4.1 [Reserved.]
C.4.2 State Cross-Cutters.

Recipient represents that, as applicable, it complies and covenants to maintain compliance with the
following with respect to all Project Costs for the term of this Agreement:

i.  The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), as set forth in Public Resources Code 21000
et seq. and in the CEQA Guidelines at Title 14, Division 6, Chapter 3, Section 15000 et seq.

i.  Water Conservation requirements, including regulations in Division 3 of Title 23 of the California
Code of Regulations.

ii. Monthly Water Diversion Reporting requirements, including requirements set forth in Water Code
section 5103.

iv. Public Works Contractor Registration with Department of Industrial Relations requirements,
including requirements set forth in Sections 1725.5 and 1771.1 of the Labor Code.

v.  Volumetric Pricing & Water Meters requirements, including the requirements of Water Code
sections 526 and 527.

vi. Urban Water Management Plan requirements, including the Urban Water Management Planning
Act (Water Code, § 10610 et seq.).

vii. Urban Water Demand Management requirements, including the requirements of Section
10608.56 of the Water Code.

viii, Delta Plan Consistency Findings requirements, including the requirements of Water Code section
85225 and California Code of Regulations, title 23, section 5002.

ix.  Agricultural Water Management Plan Consistency requirements, including the requirements of
Water Code section 10852.

X. Charter City Project Labor Requirements, including the requirements of Labor Code section 1782
and Public Contract Code section 2503,

xi.  The Recipient agrees that it will, at all times, comply with and require its contractors and
subcontractors to comply with directives or orders issued pursuant to Division 7 of the Water
Code.

xii.  Regulations in Division 4 of Title 22 of the California Code of Regulations, including but not
limited to California Waterworks Standards in Chapter 16, and Lead and Copper regulations in
Chapter 17.5.

C.4.3 Federal Requirements and Cross-Cutters for SRF Funding.

Exhibit C



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 38 of 51

The Recipient acknowledges, warrants compliance with, and covenants to continuing compliance with the
following federal terms and conditions with respect to all Project Costs for the term of this Agreement and
for the Useful Life of the Project:

vi.

Unless the Recipient has obtained a waiver from USEPA on file with the State Water Board or
unless this Project is not a project for the construction, alteration, maintenance or repair of a
public water system or treatment work, the Recipient shall not purchase “iron and steel products”
produced outside of the United States on this Project. Unless the Recipient has obtained a waiver
from USEPA on file with the State Water Board or unless this Project is not a project for the
construction, alteration, maintenance or repair of a public water system or treatment work, the
Recipient hereby certifies that all “iron and steel products” used in the Project were or will be
produced in the United States. For purposes of this section, the term "iron and steel products"
means the following products made primarily of iron or steel: lined or unlined pipes and fittings,
manhole covers and other municipal castings, hydrants, tanks, flanges, pipe clamps and
restraints, valves, structural steel, reinforced precast concrete, and construction materials,
“Steel” means an alloy that includes at least 50 percent iron, between .02 and 2 percent carbon,
and may include other elements.

The Recipient acknowledges that funds received under this Agreement are subject to the Build
America Buy America (BABA) requirements of Public Law 117-58 (the Infrastructure Investment
and Jobs Act, also known as the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL), signed into law on
November 15, 2021), which are in addition to “iron and steel products” requirements described in
section C.4.3 (i) above. Specifically, unless (1) the Recipient has requested and obtained a
waiver from USEPA on file with the State Water Board pertaining to the Project or the Project is
otherwise covered by a general applicability waiver, as confirmed in writing by the State Water
Board; or (2) the State Water Board and, to the extent the Project is co-funded by any other
agency using federal funds subject to BABA requirements, each such agency, has advised the
Recipient in writing that the BABA requirements are not applicable to the Project, the Recipient
shall ensure and certifies that, as these terms are defined within and made applicable by Public
Law 117-58:

(a) all iron and steel used in the Project are produced in the United States;
(b) the manufactured products used in the Project are produced in the United States; and
(c) the construction materials used in the Project are produced in the United States.

The Recipient must comply and require its contractors and subcontractors to comply with all
applicable BABA requirements and reporting and must inform the State Water Board immediately
of any information regarding a violation of the foregoing.

The Recipient must include in full the Wage Rate Requirements (Davis-Bacon) language
incorporated by reference in Section 3 of this Agreement in all construction contracts and
subcontracts.

The Recipient must comply with the signage requirements set forth in Exhibit A.

The Recipient shall notify the State Water Board and the USEPA contact of public or media
events publicizing the accomplishment of significant events related to this Project and provide the
opportunity for attendance and participation by federal representatives with at least ten (10)
working days’ notice.

The Recipient shall comply with applicable USEPA general terms and conditions found at:
hitps://iwww.epa.gov/grants/epa-general-terms-and-conditions-effective-october-1-2023-or-later.

Exhibit C



vii.

viii.

Xi.

Xii.

Xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 39 of 51

No Recipient may receive funding under this Agreement unless it has provided its Unique Entity
Identifier, assigned by the System for Award Management, to the State Water Board.

The Recipient represents and warrants that it and its principals are not excluded or disqualified
from participating in this transaction as such terms are defined in Parts 180 and 1532 of Title 2 of
the Code of Federal Regulations (2 CFR). If the Recipient is excluded after execution of this
Agreement, the Recipient shall notify the Division within ten (10) days and shall inform the
Division of the Recipient’s exclusion in any request for amendment of this Agreement. The
Recipient shall comply with Subpart C of Part 180 of 2 CFR, as supplemented by Subpart C of
Part 1532 of 2 CFR. Such compliance is a condition precedent to the State Water Board's
performance of its obligations under this Agreement. When entering into a covered transaction
as defined in Parts 180 and 1532 of 2 CFR, the Recipient shall require the other party to the
covered transaction to comply with Subpart C of Part 180 of 2 CFR, as supplemented by Subpart
C of Part 1532 of 2 CFR.

To the extent applicable, the Recipient shall disclose to the State Water Board any potential
conflict of interest consistent with USEPA’s Final Financial Assistance Conflict of Interest Policy
at hitps://www.epa.gov/grants/epas-final-financial-assistance-conflict-interest-policy. A conflict of
interest may result in disallowance of costs.

USEPA and the State Water Board have the right to reproduce, publish, use and authorize others
to reproduce, publish and use copyrighted works or other data developed under this assistance
agreement.

Where an invention is made with Project Funds, USEPA and the State Water Board retain the
right to a worldwide, nonexclusive, nontransferable, irrevocable, paid-up license to practice the
invention owned by the Recipient. The Recipient must utilize the Interagency Edison extramural
invention reporting system at http://iEdison.gov and shall notify the Division when an invention
report, patent report, or utilization report is filed.

The Recipient agrees that any reports, documents, publications or other materials developed for
public distribution supported by this Agreement shall contain the Disclosure statement set forth in
Exhibit A.

The Recipient acknowledges that it is encouraged to follow guidelines established under Section
508 of the Rehabilitation Act, codified at 36 CFR Part 1194, with respect to enabling individuals
with disabilities to participate in its programs supported by this Project.

The Recipient, its employees, contractors and subcontractors and their employees warrants that
it will not engage in severe forms of trafficking in persons, procure a commercial sex act during
the term of this Agreement, or use forced labor in the performance of this Agreement. The
Recipient must include this provision in its contracts and subcontracts under this Agreement. The
Recipient must inform the State Water Board immediately of any information regarding a violation
of the foregoing. The Recipient understands that failure to comply with this provision may subject
the State Water Board to loss of federal funds. The Recipient agrees to compensate the State
Water Board for any such funds lost due to its failure to comply with this condition, or the failure of
its contractors or subcontractors to comply with this condition. The State Water Board may
unilaterally terminate this Agreement if the Recipient that is a private entity is determined to have
violated the foregoing.

The Recipient certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that:

a. No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behaif of the
Recipient, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee

Exhibit C



Xvi.

xvii.

XViii.

Xix.

XXi.

XXii.

xXiii.

Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 40 of 51

of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any federal
contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of any federal loan, the entering into
of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

b. If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a
Member of Congress in connection with this Agreement, the Recipient shall complete and
submit Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its
instructions, and notify the State Water Board.

The Recipient shall require this certification from all parties to any contract or agreement that the
Recipient enters into and under which the Recipient incurs costs for which it seeks
reimbursements under this Agreement.

The Recipient must comply with the following federal non-discrimination requirements:

a. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, which prohibits discrimination based on race,
color, and national origin, including limited English proficiency (LEP).

b. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, which prohibits discrimination against
persons with disabilities,

c. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, which prohibits age discrimination.

d. Section 13 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act Amendments of 1972, which
prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex.

e. 40CFRPart 7, as it relates to the foregoing.

The Recipient agrees to comply with the requirements of USEPA’s Program for Utilization of
Small, Minority and Women'’s Business Enterprises.

Procurement Prohibitions under Section 306 of the Clean Air Act and Section 508 of the Clean
Water Act, including Executive Order 11738, Administration of the Clean Air Act and the Federal
Water Pollution Control Act with Respect to Federal Contracts, Grants, or Loans; 42 USC § 7606;
33 USC § 1368. Except where the purpose of this Agreement is to remedy the cause of the
violation, the Recipient may not procure goods, services, or materials from suppliers excluded
under the federal System for Award Management: sam.gov

Uniform Relocation and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act, Pub. L. 91-6846, as amended; 42
USC §§4601-4655. The Recipient must comply with the Act’s implementing regulations at 49
CFR 24.101 through 24.105.

The Recipient agrees that if its network or information system is connected to USEPA networks to
transfer data using systems other than the Environmental Information Exchange Network or
USEPA's Central Data Exchange, it will ensure that any connections are secure.

All geospatial data created pursuant to this Agreement that is submitted to the State Water Board
for use by USEPA or that is submitted directly to USEPA must be consistent with Federal
Geographic Data Committee endorsed standards. Information on these standards may be found

at www.fadc.gov.

if the Recipient is a water system that serves 500 or fewer persons, the Recipient represents that
it has considered publicly-owned wells as an alternative drinking water supply.

The Recipient represents that it is not a corporation that has any unpaid Federal tax liability that
has been assessed, for which all judicial and administrative remedies have been exhausted or

Exhibit C



XXiv.

XXV.

XXVi.

xxVvii.

Xxviii.

Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 41 of 51

have lapsed, and that is not being paid in a timely manner pursuant to an agreement with the
authority responsible for collecting the tax liability; and it is not a corporation that was convicted of
a felony criminal violation under a Federal law within the preceding 24 months,

The Recipient agrees to immediately notify the Project Manager in writing about any allegation of
research misconduct involving research activities that are supported in whole or in part with
USEPA funds under this Project, including fabrication, falsification, or plagiarism in proposing,
performing, or reviewing research, or in reporting research resuilts, or ordering, advising, or
suggesting that subordinates engage in research misconduct.

The Recipient agrees to comply with, and require all contractors and subcontractors to comply
with, USEPA's Scientific Integrity Policy, available at https://www.epa.gov/osa/policy-epa-
scientific-integrity, when conducting, supervising, and communicating science and when using or
applying the results of science. For purposes of this condition scientific activities include, but are
not limited to, computer modelling, economic analysis, field sampling, laboratory experimentation,
demonstrating new technology, statistical analysis, and writing a review article on a scientific
issue.

The Recipient shall not suppress, alter, or otherwise impede the timely release of scientific
findings or conclusions; intimidate or coerce scientists to alter scientific data, findings, or
professional opinions or exert non-scientific influence on scientific advisory boards; knowingly
misrepresent, exaggerate, or downplay areas of scientific uncertainty; or otherwise violate the
USEPA’s Scientific Integrity Policy. The Recipient must refrain from acts of research misconduct,
including publication or reporting, as described in USEPA’s Policy and Procedures for Addressing
Research Misconduct, Section 9.C, and must ensure scientific findings are generated and
disseminated in a timely and transparent manner, including scientific research performed by
contractors and subcontractors.

The Recipient agrees to comply with the Animal Welfare Act of 1966 (7 USC 2131-2156).
Recipient also agrees to abide by the “U.S. Government Principles for the Utilization and Care of
Vertebrate Animals used in Testing, Research, and Training,” available at
http://grants.nih.gov/grants/claw/references/phspol. htm#USGovPrinciples.

The Recipient certifies that no Project Funds will be used on:

a. Video surveillance or telecommunications equipment produced by Huawei Technologies
Company or ZTE Corporation (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities),
telecommunications equipment produced by Hytera Communications Corporation,
Hangzhou Hikvision Digital Technology Company, or Dahua Technology Company (or
any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities);

b. Telecommunications or video surveillance services produced by such entities;

c. Telecommunications or video surveillance equipment or services produced or provided
by an entity that the Secretary of Defense, in consultation with the Director of the National
Intelligence or the Director of the Federal Bureau of Investigation, reasonably believes to
be an entity owned or controlled by, or otherwise connected to, the government of a
covered foreign country; or

d. Other telecommunications or video surveillance services or equipment in violation of 2
CFR 200.216.

The Recipient agrees to ensure that if the Project includes lead service line replacement, each lead
service line replaced using Project Funds must be replaced in its entirety, unless the remaining
portion of that service line has already been replaced or is concurrently being replaced with another
funding source.

Exhibit C



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 42 of 51

xxix.  The Recipient agrees to comply with all federal environmental cross-cutters, including the
following:

a.

T @meaomT

— —

Archeological and Historic Preservation Act (16 U.S.C. § 469; 54 U.S.C. §§ 312501-
312508)

Clean Air Act Conformity (42 U.S.C. § 7401)

Coastal Barriers Resources Act (16 U.S.C. § 3501 et seq.)

Coastal Zone Management Act (16 U.S.C. § 1451 et seq.)

Endangered Species Act (16 U.S.C. § 1531 et seq.)

Farmland Protection Policy Act (7 U.S.C. § 4201 et seq.)

Floodplain Management [Executive Order 11988 (1977), as amended by
Executive Order No. 12148 (1979)]

Magnuson-Stevens Fishery Conservation and Management Act (16 U.S.C. §
1801 et seq.)

National Historic Preservation Act (54 U.S.C. §§ 300101 et seq.)

Sole Source Aquifer, section 1424(e) of Safe Drinking Water Act, 42 U.S.C. 300h-
3(e)

Wetlands Protection — Executive Order No. 11990 (1977), as amended by
Executive Order no. 12608 (1997)

Wild and Scenic Rivers Act (16 U.S.C. § 1271 et seq.)

Exhibit C



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 43 of 51

EXHIBIT D — SPECIAL CONDITIONS
Environmental:

1. The documents identified below are incorporated by reference and the Recipient shall comply
with the conditions and recommendations therein:

a. The letter dated July 23, 2025, from David Zoutendyk of the United States Fish and
Wildlife Service, Carlsbad Office (USFWS) to Elena Neibaur of the USEPA.

b. The Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program adopted by the Valley Center Municipal
Water District on October 19, 2020, for the Project.

2. The Recipient shall make no changes to the Project, construction area, or special conditions,
without obtaining the appropriate and necessary prior approvals from the State Water Board and
USFWS.

3. The Recipient shall provide notice to the Division’s Senior Cultural Resources Officer,
CuliuralResources@Waterboards.ca.qgov, within 24 hours of the discovery of any potential tribal
cultural resource and/or archaeological or historical resource, and shall notify the Division
promptly upon the discovery of any unexpected endangered or threatened species, as defined in
the federal Endangered Species Act. For additional requirements, please refer to Exhibit C of this
Agreement.

REPORTING TO THE STATE WATER BOARD
1. Inthe Recipient’s Progress Reports and the Project Completion Report, submitted pursuant to
this Agreement, the Recipient shall include a discussion of the status of its compliance with all
environmental measures identified in this Exhibit D, with separate sections clearly labeled with
section titles, discussing the status of Recipient’s compliance with;
a. Endangered Species Act
i. The conservation measures in the letter dated July 23, 2025, from David
Zoutendyk of the USFWS, Carlsbad Office.
b. The Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program water quality measures adopted for the
Project.
i. BIO-1

Executive Order N-6-22 — Russian Sanctions.

On March 4, 2022, Governor Gavin Newsom issued Executive Order N-6-22 (the EQ) regarding
Economic Sanctions against Russia and Russian entities and individuals. “Economic Sanctions” refers to
sanctions imposed by the U.S. government in response to Russia’s actions in Ukraine, as well as any
sanctions imposed under state law. The EO directs state agencies to terminate contracts with, and to
refrain from entering any new contracts with, individuals or entities that are determined to be a target of
Economic Sanctions. Accordingly, should the State Water Board determine Recipient is a target of
Economic Sanctions or is conducting prohibited transactions with sanctioned individuals or entities, that
shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement. The State Water Board shall provide Recipient
advance written notice of such termination, allowing Recipient at least 30 calendar days to provide a
written response. Termination shall be at the sole discretion of the State Water Board.

The Recipient represents that the Recipient is not a target of economic sanctions imposed in response to
Russia’s actions in Ukraine imposed by the United States government or the State of California. The
Recipient is required to comply with the economic sanctions imposed in response to Russia’s actions in
Ukraine, including with respect to, but not limited to, the federal executive orders identified in California
Executive Order N-6-22, located at hitps://www.gov.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2022/03/3.4.22-Russia-
Ukraine-Executive-Order.pdf and the sanctions identified on the United States Department of the
Treasury website (https://home.treasury.gov/palicy-issuesffinancial-sanctions/sanctions-programs-and-
country-information/ukraine-russia-related-sanctions). The Recipient is required to comply with all
applicable reporting requirements regarding compliance with the economic sanctions, including, but not

Exhibit D



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 44 of 51

limited to, those reporting requirements set forth in California Executive Order N-6-22 for all Recipients
with one or more agreements with the State of California with an aggregated value of Five Million Dollars
($5,000,000) or more. Notwithstanding any other provision in this Agreement, failure to comply with the
economic sanctions and all applicable reporting requirements may result in termination of this Agreement.

For Recipients with an aggregated agreement value of Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000) or more with the
State of California, reporting requirements include, but are not limited to, information related to steps
taken in response to Russia’s actions in Ukraine, including but not limited to:

1. Desisting from making any new investments or engaging in financial transactions with
Russian institutions or companies that are headquartered or have their principal place of

business in Russia;

2. Not transferring technology to Russia or companies that are headquartered or have their
principal place of business in Russia; and

3. Direct support to the government and people of Ukraine.

Exhibit D



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 45 of 51

EXHIBIT E — PAYMENT SCHEDULE

See the attached preliminary Payment Schedule. The final Payment Schedule will be forwarded to the
Recipient after all disbursements have been paid and construction of the Project has been completed.

Exhibit E



California DWSRF Payment Schedule Principal is paid over: 30 Years

Project No. 3710026-004C - Valley Center Municipal Water District Interest rate:  1.90000%
Agreement: D2502004 - based on Actual + Projected Disbursements

2023 Water Facilities Replacement Project

Ref Due Date Interest Interest Total P and T Total Ending CPI
Num Date Received Principal Payment Rate%, Payment Payment Payment Balance Interest
1 7/1/2029 0.00 1.900 260,597.15 260,597.15 260,597.15 5,525,000.00 0.00
2 7/1/2030 145,062.30 1.900 104,975.00 250,037.30 250,037.30 5,379,937.70 0.00
3 7/1/2031 147,818.48 1.900 102,218.82 250,037.30 250,037.30 5,232,119.22 0.00
4 7/1/2032 150,627.03 1.900 99,410.27 250,037.30 250,037.30 5.081,492.19 0.00
5 7/1/2033 153,488.95 1,900 96,548.35 250,037.30 250,037.30 4,928,003.24 0.00
6 7/1/2034 156,405.24 1.900 93,632.06 250,037.30 250,037.30 4,771,598.00 0.00
7 7/1/2035 159,376.94 1,900 90,660.36 250,037.30 250,037.30 4,612,221.06 0.00
8 7/1/2036 162,405.10 1.900 87,632.20 250,037.30 250,037.30 4,449,815.96 0.00
9 7/1/2037 165,490.80 1.900 84,546.50 250,037.30 250,037.30 4,284,325.16 0.00
10 7/1/2038 168,635.12 1.900 81,402.18 250,037.30 250,037.30 4,115,690.04 0.00
11 77172039 171,839.19 1.900 78,198.11 250,037.30 250,037.30 3,943,850.85 0.00
12 7/1/2040 175,104.13 1,900 74,933.17 250,037.30 250,037.30 3,768,746.72 0.00
13 7/1/2041 178,431.11 1900 71,606.19 250,037.30 250,037.30 3,590,315.61 0.00
14 7/1/2042 181,821.30 1:900 68,216.00 250,037.30 250,037.30 3,408,494.31 0.00
15 7/1/2043 185,275.91 1.900 64,761.39 250,037.30 250,037.30 3,223,218.40 0.00
16 7/1/2044 188,796.15 1,900 61,241.15 250,037.30 250,037.30 3,034,422.25 0.00
17 7/1/2045 192,383.28 1.900 57,654.02 250,037.30 250,037.30 2,842,038.97 0.00
8 7/1/2046 196,038.56 1.900 53,998.74 250,037.30 250,037.30 2,646,000.41 0.00
19 7/1/2047 199,763.29 1.900 50,274.01 250,037.30 250,037.30 2,446,237.12 0.00
20 7/1/2048 203,558.79 1.900 46,478.51 250,037.30 250,037.30 2,242,678.33 0.00
21 7/1/2049 207,426.41 1,800 42,610.89 250,037.30 250,037.30 2,035,251.92 0.00
22 7/1/2050 211,367.51 1.900 38,669.79 250,037.30 250,037.30 1,823,884.41 0.00
23 7/1/2051 215,383.50 1.800 34,653.80 250,037.30 250,037.30 1,608,500.91 0.00
24 7/1/2052 219,475.78 1.900 30,561.52 250,037.30 250,037.30 1,389,025.13 0.00
25 7/1/2053 223,645.82 1.900 26,391.48 250,037.30 250,037.30 1,165,379.31 0.00
26 7/1/2054 227,895.09 1.900 22,142.21 250,037.30 250,037.30 937,484.22 0.00
27 7/1/2055 232,225.10 1.900 17,812.20 250,037.30 250,037.30 705,259.12 0.00
28 7/1/2056 236,637.38 1.900 13,399.92 250,037.30 250,037.30 468,621.74 0.00
29 7/112057 241,133.49 1.800 8,903.81 250,037.30 250,037.30 227,488.25 0.00
30 7/1/2058 227,488.25 1.900) 4,322.28 231,810.53 231,810.53 0.00 0.00
5,525,000.00 1,968,452.08 7,493,452.08 7,493,452.08 0.00

Page | of | 8/5/2025



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 46 of 51

EXHIBIT F — TAX CERTIFICATE
F.1 Purpose.

The purpose of this Exhibit F is to establish the reasonable expectations of the Recipient regarding the
Project and the Project Funds, and is intended to be and may be relied upon for purposes of Sections
103, 141 and 148 of the Code and as a certification described in Section 1.148-2(b)(2) of the Treasury
Regulations. This Exhibit F sets forth certain facts, estimates and circumstances which form the basis for
the Recipient’s expectation that neither the Project nor the Bond Funded Portion of the Project Funds is to
be used in a manner that would cause the Obligation to be classified as “arbitrage bonds” under Section
148 of the Code or “private activity bonds” under Section 141 of the Code.

F.2 Tax Covenant.

The Recipient agrees that it will not take or authorize any action or permit any action within its reasonable
control to be taken, or fail to take any action within its reasonable control, with respect to the Project
which would result in the loss of the exclusion of interest on the Bonds from gross income for federal
income tax purposes under Section 103 of the Code.

F.3 Governmental Unit.

The Recipient is a state or local governmental unit as defined in Section 1.103-1 of the Treasury
Regulations or an instrumentality thereof (a "Governmental Unit") and is not the federal government or
any agency or instrumentality thereof.

F.4 Financing of a Capital Project.

The Recipient will use the Project Funds to finance capital expenditures it has incurred or will incur for the
construction, reconstruction, installation or acquisition of the Project in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement. Such expenditures shall not have previously been financed with the proceeds of any other
issue of indebtedness except for interim financing by the Recipient, the date of maturity, prepayment or
redemption of which is within thirty (30) days of the date of disbursement of Project Funds under this
Agreement. All Project Funds shall be allocated to expenditures by the Recipient within thirty (30) days of
the date of disbursement, including (if at all) Project Funds allocated to repay interim financing of the
Recipient. For purposes of this Section F.4, “interim financing” means notes, commercial paper, loans,

lines of credit and other forms of short-term borrowing.

F.5 Ownership and Operation of Project.

The Recipient exclusively owns and, except as provided in Section F.12 hereof, operates the Project.
F.6 Temporary Period.

The Recipient reasonably expects that at least eighty-five percent (85%) of the Bond Funded Portion of
the Project Funds will be allocated to expenditures for the Project within three (3) years of the earlier of
the effective date of this Agreement or the date the Bonds are issued ("Applicable Date"). The Recipient
has incurred, or reasonably expects that it will incur within six (6) months of the Applicable Date, a
substantial binding obligation (i.e., not subject to contingencies within the control of the Recipient or a
related party) to a third party to expend at least five percent (5%) of the Bond Funded Portion of the
Project Funds on Project Costs. The completion of acquisition, construction, improvement and equipping
of the Project and the allocation of the Bond Funded Portion of the Project Funds to Project Costs will
proceed with due diligence.

Exhibit F



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 47 of 51

F.7 Working Capital.

No operational expenditures of the Recipient or any related entity are being, have been or will be financed
or refinanced with Project Funds.

F.8 Expenditure of Proceeds.

The Bond Funded Portion of the Project Funds shall be used exclusively for the following purposes: (i)
Reimbursement Expenditures (as defined in Section F.20 below), (ii) Preliminary Expenditures (as
defined in Section F.20 below) in an aggregate amount not exceeding twenty percent (20%) of the Bond
Funded Portion of the Project Funds, (iii) capital expenditures relating to the Project originally paid by the
Recipient on or after the date hereof, (iv) interest on the Obligation through the later of three (3) years
after the Applicable Date or one (1) year after the Project is placed in service, and (v) initial operating
expenses directly associated with the Project in the aggregate amount not more than five percent (5%) of
the Bond Funded Portion of the Project Funds.

F.9 Private Use and Private Payments.

No portion of the Project Funds or the Project is being, has been or will be used in the aggregate for any
activities that constitute a Private Use (as defined below). No portion of the principal of or interest with
respect to the Payments will be secured by any interest in property (whether or not the Project) used for a
Private Use or in payments in respect of property used for a Private Use, or will be derived from payments
in respect of property used for a Private Use. "Private Use" means any activity that constitutes a trade or
business that is carried on by persons or entities, other than a Governmental Unit. The leasing of the
Project or the access by or the use of the Project by a person or entity other than a Governmental Unit on
a basis other than as a member of the general public shall constitute a Private Use. Use by or on behalf
of the State of California or any of its agencies, instrumentalities or subdivisions or by any local
Governmental Unit and use as a member of the general public will be disregarded in determining whether
a Private Use exists. Use under an arrangement that conveys priority rights or other preferential benefits
is generally not use on the same basis as the general public. Arrangements providing for use that is
available to the general public at no charge or on the basis of rates that are generally applicable and
uniformly applied do not convey priority rights or other preferential benefits. For this purpose, rates may
be treated as generally applicable and uniformly applied even if (i) different rates apply to different
classes of users, such as volume purchasers, if the differences in rates are customary and reasonable; or
(ii) a specially negotiated rate arrangement is entered into, but only if the user is prohibited by federal law
from paying the generally applicable rates, and the rates established are as comparable as reasonably
possible to the generally applicable rates. An arrangement that does not otherwise convey priority rights
or other preferential benefits is not treated, nevertheless, as general public use if the term of the use
under the arrangement, including all renewal options, is greater than 200 days. For this purpose, a right
of first refusal to renew use under the arrangement is not treated as a renewal option if (i) the
compensation for the use under the arrangement is redetermined at generally applicable, fair market
value rates that are in effect at the time of renewal; and (ii) the use of the financed property under the
same or similar arrangements is predominantly by natural persons who are not engaged in a trade or
business.

F.10  No Sale, Lease or Private Operation of the Project.

The Project (or any portion thereof) will not be sold or otherwise disposed of, in whole or in part, to any
person who is not a Governmental Unit prior to the final maturity date of the Obligation. The Project will
not be leased to any person or entity that is not a Governmental Unit prior to the final maturity date of the
Obligation. Except as permitted under Section F.12 hereof, the Recipient will not enter any contract or
arrangement or cause or permit any contract or arrangement to be entered with persons or entities that
are not Governmental Units if that contract or arrangement would confer on such persons or entities any

Exhibit F



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 48 of 51

right to use the Project on a basis different from the right of members of the general public. The contracts
or arrangements contemplated by the preceding sentence include but are not limited to management
contracts, take or pay contracts or put or pay contracts, and capacity guarantee contracts.

F.11  No Disproportionate or Unrelated Use.

No portion of the Project Funds or the Project is being, has been, or will be used for a Private Use that is
unrelated or disproportionate to the governmental use of the Project Funds.

F.12  Management and Service Contracts.

The Recipient represents that, as of the date hereof, it is not a party to any contract, agreement or other
arrangement with any persons or entities engaged in a trade or business (other than Governmental Units)
that involve the management or operation of property or the provision of services at or with respect to the
Project that does not comply with the standards of the Treasury Regulations, or Revenue Procedure
2017-13, as applicable. The Recipient represents that it will not be party to any such contract, agreement
or arrangement with any person or entity that is not a Governmental Unit for the management of property
or the provision of services at or with respect to the Project, while the Obligation (including any obligation
or series thereof issued to refund the Obligation, as the case may be) is outstanding, except: (a) with
respect to any contract, agreement or arrangement that does not constitute “private business use” of the
Project under Code §141(b), or (b) with respect to any contract, agreement or arrangement that complies
with (i) Revenue Procedure 97-13, 1997-1 C.B. 632, as amended by Revenue Procedure 2001-39, 2001-
2 C.B. 38, and as amplified by Notice 2014-67, with respect to contracts entered into before August 18,
2017 and not materially modified or extended after August 18, 2017, or (ii) Revenue Procedure 2017-13,
with respect to contracts entered into or materially modified or extended on or after August 18, 2017, or
(c) with respect to any contract, agreement or arrangement that does not give rise to use of the Bond
Funded Portion of the Project Funds or the Project by a non-Governmental Unit of more than the amount
of such non-qualified use permitted by the Code, or (d) in the event that the Recipient receives an opinion
of counsel, satisfactory to the State Water Board and the Bank and expert in the issuance of state and
local government bonds the interest on which is excluded from gross income under Section 103 of the
Code ("Nationally-Recognized Bond Counsel”), that such contract, agreement or arrangement will not
adversely affect the exclusion of the interest on the Obligation from gross income for federal income
taxation purposes.

F.13  No Disposition of Financed Property.

As of the date hereof, the Recipient does not expect to sell or otherwise dispose of any portion of the
Project, in whole or in part, prior to the final maturity date of the Obligation.

F.14  Useful Life of Project.

As of the date hereof, the Recipient reasonably expects that the economic useful life of the Project,
commencing at Project Completion, will be at least equal to the term of this Agreement, as set forth in
Exhibit A hereto.

F.15 Payments.

Payments generally are expected to be derived from assessments, taxes, fees, charges or other current
Revenues of the Recipient in each year, and such current Revenues are expected to equal or exceed the
Payments during each payment period. Any amounts accumulated in a sinking fund or bona fide debt
service fund to pay Payments (whether or not deposited to a fund or account established by the
Recipient) will be disbursed to pay Payments within thirteen months of the initial date of accumulation or
deposit. Any such fund used for the payment of Payments will be depleted once a year except for a

Exhibit F



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 49 of 51

reasonable carryover amount not exceeding the greater of earnings on such fund or one-twelfth of the
Payments in either case for the immediately preceding year.

F.16  No Other Replacement Proceeds.

The Recipient will not use any of the Bond Funded Portion of the Project Funds to replace or substitute
other funds of the Recipient that were otherwise to be used to finance the Project or which are or will be
used to acquire securities, obligations or other investment property reasonably expected to produce a
yield that is materially higher than the yield on the Bonds.

F.17  No Sinking or Pledged Fund.

Except as set forth in Section F.18 below, the Recipient will not create or establish any sinking fund or
pledged fund which will be used to pay Payments on the Obligation within the meaning of Section 1.148-
1(c) of the Treasury Regulations. If any sinking fund or pledged fund comes into being with respect to the
Obligation before the Obligation has been fully retired which may be used to pay the Payments, the
Recipient will invest such sinking fund and pledged fund moneys at a yield that does not exceed the yield
on the Bonds.

F.18 Reserve Amount.

The State Water Board requires that the Recipient maintain and fund a separate account in an amount
equal to one (1) year of debt service with respect to the Obligation (the “Reserve Amount”) as set forth in
Exhibit B. The Recipient represents that the Reserve Amount is and will be available to pay debt service
with respect to the Obligation, if and when needed. The Reserve Amount consists solely of revenues of
the Recipient and does not include any proceeds of any obligations the interest on which is excluded from
gross income for federal income tax purposes or investment earnings thereon. The aggregate of the
Reserve Amount, up to an amount not exceeding the lesser of (i) ten percent of the aggregate principal
amount of the Obligation, (ii) the maximum annual debt service with respect to the Obligation, or (iii) 125
percent of the average annual debt service with respect to the Obligation, will be treated as a reasonably
required reserve fund.

F.19 Reimbursement Resolution.
The “reimbursement resolution” adopted by the Recipient is incorporated herein by reference.
F.20 Reimbursement Expenditures.

Reimbursements are disallowed, except as specifically authorized in Exhibit B or Exhibit D of this
Agreement. To the extent so authorized, a portion of the Bond Funded Portion of the Project Funds may
be applied to reimburse the Recipient for Project Costs paid before the date hereof, so long as the Project
Cost was (i) not paid prior to sixty (60) days before the Recipient's adoption of a declaration of official
intent to finance the Project, (ii) not paid more than eighteen (18) months prior to the date hereof or the
date the Project was placed-in-service, whichever is later, and (iii) not paid more than three (3) years prior
to the date hereof (collectively, "Reimbursement Expenditures”), unless such cost is attributable to a
“preliminary expenditure.” Preliminary expenditure for this purpose means architectural, engineering,
surveying, soil testing and similar costs incurred prior to the commencement of construction or
rehabilitation of the Project, but does not include land acquisition, site preparation and similar costs
incident to the commencement of acquisition, construction or rehabilitation of the Project. Preliminary
expenditures may not exceed 20% of the Bond Funded Portion of the Project Funds.

Exhibit F



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 50 of 51

F.21  Change in Use of the Project.

The Recipient reasonably expects to use all of the Bond Funded Portion of the Project Funds and the
Project for the entire stated term to maturity of the Obligation. Absent an opinion of Nationally-
Recognized Bond Counsel to the effect that such use of the Bond Funded Portion of the Project Funds
will not adversely affect the exclusion from federal gross income of interest on the Bonds pursuant to
Section 103 of the Code, the Recipient will use the Bond Funded Portion of the Project Funds and the
Project solely as set forth in this Agreement.

F.22 Rebate Obligations.

If the Recipient satisfies the requirements of one of the spending exceptions to rebate specified in Section
1.148-7 of the Treasury Regulations, amounts earned from investments, if any, acquired with the Bond
Funded Portion of the Project Funds will not be subject to the rebate requirements imposed under Section
148(f) of the Code. If the Recipient fails to satisfy such requirements for any period, it will notify the State
Water Board and the Bank immediately and will comply with the provisions of the Code and the Treasury
Regulations at such time, including the payment of any rebate amount calculated by the State Water
Board or the Bank.

F.23 No Federal Guarantee.

The Recipient will not directly or indirectly use any of the Bond Funded Portion of the Project Funds in
any manner that would cause the Bonds to be "federally guaranteed" within the meaning of Section
149(b) of the Code, taking into account various exceptions including any guarantee related to investments
during an initial temporary period until needed for the governmental purpose of the Bonds, investments as
part of a bona fide debt service fund, investments of a reasonably required reserve or replacement fund,
investments in bonds issued by the United States Treasury, investments in refunding escrow funds or
certain other investments permitted under the Treasury Regulations.

F.24 Amendments.

The provisions in this Exhibit may be amended, modified or supplemented at any time to reflect changes
in the Code upon obtaining written approval of the State Water Board and the Bank and an opinion of
Nationally-Recognized Bond Counsel to the effect that such amendment, modification or supplement will
not adversely affect the exclusion from federal gross income of interest on the Bonds pursuant to Section
103 of the Code.

F.25 Reasonable Expectations.

The Recipient warrants that, to the best of its knowledge, information and belief, and based on the facts
and estimates as set forth in the tax covenants in this Exhibit, the expectations of the Recipient as set
forth in this Exhibit are reasonable. The Recipient is not aware of any facts or circumstances that would
cause it to question the accuracy or reasonableness of any representation made in the provisions in this
Exhibit.

F.26  Assignment.

The Recipient consents to any pledge, sale, or assignment to the Bank or a trustee for the benefit of the
owners of the Bonds, if any, at any time of any portion of the State Water Board's estate, right, title, and
interest and claim in, to and under this Agreement and the right to make all related waivers and
agreements in the name and on behalf of the State Water Board, as agent and attorney-in-fact, and to
perform all other related acts which are necessary and appropriate under this Agreement, if any, and the
State Water Board's estate, right, title, and interest and claim in, to and under this Agreement to

Exhibit F



Valley Center Municipal Water District
Agreement No.: D2502004

Project No.: 3710026-004C

Page 51 of 51

Payments (but excluding the State Water Board's rights to Additional Payments and to notices, opinions
and indemnification under each Obligation).

Exhibit F



BEST BEST & KRIEGER 1.p
ATTORNEYS AT LAW

@ BBK

[Closing Date]

State Water Resources Control Board
Division of Financial Assistance
Attn: Anabel Ruiz

1001 I St., 16th floor

Sacramento, CA 95814

Re:  Valley Center Municipal Water District (“District”™) — 2023 Water
Facilities Replacement Project — Project No. ____ (the “Project”) —
Agreement No. (the “Agreement”)

Ladies and Gentlemen:

This firm serves as General Counsel to the District in connection with the Project. This
opinion is delivered to the State Water Resources Control Board (“State Water Board™) at the
request of the District. In connection therewith, we have examined the laws pertaining to the
District, original copies of the Agreement between the District and the State Water Board
(“Agreement”), the District’s authorizing resolutions, Resolution No.___, adopted on , the
District’s reimbursement resolution, Resolution No. __, adopted on . and the District’s
rate-setting ordinance, Ordinance No. __adopted on (collectively, “the Resolutions™), the
District’s debt management policy, documents related to each of the Material Obligations as set
forth in the Agreement, and such other documents, legal opinions, instruments and records, and
have made such investigation of law and fact, as we have considered necessary or appropriate for
the purpose of this opinion.

The opinions expressed herein are based on an analysis of existing statutes, regulations,
rulings and court decisions and cover certain matters not directly addressed by such authorities.
Such opinions may be affected by actions taken or omitted or events occurring after the date hereof.
We have not undertaken to determine, or to inform any person, whether any such actions or events
are taken or do occur. We express no opinion with respect to any choice of law provisions
contained in the foregoing documents.

In our examination, we have assumed, without independent investigation, the authenticity
of all documents submitted to us as originals, of all documents submitted to us as certified or
photostatic copies and the authenticity of the originals of such latter documents and the accuracy
of the statements and representations contained in such documents. In addition, we have assumed
the authority of and due execution by each of the parties to the documents other than the District.

As used in this opinion, the phrase “to the best of our knowledge and based upon a
reasonable investigation” means knowledge as we have obtained from (i) the incumbency and
signature certificate of the District, (ii) the representations and warranties contained in each of the

Best Best & Krieger LLP | 3390 University Avenue, 5th Floor, P.O. Box 1028, Riverside, California 92502
Phone: (951) 686-1450 | Fax: {951) 686-3083 | bbklaw.com

09960.00000\43208591.2



[Closing Date]
Page 2

documents covered under this opinion by the District, and (iii) knowledge of facts or other
information currently known to lawyers in this office who have performed legal services for the
District.

Based on the foregoing, it is our opinion that:

a. The District, a municipal water district, duly organized, validly existing
under the laws of the State of California, has the requisite legal right, power, and authority
to execute and deliver the Agreement and carry out and consummate all transactions
contemplated therein.

b. The Resolutions have been duly adopted at meetings of the District which
were called and held pursuant to law with all public notice required by law and at which a
quorum was present and acting when the Resolutions were adopted. The Resolutions are
in full force and effect and have not been amended, modified, supplemented, or rescinded,
nor has the rate-setting resolution been challenged or the rates become subject of a
referendum or initiative or other similar process.

c. To the best of our knowledge and based upon a reasonable investigation, all
proceedings required by law or under the ordinances or bylaws of the District to be taken
by the District in connection with the authorization of the Agreement and the transactions
contemplated by and related thereto, and all such approvals, authorizations, consents or
other orders of or filings or registrations with such public boards or bodies, if any, as may
be legally required to be obtained by the District prior to the date hereof with respect to all
or any of such matters have been taken or obtained and are in full force and effect, except
that no opinion is expressed as to any approvals, obligations or proceedings which may be
required under any federal securities laws or state blue sky or securities laws.

d. To the best of our knowledge and based upon a reasonable investigation,
the execution and delivery of the Agreement and the consummation of the transactions
therein will not conflict with or constitute a breach of or default (with due notice or the
passage of time or both) under (i) the statutes creating the District or any amendments
thereto, (ii) the ordinances or by laws of the District, (iii) any bond, debenture, note or other
evidence of indebtedness, or any material contract, agreement or lease to which the District
is a party or by which it or its properties are otherwise subject or bound or (iv) any
applicable law or administrative regulation or any applicable court or administrative decree
or order.

e. To the best of our knowledge and based upon a reasonable investigation,
the District has sufficient property rights in the Project property for the purposes
contemplated in the Agreement for the term of the Agreement as it is statutorily granted a
right of way on property within the Project pursuant to California Water Code sections
71697 and 71695, and California Public Utilities Code section 10101. Further the District
has complied with the requirements of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real

09960.00000\43208591.2 Best Best & Krieger LLP



[Closing Date]

Page 3

Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (42 U.S.C. 4601) with respect to any property
acquired for the purposes of the Project.

f. To the best of our knowledge and based upon a reasonable investigation,
there is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation before or by any court of
federal, state, municipal or other governmental authority pending for which the District has
been served or threatened against or affecting the District’s System, as defined in the
Agreement, or the assets, properties or operations of the District relating to its System
which, if determined adversely to the District or its interests would result in any material
change in the assets or financial condition of the District, the District’s System or the
financial condition thereof, and the District is not in default with respect to any order or
decree of any court or any order, regulation, or demand of any federal, state, municipal, or
other governmental agency which default might have consequences that would materially
and adversely affect the financial condition of the District or its System.

f. Without having undertaken any independent investigation as to the
accuracy or completeness of information submitted in connection with the Agreement and
without having undertaken any review of any financial or statistical information contained
therein, no facts have come to our attention which lead us to believe that the District’s
authorized representative has made any untrue statement of a material fact or omitted or
omits to state a material fact or has made misleading statements in the Agreement.

g. The Agreement has been duly authorized, executed, and delivered, and
assuming due authorization, execution and delivery of the Agreement by the State Water
Board, constitutes legal, valid, and binding obligation of the District enforceable against
the District in accordance with its terms, subject to the laws relating to bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization, or creditors’ rights generally and to the application of equitable
principles, if equitable remedies are sought.

We disclaim any obligation to supplement this opinion letter with regard to events

occurring or coming to our attention after the date hereof. The opinions herein are limited to the
matters expressly set forth herein, and no opinion is to be implied or may be inferred beyond the
matters expressly so stated.

Our opinion is further qualified by the following:

(a) We express no opinion with respect to the laws of any state or jurisdiction other

than California and the United States regarding the enforceability of any transaction mentioned
herein or the interpretation, authorization, execution, validity, enforceability or effect of any of the
documents mentioned herein; provided further that we express no opinion with respect to
California or federal tax and securities law.

09960.00000\43208591.2 Best Best & Krieger LLP



[Closing Date]
Page 4

(b)  As General Counsel in this matter, we have not rendered financial advice to the
District and do not represent by this opinion, or otherwise, that we reviewed or made any
assessment about, nor do we express any opinion about, the financial ability of the District to pay
debt service or amounts due under the Agreement.

The opinions expressed herein may be affected by actions which may be taken (or not
taken) or events which may occur (or not occur) after the date hereof. We have not undertaken to
determine, or to inform any person, whether any such actions or events are taken or occur or are
not taken or do not occur.

This letter is furnished by us as General Counsel to the District. Other than the District, no
attorney-client relationship has existed or exists between our firm and you in connection with the
Agreement or by virtue of this letter. Our engagement with respect to the Agreement has
terminated as of the date hereof, and we disclaim any obligation to update this letter. This letter
is delivered to you, is solely for your benefit and is not to be used, quoted or otherwise referred to
or relied upon for any other purpose or by any other person without or written consent.

We bring to your attention the fact that our conclusions are an expression of professional
judgment and are not a guarantee of a result.

Sincerely,

BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP

09960.00000\43208591.2 Best Best & Krieger LLP



BEST BEST & KRIEGER u.»
ATTORNEYS AT LAW

[Closing Date]

State Water Resources Control Board
Division of Financial Assistance
Attn: Anabel Ruiz

1001 I St., 16th floor

Sacramento, CA 95814

Re:  Valley Center Municipal Water District (“District”) — 2023 Water
Facilities Replacement Project — Project No. ___ (the “Project”) —
Agreement No. (the “Agreement”™)

Ladies and Gentlemen:

This firm serves as Bond Counsel to the District in connection with the Project. This
opinion is delivered to the State Water Resources Control Board (“State Water Board™) at the
request of the District. In connection therewith, we have examined the laws pertaining to the
District, original copies of the Agreement between the District and the State Water Board

(“Agreement”), the District’s authorizing resolution, Resolution No. , adopted on , the
District’s reimbursement resolution, Resolution No. , adopted on , and the District’s
rate-setting ordinance, Ordinance No.__ adopted on (collectively, “the Resolutions™), the

District’s debt management policy, documents related to each of the Material Obligations as set
forth in the Agreement, and such other documents, legal opinions, instruments and records, and
have made such investigation of law and fact, as we have considered necessary or appropriate for
the purpose of this opinion.

The opinions expressed herein are based on an analysis of existing statutes, regulations,
rulings and court decisions and cover certain matters not directly addressed by such authorities.
Such opinions may be affected by actions taken or omitted or events occurring after the date hereof.
We have not undertaken to determine, or to inform any person, whether any such actions or events
are taken or do occur. We express no opinion with respect to any choice of law provisions
contained in the foregoing documents.

In our examination, we have assumed, without independent investigation, the authenticity
of all documents submitted to us as originals, of all documents submitted to us as certified or
photostatic copies and the authenticity of the originals of such latter documents and the accuracy
of the statements and representations contained in such documents. In addition, we have assumed
the authority of and due execution by each of the parties to the documents other than the District.

As used in this opinion, the phrase "to the best of our knowledge and based upon a
reasonable investigation" means knowledge as we have obtained from (i) the incumbency and

Best Best & Krieger LLP | 3390 University Avenue, 5th Floor, P.O. Box 1028, Riverside, California 92502
Phone: (951) 686-1450 | Fax: (951) 686-3083 | bbklaw.com

09960.0000043208538.1



State Water Resources Control Board
[Closing Date]
Page 2

signature certificate of the District, (ii) the representations and warranties contained in each of the
documents covered under this opinion by the District, and (iii) knowledge of facts or other
information currently known to lawyers in this office who have performed legal services for the
District.

To the best of our knowledge and based upon a reasonable investigation, the execution and
delivery of the Agreement and the consummation of the transactions therein will not conflict with
or constitute a breach of or default (with due notice or the passage of time or both) under any bond,
debenture, note or other evidence of indebtedness, or any material contract, agreement or lease to
which the District is a party or by which it or its properties are otherwise subject or bound. The
Agreement has been duly authorized, executed, and delivered, and assuming due authorization,
execution and delivery of the Agreement by the State Water Board, constitutes a legal, valid and
binding obligation of the District enforceable against the District in accordance with its terms.

The opinions herein are limited to the matters expressly set forth herein, and no opinion is
to be implied or may be inferred beyond the matters expressly so stated. Our opinion is further
qualified by the following:

(a) We express no opinion with respect to the laws of any state or jurisdiction
other than California and the United States regarding (i) the enforceability of any
transaction mentioned herein or (ii) the interpretation, authorization, execution, validity,
enforceability or effect of any of the documents mentioned herein; provided further that
we express no opinion with respect to California or federal securities law.

(b)  As Bond Counsel to the District in this matter, we have not rendered
financial advice to the District and do not represent by this opinion, or otherwise, that we
reviewed or made any assessment about, nor do we express any opinion about, the financial
ability of the District to pay debt service or amounts due under the Agreement, except that
we have relied on the representations of the District set forth in a coverage certificate or
other instrument demonstrating ability to meet the covenants in any existing obligation
relating to the issuance of additional debt, including (i) the collection of rates and charges
and (ii) existence of sufficient revenues to pay for annual debt service.

(c) Specifically, without limitation, we express no opinion as to the following:
(1) the state or quality of title to any property described in the Installment Sale Agreement
or the accuracy or sufficiency of the description of such property contained in the
Installment Sale Agreement; (ii) the enforceability under certain circumstances of
contractual provisions respecting various summary remedies without notice or opportunity
for hearing or correction, especially if their operation would work a substantial forfeiture
or impose a substantial penalty upon the burdened party; or (iii) the effect or availability
of any specific remedy provided for in the Installment Sale Agreement under particular
circumstances.

(d)  Enforceability of the terms of the Agreement may be limited by bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or similar laws or equitable principles relating to

09960.00000\43208538.1 Best Best & Krieger LLP



State Water Resources Control Board
[Closing Date]
Page 3

or limiting creditors’ rights generally and by the application of equitable principles if
equitable remedies are sought and by the limitations on legal remedies imposed on actions
against cities in the State of California.

(e) Federal or State securities laws or tax laws.

This letter is furnished by us as Bond Counsel to the District. Other than the District, no
attorney-client relationship has existed or exists between our firm and you in connection with the
Agreement or by virtue of this letter. Our engagement with respect to the Agreement has
terminated as of the date hereof, and we disclaim any obligation to update this letter. The opinions
herein are limited to the matters expressly set forth herein, and no opinion is to be implied or may
be inferred beyond the matters expressly so stated. This letter is delivered to you, is solely for
your benefit and is not to be used, quoted or otherwise referred to or relied upon for any other
purpose or by any other person.

Sincerely,

BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP

09960.00000\43208538.1 Best Best & Krieger LLP



California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Determination

Valley Center Municipal Water District (Applicant)
2023 Water Facilities Replacement Project (Project)
Project Number: 3710026-004C

As the Deputy Director for the State Water Resources Control Board (State Water
Board), Division of Financial Assistance, | have been delegated the authority to approve
and execute financing agreements for projects that are routine and non-controversial.
The execution of a financing agreement is an action that is subject to CEQA. The
authority to make this CEQA determination necessarily accompanies the delegation to
approve and execute the financing agreement for this Project.

1. The Applicant is the CEQA Lead Agency and has prepared an Initial
Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) titled 2020 Pipeline Replacement
Program, for the Project which was circulated through the Governor's Office of
Land Use and Climate Innovation (LCI), State Clearinghouse (No. 2020079025)
for review and comments. The Applicant adopted the MND and a Mitigation
Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) and approved the Project on
October 19, 2020. The Applicant filed a Notice of Determination with the San
Diego County Clerk on November 16, 2020 and the LCI on October 20, 2020.

2. The State Water Board is a Responsible Agency under CEQA. A Responsible
Agency complies with CEQA by considering the MND and the MMRP prepared
by the Lead Agency and by reaching its own conclusions on whether and how to
approve the Project involved. The State Water Board has independently
considered the MND and the MMRP, and pursuant to my delegated authority, |
make the following determinations regarding the Project:

e The MND and the MMRP include biological resources mitigation measure 1 to
reduce the potential water quality impacts of the Project to less than
significant levels as described in the final MND and the MMRP. Because of
the mitigation measure identified herein and in the MND and the MMRP, the
Project will not result in any significant adverse water quality impacts.

e The MND and the MMRP also include mitigation measures for biological
resources and cultural resources that mitigate potential environmental
impacts to less than significant levels for these impact categories. Changes or
alterations to the Project based on these mitigation measures are within the
responsibility and jurisdiction of other public agencies and are not within the
jurisdiction of the State Water Board. Such changes either have been
adopted by other relevant agencies or can and should be adopted by such
other agencies.

A final copy of the MND, the MMRP, comments and responses, and records of the
financing approval for the Project are available to the general public at the State Water



Applicant: Valley Center Municipal Water District
Project No: 3710026-004C

Board, Division of Financial Assistance at 1001 | Street, 16th Floor, Sacramento, CA
95814.

v &b+ Digidlly signed by Joe Karkoski
J Oe Ka r kOS k' ©ater2025.10.09 08:16:01 -07'00'

Joe Karkoski, Deputy Director
Division of Financial Assistance

C/DWSRF CEQA Determination Resp. 2 Rev. 1/2025



EXHIBIT B
GOOD FAITH ESTIMATES

The good faith estimates set forth herein are provided with respect to the Installment Sale
Agreement (“ISA”) authorized by this Resolution. Such good faith estimates have been provided
to the District, based on market interest rates prevailing at the time of preparation of the Estimated
Principal Amount, by Fieldman Rolapp & Associates, Inc., the District’s Municipal Advisor.

Estimated Principal Amount. The Municipal Advisor has informed the District that, based on
the District’s financing plan and current market conditions, the good faith estimate of the aggregate
principal amount of the ISA is $5,525,000.00 (the “Estimated Principal Amount”).

True Interest Cost. The Municipal Advisor has informed the District that the good faith estimate
of the true interest cost of the ISA, which means the rate necessary to discount the amounts payable
on the respective principal and interest payment dates to the purchase price received for the ISA,
is 1.90%.

Finance Charge. The Municipal Advisor has informed the District that the good faith estimate
of the finance charge for the ISA, which means the sum of all fees and charges paid to third parties
for costs in connection with the execution and delivery of the ISA (the “Finance Charge”), is
$11,000.00.

Amount of Proceeds to be Received. The Municipal Advisor has informed the District that the
good faith estimate of the amount of proceeds of the ISA expected to be received by the District,
less the Finance Charge, and any reserves or capitalized interest paid or funded with proceeds of
the ISA, is $5,525,000.00.

Total Payment Amount. The Municipal Advisor has informed the District that the good faith
estimate of the total payment amount, which means the sum total of all principal and interest
payments made for the ISA, plus the Finance Charge, not paid with proceeds of the financing,
calculated to the final maturity of the ISA, is $7,504,452.08.

The foregoing estimates constitute good faith estimates only. The estimates above may differ from
the actual amounts due to (a) the actual dated date of the ISA being different from the date assumed
for purposes of such estimates, (b) the actual aggregate principal amount of the ISA being different
from the Estimated Principal Amount, (c) the actual amortization of the debt service on the ISA
being different from the amortization assumed for purposes of such estimates, (d) other market
conditions, or (e) alterations in the District’s financing plan, or a combination of such factors. The
actual dated date of the ISA and the actual aggregate principal amount of the ISA will be determined
by the District based on market conditions and other factors.

Resolution No. 2025-29 B-1



November 17, 2025

TO: Honorable President and Board of Directors
FROM: Lindsay J. Leahy, General Manager

SUBJECT: LEGISLATIVE AND REGULATORY REPORT - November 2025

PURPOSE:

To provide the Board of Directors with an update on current and developing legislative and
regulatory matters that may impact District operations.

SUMMARY:

The 2026 legislative session begins on January 5, 2026. Several legislative proposals were
presented for consideration at the November 7, 2025, Association of California Water Agencies
(ACWA) Legislative Committee, including a Low-Income Water Rate Assistance and Surplus
Land Act discussed in more detail below.

Low-Income Water Rate Assistance (LIRA)

The two competing LIRA bills introduced in the 2025 legislative session, Senator Durazo’s
Senate Bill 350 (SB 350) and Assembly Bill 532, sponsored by the California Municipal Utilities
Association (CMUA), did not move forward. CMUA will not re-introduce their legislation to
provide statutory protection to water agencies with existing LIRA programs and Senator
Durazo’s office is not expected to move forward with SB 350 due to a lack of funding source
for a LIRA program.

Amador Water Agency requested ACWA support for a legislative proposal based on the SB
350 framework that would establish a Water Rate Assistance Fund in the State Treasury to
provide direct water bill assistance to low-income residential ratepayers. The program would
be entirely funded by the fund or other available state or federal funding. On November 7,
2025, the ACWA Legislative Committee voted to support the proposed legislation in concept
and refer to the ACWA LIRA Working Group. Staff is a member of the LIRA Working Group.

It is expected that LIRA will remain a priority issue during the 2026 legislative session and staff
will continue to keep the Board updated on developing legislative efforts.

Surplus Land Act

The Surplus Lands Act (SLA) is a law designed to prioritize affordable housing development
when public agencies dispose of land. Under the SLA, before a local agency can sell surplus
property, it must notify the Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD), Local
public entities, and hundreds of developers registered with the HCD and give affordable
housing developers the first opportunity to purchase the surplus property.



El Dorado Irrigation District requested ACWA support for a legislative proposal to amend the
SLA by adding a narrow, objective exemption for rural parcels that cannot reasonably support
housing development to enable sensible public-use dispositions of land unsuited for housing.
On November 7, 2025, the ACWA Legislative Committee voted to support the proposed
legislation.

Water Quality Public Health Goals

The Office of Environmental Health and Hazard Assessment (OEHHA) is responsible for
developing Public Health Goals (PHGs) for contaminants in drinking water. PHGs are
concentrations of chemicals in drinking water that pose no significant risk to health, are non-
regulatory in nature and used as the health basis to support the state’s primary drinking water
standards. Water suppliers are required to produce a report on PHGs every three years.
OEHHA has recently announced it is developing new and updated PHGs for several chemicals,
including arsenic, 1,4-Dioxane and Perfluorohexane Sulfonic Acid (PFHxS).

Of particular concern is the proposed PHG for 1,4-dioxane in drinking water of 0.04 parts per
billion as it is highly soluble in water and does not readily break down or filter out through
conventional treatment methods, requiring advanced oxidation treatment processes. The San
Diego County Water Authority is participating in an ACWA working group on the proposed PHG
for 1,4-Dioxane, and is expected to sign on to a coalition letter that will be submitted to the
State Water Resources Control Board.

Senate Bill 72 — California Water Plan

Senate Bill 72 (SB 72) unanimously passed the legislature and was signed into law by
Governor Newsom on October 1, 2025. SB 72 directs the Department of Water Resources
(DWR) to modernize the California Water Plan and develop a range of supply targets that
consider future scenarios with a 50-year planning horizon at a watershed scale. The District
actively participated and contributed to this important three-year effort to modernize California’s
Water Plan.

The final legislation includes provisions to ensure local agencies have stakeholder engagement
with the California Water Commission and advisory committee during the California Water Plan
updates. Staff will remain engaged in advocacy efforts and provide updates to the Board.

Department of Water Resources Working Group (Senate Bill 1157)

The Department of Water Resources (DWR) selected staff to serve on the Senate Bill 1157
Benefits and Impacts Working Group (SB 1157 Working Group). The first meeting was held on
September 29, 2025. The purpose of the SB 1157 Working Group is to assess operational and
affordability impacts of the reduced indoor residential standard of 42 GPCD on water,
wastewater and recycled water systems. Members will provide input on key policy,
environmental and technical considerations to support DWR in evaluating the benefits and
impacts of the reduced indoor standard. The findings must be summarized in a report to the
Legislature by October 1, 2028.

A Region 10 ACWA group has been established to strategize and ensure regional agencies
concerns are addressed. The next SB 1157 Working Group meeting is scheduled for January
13, 2026.



Proposition 4 Funding

The Governor's multi-year spending plan to implement Proposition 4, a $10 billion bond
measure focused on increasing the state’s resilience to the impacts of climate change, was
approved by the legislature. Staff is participating in an ACWA workgroup to prioritize funding
requests to submit to the Governor's office for inclusion in the January 10 budget
announcement and continued budget advocacy next year. Additionally, the District continues
to work with our state and federal lobbyists to advance the District's funding priorities, which
include statewide and regional funding for conveyance and storage, support for sustainable
agricultural operations and wildfire and forest resilience.

Urban Water Management Plan

Staff is moving forward with Hoch Consulting to prepare the 2025 Urban Water Management
Plan (UWMP). The 2025 UWMP and WSCP are both due to DWR by July 1, 2026.

DWR is updating its 2025 UWMP Guidebook and anticipates releasing a draft for public review
in November 2025. DWR staff has scheduled a meeting on November 17, 2025, to discuss the
draft Guidebook which will be posted to DWR's website ahead of the meeting. The deadline to
provide comment on the draft Guidebook is December 2, 2025.

RECOMMENDATION:

No action required, informational item only.

PREPARED BY: SUBMITTED BY:

LI I 0L

Alisa Nichols Lihdsa .I/tgahy d’

Special Projects and Regulatory General Marager
Compliance Manager




SUMMARY OF FORMAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING
OCTOBER 23, 2025

Monthly Treasurer’s Report on Investments and Cash Flow.
The Board noted and filed the monthly Treasurer’s Report

Establish 2026 Board meeting dates.

The Board approved March regular Board meeting date of March 19, 2026, combined the November
and December Board meeting dates to November 19, 2026, and approved the 2026 Board meeting
dates calendar.

Amendment to extend the agreement with Industrial Scientific Corporation for Lease of Air
Monitoring Equipment System.

The Board amended the agreement with Industrial Scientific Corporation for continued services to
the Water Authority through December 31, 2027 by $171,227.48 for a period of 24 additional
months; increasing total contract funding to an amount not to exceed $246,820.58.

Professional Services Contract Amendments for pool of Financial Advisors for as-needed financial

advisor services.

The Board authorized the General Manager to execute amendments to the professional services
contracts for Acacia Financial Group, Inc., in the amount of $38,651; Clean Energy Capital
Securities, LLC, in the amount of $36,076; and Montague DeRose and Associates, LLC, in the
amount of $114,123; and to extend the agreement term for each contract an additional two years,
for continued as-needed financial advisor services.

Proposed 2026 Legislative Policy Guidelines.
The Board approved the proposed 2026 Legislative Policy Guidelines.

Amendment with Trane U.S. Inc, dba Southern California Trane for heating, ventilation, and air
conditioning maintenance, inspection, and monitoring services.

The Board approved Amendment 3, with such non-material modifications as approved by the
General Manager or General Counsel, to the services contract with Trane U.S. Inc, dba Southern
California Trane (Trane) for heating, ventilation, and air conditioning (HVAC) maintenance and
monitoring services for a not-to-exceed amount of $150,000, increasing the authorized cumulative
amount from $150,000 to $300,000, extending the termination date through November 30, 2026,
and authorized the General Manager, or designee, to execute the amendment.

Amendment with Rancho Santa Fe Security Systems, Inc. for mobile solar security surveillance
trailers with 24/7 monitoring and dispatch services.

The Board approved Amendment 2, with such non-material modifications as approved by the
General Manager or General Counsel, to the services contract with Rancho Santa Fe Security
Systems, Inc. for mobile solar security surveillance trailers with 24/7 monitoring and dispatch
services for a not-to-exceed amount of $150,000, increasing the authorized cumulative amount




10.

11.

from $149,000 to $299,000, and authorized the General Manager, or designee, to execute the
amendment.

Adopt position on various bills.
The Board adopted a position of Support on H.R. 4733 (Sorenson), Low-Income Household Water
Assistance Program (LIHWAP) Establishment Act.

The Board approved the minutes of the Formal Board of Directors” meeting of July 24, 2025.

Director Retirement Resolution.

The Board adopted Resolution No. 2025-18, a Resolution of the Board of Directors of the San
Diego County Water Authority, honoring Gary Croucher upon his retirement from the Board of
Directors.

General Counsel Contract Amendment.

The Board approved a five percent COLA increase to salary for October 3, 2025 through October
2, 2026, and a one-time performance award equivalent to three percent of the base salary effective
October 3, 2025.



November 17, 2025

TO: Honorable President & Board of Directors
FROM: Lindsay Leahy, General Manager
SUBJECT: DISTRICT MONTHLY STATUS REPORT - SEPTEMBER 2025

PURPOSE:

To provide the Board with a status report on District operations, activities and projects.

SUMMARY:

For the month ending September 30, 2025, the following reports are presented by the Operations,
Engineering, Finance, Information Technology (1.T.), and General Administration Departments:

I. OPERATIONS DEPARTMENT:

A. WATER / WASTEWATER DIVISION: FY FY

SEPT SEPT 2025-26 2024-25

Water Operations 2025 2024 to Date to Date

Flow (average cfs) 25.21 29.63 26.36 30.18

Total Rainfall (inches) 0.45 0 0.47 0

Average 24 Hr. Temp. (EF) 73 73 73 75

Average High Temp. (EF) 85 87 87 90

Water Purchases (A.F.) 1,506.39 1,763.43 4,819.36 5,513.4

Budgeted Projected Actual

2025-26 2025-26 2024-25

Water Sales (A.F.) 12,500.0 12,500.0 13,884.7

F.Y.

AUG JULY 2024-25

Power Purchases 2025 2025 to Date
Electricity and Natural Gas

Total kWh Purchased 762,465 507,783 1,270,248

Avg. Cost/kWh $0.230109 $0.268903 $0.245617

Total Therms Purchased 11,366 46,660 58,062

Avg. Cost/Therm $1.39602  $1.31787 $1.33317

SEPTEMBER 2025
November 17, 2025 1 Monthly Status Report



i IBN” Plel\8126f0.dSIDVA - $202/8/6

‘pealesey s Y "SIDUES Aq L D UOR 4] D1y UIRUS) LONAOHd AIAYIA 84 Jo susiod

S8wWoH 000°L 1emod jm M |
SHeMOIN Qoo.h 10 tm\smm&e -MN
SHEM 000°L 10 emojiy - My
suwiiag

MIE'L ‘8oL
MILEY  @Imind - (4) Sd 49N @
MY898  8INiNd - Sd yuomsleg @
S3}Ig Jejog ainin4 pasodoud
M98’ L |B101 - S3US (6) x
auljuQ sajig Jejos

S

e

N

. z
‘5
o/ =
1&
Pa=®
- e —
[ = Qy 13
I o TR
= .
3 .
O e
3 X
2
(]

)

L&

.+ <2< Mioe - uoneys dwnd Wrw

..
)
A

-~

g

>4
v |
o .
o/
ol
g|
1

MWL’ - Jown] o%eq |

—_—

E ﬁ S oneT ../*.@ﬁr

T HIINZO >m.j<ﬂ1¥

= .
ad 37TvA 34 Yveis:
.

e . SdYyuomsyag
eicion & z /
ide = AN =
. .%IA‘ m / 4 A\ .
o __r A 3"
2 g (8) Sd 421N e e \..f}r/.w..
' - X < SO
IS ZS) - Aljoed 0uml__onhoo ¢ .* f .@ o e BUSY 010 Wli..{h.
————— —amaaay | _ ..unﬂma»m._éiooo =
[, P i -
: . 7m
- m
R
1 & =
AMILG - S8Y AdlleA 100D |2
_ruw,

S1O3Arodd ASY3IN F19VMIANIY
juswipeds sanijioe pue suonelado

M0 - (V) "e1s dwing Jalipy
- - = f .




Wastewater SEPT SEPT SEPT

Daily Flows (Average M.G.D.) 2025 2024 2023

Moosa .288 .266 277

Woods Valley 122 122 118

F.Y. F.Y.

SEPT SEPT 2025-26 2024-25

Recycled Water 2025 2024 to Date to Date

Woods Valley Ranch WWRF (A.F.) 11.30 11.27 34.94 35.32

B. CUSTOMER CONTACTS: F.Y. F.Y.

SEPT SEPT 2025-26  2024-245

Customer Service Requests: 2025 2024 to Date to Date

Backflow Leaking 8 8 18 16

Conservation 0 0 0 0

Facilities Damaged by Others 0 1 1 1

Leaks 27 21 75 81

Miscellaneous 21 24 70 59

No Water 7 6 18 19

Pressure 13 7 46 31

Sewer 0 0 0 0

STEP System 2 4 8 10

Water Quality 0 4 4 4
After-Hour Call-Outs

SCADA 2 2 10 9

Customer 30 23 85 84

C. SAFETY MEETINGS:

Safety Meetings

09/02/25 - Fall Protection (Bill Morris)
09/09/25 - Stormwater Run-Off (Bill Morris)
09/16/25 - Back Safety (Bill Morris)

SEPTEMBER 2025
November 17, 2025 2 Monthly Status Report



Seminars/Meetings

09/11/25 -  Recycled Water Site Supervisor Certification training webinar attended
by David Frank and Mario Cortes

D. SECURITY: F.Y. F.Y.
SEPT SEPT 2025-26 2024-25
2025 2024 to Date to Date

Trespassing/Break-ins 0 0 0 5
Vandalism 0 0 1 0
Threats/Suspicious Activity 0 0 0 0
Theft 0 0 0 0
E. METER SERVICES DIVISION: F.Y. F.Y.
SEPT 2025-26  2024-25
Installation/Maintenance/Repair 2025 to Date to Date
Meters Installed 3 13 16
Meter Service Repairs 6 18 13
Total Meters Exchanged 18 66 53
Meter Flow Test Bench
Meters Tested 11 47 28
Backflow Program
RP & DC Devices
Tested 517 1,634 1,616
Repaired 30 98 80
Installed 21 48 45
F. WATER FACILITIES DIVISION: F.Y. F.Y.
SEPT 2025-26  2024-25
Pump Maintenance 2025 to Date to Date
Pumps Pulled 1 1 0
Electric Motors Repaired 0 1 2
Electric Motors Rewound 0 0 0
G. CONSTRUCTION & MAINTENANCE DIVISION: F.Y. F.Y.
SEPT 2025-26 2024-25
Pipeline Maintenance/Repair 2025 to Date to Date
Mainline Repairs 1 19 6
Shutdowns 1 5 2
Shutdowns Due to New Construction 3 8 3

Valve Maintenance
Quad completed: A - K
80% through Quad L

Leak Detection Program Status

SEPTEMBER 2025
November 17, 2025 3 Monthly Status Report



100% of facilities detected through Quads: A — K
80% of facilities detected through Quad L

Landscape (Reservoirs) Maintenance
Station Maintenance

H. VEHICLE MAINTENANCE:

Vehicles Serviced
Miles Driven
Gallons of Fuel Consumed — Vehicles
Gallons of Fuel Consumed — Equipment
MPG (average)

Pickup Trucks MPG

Service Trucks MPG
Average Vehicle Miles

Total Mileage on Vehicles
Total Number of Vehicles in Fleet

Vehicles in Service
Surplus Vehicles Available

November 17, 2025 4

SEPT F.Y.2025-26 F.Y.2024-25

2025
19

SEPT
2025

26,682
2,206
118
12.4
14.7
7.1
523

65
63

to Date
283

F.Y.
2025-26
to Date
12
89,447
6,676
429
12.1
13.9
7.0

541

4,400,839

to Date
58

F.Y.
2024-25
to Date

13
87,673
7,469
590
11.9
13.5
7.7
562

4,209,158

SEPTEMBER 2025
Monthly Status Report



jjo} umwn_ ¥BPCSZ 143S 01314 - Aewwns efoid 19\(5Z'00°00) Jeqweides go-5Z02anoday sniEg ALLAL dey enjeig Ay 0 PBOEUIWRWS

deq plely Kiewuwng sjpoaloid pspund [eyde)

Buiur adid
Ae|p pauupA weisAs

MM siiedas Bupew I0J0BHUOD %06 %06 000'6L1$ 61-8L  UORIBJI0D BSOOW JOMOT OF|E€S-82-90-€l

Al3dvs %0 %0 000°01$ 92-5¢ wesAg YAeQ enosey 0zZ8L5-82-90-L0
we)s S
Bunsoog aulwelolyy

ned 18pIO UO %09 %0 005'viC$ ¥2-€C OIS Jonlesey asipeled (0€615-8.-90-10
SjusLade| 8y Joue)S

Wed ssaiboid ul uone|ejsu| ‘paaleday %0z %02 000'09% ve-£C }OS JOJOW OL109|3 08815-82-90-10

Wed 18pI0 UO %0S %05 000°'00Z$ 9¢-s¢ JopeoT soudeg 9/¢16-82-90-10
qed
mal1n - yony dnyoid

wed ssaib0id Ul BURMYINO XoNJL PeAIBosY %08  %ST 000°'c9$ 9g-92 uol g/l -sepIueA L/£15-82-90-10
qe)
enx3 - syond] dnyjoid

Wed [eAoiddy Od pieog Bunemy spig poaeoey %SZ  %S2 000°'9€Z$ 9¢-GC U0l g/| A0 - S8|0IUeA L/E1G-8.-90-10

Wed ‘PERINO BumeD INO ¥OnUL YIPIOOH %0S  %0S 008'85Z$ £2-22 MoniL YIMOOH - SeIyeA €2¢16-82-90-10
SIOYUON

Wed sseiBoud u uononysuod %SL %Sl 0¢e'9s$ €2-2C Jamod uonejs dwnd 08015-8.-90-10
uonewony
pue apesbdn sjonuod

Wed ssaifoid Ul UCHONNSUOD %EE  %EE 000°061$ L1-91 euibu3 seo (eJmeN 05015-82-90-1L0

1d3s onv  jueynsuod 1eBpng pezuo
e SuBLILOS ejeidwon &, [ J10jdRIUCH weloid 9202 Y oweN -oN j00f01g

|elol 6Z0Z yebpng ‘A4
sjoRIUOY)

ININLNVYd3A d13id



Il. ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT:
A. ENGINEERING SERVICES:

September  August Y. F.Y.

2025 2025 2025-26 2024-25

- _"“ To Date Total
Fire Meter Sales 3 0 5 36
Meter Sales 0 0 1 31
Meter Relocation 0 0 1 3
Meter Resize 0 0 1 3
Maps Processed (PF letters) 1 0 1 15
Agency Clearances Signed 5 6 16 70
Fire Hydrants/Special Projects Accepted 0 1 1 6
Underground Senvice Alerts/Mark-Outs 244 339 1,004 4604
Potable Construction Meters 3 3 7 30
One Day Permits 0 0 0 1
Wastewater inspections 0 0 1 2

General Activit

In addition to the items listed in the above table, Engineering Services staff assists with
encroachment permits and violations, provides information for mark outs and helps customers
with water conservation questions, and available rebate programs.

B. GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS):

The GIS team continuously adds or updates facility data in the system as changes occur,
supporting project managers with maps, exhibits, and data analysis.

The following took place in September:

1. Water and wastewater infrastructure updates included adding or updating 43
valves/appurtenances, 48 laterals and fittings to existing meters, 15 water meter location
updates via GNSS coordinates, and 12 backflow devices. Edits generated from 3 as-built
record drawings were completed and 9 map exhibits were produced. SanGIS updates
were downloaded for the most recent addresses, parcels, right-of-way and roads.

2. Engineering Technician support continued with updates to water meters and laterals using
GNSS coordinates provided by the Field Department.

SEPTEMBER 2025
November 17, 2025 5 Monthly Status Report



3. Monitoring software review conducted with the consultant to evaluate existing alert criteria,
implement necessary adjustments, and verify that the fully implemented system is

configured and functioning as intended.

C. EASEMENT ENCROACHMENTS:

Summary of Activities:

In the month of September, no new Permits for were created and no new Violations were

discovered. All other existing files are still pending.

ENCROACHMENTS STATUS TABLE

Encroachment Violations L  Encroachment Permits
Pendin, T District Pendin
9/1/2025-9/30/2025 Evaivai.ign Re(:::::ion Resolution Evaluati:n Btive Permis
Beginning log i1 20 11 18 11
Plus New 0 0 0 0 0
Less Completed 0 0 1) 0 0
Ending Log 11 20 11 18 i1

Encroachment VIOLATION Footnotes:

Pending Evaluation — This column represents the status of reported encroachment violations. The
number of new violations reported during the month is indicated along with the number of
violations that were resolved during the month. Resolution may result in either a) the property
owner agreeing to remove the encroachment violation, b) in some cases, the District allowing the
encroachment violation to remain pending resolution by the District, c) issuance of an
encroachment permit that allows the encroachment to remain as is, or d) issuance of an
encroachment permit that requires modification of the encroachment by the owner. Once the
course of action for resolution of the encroachment violation has been determined, it is shown
completed in the Pending Evaluation column and becomes a new item in either the Owner
Resolution Column, the District Resolution Column, or the Active Permit Column.

Owner_Resolution — Removal of the encroachment violation is a property owner action
requirement and will be inspected by District staff. The number of encroachment violations
that were removed during the month is indicated as completed in this column.

District Resolution — Staff has determined that the encroachment violation is not a result of the
current owner's action and has agreed to allow the encroachment to remain pending resolution
by the District. The encroachment violation is properly documented and made clear to the
owner that the District is not responsible for damage to the encroachment as a result of the
operation, maintenance, or failure of the District's facility in the easement.

Encroachment PERMIT Footnotes:

Pending Evaluation — This column represents the status of requests to construct facilities or
other improvements within a District easement under review and consideration. The number
of requests received during the month is indicated as new and the number of requests resolved
is indicated as completed. Resolution of the request included either a) denial of the
encroachment request, or b) issuance of an encroachment permit. Many times, the encroachment
permits are issued concurrently with the completion of the work. Encroachment permits that will
require further follow up inspection are shown in the Active Permits column.

SEPTEMBER 2025

November 17, 2025 6 Monthly Status Report



Active Permits — This column shows the status of encroachment permits approved by District
with work in progress and being inspected by District staff. Although the work is authorized,
work may not commence immediately.

D. DEVELOPER FUNDED PROJECTS:
See Table I and Location Map for project details and general status of the Special Projects,

Private Low-Pressure Wastewater Collection System Installations, and Cell Site Projects that
are in process.

See Table Il and Location Map for general status of all Developer-Funded Projects.

SEPTEMBER 2025
November 17, 2025 7 Monthly Status Report



$Z0Z Jequieydes ¢ jo | eBed Arewwng s3sefold sesjales BupesujBug
‘§20Z 1840190 [HUh AHURLIRM JRek . JUBIPAH edi4
-1 uj mou s} joefoud ey | 18} J8qo)aQ peuljs sem sourjdesae jeujy vzoz/Liol %001 punoJBiepur) 15200 159M 0064e$ VN ZopuBLUeH 81 158U BlUBZUBY [ 20pUBLLSH 88
*9Z0Z ‘LI sunr yBnoup poped Queuepm seel-| u| punouBiepun ) odny epBa; WBIPAH o114
'§Z0Z ‘L1 sunf penss| sauejdesse jeulq seoz/LHe o0} 15800 180 005'ze$ YEOZ/ELLL siouped HHr 8JoUEBA HHT - AllBNOW €8
"FROAS Ylim PeInpoyas eq o) speeul |3S X0M SIYL "PeoY 6pRID NejWweH uopueig
ejoy Bujssois sap|iae) Jejem pesodosd jo uope|esu ujBeq wob -0 USHIMISUOT £60'c9¢ SZ0ZLIY Bupesu|buz ejooong jiud Alquessy Jowseje( all4 pue aslAIes slisewog 7
0} eBe)yard [gaujoe|e punole J}np 0} seY 9 %0 o_qmwx.m_oe_u:m_ leldeN eor € 'ON Uonels edi4 "3'A
‘ureuLIe}em Bi & Uoy: vady pedde) Joy 2 ’
*$Z0Z ysnBny esu)s
fapanow oN ‘sulefonb vy Bujziel aj Joud Aunog elp Aq perelduics %06 Bupesu|buz |eitzg 000°2$ WIN TEUBETT PIUEH WepPIND PIweH 9
useq sey ssesaid By} UoBULIJUDD SaJinbes GAMWDA "ebeeloe i : B U )
0] delu Uoisialpgns Jouiy ey) Bunleas. jo sseooud el ul st jeyBer up
dwnd Jepuug)
. SHIOMPUBT JIMD UM Jemes pue solaleg elld/Blujnsewog
sjusweAosdus] uno) e)s o pejs|duios UG PeXIOM JOJIRNUOT %66 splelys uewBiz Buipued £20ZRIS eI e by epels 9
8100  PH DA 18 @l0l5 pue Uojels seg OOHY
'920Z Atenuer yBnouyy popeg Kueuspy Jesk-| uj f . aild Py AU
‘620z '6 Alenue( penss) eourdeaaw el 5202/6/1 %001 euliedid seAIqQ 599'82$ VIN S5a[Y PIAEQ ¥o0nRE|E - WeIpAH edld ‘P Auouiuy 4]
8y09 sA661Z - £ ud
‘esuejdease [euy Ul SeIER0SSY PUB UOSSEN soususunddy pue Buuepip uwwm_wwm_mw
100fosd Bujngs) 03 soud sujewes wey 3si] Yyaund Bujpurysino sup szozfe/ol %001 ou "ealo} Joqe ofed WL 862764 Lz0z/BLie M_Em.m&-m@__wmﬂm.mqm uolje[esu| ealnleg el - | Ud 4
* Jejuel jend
uoZUoH o} Jusocelpe Jejus?y) |iBley |enbsed ueg
“£202
lequieidesg eauls ) p sujewel Jaefosd sy ] "A|np Ul Yauss} sul '
(Buipeig) [elusy \ Bupeeu(Bug UUAM dwing Jepuusm 's3lABs elld B
oo ﬂ.._mwowwﬁww__www MHHM_M“H“ Seee N s . wewdinbg AneeH [Zeip | 000'00¥S | Z2EIML | srpraRTT AT JeWeD ASTIEA | Buieiep Jeiueg Buiddoyg - ezeld peoy seli | 5
jouues Gunse ‘pe||ejsul useq eAey seni|ioe) Jejem pesodoud |y
i e e BTG 8 &3 SRER %56 uohonAasuo) DL VIN ¢z0efe/LL $5630Y pue uoheoajey sulielBp; Qin_“:\_,w.u_ow_ﬂ -1
A I I !
uj 83803 Leains pur Bupesu|Bue [puy uo Bupiem s1 Jedojeasq “peloid 300 B AMNATY - SIEST PIHUOM

AAVIAINNS S1O3rodd S3DIAYNAS ONIRMIIANIONG - 1 319vVL
INIWLUVYHIA ONIRIFINIONT




620z Jequeldes

‘Buizis yady
0j0|dwo? 0) pesinbes sisAjeue Mo)j ey pejsenbeu Jedojeaeq

*9Z0Z Ain YBnouyy AyueLiem Jeek-| Jepun | 1oefold

*8Z0Z Ane YyBnomyy fueriem Jeef-| Jepun s| josfold

11e90] JuespAYy pesodo.d Jo}

ue(d e)s pejepdn UM QMINOA Bpiaosd 03 Jedojerep o) 1Bug

‘uopeso|
[eiejR] James |Bul) sujuLiBlep 0} sunp u| pjey Bupesw eysuo
Bumoljos eyewpise 3800 pue ue|d eys peyepdn Bupieme st Yng

‘uopE3o|
ssauf3 ssesBuj uo obe)g ueg jo fHunon ypum Bunjiom s) Jedojereq

‘uopaNIEU0D

Mejs 0) Apeeds ese Aeyj ueym Jojoedsu| uuouj o} Jedojereq

'9Z0Z 3snBny YBnou) popied AuURLIBAL Jeek-) U]
5Z0Z ‘Lz 3snBny penss| esuedease [euld

pz0z Asenuspr yBnouyy pousd AUBLRAL JReA-| U]
“§Z0Z ‘6 Auenuer penss) eauwjdesae Jeujd

"|eacidde fjunos
Jo} Bupieps “ueld [oRued syjes Aeujwijesd pepjugns JojIeNUOY

318 GO

%0

%001

STOZ/LIL %001

%0

%0

%0

%0

§20T/L2/8 %00}

seoz/erl %001

%0

€ jo Z ebed

Bulpueyd

Buipueyd

eujjedid seArIg

"ouy
Bupaenuoy |eleues) Blems

agl

aslL

(J|es) slUON erelg

au| s1ep|ing OVi

suljedid sBABIQ

1. N

Buipusd

Buipusd

806°LL$

Buipued

Buipued

Buipusd

[R2: ¥

120'8€$

0.Z'29%

000'L6%

Bujpued

Buipued

VN

Buipued

Buipued

Buipuegd

SZoz/ez/L

veoeiit

YyZoz/Le/L

Buipued

Jeyoog seljed % qog
971 yauey |eBuByosy

AloAr spnd

uewieny pinea

"oU| USHINNSUG] HZH

Buuesuibu3 ujuepuNps
71 'vwvl

bPeT 10

uonng AueT / zenbioyog ereQg

SLION 8UpAD) pUE eAelg

sope[Bd eued Jol|g

qgem ueeQ

qeuy aunp

*panupuog ‘HoezgL-00-00-10) s3aaloid [ejoeds

AUYVINAINS SL1O3rodd S3OIAYAS ONRIFINIONT - 1 318Vl

INIFNLNVJIA ONRIFINIONI

YadY Youey (ebueyary

uoHBLLOY) JOBMEISEM AIBAI

sjuelsActdLL) LBLIISTH

jueJpAH euld uled oy |

[eleje Jemeg ZLoeT]

sbelolg DT UAlereq

|elpe Jomes SLION

WeIpAH 8uld BUBS

d9 pue jeieie Jemeg 47 qqem

|eJoje Jemes 47 souilod

Krewung sj96fold sesiues BupesujBug

86

16

26

S6

€6

Z6

16

06

68



6202 Jequeideg ¢ jo ¢ ebed Arewuwng syoefold sesjaleg BupeeuBuy

-seumo Kpedoad ypm 6 (eue] Yooy Bl |1582) o
suojsires uejd joid dwnd tepupB yBnosyy 3oMm 0} peNURLOS YNNG %0 Buipued VIN uipued §2/0E/80 Aapnyo elAy
e (4EO fIeL 0E00L)
ou Usaq seY s1ey3 Inq $ZZ JO JOGIBAON U] SJUSLULIOT MBIAG) %0 Buipued VIN Buipued vZ/LE/OL Keukeg peg SE€611
ue|d woj yorq Bupeey jou Jsye Jedojeaep Lyym dn p 1lo} HY)g
*ZZ, 1snBny eouls Jewolsns woy (420 118 05001)
JOEILUOD ON 'P[OY UO MOU S| UONDNISUDY SlUoH "ZZ0Z Ul peseyaind 9,0 Buipued VIN Buipusd Buipued cINWeUOW AN 09LLL
SEM J6]6LU USUM JOLUOISNY 0} Jues sem uonewlojul dwnd Jepuus
“sauls AjlApoe o 'z, JequissoN Ul Buidid eysuo (1a¥eo el s9L01) veELL
1o} Bujyouel ueBaq pue yue | eun-3 el Jo} peyeaeaxe Jedojereq %0L palEisu] JBUMG VN velLo/80 eieLIL0 Z08.8 JOUBDIN
el je) saujs AjAnay (¥Z 107320 L) 66941
Jeump ON "ZZ, Jequeydes Ul [BRIWANS ueld peroidde pue pelsaey %0 Buipued VN £2192/60 £2/0z/60 seq|I\ weedey - Buipuels poos
‘allif} JBL)) 62U|S (2210760 (IBL) %6911
Ayapay JeumQ oN £z, Aenuer ul lepiwgng Bujuueld peacsddy %0 Bupued VN ee/aziLo ge/eziL0 seqy weeseH - Buipuelg pooD
"8l JBLY} 62Ul AMINOA ON “UdJei u) (zoypuBS BUBN 3 OPUBLLY)
YBnouy; yjem uopsedsul ue pewsoped pue uopeolddy weiboid %S6 pel|eisul Jsumo VN 8L/8Z/LL 8L8Z/L sieegedey | LY
eBieyos)qg Jejeme)sepp jejaleilwio) peacldde pue pessesosd yus
‘peacidde
6JOM S[BIULYNS [BLISJRIU PUR JUBLWIGIND0Sd [BLIGJEW JOJ JOJSLUR|P %0 Bujpued Bujpued Bujpued 19M e luey jueIpAH el 10AA e 66
edid pejlieA J030U0D ‘Peacidde SBEM 8JURINSU| JOJORIJUCD

._.a...._u...oo ‘bz 81-00-00-10) uuoa__o._._ fejoadg

AUYINIINS S103rodd S30IAY3S ONIRMIINIONT - 1 318V
ININLAUVdIA ONIRIFINIONS



$Z0Z Jequieydag ¢ Jo | ebed Kiewwng sjyoefoid pepund Jedojarag
9202 doniy (@ poouoquBieN)
Jo AiBnuqed [un popied AjueLuiem seek-, uj 190osd S2I82IZ0 %00) | mewry/sseg sLaLLL 6L/SLY0 N I NP SOHUNILILIOD BUOIBYINOL,
£095 WL R
yeig BunesuiBuz &
9202 | oz | woor | eewwmees oziekoL | LI SHosnoL o | M0 NP %u_::hwwwoh%ﬁ”% £z
36 Aieniqed [pun poued Ajuriiem Jeek-| U] J9efoid 4 ; g BupesuiBuy €095 WL ofolo ed
UoS|IA Jexe(
(2 %2 v spoowoqubieu)
‘9z0Z o €72 Z5un {senilioed euogioEg)
Jo Aigniqe 4 jpun popsd Ausitem Jesh-| up 1a8foid S2/82120 %00} esegd | ooo0'00k'ss | 6MSZILO BLISLIVD A NP samunWon suosiono)
eIodID ed
'910Z AIne oauls A1AROY AMINOA ON “AlB)uyepul
pofe|ap 24 ||m UopaniIsuos ‘juswse.By pioH uel B Jepun (Buuesusbuz Buop
joolord YN “910Z AINr Ul pepioos) sem dei [Buld 8y} pue 0SZ'0LYS SLioe/n L pA L] W] B pexng ApsuLo)) [1]3 Nr opD 13 [44
Aunog sy Agq peaocidde jueweesBy ploH us|T B uswsasiby "ou| ‘IMa
uel ior ‘Uoisiaipgns aAaosdw| o} JusweeiByy julor
'Z20Z Jequeydag eauls Ajjajor GMIWOA ON (‘ou) “ae@
'2202 Jequejdas Ul Jadojaaep au} 0} PeRISUEL]} 0L2'981L$ Z2R0/60 sLBbioL "00sSY pue sizedg W[ brLLls WL NP smopeely uojfulysem) 6l
pue Jowsiq eu} Aqg paubis eiem sue|d pue dew feuy ayj SYBQ eyl
‘5202 uogannsuc) . 06902 uswdojsaeg
40 Jsquieaeq jgun poped Aumires meef | up oj jaeford | YEOTEMTY %004 . 105°8LE$ 228011 91/91/50 Bupesu|Buz TyOV 8 || ¢peo0z NP enoio Buppn | 40
"sjuslwWod pepiacid pue MejAsy Joj
juewesiBy eoUBUGUIBY YRIP POAISIEY JelS "POMB|Ae]
pue pejepdn Buleq ese syodey |pjuswiuoAU]
‘sjueuodoud 3oefosd ey Wwoly 3oy pigey Jou Jng FOUME oL} LM Jue.d
‘uopes|dde uopexeuue pue Hodey uBjseq Kieupujeld Ayoed ous oy seojnies
jusuwieBeurw Bugpjaosd
Jeip oty Uo sjuUeWLIOD peplaosd Ajsnojaeud yeis 81 (dMo) s
(3ma) Bupesuibug oM ojuswRISRS - sWeiBoid 90
§Z/E/01 - seudx3 q uoisie uejdiiopm uosiipm tepxeq 18JEM 4O 8O0
‘peoy UopeXeuuy
0.N(] j8 821ALaS J8)BM 10} SURIPU) UoISSIW Jo pued fenbsed HO0S8Y PIOJIYOAA BYET
uBg ey jo uonedisnied ey Guippe pue posel sl saies
0) pepaau sail|iae) Jajem ejeaud ey Jo 81509 Buluueld pue
uoljexaliuy [euohippe puny o} ueidsLoM JUBIS GOHMS 8U)
0} ( JUBWIPUBWIY JO GZ, AIBNUET Ul [2Aoidde PBUBIo dMO
" Kienuqey esuls KA OoN"' Aeruge
sioz o4 12 IANSY GMINDA N ‘8L0z . 659'991% 9LIFO/Zo ¥Liv0/80 Buuseuibuz TyoY 4 1-OLLSWL NP geje1s3 juowjsg S0

juas eyepdn smels Bugsenbal Jepe| o] esuodses oN

AUYVYNNNS S103rodd a3aNnd ¥3d4013A3a - 11 318vL
ININLHVd3IA ONIRIIINIONI




§20Z Jequieideg ¥ jo Z ebBed Aiewwng sjasfoid pepund Jedojassq

‘eBestoe 0} dew peael o3 BujoB ase Aoy Jey)

NOREHISUINIE R PG ANINOS [N BOY N0 NISEID 122828 8L/0LOL | 60/LO/S0 wougees [ © | ol | 0s0SWL | oM uoismpans yeg | 9v

*L10Z ¥snBny eau|s HIAROY AMINOA ON V4d

peuBiis pue sue|d jo 1dieoai Buipuad meirel ueld ‘einjeubis
Joy Jedojereq 0} (V-4Q) ewesiby Ajjioed Jouisiq 000'6£9$ LbLZ0180 ELEZLO wbugess | © | 6 #18S WL oM ‘3 eurybug eeg 42
peniwgns pue pesedsid yeis ‘110z 1snBny u) 1osfosd

o) Joj |eaciddy 1desuc) penssi pieog sauls AjAnoe oN

*210Z 3snBny eatils A1ANIY AMINIA ON “Y-d

peubis pue sueid jo jdieosl Buipued meinal ueld ‘einjeubis
Jo} Jedojeas 03 (Y4q) JuswealBy Aljoed 1W8Iq LULo/80 ouI‘3lo | 9 81 9975 WL NP d epug oy
pepiwqgns pue pesedaid yeis ‘210z snBny ul osfosd

auj Jo} {eaoiddy 1desuon penss| pieog auls AYAloe ON

‘ofe](q ueg jo juno) woly [pAcsdde
euy Bupeme mou si Jedojereq "L AN peubls esem oW SZ/LTIPO s3an | a 95 ¥riv WL a3 1] 858U YoOIWRY 6€
sue|d |euy pue pig Ainp peacsdde sem ejewipse 1809 )

'TT0T

1840320 eatlls AARIY AMINIA ON "sweyl 1si yound
Bujuiews. sy uuoped o) pesjes Bujeq Jo sssevoid | sI %06 Hejzey 008'85+% 01/921L0 90/61/90 seH | 9 | 8kl NP SE[IIA UspIBS) dIap 1
1019B1U0D & PelEsipul ABYL "HOSOY NIOAA JO JBUMO MBU Bu)
“ollBpy W0y BARBIUEsaIdal UM JeW YBIS ‘2202 J8q0R0 Ul

'610Z 1640320 02U|s HIANIY AMINIA ON ‘sisdojersp
[eNPIAIPUI UM paso|dxe Jayuny 8q O} ‘WeisAs [BUNWIWO

& Joj siedofeAep Jaljo ypm Joye juiol Joj Alunpoddo ﬁ%ﬂnm%ﬂﬂmﬂﬁ% 5 2 SR {Bujuue|d) 183ue) 08
eq Aew eiay] ‘|lom sk eley ajqediidde aq ueo jey) edlAles ou] ‘IMG euma] sBuldg Jeeq
Jojemalsem Joj suando elojdxe o) jusuldo|paep jusoalpe
Jaupo Jo ebseyo uj Jeuue|d Aunod yum jew Ajsnoiaeld Yels
'81L0Z Aueniged eauls AIAROY AMINDIA ON ‘UBIsep
Jejem Buihelep s| yoiym Ajunos yBnouw sue|d ssesoid . 8 Bug A uolsuens
o} Buinunuos Jaumg *eyepdn pafoud pejsenber 'peldxe Lew'e0s vhverl vUvzRL uuesubuz Auved | 9 | ¥ 0s+0z NP oup sewoy ey | L
|eaoidde ued yeuy JeumQ Bujunoyur Jeye| eous Aanoe oN
{eucysysnoy Aq pepuny
i e sepijiory euogjorg)
$83{[198} jo Uofoedsu) fjueuem Jeek | penupuod yers »zi9ziao %001 | BloWy/sse] | GBL°LLLLS sueziL0 8LISLYD v | ozt , £ JUM - UOIBIAIPANS
a0 1Al
76 - seluoH uny pIEYDIO
slqepioly
yes Bupeeuibul 810 (euoysyanoy Aq pepuny
U no, - £y sap|jord suogioed)
'S81MII9%) Jo Uopoedsu) Kuessem seo | penupuoo yes | vaiszioo | wool [ o oM looowss | ewszuo | eusimo comounns | V| € [Fasr | N o towatsirs Il 52
uosjipm Jepeq oL-zZwn uny pleyato
8107
86 - LN (suoysyonoy Aq pepuny
e 2808 WL sapjjjor euoqgyoeg)
"$0R1I198} Jo uofjoedeu] fueLem Jeek | penupuod YuIg yZiveIe0 %00} | mewry/ssed | 009's68°LS | BLEZILO 8LSIHO v | oz L N - UOIINPYNS
uny pIeYO

AUVININNS S133rodd a3dnNnd ¥3d0T13A3a - 1l 318Vl
ININLHVHIA ONRIZINIONT



§Z0g Joquisydesg ¥ jo ¢ efed Aewiing sjaefoid papungd JadojeAeq
*Z20Z eunr esuls AIANOY AMIWNIA ON ‘Z20Z jo sunp
Ul %9EQ SjUSWIWCD Yoeyd ueid 181y pelinjes pue pessesold Buipued Bupinsuoco SS #9081 Wd NP :o_m..mwﬂmﬂw_“ﬁwﬁg 69
4e1S ‘Mmelrel o) sueld pejiwgns tesulbue sJedojeas )
'£20Z eunp edujs A)AnoY oN
‘Bugesw uononinsuoo-eid B BuliNPeYos LM pIBMIO) 8AOW
f . . | i€ oupueq Heqoy uojguepa sun
ueo Jedojesep ‘peufiis ele siejdul esuQ “einjeubls [euy Buipued BupesuiBy3 (1e3Xa i NP 101BM MEd AY 1180 KAl 19
10} GMWOA 0} pauinjes aq [im Asuy peaosdde esup ‘udy
souls jeaoidde Ayuno Bupieme ussd aAey ssejAw jeuld
“Mdd et jo 1diessl [yun pejedionue
s1 Ayanoe Yes Jeyuny oN “Buiuueld joefoud im premio
sAoW 0} Jou peyeidwod syodes ey 8ABY 0} SLI0YS BpEW JOU Buipuad BupesuBug uuim a0z OM uonels eBe|iA Qs
sBY JsumQ “Apedoud aBeIIIA UUON dADA 4O IIe Jo) (Had)
vodel ubisep Asujwiaid pejepdn pejsenbal Ajsnojaeld
i rdird
19qoI2Q Ul SIUSPNIS NSAS UM UCISSNOS|P [ERIU| 82UIS
Aanoy oN uewpedaq Buussuibul eyeg obelg ueg eaINIBg IO1BM
Purzimn suejid Yr Aq peynpuos Bujeq s Apnis *A|ddns Jejem aue|ld yr oM foueBiewig gy ucauny 99
Jo sainos Aousblelus ue 1oj UonEa0| UoBdauucs e Buluieigo ) )
jo uonen|eae Jiey Buipiebal suelpuy oussin jo pueq
UOSU[Y 0} UOHEUIPIOOD PUE aouplsisse Buipinaid st yes
Buposequos 1EyS Buneeufiug ( )
"920T pue aL0jsyano )  Jur) sewoHy
Jo Aeniged 1jun poued KQuesem seef-1 uj joeford suezeo %001 Buuesu|Buy \eiLeie0 8L/SUY0 g BupesuiBug 6L |[Z€09S WL NF JeZeeq epuiD ¥ed 9
IH uos|ipm Jexeqg
'2Z0T 18quianoN oul uolsueyXT eurT Jejep
89UIS AIANOY AMIWOA ON ‘ZZ0Z ‘Ol J8CLUSAON Bupusd | 000'552$ ze19LLL zz/L0/0 | Bublesuibuz Bukeains ! NP ABUIA BISIA BLINEY 85
uo paubis slem sueld 8oUIs SAROBUI SUjRLWISI 108]0id [)sBO) OYouRY ’
"¥20z ludy esuis [IAROY QMINDA ON 18)U00
'sBop! Jusweeibe uswesinqwie) vs1d l oM sBEIA Mopea)y LiEunapy 85
Jiayy 0} esuodsed 5,19U1SIQ MOIARI 0} SenupuUoo Jedojeaeq ) ’
"Bupsey € 1N W0 ) 1un) eloy e|qepioly
Joyem ueBeq pue Bujjse) Jemes pejejdwon Jojdenuo) %SL EIBUVISSED | 4y pepnpu | SHETIED BULLYO sueislpnoL e |€-L80S WL NP € NUn uny pIeysIo s
Ueauioug s ﬂ_._.r_mm_.__ﬂ:m «N 91 wa_EDV
"sopilioe} jo uogoedsu) Aueuem seef | penunuoo yais | vevazeo | %o | g S fcerzisns | ewszze | ewzivo e A S0l NP mseop ewoH & | 95
poRLUOD @ Buuesuibug uny pIELAIO
LH uos|ip Jeixeq
. Y=g w“ﬁﬂ”uw suun (v poowioquBien)
86LWOH Bl
J0 Aieniged [jun polied AueLiem Jesk | uy 5| efosg | SO0 %001 | Ejewsy/seeD BL/al/IL CINI 1 BugestiBul 88 m__o_ww h_p Nr o_e__.w fum S5
Los|IA Jexeq

AAVYINANS S1O3rodd d3adNNd ¥3d013A3a- 1 31avl
ININLHVdIA ONRIFINIONS




$Z0Z Jequweides ¥ jo p ebeg Krewwing s)oef{oid pepund Jedojeaeq
"210Z ‘2 soquieides pascidde sueid esuis AjAnse on 162'662% L16LIED 60/70/50 m_“wuw,mmwmﬁ_zv 6 | OPSWL Nr 3 el youey yenbiey 8¢
4 U3 91N
'€20C eunr edujs {ze1d Je)sunp)
£11An98 GMIOA ON "aunp ul Juswesibie Junoaoe yelosd 9LoLIS0 BuueeuiBua uuim § |09v0Z WdL N UDISUBIXE eUF] UoSIepLY 8
pue ysodap 000's$ 10} JoUMa Mall 0} jsenbal juas pIsIA . '
*sjueweAcidu| 103em posododd sjedod o3 penbes , uoynq Ausy (0a3ads)
Jueweinsoid [euejew Bupjeme ‘pjoy uo sj Jojdrljucy) %08 reuo Im 80v'v6$ szfeliso VN - BuuesuiBug spepiiy NP BZE|d SHEO OAIEN 8L
'ejal1]) sJed 0} Jejsuesy
Kyoedes jejuewiesdu) Joj sjuswedinbes Bupenjeae
Heys lenuqns Joy Apmys Bujuueld Jemes Bupedesd (uBlseq
$1 pue Apnys Bujuued sejem peyjuqns Buuesu|Bugy J1AI7) ButesuiBu3 Xory Viakidasg
Uos|IM 10)xeq "Juswdojea
it oloAsp st £q pejeioueD isjem Bulpued SlS oM |BUSPISEY UOISBAA) €L
po|sAd8a ays Jo uopeBiu) pue senjjoe) eBrio)s [eHOSRAS (Buiuue|d Jemesg pue se1E1s3) YOUBY YHON
‘uojsuedxe Ajoedes g eseyd JHM Uoury AejjeA SPOOM lejep) BupesuBuz
o) Joj sjuewed|nbes Bujpuny Buipnjau) yaefoid ey Joy UoS|IM Jepeq

sjusweJinbel 1aMos pue 18)eM 8y} SSNISIP 03 sJeeujBus
418U} pue Jeumg 336{oad eyy ynm jeu Ajsnolasid yeg

AUVINNNS S103rodd a3dNnd ¥3d013A3d - 11 318Vl

INIFNLAVdIA ONIRMIINIONT




TaR g iOmYR] Ty S on R Xy mina ok i+ A mdn o i el LES 179, ), - SLOLISTNG

prameg 1) Py RIOUS A1) pRRAAIT LogmLC T Soloml weno]y |UKI0M QA1 M) R 0 sty

S103r0ud H340T13A3A - 1! 319YL XX081-00-00-10 4&®

L7 T H™
m - AA_:dnmiﬂﬁﬂ I,@. ® ﬂﬂ-

= S

=0 30474 ysIN

SLO3rodd VID3dS - 1 ATEYL XXZ81-00-00°40
aN3Oa7

S103roydd J¥3d013A3a
juswpedaq Buusaubug




E. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS:

See Table Il and Location Map for general status of all Capital Improvement Projects.

SEPTEMBER 2025
November 17, 2025 8 Monthly Status Report



G202 Jaquisydes g Jo | abed Arewwng s)aalold papund |eydes)

'620¢ 19qedeq jo
. ojjuren g aseyd ubiseq
pue syj Aq ubjsep jeuy oy} jo uopejdwos sejedisnue yeys Joeloid opUBLL %26 | %16 8shoH-Uj Jusweoe|dey suledid Peoy spess) 8joD 06919
eujjadid | eseyd ey} Joj ubisep ey} e3e|dwios 0} SEnNURUOD JBIS
. yosen|iN (eseyd
Vv 8|npayag jo uolejdwos Buipued 3no eso|o joelosd uoser %66 | %66 | uoponusuog uouo | |, oloNASUOD) UoREscieY sunedid YoUlb) ST ON 00zZls
‘uonjels dwind |eliges | (eseud uonanIsuoD)
UBS ]k WooI [e3ios]e ey} ul Juswdinbe |ealjseje Buyes uebeq cw_wmm.w_.z %28 | %z8 | uononnysuo) uoug jusweslby Buipund pue ubisaq ‘Buluueld 08081
pue Buidid aBreyosip 10} uonesuqe; edid penunuos siojoesuon J eloid AeAljeg sanewsiyY 453 ON
‘Juswubije suljedid meires pue sieumo Anedoad ojjuien o o BuifaAing - DYSL (eseud pig/ubiseq) 0SLLG
pue 391138|q jOOYIS LM Sjuswieses Uo }iom o} Buinuiyuos yeys | opuewsq %SL | %SL (uBiseq) eshoy-y| uoneoojey auljadid Aempeoig UHON
JUBLUSSOSSE UO|HPUOD aqqels
eshoy ul Joj ejep Alojsiy yee| jo uoneiedssd penunuos yeis AlleM %0l | %0b Buipued JeWssessy UORPUOD sujedid 00515
*sj0efoad JeLjjo 1o} o|qe|ieAe 00 08$ Bulaee|
‘nedey ewined eq olle) o} Joj 000'05$ PuUe 3509 uonedioned aqqels
see1s3 PIOHYOM OUs Puny o3 000‘0Z1$ Pezinn Aisnotesd | Agepy | 70 | %0 VN Weweoeldey euledid peyedsun / Burzisdn | 02045
HEIS '000'052¢$ - 196png |enuuy $Z-£20Z Ad UNM uoheZioyInY
sjoefoid Add '@ sauljadid
owuN elasg e

AYVININNS S103rodd d3dNn4d v.1iidvO - il 319Vl
INJNLIVdIAd ONIMIIANIONT




$Z0Z Joquiaydeg 9 Jo Z abed Arewwng sjoafold papund jejde)
'ST0Z | UOSEBIN |, oo | oro0r "ou| 'sjejuey (eseud uononisuod) QL¥1S
‘gl 480} Spue pousd AjueLiepp Jeek-| “e1ejdwod s| joefold uose N ° juewdinbg meys ewasejdey suladid ABpA sdiy
'9Z0Z 1hun pejedionue si Joeloid siyy uo Aanoy oN ‘osfoud
sU1 yslidwoooe o0} sueswl Jayjo ensind [|m JB1S ‘sliyumuesyy "afiseD aqgelo N (eseyd Buuue|d)
PIO 01 198lo.d siu} 0} peubisse Buipunj juesb euy peziuocud-sl yeys Allem %02 | %02 8snoH-ul juswaoe|dey auledid peoy zenbupoy 0v8LS
‘shem J0 WBL YMDAS pue 32ods Unm sabus|ieys jusund sy usAlH
*sjuewiydeoIoUS pUe Sjusliosee ojjuien g (sseud pig ‘ubisaq)
Buizijeuy s1 yeys ‘suejd uBisep ey} ezijeuly 0) senupuod Yeys | opueuled %56 | %56 esnoH-ul 108l01d uonesoiey euljadid Jeddn |IH uopJoS) 0i61S
'18qo}oQ 0} pedejep
{eaoidde 3a1351Q 10} JusiaeiBy o|es Justujjeisuj 8y) jo AisAljep eqqess) dnoigy
pejesipul goMMS "Jusweesby ejeg juswj|e3su] ey} UO SIUBWILLOD Allepa %SE | %S€ Buluueld ehespig (uoissiugns) uoealiddy UEST JUSMA €202 IZiis
Buipnjau) suonsenb mairel §HHMS Ie 0} pepuodsal sey yeis
1senbeu juewesingsip
aseld Juswesinquiie
feuy Juugns o} euiy euorppe Buimolje BONMS woy uotsuerxe | A O | %66 | %66 8SNoH-U| =o_§__ma<,”m“._ e >>m o.mww 0zZLLS
peAledey ‘eunr Ajiee Ul peAjesel Sem g "ON juswesingsid A
‘sjusIndo( }oeijuos UoPINISUOD Uo ojjLLeD ) Alup ubiseq
Buijiom yeis -ubisep ezieuly o) Juejnsuod ubisep yum Bupliops | opuewle %06 | %06 SnoH-Ul Z 8seld - Juswaoe|dey euljedid peoy opseD piO ocrLs
penunuos ‘sjoafoid ANd ® seujjedid
S ‘oN

AYVINANNS S1O3rodd d3dNNnd Tv.iidvO - 1l 319Vl

ININLAVHIA ONI™IINIONS




G207 19quaydag g Jo ¢ abed Arewwng sjoafoid papund jepden
‘peAejep UolepusMILIOIBE
eslemyos ‘BuioB-uo ede suopenjeAs ‘sjuswelinbes juswnoop aqqelo A 6 UBWIrBo
juswpedep J8yj0 pue alemyos JusluaBeusw UOSNIISUOD JO UOlJEN|BAS Alea %0 %0 Buipusd WISISAS JUBIIBELEN JUS d 0Lllg
Jayuny Buipusd peAejep Jopuea aiemyos Jo} UoEpUBWIWOdaN
*(uopewolny esiidiejug) Jojesbezu) weisAs AMIWIA Aq pedojeasp
suealds JWH pue yefoid 483N ey} 1o} JojeiBejul weysAs aqqelo o o SeFoLt (eseuyd uonejuswsejdu)) 05216
ay} Aq pedojeaep BuiwweiBoid H1d Buimeires ul Juelnsuod Yym Allepn %02 | %0Z H-Ul | @seld we)sAg Jejepn - uonesBiyy INH/Yavos
JeyjeBo) yiom 03 snupuioo Jyejs 1| pue ‘suoneledp ‘Buniesuibug
swajsAg Juswabeuep ejeq
‘9Z0Z ‘Alenuep spuse pojied AJueLiepy | UoseDIN sBupeon (eseyd uononysuon) ovle
Jeek-1 ‘6Z0Z ‘Uis Alenuer penss) esuejdedssy jeuld joefoid uoser %001 | %00k [ewsnpuy feuden Je028Y pUE JUled - JiIoAlesey Yedzijy B AleNSW
'S[eRIUQNS [BUSlEW UIR)qO | YOSBIYIN (eseyd ubiseq) 1eooey pue juled YOWLG
03 Bunjiom ujBeq |im Jeis "[eBej Aq peacidde etem s)oenUOY uosepr siv sllonlesey ebply Jeeg 1SBAM ® | 'ON uoAue) Apley
‘swiel) aWl} GZ0Z Jequiessd/iaqUIaAoN eqoesg | o uBiseqg (eseyd ubiseq) £0S1S
Joj pa[npeyos Hodes ubisep-e.d sy} jo uoneiedasd Allepmn %0T | %0z 8snoH-uj Jioalesey wueju| youey abpry
muow.—o.hn_ AIOAIBS3Y
1 "oN
: sl | |

AIGVIANNS S1O3Arodd aadNnd 1viidvO - il 319Vl

INIFNLHVHIA ONIRIFINIONS




§20Z Joquidydag g jo p abed Aewwing sjpoafold papund jejdesn

-aje|dwo S| MJOM jue} JoBjU0Y BULIO|YD owﬂw_:m._wn_ %49 | %29 sepe.Bdn Joulpy esool 066€S
ojjuJe Ul
aje|dwos s| josloid ou_.__.m Ewu_ %8z | %Sz | ‘Auedwon epsuusp sepelbdn Z "oN Jeyue|) esocop 0£EES
ubiseq esnoH-u|
olues (162'009%)
‘Butmelaal Ajjuelino s| yeis ‘soeds pue suejd 9,66 PeAledel JeiS ou:.m wo.y %S¢ | %S¢ S8)eI0SSY uBise( - 19eloid Aol esooN 002€S
» Apeig preyory
olliBD (eL9'8719)
‘Buimelnad Apusano si yeys "sdeds pue suejd %66 POAIedel JeIS ou:.m we. %GE | %SE SOJBID0SSY opeibdn jonuoD JOJO UOHBIS YT SMOpPESN 06ZES
g Apeug preyoly
"yeiq ybnod e uo Jojesed() Jejemelseps Yiim Bunjiom si jjeis ow_,__ﬂh%._wn_ %09 | %09 esnoH-u| juewidojgre(] [enue RO JOIEMB]ISEAN ESOO 0£0£S
mwuw_o._m 3___owu_ uolewie|d29y Jajepn :O»:mo SO0 13M07
"2JBM}JOS MBU BY} O} [8poW WS)SAS ajem
9L} JO UOISIBAUOD pelelS 'eJemyos Buljopow j9SSE pue Jemes ‘Iejem S— (leeN uar)
MeU pajjejsul pue peseyoind °‘SUocI)ipuod MO} MO| JIoAIBse) sjenjeAe Aile %01 | %0L seolAeg sisAjeuy eby Jejep 06515
0} jepowu Jeyndwio sy} Bunepdn pue BujjenieAg ‘uonenjeAs ey ul IIEM Bugnsuo) uolssipg
esn Joj euoz Aq auoz eiep ebesn Jejew Jejem Buiziuebio pue Buiosjjon
sjoeloid senijioe

AAVININNS S1O3Mr0¥d d3dNNd TvV.1idvO - Il 319V.L
ININLAFVHIA ONIRMIINIONT



$20Z Jequieydag 9 Jo G abed Krewwng s)aslold papund [eydes

Jequejdes ul AJANoY oN ‘sueld juswdojeaep
{dADA) uones ebeyia Jo jeaoidde Aunos Buipued uonisinboe e)g
‘paynuapl sjuawslinbel eyis uonels Y "eejdwiod ubisep Areulwield

ojjuie) {ubiseq Areuiwyeid) ubiseq

opuewe4 | %OF | %0V | syuar/kpeuuey uoners yr ebejiA yon | 0299

Jequeides ul AJAOY ON "LWIB)SAS UONDB|[0D JOMBS 8INsseld oNLLE
mo] 8BejjiA Yinog ay) 0} pelosuUod ale ey} seiedoid [eioJsuILoD P u.me %08 | %08 8shoH-u| uone|ejsu| Jeje|\ moj4 duind Japuug 09295
SNOUEA JE SJ8jaWl MO} 8y} 1O Uone|elsul 10} D4 Ue Buidojeasp si ye1s P d

Jequieydes Ul AJAOY ON ‘©sin0d

JjoB ey uo senijoe) ebelo)s [euosess [euoyippe dojeaep o} uojelodion o”".__ﬂ_“wu_ %08 | %08 aSNoH-U| abelo)g |eUOSESS 85IN0Y Jlog) Aal[eA SPOOAA 0.19%
juswidojere( 2iwouoas [enbsed ues Yiim yiom o) Buinunguos yeis
‘Buniesuibuy uos(ipn Jexe Aq peJedesd Bulag Apn)s Jemes
jo mainal Buipuad juswidojeaa(] ¥ea1) Ueipu| al) UM peoy Jejus) suonisinboy Apedold
AejleA 1O yllou 8)is e 0} sAoW ABW 8)iS uonels Y "ssesoud jeroidde aqgeis) g
ue|d ayis ey} uo Jedojaasp Aq apew useq sey sselboid oN "ue|d Allepn %08 | %08 8SNOH-U| 1eloid Ocles
alls uonels abe|lin dADA Jo [eaosdde Ljunos pue AAOY PeOY Ye8l) uolsuedx3 Jejems)sepn Youry A3|jeA SPOOA

uelpu] jo uonnjosal Buipuad si uoisinboe ajis uonels Y ebe(IA ULUON

syoelold uoisuedxy ANj1oe4 UoRRWER|IAY JaJep Youey AajjeA SPOOM

A b:__."_.c:_.:
aofode 4010ENU0Y.

| owey 130f0sd orcll

AAVINIANS S103ro¥d d3dNNd TTv.LIidvO - il 318VL
INJNLUVHIA ONRIFINIONI



6202 Joquiaydes g jo g abed Arewwng sjosloid papund jejides

(dWNS) ueld wewebeuey Jusuny Jes

'670Z Jequieeq 0} peAeiep ess peinpeuds | 4 >0 | %s | %g 9SNoH-U| suswelnbey | 08825
IIEAA JuLed abieyosiq e)sep JHM Uouey As|leA SPOOA
‘siojesBojul weisAs omy woly sjesodouad pejdijos
. s ojjuen uonewolny
pejejdwon si 18loid UaIsisAuc) JWH opuewe. %G %S eoeeI| apeifidn [AH 3HM HAM 0L6.G

VaVOS IejepM U Jele e)s o) peinpayds s epesBdn IWH FHM HAM

uewdinbe aj8y3 jo 3583 jojid e 1o} Jeinjarjnuewl ojjuie)

Jsyjoue yse |[Im pue syjnsed ay) Buijenjeas j13s sl yeys | opuewsq %0 %0 Jousyoly) pidey 082Le
. ojjwed
9202 Asenuer ui edid ejenjens |im yeis %0 | %0 uonenjeag Buidid uonesey | 07225
opuews4
920 YoieW s uonejduwios pejedionuy ‘|enuel | ojEd |, o | o o 8snoH-u| uswidojara(] [ENUEW R0 JOIEMSISBM MAM |  0E0.S

W20 J10j sjuswyorye pue sbuimesp Buionpoad yeys BuesuiBug | opuewead

sjosloid A)j1oe4 uonewe|oay I3 Yourey AajjeA SPOOM

AAVIANNS S103rodd a3adNn4d viidvO - il 318Vl
ININLAVdIA ONIYIINIONS



T e ey e DO R ey (e ot

ERSENCLIBIEH & - SLOL%EM

passseny w1t py H{DAST At fadiodI00) oMU SepMonll 1D | TTKI0M 1302 H] 9 |0 ety

[~

DOOXLSYXXX26-82-90-21
(XXX98)XXX95-8£-90-91
(OXXSS)XXXSS-8L-00-G1
OOM(ES)XXXES-8L-90-EL
OOONXXX1S-82-90-L0
anN3oa

s

3~dn

N

"

L

[ oss ‘ots ‘sz ‘oz ‘osozs|

{ - oeres |

1.m
ol ™ ) -
o B
4
i,
PAPS
1 _.;. .__. ...
V) 0\

0% A
W RENS G \

-

S TR Tne
L}

o e s

- U |
r e S B e e
oo ml_.wu|_u£ ....ww»in

S103ro¥d INIWIAOHANI TVLIdYD 1 "+

juswipedaq Buusauibug




F. MAPPING:

General Activity In the month of September, staff received mapping update requests for a total
of 15, and 36 were completed. In addition, staff assisted with the Portinos Special Project
drawings, the Gordon Hill Upper Pipeline, and the North Broadway Pipeline Relocation Capital
Improvement Project. '

MAPS AND RECORDS UPDATE STATUS TABLE
Canite} Developer |Encroachment Special Facility
September Improvement . @ . (3 . @ . (5]

Projects {1 Projects Permits Projects Mapping
Beginning Log 2 0 0 0 84
PlusNew 1 0 1 1 15
Less Completed (1) 0 (1) (1) [ (36)
Ending Log 2 0 0 0o 63

Maps and Records Updates: Maps and records consist of preparing record drawings (as-
builts) and valve detail drawings and updating the District base map, GIS facility map, and
database. Maps and records are continually being updated to accurately reflect completed
projects, non-District improvements (encroachments), and current field conditions. The
following table summarizes the status of the record map updates.

Maps and Records Update Status Table Footnotes:

1) Capital Improvement Projects — This column represents AutoCAD record drawing status of
recently constructed Capital Improvement Projects. Each project may generate or affect
one or more record drawings. Each project is counted as one regardless of the number of
improvement sheets.

2) Developer Projects — This column represents AutoCAD record drawing status of recently
constructed Developer Improvement Projects. Each project may generate or affect one or
more record drawings. Each project is counted as one regardless of the number of
improvement sheets.

3) Encroachment Permits — This column represents changes made to existing AutoCAD
record drawings to reflect an encroachment that has been generated through the permit
process.

4) Special Projects — This column represents AutoCAD record drawing status of recently
constructed Special Projects such as the installation of new fire hydrants or service laterals.

5) Facility Mapping — This column represents individual minor mapping update requests from
field or office staff.

SEPTEMBER 2025
November 17, 2025 9 Monthly Status Report



G. FUNDING REQUESTS:

Drinking Water_State Revolving Fund Loan (DWSRF) Application — 2020 Pipeline
Replacement Project. This DWSRF Loan provides funding for Four pipeline replacement
projects, Gordon Hill, Oat Hill, Lilac Road, and Alps Way. Loan approval in the amount of
$8.5M was received in March '22. Staff has submitted eight disbursement requests for
construction funding, the most recent being Disbursement No. 8 ($168K) submitted in
November 2024, for expenses through August 30, 2024. Funding for Disbursement No. 8
($121K) was received June 5, 2025. On average, it takes 140 days from disbursement
submittal to receipt of the SRF loan proceeds. To date, the SWRCB has disbursed $7.963M
in loan proceeds. An extension on the completion date of the SRF Loan was approved
allowing additional time to submit the final disbursement request. Submittal of the final
disbursement request is anticipated for October '25.

EPA Community Grant. In April ‘23, VCMWD was awarded a $3.06M Community Grant for
the Lilac Road Pipeline Replacement Project. Because the Lilac Road project was already
under construction, the EPA approved a “Technical Correction” to shift the grant funding from
the Lilac Road Pipeline Replacement Project to the Rodriguez Road Pipeline Replacement
Project.

In April ‘24, VCMWD was awarded a $715K Community Grant for the Old Castle Road Pipeline
Replacement Project. A “Technical Correction” was approved to shift the $3.06M grant
funding from the Rodriguez Road Pipeline Replacement Project to the Old Castle Road
Pipeline Replacement Project for a combined total of $3,775M.

EPA staff is completing their final review of the application and NEPA certifications
needed for final approval of the application

Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Loan (DWSRF) Application — 2023 Water Facility
Replacement Project. Staff prepared and submitted in November '23 a $9.3M application
($12.36M total, less the $3.06M in grant funding) to the SWRCB for funding the following three
projects: a) Old Castle Road Pipeline Replacement, b) Broadway South Pipeline
Replacement, and c¢) Rodriguez Road Pipeline Replacement. Due to anticipated cash flow
requirements during construction, staff reduced the loan request to a $5.525M application to
include only the Old Castle project in combination with the $3.775M for a total project cost of
$9.3M. The application was completed in December, and the SWRCB staff is reviewing the
submitted documents for issuance of the loan approval. The project was included in the FY
25-26 DWSRF Intended Use Plan. Staff anticipates receiving the Instaliment Sale
Agreement from the SWRCB in October ’25 for VCMWD Board in November ‘25.

Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Loan (DWSRF) Application — North Broadway
Pipeline Relocation Project. In December '24 Staff prepared and submitted a $4.2M
application for the North Broadway Pipeline Relocation Project. This was one of the projects
eliminated from the 2023 Water Facility Replacement Project for cash flow purposes. The
project was included in the FY 25-26 DWSRF Intended Use Plan. Staff is responding to
miscellaneous questions as SWRCB staff completes their review. Approval of the
application is anticipated in Spring '26 with loan documents provided for VCMWD
Board approval by Summer ’26.

H. SEMINARS/MEETINGS:

9/19/2025 —M. Wick virtually attended the DWR 3 Thursday Water Loss Webinar.

SEPTEMBER 2025
November 17, 2025 10 Monthly Status Report



IV. FINANCE DEPARTMENT:

A. COMPARISON OF STATISTICS: SEPT FY to Date FY to Date
2025 2025-26 2024-25
BILLS MAILED: 10,517 31,613 31,523
Actions for Non-Payment:
Notices Mailed 1,459 4,019 3,862
48 Hr. Phone Calls 559 1,664 1,436
Meters Flow Restricted 2 5 28
Accounts Liened 2 5 28
Lien Notices Mailed 6 13 90
Accounts Transferred 34 110 126
CUSTOMER COUNTS: SEPT SEPT SEPT
Active Water Accounts: 2025 2024 2023
Certified Ag - PSAWR 625 637 637
M&I 9,201 9,176 9,120
Fire Meters 2.042 2,017 1.959
Total Active Accounts 11,866 11,830 11,716
Inactive Water Accounts:
PSAWR 54 49 47
M&I 719 712 730
Fire Meters 161 148 157
Total Inactive Accounts 934 909 934
Total Water Accounts 12,802 12,739 12,650
Active Wastewater Accounts
Moosa 2,476 2,472 2,494
Woods Valley 983.0 974.0 936.0
Total Wastewater Accounts 3,459.0 3,446.0 3,430.0
Acre-Feet Value
Interim MWD Agricultural Program:
JULY 1994 through DEC 2012 513,882.8 $63,681,802
MWD RTS Estimated Savings:
JAN 2003 through DEC 2012 $17,884,325
SDCWA PSAWR:
JULY 1998 through JUNE 2025 503.321.4 38,424,769
SDCWA Emergency Storage Est. Savings:
JAN 2003 through JUNE 2025 37,861,446
SDCWA Supply Reliability Est. Savings:
JAN 2016 through JUNE 2025 $ 6,800,023
TOTAL MWD & SDCWA DISCOUNTS: $164,652,365

SEPTEMBER 2025

November 17, 2025 11 Monthly Status Report



B. MEETINGS:

09/8/2025 - Jim attended the Member Agency Finance Officers (MAFO): SDCWA Long
Range Financial Plan Meeting #2.

09/09/2025 - Jim attended the SAFER Clearinghouse WEBKey Login Webinar.

09/09/2025 - Ashlyn attended the Notary Seminar & Testing at the Courtyard in Murrieta.

SEPTEMBER 2025

November 17, 2025 12 Monthly Status Report



V.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENT:

A. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS -

SCADA HMI Improvements — Replacement of the HMI system for the water system is in in
progress of being initially deployed to North County Emergency Storage Project (NCESP)
sites and then expanded to other sites in the future. Both Halcones and Muutama sites are
now online on the wide-area network. HMI software upgrade is also being planned for
Woods Valley WTP. Staff is currently developing updated SCADA standards and templates
in conjunction with the contractor.

SCADA Infrastructure Upgrades — This project will replace the SCADA virtual host servers
with new hardware, storage, and operating systems. Firewalls and security appliances will
also be replaced with up-to-date hardware. The project is currently in RFQ stage.

Asset Management System — Cityworks development and deployment is continuing, which
includes fleet maintenance, equipment/tools, storeroom modules, and integration with GIS
and ERP systems. Various reports and dashboards for water operations are being
developed and improved. Staff is evaluating possible migration to a cloud-based system.

Boardroom Technology Upgrade — The existing video technology in the board room is being
replaced with a new high definition media system. The new system will allow presenting to
multiple displays simultaneously and include high definition video streaming capability. High
Definition HDMI wiring upgrade has been completed, and the system is currently being
configured.

Office Productivity Software — This project will upgrade all District computers to a new
Microsoft Office productivity software. Staff is currently evaluating whether to continue with
perpetual license version, or go with a subscription-based licensing model.

. GENERAL ACTIVITY -

SCADA Upgrades — Continuous rolling upgrades are being done to replace older devices
such as radios, cameras, network switches, and Uninterruptible Power Supply (UPS) units
with newer models, which are faster and more reliable. This is an ongoing lifecycle refresh
process.

Geographic Information Systems (GIS) Upgrades — GIS staff has deployed web maps and

user portals within the software, and GIS databases and maps have been integrated with
the Cityworks Asset Management System. The system is being continuously enhanced and
actively used by District personnel.

Video Surveillance System Upgrades — Staff is continuing to enhance the system by
upgrading cameras with new Al-capable models and performing software upgrades to
existing systems.

Analog Phone Circuit Migration — Due to AT&T planning to phase out analog phone lines in
the area in the next few years, staff installed an analog gateway device that connects the
analog lines to District’s VolP phone system. All remaining analog circuits will be switched
to digital by the end of FY 2025/26.

SEPTEMBER 2025

November 17, 2025 13 Monthly Status Report



C. SYSTEM STATUS -
All systems operated normally in September 2025.

D. MEETINGS -
No meetings attended in September 2025.

SEPTEMBER 2025
November 17, 2025 14 Monthly Status Report



L jo | ebeyg
deqg L1

‘uogewojul uoneinbyuod

pue sajonb Buuinboe Ajuaing aouewlopad pasesloul

aABY pue sa)INs sI1emyos AJunoaas jsaje| sy Buluury

alempley ajep-0j-dn yum pasejdal aq |jim suoljeoo)

osay) je sooue|dde Ajunoas pue s|lemaly 8y | "SWISAS

Bunjelado ajep-oj-dn ypm pue ‘sbelo)s ejep mau ‘alempiey

9A|ld opuy JOAISS MBU YHMm s1aA1as ay) aoejdal |im 1o9foad siyj

‘uoljewIo| uoneinbyuco

pue sajonb Buuinbae Ajuaung “saakojdws |je

10} aiem)os Aaponpoid 9910 JOSOII JO UOISIaA a)ep-0}

9Alld opuy  -dn Jo sasua9y mau Lojdap pue aseyosnd |jim 10afoud siyy

‘ayepdn

a1em)jos aunjny uo Buipuadap pawsyap s Juswdolarsp

a|npow molpjoeq “pauueld Buiaq aie sa|NpowW JIoAISSaY
‘JuawdojeAsp ul ale sajnpow aujfug ses) pue Jojelsuss)

"wia)sAs uonoedsul Jamas JSNSJIUBIS) PUB ‘SSINPOLW JapIo

sdom ‘ualyBig yum peajsidwos si juswholdaq “ssauboid u

aA(ld Opuy st uojejuawaldw) s,welsAS Juawabeuepy 19SSy SHIOMAND

‘painbyuos Bulaq st woysAs

2] pue paj[ejsul usaq sey Buim |IWaH maN ‘ssaiboud

Ul sI yoiym ‘apelbdn weisAs uonejuasald oapia auy)

10} paJinboe uaeq aAey sjuauodwo?) ‘siep ayj uo pajejsul

aJom SJOjUOW MIN "Sesawed papesbdn yum pajjejsul sem

wis)sAs Buiweans anl| 0apIA “woolpieog ay) ul ABojouyos)

9A|ld opuy uonejuasaid oapip/olpny oyl apeldn jim joofoid

10jeUipioo)
Hebeuey sjusWIWo)
1o8foid

six-Arewiwing welasd 19 LI 60-5§202W(S2 00°00) Jequiejdes 60-520z\eHodey smels Ayuoispoday Smels Alyuop\sjuaINoaq PIRAGUIWPYY 4

%0 G asnoy-u| 000's9 $
%G e/ asnoy-u| 000'cE $
JUE)INSUCD
[ewa)xo
%86 %86 ‘@snoy-ul $0.'88 $
%66 %66 osnoy-u geL'ZE $
ydeg  bny
jJueyNSuo)
Jebpng
S20Z SZ0T | openuon gy
aje] wo) %,
spenu0)

AYVINIANS SL1O3rodd a3anNnd 1vlidvd
ININLAVdIA ADOTONHOIIL NOILVINHOLNI

9¢-5¢

9¢-5¢

61-81

11-91

pazuo
-yiny
Ad

Arewwing sja3foid papund jeyded

sapelbdn ainjoniseyu| yavos

a1eM)j0S AJIAONPOId S0WO

wv)SAS Juswabeuely Jossy

apeibdn ABojouyosa] woolipieoy

aweyn

0r¥eZLS

021G

o8vLS

0v0lLS

-ON
109foad



VI. GENERAL ADMINISTRATION PROJECTS AND PROGRAMS:

A. General Administration Meetings and Activities for Month of September 2025:

9/02/25 - VCMWD Regular Board Meeting(GA & AN);
Hollloway Settlement Conference (GA);

9/03/25 - VCMWD Agenda Meeting (GA & AN);
San Diego Integrated Regional Water Management Regional Advisory
Committee Meeting (AN);
Regional CropSWAP Meeting, Re: Additional Funding (GA);

9/04/25 — Board Duties Discussion with Board Candidate (GA & AN);
9/05/25 — ACWA Legislative Committee Meeting (AN);

9/08/25 — SDCWA Joint Public Information/Conservation Coordinators Meeting (JPIC)
(AN);
SDCWA Long-Range Financial Plan Meeting (GA);

9/09/25 — SD County Farm Bureau Water Team (GA);

9/10/25 — VCMWD Cityworks Implementation Meeting (AN);
SDCWA Twin Oaks Treatment Plant Planning Meeting (GA);
Lake Wohiford Resort Annexation Meeting (GA)

9/15/25 — VCMWD Regular Board Meeting (GA & AN);

9/16/25 - VCMWD Agenda Meeting (GA & AN);
Council of Water Utilities Luncheon (GA & AN);
SDCWA PSAWR Staff Briefing (GA);

9/17/25 — SDCWA Legislative Liaison Meeting (AN);
Department of Water Resources Local Government Climate Planning
Webinar (AN);

9/18/25 — Regional Cooperation Joint Lobbying Call (GA & AN);
Cityworks Implementation meeting (AN);
CalOES San Diego County Regional Fuel Planning Meeting (AN);

9/19/25 — North County Manager’'s Meeting (GA);
Executive Staff Meeting with Lindsay Leahy (GA & AN);

9/22/25 — SDCWA General Manager’s Meeting (GA);

9/23/25 — San Diego County Hazard Mitigation Planning Group (AN);
VCMWD CII Implementation Meeting (AN);
SDCWA Director of Operations Meeting (GA);
SD County Farm Bureau PSAWR Strategy Call (GA)

SEPTEMBER 2025
November 17, 2025 15 Monthly Status Report



9/24/25 — SDCWA Water Loss Control Workgroup (AN);
SDCWA North County Caucus Meeting (GA);

9/25/25 — SDCWA Regular Board Meeting (GA);

9/29/25 — Department of Water Resources SB 1157 Workgroup (AN);

9/30/25 — VCMWD All-Hands Staff Meeting (GA & AN);

VCMWD Cityworks implementation meeting with Lindsay Leahy (AN).

*Key: GA — Gary Arant; AN — Alisa Nichols

B. Personnel -
1) Regular Full-Time Employees, as of August 31, 2025:

Funds Budgeted Employed
Water 67 64
Wastewater 7 4
Total 74 71

2) Pending Retirements -

a) Gary Arant — December 26, 2025
b) Wally Grabbe — February 25, 2026

Compiled By: Submitted By:
V7. L/ J
Coral L. Williams, Acting Board Secretary Ei/r’ldsay Qeal@jGen{jal Manager

SEPTEMBER 2025

November 17, 2025 16 Monthly Status Report



	11-17-2025-Agenda
	1. Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting Held Monday, October 20, 2025
	2. Audit Demands and Wire Disbursements
	3. Treasurer’s Report for Month Ending September 30, 2025
	4. Financial Statements for the Quarter Ended September 30, 2025
	5. Informational Presentation by SDCWA on the San Diego  Aqueduct Bifurcation Project
	6.Ratify Execution of Recycled Water Use Agreement with (SPEDC)
	7. Request Approval of Woods Valley Ranch (WVR) Capacity Transfer Installment Purchase Agreement
	8. Old Castle Pipeline Replacement—DWSRF Good Faith Estimate Approval and Loan Document Authorization
	9. Legislative and Regulatory Report
	10. SDCWA October 2025 Board Meeting Summary
	11. September 2025 Status Report

